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Unprecedented global temperatures led 2024 to become the warmest year on record, with
record-high CO, emissions. Global warming has already caused devastating disruptions in
ecosystems, populations, and economies all around the globe, and the adverse
consequences from climate change are pressing the world more than ever to decarbonize
and electrify. The energy sector plays a central role in the transformation required. To
restrict average temperature increase to just +1.5°C by 2050, the world needs to have 90%
of renewables share in power generation by 2050, have phased out all unbated coal by
2040, and have a zero-carbon power sector by 2040.

Accordingly, renewables are already playing a key role in the global solution to energy
independence and a sustainable planet while remaining competitive and a long-term
investment priority worldwide. New clean energy sources are drivers of progress, as
investing in energy innovations creates well-paying jobs, drives economic growth, and
boosts the necessary energy transition.

The world is working towards this reality as in 2024 there were record renewable capacity
additions, surpassing the 600 GW threshold for the first time. However, even though
renewables had a remarkable growth throughout the year, the energy sector stands at a
decisive moment in history as some headwinds are hindering these efforts and the speed
and scale needed.

Firstly, high capital costs and lower energy prices challenge investment momentum for
renewables, and supply chain disruptions and pressured trade relations create obstacles to
the advancement of the energy transition. In addition, the development of renewable
projects, grids, and storage face i) permitting constraints, as accelerated permitting, more
resources, one-stop shop model, digitalized processes, expedite deadlines are required; and
ii) grid connection constraints, as there are hundreds of GW of wind and PV awaiting to
obtain grid connection. This is caused by delays on grid buildout and inefficient allocation
processes. Lastly, 2024 was also marked by significant political changes and elections
across several countries, each with potential implications for the energy sector. In the
United States, which represents approximately 50% of EDPR business portfolio, the election
of a new Trump Administration has introduced uncertainty regarding the country's climate
transition pathway, and namely the stable framework provided by the Inflation Reduction
Act introduced in 2022, as the Republican Party has a simple majority at the two chambers
of the congress (both the Senate and the House). On the other hand, in Europe, the election of
a new European Parliament in June saw centrist parties securing a majority, while right-
wing parties gained seats, potentially weakening the ambitions for net-zero targets.



These political changes, combined with the volatility in energy
prices, rising bond yields, and the uncertainties on public support
namely in US, has contributed to the underperformance of the
S&P Global Clean Energy Index, which registered a total
shareholder return (TSR) of -26%. This has highlighted the
challenges faced by pure renewables companies. EDPR's TSR of
-45% in 2024 reflects these adverse environment faced by
renewables companies in Europe and US, with particular
uncertainty in the offshore space, and some EDPR’s specific
factors, such as the downward revision of expectations of
renewables capacity additions, EBITDA and net profit for
2024-2026 announced in May 2024 and the downward review
of renewables generation for 2024, communicated in November
of 2024 due to concentration of capacity additions in late of the
year, weaker than expected wind resources mostly in Brazil and
US and higher than expected curtailment. Additionally, there was
also the lack of positive developments over the year on the
economics for our investment in Colombia, initially decided in
2019, which led to the decision to exit from Colombian projects in
December 2024.

2024 was also a year for a new mandate. EDPR's General
Shareholders’ Meeting elected new Corporate Bodies for the
2024-2026 mandate, including a new Board of Directors. This
Governing Body clearly advanced in terms of diversity, namely
regarding in terms of professional experience and skills,
gender, and nationalities. For this mandate, we also reduced the
size of the Board from 12 to 9 Directors, while increasing the
representation of Independent Directors from 50% to 67% and,
critically, also increasing the representation of women from 33%
to 44%.

The activity of the Board of Directors continues to be extended by
the dynamics of a more focused analysis and supervision of its
three Delegated Committees, composed exclusively of
Independent Directors:

Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee.

Appointments and Remunerations Committee.
Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee.

| would also like to highlight that EDPR has been successfully
implementing a Scrip Dividend Programme since 2023 to offer
our shareholders a flexible remuneration mechanism featuring
the option to receive shares, replacing the ordinary cash dividend
traditionally used to remunerate shareholders, and which had a
shares conversion rate of 97.7% in 2024. EDPR’s Board of
Directors will propose continuing the programme at the 2025
General Shareholders’ Meeting.

All in all, 2024 was a very challenging year. But | believe that we
were able to reinforce our governance model centred in a leaner,
diversified but cohesive board that will offer a stronger
supervision, and decision-making capabilities.

On behalf of EDPR’s Board of Directors, | want to thank our global
employees for their commitment, and enthusiasm. A word of
appreciation is also due to our contractors, suppliers, clients, and
partners, for your belief in the present and in the future of
business. One final word to our shareholders. Pure energy
renewables players as EDPR have suffered a highly adverse
environment with a negative impact in the price of the shares. But
despite these difficult times, we are fully committed to deliver a
sustainable creation of value.

| would also like to recognize the role of the company’s corporate
bodies, namely my fellow members of the Board of Directors, for
their full support during this demanding year.

Even though 2025 will continue to present a challenging and
uncertain macro and market outlook, | am convinced that EDPR
will continue to create attractive growth options to explore in
the near and long-term future while maintaining a strong role
in energy transition.

Antonio Gomes Mota
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In 2024, EDP Renewables (EDPR) navigated one of the most challenging landscapes the
renewables sector has ever seen, but resilience is in our DNA. With over two decades of
expertise, we remain unwavering in our mission to accelerate the clean energy transition.

New political realities and geopolitical tensions further tested the industry's resolve, affecting
confidence in the renewables’ sector growth prospects. Higher-for-longer interest rates,
lower energy prices, and delays in renewable project deployment — mainly due to permitting
and grid connection barriers — posed significant challenges to the renewables business
case.

Yet, the case for renewables remains strong. In 2024, the world recorded its hottest year on
record, surpassing the symbolic 1.5-degree threshold — an alarming reminder of the urgency
for clean energy. At the same time, affordability has regained prominence, with renewables
remaining the most competitive energy source — between 2010 and 2023, the Levelised
Cost of Energy (LCOE) for solar PV and wind dropped by 60%-90%, reinforcing their
economic advantage. Global electricity consumption is also set to rise at an unprecedented
pace, driven by the rapid expansion of artificial intelligence (Al) and data centres.

In this context, the International Energy Agency (IEA) predicts record-breaking growth in
renewables worldwide, calling this the dawn of the “electricity era”. Wind and solar are on
track to surpass coal-fired power generation before 2030, and batteries will play a crucial
role in the transition as the fastest-growing source of short-term dispatchable capacity.

Despite the headwinds, renewables will continue driving progress, creating millions of jobs,
boosting economic growth, and delivering the clean, reliable, and affordable energy the
world urgently needs.

Our Key Milestones and Challenges in 2024
Resilient Operational Performance

Backed by a €4.1 billion gross investment in 2024, our global teams achieved record-high
capacity additions of 3.8 GW, bringing our total managed capacity to 19.3 GW across
onshore wind, utility-scale solar, hybrids, and storage projects. By year-end, power
production reached 36.6 TWh, marking a 6% year-over-year increase.



In Europe, we launched operations at the 202 MWp Cerca
photovoltaic plant in Portugal, our largest in Europe. In Spain, we
announced the country’s first wind-solar hybrid project
connected to the grid, making EDPR the first company to
implement hybridization in Portugal, Spain, and Poland. We also
made significant strides in Italy, launching our first utility-scale
solar project at Boccadoro, and began construction of Germany’s
first utility-scale PV project at Ketzin, in collaboration with Kronos
Solar, as well as our first standalone storage project in the UK.

In North America, we added nearly 2 GW of new solar and energy
storage projects, accounting for about 50% of EDPR’s total
added capacity this year. This brought our regional capacity to
nearly 10 GW, spanning also onshore wind, solar, and Distributed
Generation. We expanded into Arkansas, Mississippi, and North
Carolina, extending our U.S. presence to 20 states.

In South America, after inaugurating our first wind farm in Chile
(Punta de Talca), we have installed in Brazil nearly 0.5 GW this
year, further bolstering our 1.6 GW operational wind and solar
portfolio in the country. Additionally, we are currently constructing
a new wind project with a capacity of 124 MW, scheduled for
installationin 2025.

In the Asia-Pacific region, we streamlined our focus to key growth
markets. Singapore remains our flagship market, where we
secured the largest single public tender to date (SolarNova 8) — a
200 MWp solar capacity project spanning more than 1,100 public
buildings. In Japan, we began construction of a 44 MWp solar PV
farm in Fukushima. Additionally, we expanded our footprint in
Australia by acquiring a leading local renewables developer.

Worldwide, in 2024 EDPR has signed 1.6 GWdc of new Power
Purchase Agreements (PPAs) at an average price of €63/MWh,
more than 65% of which were closed with major tech companies,
reducing exposure to spot market prices and ensuring steady
projectreturns.

For offshore wind, our Ocean Winds joint venture (50/50 with
ENGIE) now manages an 18.8 GW portfolio across 8 countries,
including 2.3 GW installed, 1.0 GW under construction, and 15.4
GW in advanced development. In Scotland, the 882 MW Moray
West offshore wind project, featuring Europe’s largest Wind
Turbine Generators — each as tall as a 70-floor building —
delivered its first electricity to the grid in 2024.

Strengthened Sustainable Practices

We are steadfast in our commitment to a zero-accident culture,
with positive safety trends vis-a-vis last year — we had zero fatal
accidents in 2024 and a 75% reduction in the Serious Injuries and
Fatalities Accidents (SIF) indicator. Safety first will remain our
priority.

EDPR was included in S&P's Global Sustainability Yearbook for
the third consecutive year, which highlights our commitment to
sustainability and the transparent communication of our progress,
above industry peers.

We are reporting information in line with the new Corporate
Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD) for the first time. This is
a step forward in the reporting of non-financial information to help
stakeholders evaluate companies’ performance, yet with room for
improvement due to the complexity and excess of data points
required to be reported.

EDPR was once again recognized as one of the world’s best
companies to work for, earning Top Employer certification in 11
countries: Portugal, Spain, France, Italy, Poland, Romania, Greece,
Brazil, Colombia, Chile, and Singapore.

Selective Investment Strategy and Financial Performance

Despite a challenging environment, we remained committed to
our highly selective investment strategy, prioritizing projects with
strong returns and a robust risk profile. In May, we recalibrated
our operational and financial targets for 2024 and 2026 and
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updated our market guidance, considering the latest outlook on
energy prices, regulations, and interest rates.

By the end of the year, recurring EBITDA (excluding capital gains)
increased 9% while recurring EBITDA reached €1.7 billion,
reflecting a 9% decline compared to 2023, with positive
underlying performance mitigated by lower Asset Rotation gains
year on year. Recurring net profit stood at €0.2 billion.

Our Total Shareholder Return (TSR) in 2024 was extremely
disappointing as it fell by 45% over the year, primarily due to U.S.
political and business uncertainty — especially regarding offshore
projects — challenges in executing asset rotation (notably within
the four transactions closed in the U.S.,, Canadaq, Italy, and
Poland), and the decision to exit our 0.5 GW wind projects in
Colombia due to concerns over its economic viability. These
challenges were mitigated in part by significant progress in
storage development, good execution in the U.S. market with the
deployment of 2 GW, and the ahead-of-schedule completion of
the Moray West offshore wind project.

The commitments for projects in Colombia were made during
2019-2020 in a stable political and regulatory environment.
However, following the COVID-19 lockdowns, a change in
government, and licensing delays — and despite our strong efforts
to ensure the projects' viability, including bilateral renegotiation of
PPAs and protocol agreements with 100% of local communities —
these projects no longer aligned with EDPR’s risk-return profile.
As a result, we have made the difficult decision not to proceed
with the investment, recognizing a full impairment of €0.7 billion
and further strengthening our internal practices to mitigate the
risk of similar occurrences in the future.

Regarding offshore operations in the U.S., given the uncertainty
following the recent U.S. administration change, Ocean Winds
made a precautionary decision to record a €0.1billion impairment
on its U.S. business, assuming a four-year delay scenario.
Nevertheless, we remain confident that offshore wind will play a
pivotal role in the future U.S. energy mix.



A Focused Approach in a Challenging Environment

While EDPR's share price has been significantly impacted, |
remain confident in the company’s ability to deliver sustained
long-term value for shareholders.

We must continue updating our business cases and making
sound investment and operational decisions with a strategic,
forward-looking approach. At the same time, we must remain
vigilant, focused, and efficient.

Our renewed operating model prioritizes delivery, operational
excellence, and profitability. Its integrated approach strengthens
key areas such as global asset management, client strategy, and
energy management, while providing support for regional
business development teams and maximizing value creation
across the company.

We are prioritizing operational excellence and reinforcing our
focus on efficiency as a competitive advantage, implementing
transformational CAPEX and OPEX initiatives throughout the
organization.

We are also placing a high focus on managing risks, particularly in
the areas of supply chain, energy markets, permitting and grid
connection, as well as regulatory and legislative frameworks. We
are concentrating on our key markets that offer low risk and better
returns, supported by stable regulatory frameworks, growth
potential, and economies of scale. Additionally, we are increasing
our investments in battery technology, which is crucial for the
energy transition and highly complementary to our wind and solar
portfolio. Due to our strong risk management practices, we will be
reducing capacity additions for 2025 and 2026, while also
controlling financial leverage and focusing on improving free cash
flow.

Our teams on the ground are deeply engaged in project
development and management, working tirelessly to overcome

the complexities of projects worldwide, and focusing on
operational excellence and efficiency while advocating with
policymakers and communities that a sustainable future depends
onrenewables.

Looking Ahead

Our sector will continue to play a crucial role in meeting the
world’s growing energy demands. At EDPR, we remain fully
committed to making a significant contribution while creating
superior value for both shareholders and stakeholders.

The strength of our business lies in the dedication of our people,
who show up every day and give their best. | extend my heartfelt
thanks to our global EDPR teams and my fellow Management
Team members, whose efforts have been instrumental in
navigating these challenging times. | am also deeply grateful to
the Chair and members of the EDPR Board of Directors for their
guidance and support.

To our shareholders, customers, suppliers, regulators, partners,
and local communities — thank you for your continued trust.

As we look ahead to 2025, the team and | remain totally focused
on creating long term shareholder value while driving the energy
transition.

Miguel Stilwell d’Andrade
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2 .1. Business environment

Geopolitical tensions and regional conflicts continued throughout 2024, significantly impacting
global stability and energy systems. The ongoing war in Ukraine remained a focal point, with
continued international sanctions against Russia and military support for Ukraine defining
geopolitical alliances. In the Middle East, heightened tensions raised fears of a broader regional
conflict. These conflicts contributed to energy price volatility, as disruptions in supply chains and
production capacities led to fluctuating prices.

In 2024, inflation kept on following the downward trend already felt in 2023. In the Eurozone
inflation was 2.4% by 2024, a drop from 5.4% in 2023, while in the United States, it stood at 2.9%
against 4.1% in 2023 (source: Focus Economics). There was a decreasing trend across markets for
commodity prices, when considering average annual prices.

The Brent price was around 80 dollars per barrel ($/bbl) at the beginning of the year and started to
increase to reach the maximum of €90/bbl by April, following the geopolitical tensions in Russia and
the Middle East, and the concerns over the potential supply disruptions. Prices decreased towards
the end of the year with an average price of $75/bbl in the last trimester. The year ended with an
average price of $81/bbl, very close to the 2023 price of $83/bbl.

In 2024, average gas prices decreased both in the US and in Europe. This was especially driven by
the lower prices in the first half of the year, with a milder winter on average in the northern
hemisphere, good gas storage levels in Europe, and new Liquefied natural gas (LNG) projects
coming online and reinforcing supply. Henry Hub — reference index in the US - reached an average
price of 2.1dollars per million British thermal units ($/MMBtu) in 2024, compared to $2.5/MMBtu in
2023. The European reference gas index (Title Transfer Facility or TTF) price had an average price
of €33/MWhin 2024, a =18% decrease compared to the average price of 41€/MWhin 2023.

In Europe, the reference carbon price of the European Emissions Trading System (ETS) was on
average €65/ton in 2024, decreasing from the €84/ton average price in 2023, following additional
supply and lower emissions.

2024 was a year with multiple political changes and elections taking place in several countries
worldwide. Of all, at least three should be highlighted, as they may bring significant changes to the
energy sector. In June, a new European Parliament was elected, with centrist parties ensuring the
majority and right-wing parties gaining seats, which could weaken net-zero target ambitions.
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Secondly, the UK election brought to power the Labour Party bringing forward strong ambition on
renewables and nuclear deployment. And thirdly, the elections in the US with a victory for the
Republican party potentially threatening the climate transition pathway the country has been
pursuing in the past years.

Electricity demand keeps growing worldwide with special attention on artificial intelligence and
data centres, a source of additional demand with big growth potential in the coming years. The
electrification of other end-uses such as road transport is a key trend for the energy sector with the
unprecedented growth of electric vehicles, which reached 7 million in global sales in the first half of
2024 (25% more than in 1H2023), mainly led by China with over 4 million (source: IEA WEO 2024).

Global warming in 2024

2024 has become the warmest year on record, according to the European Earth Observation
Programme, “Copernicus”. Unprecedented global temperatures led 2024 to become the
hottest year ever registered, overtaking 2023. From January to September, global mean
surface air temperature was 1.54°C warmer than the 1850-1900 pre-industrial level, boosted
by the warming event El Nifio. 2024 is the year in which the threshold of the 1.5°C agreed under
the Paris Climate Agreement is surpassed.

Global warming has already caused devastating disruptions in ecosystems, populations, and
economies all around the globe, and impacts seem to be increasingly catastrophic. The year
2024 was no exception and important climate-related events caused widespread damage all
around the world. Italy and South America were hit by severe droughts, while there were
extreme floods in Nepal, Sudan, and Europe. Heatwaves in Mexico, Mali, and Saudi Arabia
killed thousands and the US, and the Philippines experienced devastating cyclones (source:
Reuters).
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Climate negotiations: 29" Conference of the Parties of the UNFCCC (COP 29)

The 2024 United Nations Conference of the Parties (COP) took place in Baku, Azerbaijan from
November 11th to 22nd.

A new climate finance goal was agreed upon targeting investment for the developing nations
and their climate efforts. Developed countries committed to mobilize at least $300 Bn annually
for developing countries by 2035 (previous commitment was $100 Bn set in 2009 for the
2020-2025 period), with a long-term goal to scale up to $1.3 trillion per year by 2035, from all
public and private sources.

After many years of negotiations, the rules and guidelines on international carbon trading were
finalised and formally adopted (Article 6 of the Paris Agreement). With this program, it will be
possible for countries to trade carbon credits from greenhouse gas reductions or removals, and
in this way help other countries meet their climate goals, allowing as well the private sector to
participate.

European Energy Policy

In 2024, European energy policy saw several significant developments aimed at enhancing energy
security, sustainability, and the transition to a net-zero future. In February, the European
Commission presented a climate assessment setting targets for 2040, including a 55% reduction in
greenhouse gas emissions compared to 1990 levels, a 45% share of renewable energy in the EU's
energy mix, and a 40% improvement in energy efficiency. Moreover, there was relevant progress on
legislative pieces.

The revision of the Regulation and Directive on the Internal Electricity Market came into force in
July 2024, aiming to stabilise electricity prices while ensuring aresilient electricity system fit to meet
the ambitious decarbonization targets. The revision promotes price predictability through
enhancing the uptake of Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) and 2-ways contracts for differences
(CfDs). Resiliency is ensured by identifying capacity mechanisms as structural elements of the
market design, complemented by non-fossil flexibility support schemes. Anticipatory investments in
grids are recognized to support the energy transition, while customers benefit from additional
protection mechanisms.

The Regulation on Wholesale Energy Market Integrity and Transparency (REMIT) was
strengthened to prevent market manipulation and increase transparency. The revised REMIT came
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into force in May 2024. The amendments included enhanced monitoring and enforcement
mechanisms, better alignment with financial market regulations, and increased penalties for non-
compliance.

The Net Zero Industry Act (NZIA) came into force in July 2024 to strengthen European
manufacturing capacity and promote measures to overcome barriers to the scaling up of such
capacity, facilitating market access for net-zero products. The Regulation also includes provisions
for financial support, innovation incentives, and the development of a skilled workforce in the net-
zero technology sector.

To secure the supply of critical and strategic raw materials, the Critical Raw Materials Act entered
into force in May 2024. The Regulation identifies lists of raw materials needed for key technologies
for the EU's green ambitions and goals. It sets benchmarks to be achieved by 2030: the EU should
mine 10% of its annual needs, process 40% of its needs, and cover 25% of its needs through
recycling. It also promotes international partnerships and sustainable sourcing practices.

The Energy Performance of Buildings Directive was revised and entered into force in May 2024.
The revision aimed to increase the rate of building renovations and support decarbonisation. An
implementation guide was launched in November 2024 to help stakeholders enhance energy
efficiency in buildings. The Directive also includes measures to promote smart technologies and
protect vulnerable consumers.

Additionally, the Hydrogen and Gas Decarbonisation Package came into force in July 2024,
introducing a new regulatory framework for hydrogen infrastructure, promoting the development of
a competitive hydrogen market, and an update on EU natural gas market rules. The hydrogen
regulatory framework includes provisions for the certification of renewable and low-carbon
hydrogen, the repurposing of existing natural gas infrastructure for hydrogen transport, and the
establishment of hydrogen networks. It aims to facilitate the integration of hydrogen into the energy
system and support the EU's hydrogen strategy.

Finally, to strengthen EU competitiveness, Mario Draghi was tasked by the European Commission to
prepare a report on his vision for the future of European competitiveness. The Draghi Report,
published in September 2024, looks at the challenges faced by the industry and companies in the
single market and offers recommendations for sectoral policies, including on energy, clean
technologies, and energy-intensive industries. The findings of the report will contribute to the
development of the new Clean Industrial Deal, which will be presented in the first 100 days of the new
Commission mandate.
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US Energy Policy

2024 regulatory framework in the United States has been impacted by Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission's (FERC) long-term transmission planning rule and the result of Presidential elections.

FERC's Order No. 1920, published on May 13, 2024, mandates comprehensive long-term
transmission planning to enhance grid reliability, requiring transmission providers to develop 20-
year regional plans every five years, considering various scenarios and benefits, including options
for enhancing existing facilities ("right-sizing"), and deploying grid enhancing technologies. An
amended version, Order 1920A, issued in December, clarifies the state's role in planning, allowing
states to request additional scenarios and incremental cost considerations. Transmission providers
must detail costs and benefits of potential Long-Term Regional Transmission (LTRT) facilities on a
zonal basis, and if states agree on a cost allocation approach, it must be filed with FERC. Costs can
be assigned based on specific benefits, and states can request an additional six months for cost
allocation negotiations, extending the compliance period and planning cycles.

In the November federal elections, Republicans gained control of the presidency, Senate, and the
House. Immediately following President Trump’s inauguration on January 20" he signed a litany of
Executive Orders, three of which directly impact the renewables sector. A positive implication of
these orders is a streamlining to the permitting processes and regulations surrounding energy.
Negatively, the orders ban federal leases for offshore wind projects, attempt to pause onshore wind
by restricting federal permitting, and temporarily pause on regulation that has not yet take full effect.
These orders will not directly affect the ITC and PTC within the IRA. These orders did not include
details on the timelines and scopes of their reach; however, in the coming weeks and months as
Trump appointees assume their respective offices across federal agencies and budget
reconciliation discussions continue, specifics on how these Executive Orders will affect the
renewables sector will become more clear. This shift will certainly bring change to clean energy
policy, but Republicans remain split on IRA repeal. A full repeal of the IRA remains unlikely, but it will
face political and fiscal pressures.

Tariffs under the new administration are expected to be more targeted despite Trump’s broad
campaign promises. Policies will emphasize domestic manufacturing but may also face opposition
from key industries. The Manchin-Barrasso Energy Permitting Reform Act is expected to stall; focus
may shift towards oil and gas-friendly policies and limited federal land use for clean energy projects.
FERC’s Democratic majority will persist until 2026 but could shift under new leadership. State-level
policies could become more influential in response to federal changes.

'“Renewables 2024” released in October 2024
2 Forecasts made by experts including IEA, BNEF and S&P
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The International Energy Agency (IEA)1 reports that global renewable energy capacity grew by
approximately 18% in 2024 compared to the previous year. Capacity additions reached an
estimated 666 GW, surpassing the 600 GW threshold for the first time, with solar photovoltaic (PV)
contributing around three-quarters of the total. This substantial growth underscores the potential for
even faster expansion over the next five years, improving the likelihood of tripling global renewable
capacity by 2030—a goal set during the COP 28 Climate Change Conference. The |IEA projects
annual additions will climb from 666 GW in 2024 to nearly 935 GW by 2030, with renewables
expected to account for almost half of the world’s electricity generation by the decade's end.

The remarkable growth in renewables is driven more by economic factors than climate policies. In
many countries, renewables—particularly solar power—have become the most cost-effective
option for new power generation. China is poised to solidify its position as the leader in renewable
energy, increasing wind and solar capacity of 18% and 45,2% respectively. Meanwhile, the
European Union and the United States are projected to double their renewable growth rates
between 2024 and 2030, and India is anticipated to achieve the fastest growth rate among major
economies.

Wind power in 2024 record additions but uneven expansion

Onshore

According to IEA estimations, global wind additions could have reached 126 GW in 2024. This
would represent, the highest figure ever seen, mainly due to a strong performance of the offshore
wind sector, with around 20 GW commissioned. Long-term fundaments remain strong for the
coming years, and supportive policies in China, the US and Europe, are expected to boost wind
additions in the coming years. However, short and medium-term challenges in project execution
remain.

New installations in China could have hit a record and grow 80 GW, with data from the National
Energy Administration pointing to a total wind installed capacity of 520 GW.

In the US, new installations have grown at a moderate pace, with around 6-7,5 GW built in 20247,
The Inflation Reduction Act, approved in 2022, has played a key role in fuelling wind energy
investments and strengthening the domestic supply chain. However, following Trump's re-election,
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there are concerns that the US's climate ambitions could be rolled back. Despite these concerns, an
outright repeal of the IRA is unlikely according to experts, given the popularity of its tax credits and
the economic benefits they bring to many Republican-leaning states.

According to preliminary figures from Wind Europe, approximately 15 GW of wind capacity may
have been commissioned in Europe in 2024, a decrease from 18.3 GW in 2023. The EU only added
13 GW of wind capacity in 2024, significantly below the 30 GW per year required to meet its 2030
energy targets. However, there are reasons for optimism. Onshore wind permitting reached record
levels in the first half of 2024, driven largely by new EU permitting rules and progress in
implementing the Renewable Energy Directive (RED lll). Additionally, Europe awarded 37 GW of
wind in 2024, more than ever before and turbine orders also saw improvements during the same
period. Germany was the largest market, installing 3,2 GW of onshore wind, of which, around a third,
came from repowering projects. In addition, 14 GW of wind were permitted in 2024 and 11 GW were
awarded in auctions®. Other major onshore markets in 2024 include Finland, France, Spain and
Sweden.

In the UK, the National Energy System Independent Operator (NESO) reported that in 2024, wind
was the largest source of electricity generation in the country for the first time in its history,
representing 30% of total generation.

In South America, Brazil remains the largest wind market, with record additions of 4,3 GW*. This
growth could bring Brazil’s total installed capacity to more than 34 GW, making it the country’s
second-largest generating technology, after large-scale hydro.

Offshore

According to expertsS, between 14 and 21 GW of new offshore wind projects could have been
commissioned across the world. Developers still struggle with higher costs, supply chain constraints
and regulatory uncertainty.

China is expected to be the largest contributor after than the government prioritized offshore wind in
its 14" Five-year Plan. Experts forecast that around 9-14 GW could have been added in the country.

% Data released by the German Wind Energy Association (BWE) and engineering federation VDMA Power Systems.
* Data released by the National Electricity Energy Agency (ANEEL)
° Experts consulted include IEA, GWEC, BNEF and S&P

6 Experts consulted include IEA, SEIA (Solar Energy Industries Association), American Clean Power Association, S&P and Bloomberg New Energy Finance
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According to Wind Europe preliminary data, Europe commissioned 2,3 GW of offshore wind
capacity, less than the 3,8 GW witnessed in 2023. Most of this capacity was installed in Germany,
France and the UK.

2024: a record-breaking year for solar PV global installations

2024 is on course to become another record-breaking year for solar PV, with the IEA forecasting
around 505 GW of new installed capacity, a18,5% increase compared to 2023. Solar PV accounted
for nearly three-quarters of all renewable energy additions globally, highlighting its pivotal role in the
transition to clean energy. According to preliminary forecasts, around 60% of new solar PV capacity
would be utility-scale projects and the remaining ones small-scale (mainly residential and
commercial systems).

China is expected to have significantly expanded its solar PV capacity in 2024, installing
approximately 277 GW according to data released by China’s National Energy Administration
(NEA). With these results, China consolidates its position as the largest player in the global solar PV
industry, both in terms of manufacturing and installed capacity. Its dominance is a result of
comprehensive policy initiatives, massive investments and economies of scale. India also saw a
great surge in solar installations in 2024. Only in the first six months of 2024, India had already
installed more solar capacity than it did in the whole 2023, (15 GW vs 10 GW in 2023) reaching 24,5
GW at the end of 2024.

In the US, approximately 38-43 GW of solar PV capacity could have been added in 2024,
according to analysts consulted®. Solar PV is the fastest-growing source of electricity in the US,
making up almost half of all new power capacity in the first three quarters of 2024. As reported by
the American Clean Power Association, 19.5 GW of utility-scale solar capacity was commissioned
during the first three quarters of 2024, more than twice the amount installed by the same time in
2023.

In 2024, the EU achieved a record-breaking installation of 65.5 GW of solar capacity, marking a 4%
increase compared to 2023, as reported by Solar Power Europe. Solar PV has surpassed in 2024 all
other technologies in terms of new capacity added, bringing the EU's total operational solar power
capacity to 338 GW. After several years of remarkable growth, with a 41-53% increase observed
between 2021 and 2023, the sector has experienced a significant slowdown in deployment.
According to Solar Power Europe, this deceleration is attributed to the stabilization of energy bills for
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consumers, along with other challenges such as permitting issues, grid bottlenecks, limited energy
system flexibility, and low power prices, particularly during solar PV hours, which impact profitability.
At the national level, Solar Power Europe reported that five of the top ten EU solar markets—Spain,
Poland, the Netherlands, Austria, and Hungary—installed less solar capacity in 2024 compared to
2023. In contrast, Germany, ltaly, France, Greece and Portugal achieved modest increases, with
most adding approximately 1 GW more than the previous year. Germany continues to lead the
European solar PV market, adding 16.2 GW of new capacity in 2024, according to the German
Federal Network Agency (BNetzA). These additions bring the country's total installed capacity to
nearly 100 GW, accounting for approximately 14 % of its electricity consumption.

In South America, Brazil remains a leader in solar energy, surpassing 50 GW of operational solar
capacity in 2024. With this milestone, Brazil joins an elite group of six countries—Ching, the United
States, Germany, India, and Japan—that have achieved over 50 GW of installed solar capacity

Storage and flexibility: key drivers for a resilient and decarbonized energy future

The global energy system is undergoing a profound transformation, driven primarily by the
increasing share of renewable energy, the deployment of distributed energy resources, and progress
in digitalization. However, to successfully achieve the clean energy transition and ensure secure and
resilient power systems, flexibility must be integrated throughout the entire system.

Energy system flexibility refers to the ability to adjust supply and demand to achieve an energy
balance. It has become a critical priority because larger shares of variable renewables (in particular
wind and solar PV) increase the potential for imbalances, curtailment and negative prices.

There are different tools and technologies to increase flexibility, including electricity storage,
stronger grids, demand-side response and dispatchable lower-emissions sources of power.

The global energy storage market has been rapidly increasing since 2020 and is set for another
record year, with experts forecasting around 64-69 GW of additions’, of which around 50% would
be in China.

Hydro pumped storage remains the dominant form of energy storage today, accounting for the
majority of global storage capacity. As a mature and well-established technology, it plays a crucial
role in balancing supply and demand, providing grid stability, and supporting the integration of
renewable energy. By using surplus electricity to pump water to a higher elevation and then
releasing it to generate power when needed, hydro pumped storage has been areliable and efficient

’ Analysts consulted include S&P, BNEF and Wood MacKenzie
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solution for decades. However, as the energy landscape evolves, new storage technologies, such as
batteries, are emerging to complement hydro pumped storage.

Batteries—particularly lithium-ion batteries—are becoming an increasingly vital component of
energy systems. Their widespread deployment could transform the global energy landscape by
enabling sustainable technologies to meet demand, ultimately reducing global emissions and
accelerating the transition to clean energy. Batteries are also versatile, serving both grid-scale
applications and smaller, behind-the-meter uses in residential and commercial settings to optimize
energy consumption.

As battery costs continue to fall due to lower raw material prices and expanded manufacturing
capacity, they are becoming more cost-competitive, with further reductions anticipated as electric
vehicle production scales up. However, challenges remain. Energy storage must be integrated into
national energy plans, with dedicated support mechanisms established to ensure long-term revenue
stability and predictability. A well-designed market, including effective capacity markets and
flexible market mechanisms, is also essential to fully unlock the potential of storage. In the context of
European market design, the development of such markets will be crucial to promote efficient
integration of storage technologies and enhance grid stability. Furthermore, conducting
comprehensive flexibility assessments will be key to optimizing the role of storage in balancing
supply and demand. Additionally, diversifying and strengthening supply chains is crucial, as battery
production is currently concentrated in specific regions, posing potential security of supply risks.

Grid infrastructure and interconnectors are vital for flexibility, as they enable electricity to flow
across countries and within national borders, helping to balance geographic fluctuations in wind and
solar power generation. While global investments in grids have significantly increased in recent
years, delays in grid improvements and extensions remain a major obstacle to the wider deployment
of renewable energy. However, these challenges can be addressed through: (i) long-term grid
planning, (ii) anticipatory investments, (iii) faster permitting processes, (iv) implementation of smart
grid technologies, and (v) new mechanisms to reduce connection backlogs, among other measures.

In 2024, at COP 29, countries acknowledged that energy storage and grid infrastructure are
essential for building resilient and decarbonized energy systems. This was crystallized in their
commitment to (i) achieving 1,500 GW of energy storage in the global power sector by 2030, more
than six times the level in 2022, and (ii) enhancing grid capacity through a global goal of adding or
refurbishing 25 million kilometres of grid infrastructure by 2030.
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The amendment of the national regulatory framework applicable to renewable energies,
Portugal partially transposing the European Renewable Energy Directive (RED Ill) into national law, with
an impact, among others, on over-equipment, re-equipment, hybridization, and storage.

Remuneration scheme : : e ,
The extension of the exceptional measures to simplifying the procedures for energy generation

from renewable sources until 31 December 2026. These measures include, among others, the
simplification of environmental impact assessment for projects outside sensitive areas, the
adaptation of environmental regimes for hydrogen projects by electrolysis and the
compensation to municipalities for the installation of generation and storage plants.

Wind farms commissioned before 2006 are subject to a Feed-in-tariff (FiT) whose value is
correlated with production and indexed to CPI. Initial tenure was the soonest of 15 years (or until
2020) or 33GWh/MW but in was increased 7 years (tariff extension) with a cap and floor scheme
in exchange of annual payments between 2013 and 2020.

The suspension of the measures related to the constitution of a Hydro Strategic (“Reserva
Estratégica Hidrica"), which, since October 1, 2022, determined the temporary suspension of
the use of water resources of 15 hydropower plants (13 belonging to EDP), until the minimum
levels of storage of their useful capacity are reached.

Wind farms under the new regime (COD after 2006) are subject to a FiT for the soonest of 20
years from COD of 44 GWh/MW. Tariff value is also indexed to CPI.

Since 2019, solar projects are awarded following a new auction system. There are currently no
auctions schedule for the short term.

. . . . : . . Spain
Floating PV projects awarded in 2022 auction has a 15 years CfD contract with a negative strike

price (the original project pays for injecting the energy in the grid in exchange of securing grid

. . : Remuneration scheme
capacity that can be used by over equipment and hybrid).

Under RD 413/2014, wind energy projects receive pool price and a premium per MW in order to

2024 mainregulatory development achieve a target return defined by regulation.

In order to continue the path of the energy transition, focusing on the continuous decarbonization of

: , ) _ RDL 17/2019 has set the target return (TRF) @7.398% for WF’s prior to 2013 for the next two
various sectors, several measures were approved in Portugal, including:

regulatory periods (until 2031) and @7.09% for new installations for the current regulatory period

The constitution of the Mission Structure for the Licensing of Renewable Energy Projects 2030 (until 2026).

(EMER 2030), with the mission of ensuring the achievement with the objectives of the PNEC

, : , , : Premium calculation is based on standard assets (standard load factor, production and costs).
2030 and accelerating the implementation of renewable energy projects (mandate until

31.12.2030).

The attribution of an Incentive to Companies called "Network and Storage Flexibility", included
in the investment RP-C21-i08, of the Recovery and Resilience Plan, with a total allocation of
€99.75m (maximum financing per beneficiary of €30m).

The approval of the update of the PNEC 2030.

Since 2016, all the new renewable capacity is allocated through competitive auctions.
In 2020, RD 960/2020 defined the framework for a new auction mechanism.

Since 2021several auctions have taken place to grant the new scheme.

2024 mainregulatory developments

The Resolution of June 27, 2024, of the CNMC, approved the detailed specifications for
determining the generation access capacity to the transmission and distribution networks.
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By Royal Decree 662/2024, of July 9, the legal regime for the authorizations and 2024 main regulatory development
administrative concessions that enable the commissioning of floating photovoltaic solar . - _
installations located in reservoirs in the public hydraulic domain was developed. *+In April 2024, the government released the Decree 2024-318 on Agri-PV, developing the

requirements and conditions that Agri-PV plants must fulfil.
Royal Decree 962/2024, of September 24, established the regulation of the production of

electricity from renewable sources in installations located at seaq, regarding the competitive Belgium
procedure necessary for its authorization and certain provisions related to innovative
installations and those located in ports of General State Interest. Remuneration scheme
By Resolution of November 9, of the Directorate General of Water, the withdrawal of the public . Green certificate scheme (GC).
tender procedure for the exploitation of the hydroelectric use of the La Riera Power Plant in the
Somiedo River and the Morteras Stream, Somiedo municipality (Asturias), was agreed. - Wind farms receive market price plus GCs per MWh produced.
France Number of GC/MWh (kECO) for existing plants’ contracts was revised in 2019, 2021, 2022

(exceptional update), 2023, and 2024,

Remuneration scheme - Last update (Dec-24, for 2025 onwards) the kECO increased from 0 to 0.215 GC/MWh due to

. . , , , _ _ lower electricity prices.
Old wind farms receive Feed-in tariffs for 15 years, with values depending on their COD and load

factors achieved. - The minimum price for GCs is set at 65€/GC in Wallonia.
A transitory Contract-for-difference scheme was released in December 2016 in which wind 2024 main regulatory development
farms having requested a PPA in 2016 would receive a 15-year CfD, being the strike price very
similar to the previous FiT. This scheme was closed in December 2019. - The Walloon decree, effective July 1, 2024, accelerates the deployment of renewable energy by
creating "renewable acceleration zones," simplifying permitting processes, and enhancing
From 2017 onwards: infrastructure for integrating renewable projects into the grid.

Wind farms with 6 wind turbines (or less, and with SAMW/WTG maximum) can request a 20-
year CfD which strike price ranges from 72€/MWh to 74€/MWh depending on turbine’s
diameter and may include a FiT reduction when a yearly generation cap is reached. Since April
2022, additional tip height restriction (below 132m) has been implemented.

Poland

Remuneration scheme

Wind farms not eligible to CR17 need to participate in competitive tenders in order to obtain a Electricity price can be established through bilateral contracts.

20-year CfD. Wind farms commissioned before 2018 are supported through a Green Certificate scheme (GC).

Wind receives 1 GC/MWh during a15-year period. Electricity suppliers have a substitution fee for

A new set of rules (“Cahier des Charges”) that will govern auctions (both technology-specific non-compliance with GC obligations.

and neutral) from H2 2021 until 2026 were published in August 2021.

Since 2018, wind farms are supported by 15-year two-side Contracts-for difference awarded
through auctions.
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2024 main regulatory development

In August 2024, the government decided to increase the GC quota for 2025 to 8,5% (from
previous 5%).

The Real State Tax was amended in 2024, clarifying that taxation rules will remain unchanged for
renewable projects.

Germany
Remuneration scheme

Renewable Energy Sources Act (EEG 23) defines a floating market premium (one-way CfD) on
top of market revenues for renewable energy plants that is awarded via tender (pay-as-bid) for
each technology with a tenure of 20 years.

The market premium is reduced to O€/MWh if there are at least 4 consecutive hours with
negative prices. Subsidies during negative hours will be phased out in 2025, with the latest
reformin EEG.

Generators are responsible for their balancing costs.

GoO revenue is not compatible with the EEG scheme, i.e. GoOs cannot be sold for assets that
have selected the market premium as form of sale.

2024 mainregulatory development

A new package of measures to support Solar PV projects “Solar Package I” was adopted in April
2024,

New amendments on the German Federal Emission Control Act were adopted in July 2024,
aimed at expediting wind permitting procedures.

UK

Remuneration scheme

Since 2013, renewables are supported through a 15-year two-way Contracts-for-difference,
awarded through auctions, that have progressively replaced the former Green Certificate
scheme.
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The “established technologies” which include onshore wind and solar PV, compete for budgets in
each allocation round. Less mature technologies have a separate “pot” of allocated budget.
Offshore has its own pot separated from other technologies.

2024 mainregulatory development

The moratorium for onshore wind was lifted in July 2024.

In November 2024, the government confirmed the introduction of the CfD Clean Industry Bonus
to incentivize offshore wind developers to invest in sustainable supply chains, from AR7 onwards.

The UK’s Clean Power 2030 Action Plan was approved in December 2024, outlining the
government’s strategy to achieve a fully decarbonized electricity system by 2030.

Italy

Remuneration scheme

Wind farms in operation prior to the end of 2012 are under the Green Certificates scheme,
applicable during the first 15 years of operation (solar PV had access but preferred participating
in the Conto Energia scheme).

Solar PV in operation prior to the end of 2012 are under the Conto Energia -1V support scheme: a
feed-in-premium scheme applicable during the first 20 years of operation.

Between 2012 and July 2013, Solar PV were supported by the Conto Energia V scheme, under
which they could sign for a feed-in premium for the share of energy self-consumed or a CfD for
energy fed into the grid for 20 years.

Wind farms commissioned from 2013 to 2017 are supported by a 20-year floor CfD scheme,
awarded through competitive auctions (DM/1012 and DM/2016).

Since 2019, Solar PV and wind farms are supported by a 20-year two-sided CfD scheme (FER1or
DM/2019).

2024 main regulatory development

In May 2024 the Agriculture Decree-Law was approved banning new ground-mounted PV
plants on agricultural land (some exceptions are included).
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In June 2024, the “Suitable Areas Decree” was approved, identifying the areas where
renewables can be installed.

In November 2024 Iltaly approved the “Testo Unico” regulation, which consolidates and
streamlines the permitting process for renewable energy projects.

In December, the “DL Ambiente” was approved, aimed to expedite the Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) process for renewable energy projects.

In January 2025, the Transitory FER X Decree, which will govern auctions in 2025, was approved.

Romania

Remuneration scheme
Green Certificates (GCs) scheme, granted for 15 years:

GCs are traded in the market under a Cap & Floor system (cap €35, floor 29.4€). However,
prices have been on the floor for the last years.

Wind assets:

Installed before 2013: Received 2 GC/MWh until 2017 and 1GC/MWh after 2017.1out of the 2 GC
earned until Mar-2017 is postponed and can only be recovered gradually from Jan-2018.

Installed post-2013: Receive 1.5 GC/MWh until 2017 and 0.75 GC/MWAh.
Solar PV assets:

Installed before 2013: Received 6 GC/MWh. 2 out of the 6 GC earned until Dec-2020 are
postponed and may only be recovered gradually from 2025.

Installed post-2014: Receive 3 GC/MWh.

The GCs issued after April 2017 and the GCs postponed to trading from July 2013 will remain
valid and may be traded until March 2032.
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CfD scheme:

The auction awards a 15 year, two-side euro-denominated CfD financed by the EU
Modernization Funds with €3bn funds.

Strike prices: Pay as bid, in €/ MWh. Maximum prices are €82/MWh for onshore and €78/
MWh for PV.

Indexation only applies if the Euro Area HICP surpasses 10% cumulatively every 3 years.
Payments will be made inlei.

Remuneration scheme:

The Reference Price for the settlement of the CfD top up payments has been set as a
technology-specific captured price by projects awarded in the auction.

ANRE reserves the right to adjust the Reference Price or the methodology for the Reference
Price in the case that it is no longer reflective of market prices, such that it over-compensates
the generators or increasing costs to consumers.

Besides standard termination events, OPCOM has the right to terminate the contract without
reasons in exchange of a compensation.

2024 main regulatory developments

In April 2024, the general framework for a new support scheme (introducing competitive auctions
to grant15-years CfDs) was adopted.

In November, Romania’s Constitutional Court ruled that the clawback tax for electricity
generation (revenues exceeding 400 RON/MWNh) violated principles of fair taxation and was,
therefore, unconstitutional. According to the ruling, energy producers which submitted court
claims against the clawback tax regulation, are entitled to be reimbursed.

Greece

Remuneration scheme

Renewable projects in Greece are supported by a 20-year feed-in premium (Contract-for-
Difference) awarded through auctions.
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In 2022, Greece launched a new support system, based on two-way contract-for difference
contracts, awarded through auctions:

For both onshore wind and solar installations, support will be awarded through a joint
competitive tendering procedure, with minimum reserves per technology of 30%.

2024 main regulatory developments

In 2024, Greece has enacted two regulations to address developers’ challenges to secure grid
connection:

Law 5095/2024 providing a faster pathway for securing connection conditions for renewable
projects that have Power Purchase Agreements.

Law 51/2024, introducing measures to enhance the capacity of the electrical grid to
accommodate additional renewable projects. Under this law, renewable projects participating
in RES auctions can choose between accepting power output limitations or installing Battery
Energy Storage Systems (BESS) to support grid integration.

Hungary
Remuneration scheme
Renewable projects before 2016 benefited from a feed-in tariff scheme (“KAT system”).

In 2016 the FiT was closed to new projects and replaced by a new support system (“METAR
system”) consisting of 15- year Contracts-for-Difference granted through technology-neutral
tenders.

2024 mainregulatory developments

In 2024 stricter rules for land reclassification and for local zoning plan modification have been
approved, making more difficult to identify suitable land for wind and solar PV projects.

Rules promoting hybridization have been adopted in 2024.
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United States

Remuneration scheme

Market-Based Compensation: In the U.S., energy producers are typically compensated
through competitive wholesale electricity markets. Prices are determined by supply and
demand dynamics, with regional transmission organizations (RTOs) and independent system
operators (ISOs) facilitating these markets.

Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs): Developers often enter into long-term PPAs with utilities
or large consumers, securing a fixed price for the energy produced, which provides revenue
certainty and facilitates project financing.

Incentive Programs: Federal incentives, such as the Investment Tax Credit (ITC) and Production
Tax Credit (PTC), offer financial benefits for renewable energy projects. State-level Renewable
Portfolio Standards (RPS) mandate that a certain percentage of electricity comes from
renewable sources.

RECs Trading: Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) represent proof that one megawatt-hour
(MWNh) of electricity was generated from a renewable source. These certificates can be sold
separately from the actual electricity.

2024 and 2025 mainregulatory developments

« Beginning in 2025, the IRA replaced traditional ITC/PTC with the technology-neutral tax
credits.

Also in 2025, the Treasury released final rules for the Clean Hydrogen Production Tax Credit.
This clarified eligibility and incentive structures.

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) provided updated guidance in 2024 expanding the
availability of direct pay (refundability) for tax credits and the ability to transfer credits.

Canada
Remuneration scheme

Provincial Programs: Energy policy in Canada is largely determined at the provincial level,
leading to a variety of remuneration schemes. Provinces like Ontario and Alberta have utilized
competitive procurement processes and PPAs to promote renewable energy development.
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Feed-In Tariffs (FITs): Some provinces have implemented FIT programs, offering fixed, long-
term prices for renewable energy producers to encourage investment.

Carbon Pricing: Canada's federal carbon pricing strategy incentivizes low-carbon energy
projects by assigning a cost to greenhouse gas emissions.

2024 main regulatory developments

« In December 2024, Canada published the finalized Clean Electricity Regulations, aiming to
achieve a net-zero electricity grid by 2035. The CER establishes stringent carbon dioxide
(CO,) emission limits for fossil fuel-based electricity generation units with a capacity of at least
25 MW.

Mexico
Remuneration scheme

« Long-Term Auctions: Mexico has implemented long-term energy auctions where renewable
energy developers can secure 15- to 20-year contracts to sell electricity and Clean Energy
Certificates (CELSs) to the national grid, providing stable revenue streams.

Private PPAs: Despite regulatory changes, private PPAs remain a viable option, allowing
developers to sell energy directly to large industrial consumers, often at negotiated rates.

2024 mainregulatory developments

« In October 2024, President Claudia Sheinbaum signed a constitutional reform altering the
legal status of the Federal Electricity Commission (CFE) and Pemex to "public companies."
This reform ensures that CFE supplies at least 54 % of electricity to the national grid, prioritizing
state control over energy resources.

The National Electrical System Development Program, released in May 2024, outlines plans to
integrate an additional 94 GW of installed capacity over the next 15 years. The strategy
includes significant investments in wind, battery, and storage.
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Brazil

Remuneration scheme
Old wind farms receive support under a feed-in program (“PROINFA”).
Since 2008, competitive auctions award 20-year PPAs to winning projects.
Electricity may also be sold under private PPAs.

2024 mainregulatory developments

« The exponential increase in the installed capacity of renewable power plants in recent years,
combined with the locational preferences of these projects in regions with higher wind and
solar energy potential in the country, in addition to the challenge of expanding the transmission
system, has resulted in an increase in the curtailment, causing financial impacts for these
agents.

Chile

Remuneration scheme

Technology-neutral auctions, for renewable and non-renewable technologies award 20-year
power purchase agreements (or 15, depending on the tender session specifications) with
distribution companies.

Large non-regulated customers can also enter into PPAs directly with generators or organize a
public auction.

2024 main regulatory developments:

« In June 2024, Chile implemented new regulations related to capacity market payments for
energy storage systems. These regulations are designed to incentivize the deployment of
energy storage technologies, which are crucial for integrating renewable energy sources and
enhancing grid stability.

In December 2024, the Chilean retail electricity market took a step forward toward
liberalization, following the decision by the Ministry of Energy to lower the access threshold for
the non-regulated segment. According to the decision, users with 300 kW or more will be able
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to migrate between the regulated and non-regulated spheres (previously, the threshold was
set at 500 kW).

Also in December 2024, Chile released its Energy Transition Law (Law No. 21,721), aiming to
encourage infrastructure development, promote competition, and boost energy storage
through increased facilities and efficiency within the electricity market.

Vietnam

Remuneration scheme
Onshore wind projects were supported under two different Feed-in-tariff regimes:
Projects were granted a 20-year PPA with EVN, the state utility.

As the latest feed-in-tariff was closed for new projects, a new support scheme is expected to
be released soon - most likely, competitive auctions will be introduced.

Solar PV projects have also been remunerated under two different feed-in-tariff regimes and the
government is also planning to introduce a pilot auction program.

FiT schemes are no longer available; however a transitional scheme has been published for
renewable projects that had a FiT signed but failed to COD on time. Transitional scheme would
be subject to a price negotiation with EVN.

Onsite PPAs available, direct PPA mechanism (physical and virtual) approved in July 2024.
2024 mainregulatory developments:

In March 2024, a decision which regulates the mechanism for adjusting average retail
electricity tariffs was signed. This new regulation allows Vietnam Electricity Group (EVN) to
adjust electricity prices every three months, shortening the previous six-month adjustment
perio

In April 2024, Vietnam’s PDP8 was approved, outlining an energy transition roadmap to 2050.
It includes onshore and offshore wind projects, 2,600 MW of rooftop solar by 2030, and
increased electricity imports from Laos. The plan aims to reduce coal reliance to 5.3%,
increase renewables to 67.5%-71.5%, and cut emissions.
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« InJuly 2024, the DPPA Program Decree was approved, enabling off-takers to directly procure
renewable energy through Physical or Virtual DPPAs. In December 2024, MOIT released a
draft decree on DPPA, implementing the new Electricity Law effective February 1, 2025. The
draft updated the current DPPA Decree, including guidelines for RE GENCOs' sale of excess
power to EVN and removing qualification restrictions for more consumers and retailers to join
the synthetic DPPA mechanism.

In October 2024, decree for governing the mechanism and policy for incentivising the
development of self-consumption RTS was introduced. Net metering available for self-
consumption RTS with feed-in-rates of up to 20% (in the northern region) and 10% (rest of the
country). Net metering tariff for surplus power will match the average electricity price from the
previous year; confirmation awaited.

In November 2024, the National Assembly approved the amended Electricity Law, effective
February 1, 2025, restructuring state-owned enterprises, mandating bidding for power
projects, enabling foreign investor flexibility through English PPAs and PSLAs (Power Supply
License Agreement), and continuing recognition of both physical and virtual DPPA models,
while also restarting nuclear power development in alignment with the electricity development
master plan.

Singapore
Remuneration scheme
No support is given to large-scale renewable energy.

Solar PV development is mainly incentivized through public agencies tenders like the SolarNova
programme or JTC tenders:

Solarnova was launched in 2014 by the Housing Development Board (HDB). It aggregates
demand for solar PV across some government agencies buildings to achieve economies of
scale. Since 2014, 8 SolarNova tenders have been launched.

JTC is a government agency under the Ministry of Trade and Industry that launched several
Solar PV tenders under the Solarland and SolarRoof programme. There have been fewer and
smaller auctions than in solarnova's program.

PPAs available with onsite PPA preferred as most generation is DG.
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Net metering available.
2024 mainregulatory developments

« In August 2024, the Ministry of Trade and Industry (MTI) introduced the Energy Transition
Measures and Other Amendments Bill on August 6, proposing a $5 Bn Future Energy Fund for
low-carbon energy investments, establishing a Central Gas Entity (CGE) for centralized gas
procurement, and granting the Energy Market Authority (EMA) authority to ensure access to
critical energy infrastructure for energy security.

In November 2024, Energy Market Authority (EMA) and the Singapore Exchange (SGX)
discontinued the Electricity Futures Market (EFM) due to limited usage since 2022 and the
availability of alternative hedging options for electricity retailers.

Taiwan
Remuneration scheme

20-year FiT: The government introduced a FiT system in 2009 to encourage operators to
establish renewable power generation systems. Taipower, the integrated power utility and a
monopoly in Taiwan, publishes two FiT rates for solar, one is H1rate, the other is H2 rate.

2024 mainregulatory developments

In March 2024, Taipower revised its regulations, requiring renewable energy enterprises to
submit detailed plans, power generation licenses, and compliance documents for grid
connection and power transfer, along with adhering to standardized contracts, 15-minute
interval billing, and grid upgrade fees.

In May 2024, New Feed-in-tariffs were announced, revealing minor reduction in solar PV
tariffs compared to the ones applying in 2023.
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2.2.Risk management

EDPR adopts a risk governance model, widely accepted in most relevant literature, that relies on the
idea of three internal lines of defence for the organisation — which can be supplemented, in certain
situations, by a fourth external line of defence, in the form of external auditing and regulation/
supervisionS.

The Three Line of Defence Risk Governance Model

& A Institute of Internal Auditors, Position Paper, The lIA’s Three Lines Model: An update of the Three Lines of Defense, July 2020
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Each line of defence has designated entities and forums that are officially set up to implement each
line of defence at Corporate and Platform levels, preventing any overlap or omission and
encouraging collaboration and coordination between the different areas.

Risk management is embodied by the Risk area, ensuring fluid articulation and communication
throughout EDPR regarding the main sources of exposure and risk mitigation measures.

Moreover, EDPR has several Risk Committees, where top management and relevant specialists
meet to examine, discuss, and advise on key risk exposures for EDPR, their limits and mitigation
actions.

Internal Audit, as the third line of defence, performs internal audits on EDPR’s processes that
manage, control, and monitor the different risks it faces. To do this, annually, it decides which audit
activities should be part of the next year’s activity plan, based on, among other things, the inputs and
concerns of the first and second lines of defence. In this regard, for 2024, internal audits were made
to the risk management process, giving continuity to the verification initiated in 2023 of the
operationalization of the counterparty risk management policy, carrying out specific assignments
and executing internal audits on other topics, such as security and cybersecurity or compliance with
policies and procedures promoted by the second lines in the areas of Compliance and Internal
Control. The Head of the Internal Audit is part of the Risk Committees, thus facilitating the monitoring
of projects carried out by the Risk.

EDPR’s Risk Management is closely followed and supervised by the Audit, Control and Related Party
Transactions Committee, an independent supervisory body composed of non-executive members
in charge, among others, of supervising the functioning of the internal risk management and control
systems, as well as evaluating those systems and proposing the adequate adjustments according to
the Company’s necessities.

The Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee receives information from the Risk
team, on a quarterly basis, on the company’s risk management status and evaluation. During these
meetings, a detailed review of the level of each risk category within the risk taxonomy is conducted,
comparing it with the maximum thresholds established in the Enterprise Risk Management
Framework. In addition, a comparison is made with the results from the previous quarter and the
previous year, in order to assess the evolution of risks and take preventive measures if necessary.
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During 2024, the Committee received reports on EDPR’s risk management status in March, June,
September, and December. These reports allowed the Committee to be updated about the risks and
make informed decisions to protect the interests of EDPR and its shareholders. The quarterly review
of the risk taxonomy is an essential practice to ensure effective management of business risks and
maintain the financial stability of the company.

Risk Management at EDPR is also endorsed by the Management Team, supported by the Risk
Committee, and implemented for investment and day-to-day decisions by all managers of the
Company.

EDPR’s external audits also contribute to assess the degree of internal compliance with the risk
management system. The last external audit took place in 2022 and focussed on assessing the level
of maturity of the Enterprise Risk Management system.

A description of those involved in the EDPR’s risk governance model, as well as their respective
responsibilities, is available in the 4. Corporate Governance Report section.
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EDPR is exposed to several risks due to its size, and diversity of geographies in which it operates.
Therefore, it recognises risk-taking as an integral and unavoidable component of its activity, both in
terms of threat and opportunity. In this context, EDPR explicitly and implicitly establishes its risk
appetite with its stakeholders through a series of mechanisms:

The development and periodic approval by the Board of Directors of the Business Plan, which sets
out and explains the main strategic guidelines over a three-to-five-year horizon.

Rigorous assessment of the risk associated with investment and divestment opportunities carried
out by the Regions and approved by the Board of Directors, supported by the opinion of the
Investment Committee.

The development of risk management policies establishing guidelines, assessment
methodologies and exposure limits for key risks”.

Periodic risk maps based on objective, quantitative and comparable criteria, with the aim of
analysing exposure to the most relevant risks and taking preventive action to deal with excessive
exposure in relation to the established risk tolerance.

The development of periodic risk reports for the main risk categories, making it possible to
regularly monitor the evolution of current and emerging risks and compare the various exposures
against the established limits.

The definition of an internal Risk Appetite Framework.
EDPR’s risk appetite framework is structured around four pillars:

The governance model identifies the main players in the risk appetite process and their
responsibilities.

The risk appetite statement formally defines a set of risk appetite statements complemented by
risk indicators and thresholds. In terms of positioning, has been established to maintain a
controlled risk profile as a fundamental pillar of its strategy.

Monitoring and follow-up, defining the key processes of monitoring, update and action plan.
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And the reporting platform, embodied in arisk appetite dashboard, that allows the risk appetite to
be monitored.

More detail on the EDPR website: EDPR Risk Appetite | edpr.com

°These include, among others, the Enterprise Risk Management Policy, the Risk Appetite Framework Policy, the Energy Risk Management Policy, the Financial Management Policy, the Counterparty Risk Policy, the Insurable Risk Management Policy, the Occupational Health and Safety Policy, the Information Security

Policy and the Crisis Management and Business Continuity principles, structure and procedures.


https://www.edpr.com/en/investors/risk-management#risk-appetite
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The EDPR's risk management endeavours to act in an integrated manner across five fundamental pillars:

Risk management activities overview

In-depth knowledge about key
main sources of risk exposure

Definition of risk management
strategy

Active participation of risk in key
management decisions and
processes

Formalisation of the risk
governance model

Promoting a solid risk culture
throughout the organisation

Recurring activities

Development of the risk map with the main risks for the following year and the Business Plan
horizon, with updates for the main risks during the year.

Quantitative analysis of exposures (based on expected loss and maximum loss).
Development of the climate risk assessment.

Presence at national and international forums on risk management.

Support for explaining and reflecting on risk-return trade-offs (and risk appetite) in key
management decisions.

Periodic updating of the risk appetite statement, formalised and disclosed in the Annual Report
and Accounts.

Periodic updating of specific risk management policies.

Risk advice on the Business Plan and Budget exercises.

Support for investment decisions (including participation in the Investment Committee).

Support in defining coverage strategies for key exposures.

Analyses and advice on topics with possible impact on the risk profile.

Follow-up and control of key exposures (through periodic reports).

Periodical Risk Committees (for debate of key sources of risk exposures and treatment measures).

Updating the risk management policies and principles.

Carrying out a wide range of awareness initiatives, adapted to the different target audiences:

Training onrisk issues and new trends in risk management at the Annual Meeting of the Audit
Committees.

Specialised courses for all employees (e.g., ethics, health and safety, cyber security).

Programme to boost the network of risk teams: quarterly individual meetings, annual planning
meeting, sharing of information in the ERM Repository, quarterly masterclasses, annual meeting of
risk officers and participation in Risk Committees.

Annual Risk Summit to promote arisk culture and train risk teams, as well as members of the Risk
Committee (such as Internal Audit).

Developmentsin 2024

Finalization of a project to develop an Ethical Risk framework.
Update of the main strategic and emerging risks analysis.

In-depth analysis of the main IT/ OT risks.

In-depth analysis of the main operational risks.

Deep-dive analysis of inflation and interest rate risk.

Detailed analysis on operational assets availability and curtailment.

Finalization of the Enterprise Risk Management Roadmap.
Revision of EDPR energy risk policy.

Creation of a framework for analysing and controlling inflation risk.
Definition of limits for off-shore business exposure.

Standardization of risk investment inputs, namely contingencies for BOP/BOS and
COD buffers.

Updating of EDPR Enterprise Risk Management Manual.

Development of several sessions dedicated to risk for senior management
(executives and non-executives): four Risk Committees dedicated to
analysing the mainrisk issues with senior executive management;
participation in four sessions with the Audit, Control and Related Party
Transactions Committee.

Training workshop for the Board of Directors on main ESG risks.

Definition of a development plan for allmembers of the risk teams, based on
an exhaustive competences diagnosis.
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Priorities for 2025

Strategic reflection on insurance coverage.

Develop in-depth risk analysis of each region.
Revision of Climate Risk quantification leveraging an
external tool.

Creation of a Financial Risk Policy for EDPR.
Development of an analysis of the current and future
contracted profile.

Standardization of contingencies for Main Equipment.
Introduction of an ESG framework analysis in new
investments.

Complete revision of EDPR’s Enterprise Risk Management under
the new organization.

Implementation of quarterly townhalls with all members of risk
teams.
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EDPR seeks to have a comprehensive view over the key risks it is exposed to, at strategic and ESG,
business, financial and operational levels, establishing processes to ensure their monitoring and
proactive management.

Macro Categories of EDPR's Risk Taxonomy

The year 2024 was marked by a relevant decline in energy prices, after the significantly high prices
from the European energy crisis. The financial markets also continued with high uncertainty
regarding inflation, interest rates and exchange rate. Risk management reaffirmed its importance,
playing an essential role in this disruptive context.

A detailed description of the various risks relevant to the EDPR is available on the EDPR website:
EDPR Risk Taxonomy | edp.com. The table below details the risks expected to have the greatest
potential impact on EDPR EBITDA in 2025, in an adverse scenario.
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Risks

1 Capital Gains on
Asset Rotation

2 Physical Assets
under Construction
Renewable

3 Production
VVolumes

4 Commodity Prices

5 Counterparty

Risk Description

Reduction of capital gains expected from asset rotation activity due to a decrease in the
value of assets, because of lower market appetite, a generalised rise in interest rates or
exchange rate variations.

Risk associated with CAPEX deviations and/or COD delay beyond what was estimated
in the investment decision, leading to potential impacts on the current year (less revenue
and more costs) and on the profitability of investments.

EDPR has a material degree of exposure to variations in renewable energy generation
volumes (mainly wind and solar). A year with lower wind or solar resources can have a
negative impact on the company's results.

Changes in commodity prices, essentially due to residual market exposure not covered
by PPA. These changes may be due to various factors, namely fluctuations arising from
supply and demand dynamics or regulatory changes (national or international) and may
impact the company's results.

Risk associated with the potential default (or increase in relation to the expected level of
default) of contractual obligations from energy counterparties, financial counterparties
(essentially associated with deposits with financial institutions and financial derivatives)
and / or suppliers.
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Evolution compared to 2024 Mitigation Measures (not exhaustive)

Diversification of asset rotation across different geographies (Europe, North America, South America, APAC, etc.) and currencies
(EUR,USD, BRL,PLN, etc.).

Exchange rate risk hedging (Net Investment and transactional), within the framework of the financial risk management policy.
Financing structure in the different currencies (namely variable rate percentage and duration) aligned with the characteristics of the
assets, offering risk mitigation to interest rate hikes.

Timely contacting of equipment and EPC, to reduce the risk of cost increases or unavailability of the supply chain after commitments
to projects have been made.

Introduction of a buffer between the expected COD and the PPA start, to reduce the risk of incurring penalties or the need to purchase
energy to fulfil the contract.

Prudence in defining contingencies and assumptions of stress analysis (COD and CAPEX deviation) in the investment decision-
making process.

Geographical and production portfolio diversification.

Long net position in the various markets, with continuous monitoring, protecting the company from the risk of becoming over hedged
even in scenarios where there are low renewable resources.

Appraisal of instruments to hedge the volume of wind renewable generation.

EDPR's business with a high percentage of forward contracts with PPAs, being very pro-tected from price variations within these
contracts.

Prudent management strategy for residual energy not covered by PPAs, by the Global Energy Management Unit (including price risk
hedging and also exchange rate risk in US dollars, in coordination with the Finance Global Unit).

Diversification of counterparties, with limits on the concentration and percentage of exposures below Investment Grade.

Careful analysis of counterparties, differentiating risk limits between counterparties, promoting contracts with those with the best
credit quality.

Continuous monitoring of the evolution of the credit quality of EDPR counterparties.

Use of counterparty risk mitigation instruments, such as financial guarantees, clearing and credit insurance.

Implementation of credit risk premiums in contracts where EDPR is a price-setter, differentiating between counterparties and
compensating for Expected Losses.
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The quantification of EDPR's risks is based on the potential loss in EBITDA, in a P95% scenario,
estimated through the application of Monte Carlo simulations. Monte Carlo simulation, through the
definition of probabilistic distributions for each risk factor/variable, allows to simulate possible future
outcomes; for each simulation, different values are randomly generated for each of the probability
distributions of the various risk variables (inputs). The result of a Monte Carlo simulation is @
probability distribution, i.e., a representation of the different possible future outcomes and their
probability of occurrence. In addition, EDPR also makes a qualitative assessment of the potential
financial impact and probability/ likelihood of each risk, and the impact matrix for the main risks
identified above is presented below.

EDPR favours risk management based on quantitative analysis and continuous monitoring of the
risks that may affect its business. For this purpose, the company regularly carries out sensitivity
analyses of financial and non-financial risks, as well as analyses of stressed scenarios, using Monte
Carlo analysis, or focusing on some specific stress scenarios.

As an example, every year, when analysing the risk of the budget for the following year, EDPR carries
out a sensitivity analysis of various risk factors, namely renewable volume (wind and solar),
electricity price, inflation, exchange rate, inflation rate, among other specific operational
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sensitivities, for the different markets which impact EDPR's business. The impact on EDPR's EBITDA
of the variation in some risk factors is presented below, namely:

Renewable generation volume: Assuming an average price of €50/MWh, a 5% reduction in the
expected volume impacts EDPR's EBITDA by =€90-110m.

Unavailability of assets: assuming an average 1% reduction in the availability of all EDPR's
generation assets, the impact on EDPR would be =€20-30m.

Also, in the process of evaluating risk in the budget exercise, as a way of assessing execution risk,
stress analyses are carried out using Monte Carlo analysis. This type of analysis is applied to
EBITDA, EBT, NI, FFO/ND and all relevant output variables and broken down by platform, technology,
BU, among others.

A climate risk analysis exercise is also carried out every year using 3 different scenarios, which can
be consulted in greater detail in section of 6. Sustainability Statement section.
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In addition to closely monitoring the main risks inherent to EDPR's activity, the main trends (at global
and sectoral level) that may translate into threats and opportunities for EDPR are also
comprehensively mapped, and appropriate mitigation strategies are proactively developed. In
2024, the mapping of emerging risks was updated, with an assessment by the EDPR's top, executive

and non-executive, management.

Economic Wars and
Tensions at Global
Level

Leading to sanctions/
tariffs in EDPR
geographies

Description

Increasing use of economic tools, policies, and sanctions as instruments of geopolitical
competition. Instead of traditional warfare, nations leverage trade restrictions, tariffs,
currency manipulation, and supply chain disruptions to achieve strategic objectives or
assert dominance.
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In 2024 the following stand out: (1) economic wars and sanctions impacting EDPR’s geographies; (2)
military conflicts causing business instability; (3) protectionism shaping trade dynamics; (4) climate
risks from extreme weather, reduced precipitation, and regulatory transitions; (5) weakening climate
transition efforts; (6) rising cyberattacks threatening operations; (7) labour shortages in renewable

energy; and (8) changes in the insurance landscape with higher costs and reduced coverage.

Potential Impacts

The intensification of economic wars and geopolitical tensions presents arisk for
EDPR, especially in the context of the energy sector. These disputes, often
manifesting as sanctions, tariffs, and other trade barriers, can disrupt supply
chains, inflate costs, and limit market access.

Military Conflict
between World Powers
leading to business
environment instability

Significantrisk to the global business environment by creating widespread instability.
Escalations between major nations can disrupt trade routes, supply chains, and critical
resource access, leading to market volatility and economic uncertainty.

Trigger of widespread economic disruptions, including supply chain
interruptions restricting access to key resources, increased commodity prices,
heightened market volatility.

Protectionism/
Regionalization

Reshape of the global business environment by prioritizing local industries and regional
trade blocs over globalization.

Rise of economic protectionism hindering opportunities for new investments and
constraining EDPR’s international operations, and possibly slowing energy
transition plans, due to (1) economic measures to protect national economies and
(2) geopolitical tensions consequence, namely in US.

Mitigation Measures

Value chain diversification by contracting different equipment suppliers in different
geographical areas (e.g., First Solar in the US).

Geographical Risk Appetite: establishment of limits for investment in specific
geographies.

Establishment of Frame Agreements with main equipment suppliers to secure
future MWs volume (with fixed price).

Compliance IDD screening of most relevant stakeholder.

Financial counterparty analysis for all relevant counterparties with exposure limits
depending on therisk level.

Continuous monitoring of geopolitical events with external advisors (identifying and
quantifying main potential risks).

Duty of Care continuity in the process of being updated for travelling collaborators.

Climaterisks

Physical extreme
events and
precipitation reduction,
regulatory transition
risks

Adverse effects of climate change, such as extreme weather events, chronic changes of
physical parameters, as well as the economic, regulatory, social and technological shifts
required for a low-carbon future.

Continuous rise in the number and severity of extreme weather events worldwide
(e.g., storms, wildfires, heavy precipitation and floods, and landslides events).
Reliability of infrastructure to more frequent and severe extreme climate events
and overall costs increase (inc. insurance) are major risks.

Structured climate risks assessment (TCFD) and integration of climate criteria in
investment analysis (project in development) with support tool (from Swiss Re).
Prudent energy management through long positions to safeguard against extreme
weather conditions.

Development of specific climate adaption plans, for example: greater involvement
with suppliers to ensure the resilience of assets.

Weakening Climate
Transition Efforts

The energy transition may face an even higher risk from waning political support, which
can negatively impact policy stability, funding, and long-term investment in renewable
energy projects. Political shifts or alack of consensus can lead to delays or rollbacks of
critical initiatives, creating uncertainty for stakeholders and undermining momentum.
This is compounded by growing social challenges in securing project approvals, as local
communities increasingly oppose new developments due to perceived environmental,
economic, or social impacts. Such opposition is often fueled by misinformation or
inadequate stakeholder engagement, further slowing the deployment of essential energy
infrastructure. Together, these factors jeopardize the pace and success of the energy
transition, hindering global efforts to address climate change and achieve sustainable
energy systems.

Delayed EDPR projects in countries where environmental requirements are
increased.

Cancellation of EDPR projects in pipeline that are not profitable with a reduction
inincentives (e.g., tax credits).

Increase in curtailment for operational EDPR assets in case there is a lower
investment in preparing networks for a decentralized generation world.
Community resistance (Not In My Backyard) and misinformation slow
infrastructure deployment and strain relationships, limiting projects’
development and risking reputational damage.

Regulatory uncertainty complicates compliance and adds financial pressure.
Hindered progress toward sustainability goals, reduce access to green financing,
and divert resources from innovation, affecting long-term competitiveness.

Close monitoring of regulatory evolution and active participation on discussions at
international & national levels.

Geographic diversification and Technological diversification.

Introduction of contractual buffers or merchant nose periods between CODs and
PPA start dates to mitigate the possible impact of COD delays due to environmental
permits.

Exposure limits to offshore business.

Limits to investment in projects that still have not reached the Final Investment
Decision.
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Description

Potential Impacts
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Mitigation Measures

Increase in Cyber-
attacks

EDPR, as an energy utility company, has become very reliant on its digital infrastructure
for efficient operations and services delivery. However, this increase in technological
sophistication and integration also leads to an increased exposure to cyber risks of
different natures.

EDPR is already driving a digital transformation to further boost business performance in
which cyber resilience is included.

Despite all the efforts made by organizations, there is probable risk that cyber-attacks
become more frequent and with higher magnitude.

Economic and reputational impact of cyber security issues still a concern, and
frequency/ impact of cyber attacks are expected to continue rising and getting more
sophisticated. The impact may be at IT but also OT level (e.g., attacks on EDPR’s
generation and distribution assets), namely regarding:
+  Losses from critical EDPR systems unavailability (dispatch/plants, billing,

customer service).

In an extreme case, damage/destruction to physical assets and lives

Data breach / loss (personal and others).

Fines due to GDPR violations.

Increased costs associated with increase in cybersecurity investment.

Damage to EDPR’s reputation in case of a cyber-attack that impacts power

availability or data privacy.

Dedicated Global SOC' (ISO 27001 certified) for continuous security monitoring,
detection and response of the IT & OT infrastructure.

Cyber Executive Committee with top management attendance.

Online and in-person training sessions, xPhishing simulations and Cyber exercises.
Cyberrisk insurance.

Continuous compliance initiatives to comply with different and disperse
regulations.

Implementation of a Zero Trust Cyber Security roadmap based on 5 axis (Security
by Design, Resilient Architecture, Integration and Automation, Uniform Governance,
Risk and Compliance, Human Behaviour Security).

Specific OT cybersecurity roadmaps to address cyber risk in mission critical
infrastructures (e.g., generation, energy management).

IT/OT Risk Project for identification and management of most critical IT/OT assets.
Participation, at strategic, tactical and operational level, in local and global
cybergroups (ex: world economic forum).
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Description

Potential Impacts
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Mitigation Measures

Social Risk

Gap in labour market
and risk of
unavailability of talent
for renewable energy
companies

The renewable energy sector is currently in a phase of rapid expansion, fuelled by a
growing demand for clean energy solutions and government initiatives aimed at
facilitating the transition to low-carbon economies. This increase in the renewable
energy industry is expected to create a substantial demand for qualified professionals in
various fields, such as engineering, project management, installation, and maintenance.
At the same time, demographic trends indicate a projected decline in the working-age
population in Europe, along with a stabilization in the United States. This demographic
shift, along with a projected increase in the need for workers in renewable assets (which
is expected to increase 3-4 times by 2030 in the EU), is set to result in a global shortage
of skilled labour in the green economy, reaching 7 million by the year 2030,
predominantly in the solar and wind sectors.

This shortage of skilled labour represents a notable risk to EDPR's business plan. The
company has ambitious targets for the years 2023-26, with the aim of deploying
approximately 17 gigawatts of additional renewable capacity, with an expected overall
increase in the workforce of around 6%. Specifically, in the wind and solar sectors, a
percentage increase in the number of employees of around 30% is expected. In the
digital and innovation sectors, the expected increase in headcount is around 20%.

Increased competition in attracting and retaining talent, leading to more
competitive and aggressive recruitment and retention strategies in the market.
Companies, such as EDPR, will need to become more involved in strategic
workforce planning to identify critical roles, assess skills gaps, and implement
measures to mitigate the impact of workforce shortages.

Heavier investment in innovation and automation to reduce reliance on manual
labour, streamline processes, and boost efficiency, as well as invest inresearch
and development.

Delayed project deadlines and risk of execution of the Business Plan.
Increased global mobility of the workforce, attracting talent from regions where
there is a surplus of qualified labour in the renewable energy sector, increasing
global collaboration, and the diversity of the workforce.

Significant investment in training and development programs to improve the
skills of current employees and prepare them for roles in the renewable energy
sector.

Implement a proactive and strategic global recruitment strategy to attract young,
qualified professionals by creating internship and apprenticeship programs that
offer first-hand experience to students interested in the renewable energy sector,
fostering long-term relationships and retention, and more specific opportunities for
experienced profiles.

Develop and implement strategies to retain existing skilled workers, offering
competitive compensation packages, providing career development opportunities,
and cultivating a positive work environment to minimize turnover and enhance
knowledge management.

Conduct regular workforce needs assessments to identify critical roles and develop
strategic learning plans to address skills gaps.

Allocate resources to comprehensive training programs, focusing on upskilling and
reskilling existing workers to prepare them for roles in the renewable energy sector
through partnerships with educational institutions, companies in the sector, or other
strategic partners.

Promote a flexible, diverse, and inclusive workplace that welcomes and leverages
the strengths of a diverse workforce, ensuring talent retention regardless of
demographic or professional characteristics.

EDPR has been working on innovative projects within automation to overcome the
labour shortage challenge and to increase efficiency. It also advocates for
government and institutional support through policies, incentives, and funding to
bolster workforce development efforts.

Change ininsurance
landscape

The insurance landscape is shifting as insurers reevaluate coverage in a fast changing
environment. On one hand, increasingly severe natural disasters driven by climate
change are leading to higher premiums, stricter exclusions, and reduced availability of
coverage for events like floods, wildfires, and hurricanes. At the same time, the escalating
frequency and sophistication of cyberattacks are prompting insurers to tighten policy
terms, lower limits, and introduce exclusions for specific cyber outcomes (e.g., impact on
physical assets). Additionally, heightened regulatory scrutiny and litigation risks related
to environmental legal claims (e.g., concentration of chemical components) are causing
insurers to reevaluate liability coverage, raising premiums or limiting options for affected
industries.

The overall shift ininsurance policies drives up expenses associated with
securing adequate coverage or addressing existing risks, meaning that EDPR
will have a higher cost with insurance premiums and/or decrease the ability to
mitigate risk through insurance.

Lack of protection for insurance also leads to additional costs with infrastructure
fortification, advanced cybersecurity measures, and alternative risk transfer
mechanisms to mitigate gaps in coverage and ensure business continuity.
Reduced coverage for extreme weather events like floods, wildfires, and
hurricanes increases the risk of costly infrastructure damage and operational
disruptions.

Higher cyber risk policies limit protection against the growing threat of
cyberattacks, potentially disrupting critical EDPR assets, compromising
customer data, and damaging the EDPR's reputation.

Limited liability coverage for environmental legal claims raises the financial
burden of compliance and increases the potential for litigation related to
hazardous substances.

Enhance Infrastructure Resilience, through investment in climate-resilient
infrastructure and fortification of assets against extreme weather events to reduce
vulnerability and potential damages.EDPR insurers assets in bundles both of
geographies (globally) and types of assets (e.g., generation and network assets),
offering a more attractive portfolio which enables an improved negotiating stance
(easier to ensure assets/ risks are not excluded).

Work closely with insurers to enable a real assessment of the asset base risks,
avoiding that risk premiums and exclusions are appropriate.

Implement robust cybersecurity measures, including advanced threat detection
systems, regular vulnerability assessments, and employee training to mitigate
cyberrisks.

Diversify Risk Transfer Strategies, exploring alternative risk transfer mechanisms,
such as catastrophe bonds, captives, or risk-sharing partnerships, to offset gaps in
traditional insurance coverage.

Improve Risk Assessment and Planning, conducting regular risk evaluations and
integrating advanced analytics to anticipate and prepare for emerging threats,
including climate, cyber, and liability risks.

Engage in Stakeholder Collaboration, partnering with insurers and industry peers to
advocate for fair and sustainable insurance solutions and share best practices for
risk management.

Increase Compliance and Safety Standards, by proactively adhere to evolving
regulations and improve safety protocols to minimize liability risks associated with
hazardous substances and chemical components.

Build Financial Reserves for Self-Insurance, allocating financial resources to self-
insure against high-probability risks, reducing reliance on external coverage.
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2.3. Strategy

The energy transition is crucial for addressing climate change, and there is a clear shift in global
dynamics showcasing the higher need for endogenous, affordable, and reliable energy. This shift
has been aggravated by the impact of macro movements, that have promoted the volatility of
energy markets and concerns about energy security.

Renewables are recognized as key in the global solution to quick energy independence, national
security, and a sustainable long term business.

To take early action in the energy transition and be better positioned to seize the opportunities
presented by this shift, EDPR released in March 2023 its Business Plan for 2023-26, where it clearly
restates the Company’s commitment to step-up to the Net Zero challenge and create superior value
as aleading pure renewable global player.

Since March 2023, the market context rapidly changed, with a significant decline in forward
electricity prices and persistently high interest rates. Inresponse, in May 2024, EDPR decided to
adjust growth prioritizing returns over volume, and continuing to improve efficiency to ensure
long-term shareholder value creation.

Based on its vision, EDPR has identified four strategic pillars:
Accelerated and focused growth
ESG excellence and future proof organization
Distinctive and resilient portfolio

Superior value creation for stakeholders
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EDPR aims to achieve accelerated and focused growth by implementing its investment plan until
2026 that will reinforce EDPR’s position as a leader of the energy transition. Accordingly, EDPR's
capital allocation follows a clear investment framework via a selective and disciplined approach,
while focusing on sustainable growth and low risk profile. With the goal to be net-zero by 2040, the
fast deployment of renewables capacity will be combined with the intended sale of majority stakes
in selected renewable assets, in line with EDPR's asset rotation strategy, to accelerate growth and
enable aless capital-intensive growth model.

The focus on building a future-proof organization will drive the EDPR of the future. EDPR is focused
on accelerated and sustained growth, being a more global, agile and efficient organisation by
Improving its decision-making process and simplifying its organisational structure. By having digital
at the core of its strategy and being fast adopters on innovation while continuously investing in
talent, it will achieve its targets.

EDPR, as a leading pure renewables player, is focused on profitable and diversified growth. Through
its robust pipeline and diversification strategy, EDPR has a clear focus of prioritizing returns over
volume. EDPR's strategy of growth is supported by a flexible pipeline which allows to capture
opportunities and respond effectively to market conditions. The Company sustains a clear
diversification both geographically and technologically with focus in its main markets in Europe and
US along with a bet in solar technology to diversify even more its current operating portfolio and
reinforce itresilience.

EDPR is committed to delivering attractive returns through the new Scrip Dividend programme
aiming at improving the company’s dividend policy to a 30-50% payout ratio, to provide a flexible
and competitive remuneration to shareholders.
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Leveraging on New and Superior Assets

EDPR is leveraging its superior portfolio and infrastructure as a competitive advantage for increased
renewables deployment:
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3.1. Operational performance

OPERATING PORTFOLIO INSTALLED CAPACITY 2024 NET CAPACITY FACTOR ELECTRICITY GENERATION

UN DEC-24 ADDED AR AYTD®  UN 2024 2023 APPYoY  UN 2024 2023 A% YoY
Europe MW 6,014 +912 433 +479 % 25 % 26 % -1,0pp GWh 11,545 11,619 1%
Spain MW 2,335 +293 - +293 % 25 % 25 % -Opp GWh 4,305 4,491 ~4%
Portugal MW 1,413 - - - % 27 % 27 % +0,6pp GWh 3,179 2,701 +18%
Rest of Europe MW 2,267 +619 433 +186 % 25 % 28 % -3pp GWh 4,062 4,428 -8%
France MW 280 +35 - +35 % 22 % 28 % -6pp GWh 470 525 ~10%
Belgium MW 1 - - - % 28 % 34 % ~5pp GWh 26 29 ~11%
Poland MW 621 +65 -242 77 % 27 % 28 % “pp  GWh 1,661 1,749 ~5%
Romania MW 570 +49 - +49 % 24 % 28 % ~4pp  GWh 1,081 1,284 ~16%
ltaly MW 509 +287 191 +96 % 25 % 26 % “1lpp  GWh 649 747 ~13%
Greece MW 150 +70 - +70 % 22 % 22 % “pop  GWh 136 86 +58%
UK MW 5 - - - % 21 % 21 % “Jop  GWh 10 9 +11%
Netherlands MW 49 +40 - +40 % 4 % - +4pp GWh 29 - -
Hungary MW 74 +74 - +74 % - - 0 GWh - - -
North America MW 9,047 +1,883 -649 +1,234 % 30 % 30 % +1pp GWh 20,170 17,306 +17%
US MW 8,422 +1,883 -352 +15631 % 30 % 30 % +Ipp  GWh 18,122 15,428 +17%
Canada MW 130 - -297 -297 % 33 % 27 % +6pp GWh 611 394 +55%
Mexico MW 496 - - - % 31 % 35 % ~4pp GWh 1,436 1,484 -3%
South America MW 1,702 +455 -1 +454 % 34 % 41 % -7pp GWh 3,441 4,483 -23%
Brazil MW 1,619 +455 -1 +454 % 34 % 41 % -6pp GWh 3,340 4,483 -25%
Chile MW 83 - - - % 29 % - +29pp GWh 101 - -
APAC MW 1,022 +132 - #1132 % 17 % 17 % -Opp GWh 1,396 1,184 +18%
Vietnam MW 402 - - - % 21 % 21 % +Opp GWh 751 743 +1%
Singapore MW 363 +48 - +48 % 13 % 13 % +09pp GWh 390 296 +32%
Rest of APAC MW 257 +84 - +84 % 14 % 15 % “Jop  GWh 256 145 +76%
Total EBITDA level MW 17,785 +3,383 -1,083 +2,300 % 29 % 30 % -2pp  GWh 36,551 34,593 +6%
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OPERATING PORTFOLIO INSTALLED CAPACITY 2024

UN DEC-24 ADDED AR AYTD®
Europe MW 800 +419 -81 +338
Spain MW 120 - - -
Portugal MW 28 - - -
Rest of Europe MW 652 +419 -81 +338
North America MW 719 - +127 +127
us MW 660 - +68 +68
Canada MW 59 - +59 +59
APAC MW 1" - -5 -5
Rest of APAC MW M - -5 -5
Total Equity level MW 1,530 +419 +41 +460
TOTAL (EBITDA + Equity) MW 19,315 +3,802 -1,042 +2,760

O AR stands for Asset Rotation;
)YTD variation considers a decommissioning of a 3 MW wind turbine in the US and =12 MW variation in APAC due to ac/dc real conversion.

With a top-quality portfolio, EDPR has a strong track record and proven capability to execute
superior projects and deliver on targets. It has a young and diversified portfolio of 19.3 GW with an
average age of 9 years.

As of 2024, EDPR had, in terms of EBITDA + Equity capacity, 6,814 MW installed in Europe, 9,766
MW in North America, 1,702 MW in South America and 1,033 MW in APAC.

In terms of technology, EDPR continued its effort to diversify its portfolio, which translates into 12,879
MW of wind onshore, 660 MW of wind offshore and 5,570 MW of solar technology, that includes
both solar PV utility-scale and solar DG along with 207 MW of storage capacity.
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Capacity by Region (%)

5% -

Europe North America [l South America APAC

Capacity by Technology (%)

67% 30%

Wind Onshore Solar B wind Offshore

During 2024 EDPR added a total of 3,802 MW globally, with Europe and North America
representing 85% of the total new installations, and a larger share of solar capacity vs. wind. .

More specifically, EDPR added 362 MW of wind onshore, corresponding to 162 MW in Europe,
namely 72 MW in Italy, 70 MW in Greece, and 20 MW in Spain, and 201 MW in South America,
coming from two wind projects in Brazil.

In terms of solar capacity, EDPR added a total of 2,830 MW, corresponding to 1,693 MW in the US,
273 MW in Spain, 215 MW in Italy, 74 MW in Hungary, 65 MW in Poland, 49 MW in Romania, 40 MW
in Netherlands, 35 MW in France, 255 MW in Brazil and 132 MW in APAC.

Installed capacity as of Dec-24 was also balanced by 4 Asset rotation transactions closed in 2024,
amounting to 1GW. In TH24, one deal in US for an 80% stake in a 0.3 GW solar portfolio, and another
deal in Canada for an 80% stake in a 0.3 GW wind project. In 2H24, two deals in Europe, one for
100% stake in a 0.2 GW wind portfolio in Italy and other for 100% stake in a 0.2 GW wind and solar
portfolio in Poland.

Allinall,in 2024, EDPR consolidated portfolio net variation was +2.8 GW.
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EDPR produced 36.6 TWh (+6% YoY) of clean energy in 2024 and achieved a 28% load factor (vs
29% in 2023) reflecting a 98% renewable index.

The YoY evolution has been affected by the increase of 17% in installed capacity with a high
concentration of annual additions in the last quarter of the year. In terms of resource, generation has
been impacted by the increase of solar capacity weight, with lower load factors vs wind, as well as
lower YoY resource in Brazil.

The Company continues to leverage on its competitive advantages to maximise the projects’ output
and on its diversified portfolio across different geographies to minimise the renewable resource
volatility risk.

Generation by Region (%)

4% 3%

55% 50%
329 34%
2024 2023

Europe [ North America ll South America [l APAC
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In 20244, Europe output decreased -1% YoY to 1.5 TWh and represented 32 % of the total output,
reflecting a 25% load factor (-1pp YoY). Specifically, in Spain, load factor during the year was 25%
(flat YoY), in Portugal load factor was 27% (+1pp YoY) and in the Rest of Europe, load factor was
25% (-3pp YoY).

In North America, output increased +17% YoY to 20.2 TWh, mainly driven due to additions. North
America represented 55% of EDPR’s total output in 2024 (+5% YoY). Load factor in North America
was 30% (+1pp YoY).

EDPR’s production in South America, more precisely in Brazil and Chile, decreased to 3.4 TWh
(-23% YoY), mainly explained by weak wind resource in Brazil along with deconsolidation of wind
assets and new solar installations with lower renewable resource. The region represented 9% of all
EDPR generation in the year.

Finally, APAC load factor stood at 17% (flat YoY) with production during the period reaching 1.4 TWh
(+18% YoY) on the back of new capacity additions. In 2024, APAC represented 4% of all EDPR
generation.

As of December 2024, EDPR had 2 GW of capacity under construction, fostering portfolio
diversification with >55% related to solar. Following the record capacity increase in the last quarter
of 2024 and the decision to exit Colombian projects, capacity under construction decreased from
41GW in Sep-24to 2.0 GW in Dec-24, in line with the expected capacity additions of around 2 GW
in2025.

In terms of wind onshore, under construction capacity amounted to 239 MW in Europe, with 88 MW
in Spain, 63 MW in ltaly, 58 MW in Greece and 29 MW in France. In South America 124 MW were
under construction, corresponding to Brazil. Lastly, in US there were 200 MW under construction.

Regarding solar capacity under construction, 250 MW were in Europe, more precisely, 63 in
Portugal, 62 MW in ltaly, 58 in Germany, 55 MW in Spain, and 12 MW in France. In North America,
EDPR had 532 MW under construction, all of them coming from the US. Finally, EDPR also had 84
MW of capacity under construction in APAC.
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In relation to Storage 254 MW were under construction as of Dec-24, of which 202 MW in the US,
50 MW in United Kingdom and 2 MW in APAC.

In terms of wind offshore, EDPR had, through its JV with Engie, Ocean Winds, 309 MW under
construction at equity level coming from the three projects under construction in France, which
translates into a total of 1,014 MW gross capacity.

EDPR has a young portfolio with 9 years of average operating age, with an estimate of over 22 years
of useful life remaining to be captured.

Capacity Under Construction by Technology (%)

[ WindOnshore [ Solar M Wind Offshore

Capacity Under Construction by Region (%)

[ Europe M NorthAmerica M South America [ APAC
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3.2. Financial performance

Revenues reached €2.3 Bn and Recurring EBITDA summed €1.7 Bn

Revenues increased +4% YoY to €2,320m, with electricity generation increase being partially
offset by lower prices YoY. Income from Institutional Partnerships increased +31% in line with higher
generation and new MW in operation in the US.

Other operating income stood at €317m (vs. €5683m in 2023) mainly driven by lower Asset rotation
capital gains of €179m vs. €460m gains in 2023 from outstanding transactions.

Operating Costs improved decreasing -2% YoY to €981m, mainly driven by efficient cost control
with Core OPEX/ Avg. MW (which includes Supplies & Services and Personnel Costs) decreasing
-19% YoY.

Allin all, recurring EBITDA reached €1,684m in 2024, including a €59m negative impact associated
to projects in Colombia, and a €53m non-cash cost impact from unwinding hedges related to
clawback tax in Romania, with recurring EBITDA ex. gains improving +9% YoY.

Financial results amounted to €373m in 2024, with 4Q24 at €63m (improving -28% QoQ).
Financial results increased €60m YoY in line with €2.3 Bn higher Financial Debt to cope with
business expansion and higher FX & Derivatives costs effects despite lower average cost of debt in
the period at 4.5% (vs 4.8% in 2023).

At the bottom line, recurring Net Profit reached €221m, with YoY comparison penalized by lower
Asset rotation gains and higher Financials.

During the period, EDPR was impacted by a total of €77/7/m non-recurring items of which €147/m at
EBITDA level, €712m at D&A level and positive €82m in taxes. Non-recurring items were mainly
related Ocean Winds impairment and Colombia exit decision.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenues
Other Operating Income
Operating Costs
Supplies and Services
Personnel Costs
Other Operating Costs
Share of Profit of Associates
EBITDA
Rec. EBITDA
EBITDA/Revenues
Provisions
Depreciation and Amortisation
Amortisation Government Grants
EBIT
Financial Income/ (Expense)
Pre-tax Profit
Income Taxes
Profit of the Period
Non-controlling Interests
NET PROFIT

Recurring Net Profit

UN
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
%
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m

2024
2,320
317
-981
-490
-2061
-230
-120
1,537
1,684
66 %
-140
-1,429

23

-373
-382
22
-403
153
-556
221
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2023
2,239
583
~1,001
-475
244
-283
14
1835
1,845
82 %
17
965
21
875
-313
561
102
459
150
309
513

56

A% YoY
+4%
-46%
-2%
+3%
+7%

-19%

-16 %

-9%

-16pp

+48%

+12%

-101%

+19%

-79%

+2%

-57%
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In 2024 total equity decreased by €67/m

Total Equity of €12.0 Bn decreased by €677m in 2024, mainly impacted by a negative reported net
income on the back of non-recurring items and the decrease in the non-controlling interests due to
acquisition of the remaining partnership in wind farms in Europe, partially offset by the increase
through exchanges differences.

Total Liabilities increased €2,291Tm YoY to €19.7 Bn, mainly explained by the increase in financial
debt (+€2,275m), deferred tax liabilities (+€76m), provisions (+€320m), rents due from lease
contracts (+€43m), deferred revenues from Institutional partnerships (+€738m) and institutional
partnerships (+€47m), partially offset by the decrease in other liabilities (-€1,207m). Liabilities were
mainly composed of financial debt (48% vs 42% in 2023), liabilities related to institutional
partnerships in the US (15%; slightly above the 13% of 2023) and other liabilities (23% vs 33% in
2023).

Balance with tax equity partnerships in the United States increased by €784m to €2,973m. Deferred
revenues related to institutional partnerships primarily represent the non-economic liability
associated to the tax credits already realised by the institutional investor, arising from accelerated
tax depreciation, and yet to be recognised as income by EDPR throughout the remaining useful
lifetime of the respective assets. Deferred tax liabilities reflect the liabilities arising from temporary
differences between the accounting and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. Accounts payables
include trade suppliers, PP&E suppliers, deferred income related to investment grants received and
derivative financial instruments.

As total assets summed €31.7 Bn in December 2024, the total equity ratio of EDPR reached 38%.
Assets were 70% composed of net PP&E — property, plant and equipment representing €22.0 Bn (+
€1,773m vs 2023). In detail it included +€3.4 Bn of CAPEX, -€0.8 Bn of depreciation charges along
with a negative impact of €1.2 Bn from impairment and Asset rotations, partially offset with
exchange differences.

Net intangible assets of €2.6 Bn mainly include €2.3 Bn from goodwill registered in the books,
mainly flat vs 2023.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Intangible Assets and Goodwill, net
Financial Investments, net
Deferred Tax Assets

Inventories

Accounts Receivable - Trade, net
Accounts Receivable - Other, net
Right-of-use asset

Collateral Deposits

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Assets Held for Sale

TOTAL ASSETS

Share Capital + Share Premium
Reserves and Retained Earnings
Net Profit (Equity Holders of EDPR)
Non-controlling Interests

Total Equity

Financial Debt

Institutional Partnerships

Rents due from lease contracts
Provisions

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred Revenues from Institutional Partnerships

Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

TOTALEQUITY & LIABILITIES

UN
€M
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m
€m

2024
22,026
2,632
1155
800
276
603
1,907
954
40
1196
74
31,661
7,370
3,890
556
1,272
1,976
9,514
1,478
1,047
640
933
1,495
4,579
19,686
31,661
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2023
20,252
2,787
1104
622
88

559
1,743
936

67
1,372
517
30,047
71,374
3,379
309
1,590
12,652
7,239
1,431
1,005
319
857
757
5,786
17,394
30,047
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AYoY
+1,773
-156
+50
+179
+188
+44
+163
+18
-27
-176
-443
+1,615

+5711
-865
-318
-677
+2,275
+47
+43
+320
+76
+738
-1,207
+2,291
+1,615
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Cash flow statement and Investment activity

Operating cash flow impacted mainly by lower Asset Rotation gains

In 2024, EDPR generated Cash-Flow from Operations of €853m (-35% vs 2023), primarily due to
lower Asset rotation gains at €179m (vs. the outstanding €460m Asset Rotation gains in 2023).
Cash-Flow from Operations relates to EBITDA net of income tax, changes in working capital, and
non-cash items.

Cash flow YoY evolution comparison was also impacted by the extraordinary €1Bn capital increase
executed in early 2023, and a reversal of the forex impact, from positive in 2023 to negative impact
in2024.

Allin all, Net Debt increased €2,466m during the year.

EBITDA €m 1,537 1,835 -16%
Non-cash ltems €m -156 -274 -43%
Income Tax Paid €m -250 -157 +59%
Changes in working capital €m -278 -100 -%
Cash-Flow from Operations €m 853 1,304 -35%
Net Interest Paid €m -250 -175 +43%
Minorities/Partnerships €m -133 -131 +2%
Other €m -69 -27 -%
Organic Cash-Flow €m 401 972 -59%
Net Expansion Investments €m -2,771 -2,889 -4%
Dividends paid to EDPR Shareholders €m -5 -21 -77%
Forex €m -91 10 -%
Other (including one-off adjustments) €m - 959 -100%
Capital Increase €m - 1,000 -100%

DECREASE/(INCREASE) INNET DEBT €m -2,466 -867 -%
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Net debt

Supporting the investments that are behind the growth plan

As of December 2024, Net Debt totalled €8,278m (vs €5,805m in 2023) mainly given the
investment that supported the record high additions that occurred in 2024, together with lower
Asset rotation proceeds in the period slightly offset by higher TEl proceeds secured during the year.

Net Debt (€m)

2023 5,805

2024 8,278

Debt Maturity (%)

78%

16%

s - o
e —

2024 2025 2026 >2026
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Europe

In 2024, revenues in Europe amounted to €1,003m (-6% vs 2023) due to lower production at 11.5
TWh (-1% vs 2023), weaker loads factor (-1pp YoY) and lower prices (-4% vs 2023) that still
showed resilience to falling prices in Europe markets due to EDPR’s hedging strategy. Net Operating
income (Other operating income net of Operating costs) amounted to -€260m (vs the positive
€22min 2023), mainly explained by the lower capital gains in the year vs 2023. All in all, EBITDA in
Europe totalled €746m (-31% vs 2023), reflecting an EBITDA margin of 74%.

North America

In North America, revenues increased to €1,112m in 2024 (+16% vs 2023) on the back higher
production due to the record high additions of 1.9 GW during the year and the stabilization of wind
conditions, that resulted in an increase of +2p.p. YoY of renewables resources. Regarding the
electricity prices, avg. selling prices remained flat vs 2023, given the weight of parks under PPA/
Hedge regime.

North America EBITDA totalled €858m (vs €584m in 2023), reflecting an EBITDA margin of 77%,
which means an increase of 16pp vs 2023, mainly driven by higher margins due to higher production
and capital gains resulting from 2 asset rotation transactions in US and Canada, completed in
February and April.

INCOME STATEMENT EUROPE NORTH AMERICA
2024 2023 A% YoY 2024 2023 A% YoY
Revenues 1,003 1,069 -6% 1,112 960 +16%
Other Operating Income 150 459 -67% 149 43 -
Operating Costs -409 -437 -6% -445 -450 -1%
Supplies and Services -230 -230 +0% -242 -215 +13%
Personnel Costs -66 -65 +2% -10 -17 -6%
Other Operating Costs -1N3 -142 -21% -93 -18 -21%
Share of Profit of Associates 3 -5 -% 42 30 +38%
EBITDA 746 1,087 -31% 858 584 +47%
EBITDA/Revenues 74 % 102 % -27pp 77 % 61 % +16pp
Provisions - -13 -97% - 0,3 -100%
Depreciation and Amortisation -262 -220 +19% -488 -459 +6%
Amortisation Government Grants 1 1 -33% 22 17 +28%

EBIT 484 855 -15% 391 142 -
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South America

In South America, which mainly reflect Brazil, revenues decreased to €95m (-€33m vs 2023) highly
impacted by lower electricity output (-23% YoY) mainly explained by lower resources in the year
and a mix effect of adding more solar when compared to wind, which were compensated by an
increase of +4% YoY in prices due to new contracts with better pricing coming in and starting
operations. Net Operating income amounted to -€45m (vs the positive €27m in 2023), with the
comparison mainly explained by the gains generated from the Asset rotation deal closed in 2023.
Allin all, EBITDA in South America totalled €50m, (vs €156m in 2023) reflecting an EBITDA margin
of 53%.

APAC

In APAC, revenues amounted to €136m (+19% vs 2023) on the back of strong operational
performance with +18% higher YoY energy production mainly due to higher installed capacity. With
Net Operating costs amounting to €51m in the period, EBITDA in APAC totalled €84m (vs. €68m in
2023) reflecting an EBITDA margin of 62%.

INCOME STATEMENT SOUTH AMERICA APAC
2024 2023 A% YoY 2024 2023 A% YoY
Revenues 95 128 -26% 136 M4 +19%
Other Operating Income 4 70 -94% 3 1 +101%
Operating Costs -49 -42 +16% -54 -51 +6%
Supplies and Services -33 -32 +2% -28 -30 -8%
Personnel Costs -8 -6 +41% -22 -16 +36%
Other Operating Costs -8 -5 +76% -4 -4 -12%
Share of Profit of Associates - - -96 % - 3 -1M2%
EBITDA 50 156 -68% 84 68 +24%
EBITDA/Revenues 53 % 121 % -69pp 62 % 59 % +3pp
Provisions 2 -4 -% - - -100%
Depreciation and Amortisation -30 -30 +2% -81 -60 +36%
Amortisation Government Grants - - n.a 1 3 -68%
EBIT 22 122 -82% 4 n -62%

Note: Income statements only take into consideration countries with operating capacity.
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Subsequent events

EDPR signs Asset Rotation deal for a 300 MWac solar and 92 MW storage portfolio
inthe US

Madrid, January 2" 2025: EDP Renovdveis, S.A. ("EDPR”) signed a Sale and Purchase Agreement
with a major energy global player to sell a 49% equity stake of class B shares in a portfolio of 300
MWac (406 MWdc) of 2 operating solar projects and 92 MW of an electricity storage facility.

The two solar projects were commissioned in 4Q24 while the storage facility is under construction
and expected to be commissioned in 4Q25. The projects are located in Californiqg, in US, and share
the same grid connection infrastructure with the storage facility.

Total Enterprise Value for 100% of the portfolio amounts to $0.6 Bn.

The transaction is subject to conditions precedent, regulatory and other usual conditions for a
transaction of this nature.

In 2024, total number of invoices paid by Spanish companies within the legal payment period
amounted to 36,541 invoices, 95% of total invoices, while the payments made within the legal
payment period amounted to €159,255k, which represents 93% of total payments. The average
supplier payment period was of 34 days, below the payment period stipulated by law of 60 days.
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3.3. Share performance

EDPR has 1,040 million shares listed and admitted to trading in NYSE Euronext Lisbon, following the
issuance of 15,877,770 new ordinary shares as a result of the scrip dividend program concluded in
June 2024. EDPR total share capital is composed of 1,039,855,871 shares with a nominal value of
five euros each, fully paid. All these shares are part of a single class and series and are admitted to
trading on the Euronext Lisbon regulated market. On December 31st, 2024, EDPR had a market
capitalisation of €10.4 Bn, and equivalent to €10.04 per share. In 2024 total shareholder return was
-45%, considering the dividend paid on May 23rd of €0.20 per share.

In 2024, the Utilities Sector exhibited total return of +2.2% (vs. +18% in 2023), reflecting a more
challenging environment compared to the strong performance in the previous year. During 2024,
European utilities performance was impacted by a strong decline in prices in the beginning of the
year recovered in the second half of the year, bond yields increase in the first and last quarter and
Europe and US political uncertainty led investors to favour growth in regulated assets in UK,
Germany and US as opposed to renewables.

The global benchmark for clean energy-related businesses, S&P Global Clean Energy Index,
registered a TSR of -26%, mainly attributed to the underperformance of pure renewables
companies compared to utilities, resulting mainly from volatility in energy prices, increase in bond
yields, US presidential elections with uncertainty around the implications for the 2022 Inflation
Reduction Act and political uncertainty in Europe which negatively affected the index.

EDPR’s TSR of -45% in 2024 underperformed both European and Utilities benchmark Indexes,
impacted by the adverse of macroeconomic conditions and specific issues, including downward
revision of 2024 guidance, exit the Colombian projects and lower asset rotation.
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1 04-Jan EDPR informs on Asset Rotation deal for a solar portfolio in North America

2 24-Jan EDPR secures its first PPA in Germany

3 O7-Feb EDPR informs on PPA secured for a 250 MW portfolio in Spain

4 12-Feb EDPR informs on CfDs secured for 100 MW of onshore wind in Italian auction

5 14-Feb EDPR informs on Asset Rotation deal for a wind project in Canada

6 15-Feb EDPR informs on completion of AR deal for a solar portfolio in North America

7 27-Feb EDPR informs on government tender secured for solar projects in Singapore

8 02-Apr EDPR informs on around 100 MW of storage capacity secured in the US

9 18-Apr EDPR informs on completion of AR deal for a 297 MW wind project in Canada
10 02-May EDPR informs on feasibility license awarded to OW in Australia

" 08-May EDPR informs on completion of the sale of a minority stake by OW in Moray East
12 1M-Jun EDPR informs on Long-Term contract secured for 75 MW of Storage in Canada
13 25-Jun EDPR informs on 133 MW solar capacity secured in Europe

14 28-Jun EDPR informs on Asset Rotation deal signed for a renewables portfolio in Italy

15 10-Jul EDPR informs on PPA secured for 150 MWac solar project in US

16 15-Jul EDPR informs on PPA secured for 100 MWac solar project in US with Google

17 17-Jul EDPR informs on completion of AR deal for a renewables portfolio in ltaly

18 23-Jul EDPR informs on 24-year contract secured for 200 MW of Storage in the US

19 25-Jul EDPR informs on PPA secured for 44 MW solar project in Japan

20 02-Aug EDPR informs on signing an AR deal of a 240 MW portfolio in Poland

21 26-Aug EDPR signs PPA for a solar project in Singapore

22 16-Sep EDPR informs on contract secured for 85 MW of Storage in the US

23 27-Sep EDPR releases Plan for Gender Equality for 2024-25

24 09-Oct EDPR informs on conclusion of buyback of minority stake in1 GW wind portfolio in Europe
25 23-Oct EDPR informs on completion of Asset Rotation deal in Poland

26 16-Dec EDPR informs on signing an Asset Rotation deal of a 82 MWac portfolio in Spain
27 18-Dec EDPR informs on long-term contracts awarded for 160 MW of Storage in Poland
28 19-Dec EDPR decides to exit its Colombian projects

Source: BLOOMBERG / EDPR
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PART | - Information on shareholder structure,
organisation and corporate governance

l. Capital structure
1. Capital structure

EDP Renovdveis, S.A. (hereinafter referred to as “EDP Renovdveis”, “EDPR” or the “Company”) total
share capital is 5,199,279,355€, following a share capital increase executed and registered on May
23" 2024, where 15,877,770 new ordinary shares were issued.

As of December 31%, 2024, EDPR total share capital is composed of 1,039,855,871 shares with a
nominal value of EUR 5.00 each, fully paid up.

All these shares are part of a single class and series and are listed on the regulated market of
Euronext Lisbon with the following codes and tickers:

ISIN:ES0127797019
LE:529900MUFAHO/QITAXO6

Bloomberg Ticker (Euronext Lisbon): EDPR PL
Reuters RIC: EDPR.LS

EDPR main shareholder is EDP, S.A., holding through EDP, S.A. Sucursal en Espafia, with 71.3% of
share capital and voting rights. Excluding EDP, EDPR shareholders comprise more than 40,000
institutional and private investors spread in more than 50 countries with main focus in the United
States of America, United Kingdom, France and Singapore.

Disregarding EDP, institutional investors represent approximately 95% of the Company
shareholders, mainly investment funds and socially responsible investors (“SRI”), while private
investors, mostly Portuguese, stand for the remaining 5%.
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For further information about EDPR’s shareholder structure please see chapter 1. The Company (1.4
Shareholder structure).

2. Restrictions on the transferability of shares

EDPR’s Articles of Association have no restrictions on the transferability of shares.
3. Own shares

As of December 31%, 2024, EDPR did not hold own shares.

4. Change of company control

EDPR has not adopted any measures designed to prevent successful takeover bids, nor defensive
measures for cases of a change in control in its shareholder structure or agreements subject to the
condition of a change in control of the Company, other than in accordance with normal practice, and
therefore, has not adopted any mechanisms that imply payments or assumption of fees in the case
of the transfer of control or the change in the composition of the managing body, or that could be
likely to harm the free transferability of shares or shareholder assessment of the performance of the
members of the managing body.

Notwithstanding the above, the following are normal market practice related to a potential change of
control:

In the case of financing of certain wind farm projects, lenders have the right to approve change
in control at the borrower if the later ceased to be controlled, directly or indirectly by EDP.

In the case of guarantees provided by EDP Group companies, if EDP directly or indirectly
ceases to have the majority of EDPR, then EDP is no longer obliged to provide such services or
guarantees. The relevant subsidiaries will be obliged to provide for the cancellation or
replacement of all outstanding guarantees within approximately sixty (60) days of the change
of control event.

In the cases of intra-group services agreements and according to the Framework Agreement
signed between EDP Renovaveis, S.A. and EDP, S.A,, the contracts will maintain their full force
as long as (i) EDP maintains its share capital above 50% or the right to exercise directly or
indirectly more than 50% of voting rights on EDPR’s share capital, or (ii) even if the share
capital of EDP or its voting rights are below 50%, but more than half of the Members of the
Board are elected through an EDP proposal.
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5. Defensive measures

EDPR does not have a special system for the renewal or withdrawal of counter measures for the
restriction on the number of votes capable of being held or exercised by only one shareholder
individually or together with other shareholders.

6. Shareholders’ agreements

The Company is not aware of any shareholders’ agreement that may result in restrictions on the
transfer of securities or voting rights.

Il. Shareholdings and bonds held
7. Qualifying holdings
Qualifying holdings in EDPR are subject to the Spanish Law, which regulates the criteria and

thresholds of the shareholder’s ownerships. The table below includes the information about the
qualifying holdings of EDPR and their voting rights as of December 31%, 2024:

SHAREHOLDERS SHARES
EDP, S.A. (through EDP, S.A. — SUCURSAL EN ESPANA) 741,377,952
GIC 44,259,918
BLACKROCKINC. 31,500,493
Total qualified holdings 817,138,363

As of December 31%, 2024, EDPR’s shareholder structure consisted in a total qualified shareholding
of 78.58%, corresponding to EDP, GIC and Blackrock Inc., with 71.30%, 4.26% and 3.03% of the
capital, respectively.

8. Shares held by the Members of the Management and Supervisory Boards

As of December 31%, 2024, only Rui Teixeira, member of the Board of Directors, held directly 356
EDPR shares.

“Thislisthas a merely indicative nature, as the Board of Directors may perform all further powers expressly granted to the Board in the Articles or in the applicable law.
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9. Special powers of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is vested with the broad-ranging powers of administration and management
of the Company, with no other limitations besides the powers which are expressly assigned to the
General Shareholders’ Meetings in the Company’s Articles of Association (specifically in article 13)
or in the applicable law. In this regard, the powers of the Board include, without limitation' to:

Acquire on lucrative or onerous title basis personal and real property, rights, shares and interests
that may suit the Company.

Sell and mortgage or charge personal and real property, rights, shares and interests of the
Company and cancel mortgages and other rights inrem.

Negotiate and enter into loans and credit operations that it may deem appropriate.
Negotiate and formalize all sort of acts and contracts with public entities or private persons.

Exercise civil and criminal actions and all further actions to be undertaken by the Company,
representing it before governmental officers, authorities, corporations, governing, administrative,
administrative-economic, administrative-litigation and judicial courts, labour courts and the
labour sections of the Supreme Court and of the High Courts of the Autonomous Communities,
with no limitations whatsoever, including before the European Court of Justice, and in general
before the Government, in all its levels and hierarchies to intervene or promote, follow and
terminate, through all procedures and instances, the processes, court sections or proceedings to
accept decisions, to file any kind of appeal, including the cassation one and other extraordinary
appeals, to discontinue or confess, to agree an early termination of a proceeding, to submit
litigious questions to arbitration judges, and to carry out all sorts of notices and requirements and
to grant a power of attorney to Court Representatives and other representatives, with the case-
related powers and the powers which are usually granted to litigation cases and all the special
powers applicable, and to revoke such powers.

Agree the allotment of interim dividends.

Call and convene the General Shareholders’ Meetings and submit to them the proposals that it
deem appropriate.
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Direct the Company and organize its operations and exploitations by acknowledging the course
of the Company businesses and operations, managing the investment of funds, making
extraordinary amortizations of bonds and realizing anything that it is considered appropriate for
the best achievement of the Company’s objectives.

Determine the roles of the members of the Board of Directors and to appoint and dismiss other
Company’s technical and administrative personnel, defining their responsibilities and
remuneration.

Agree any changes of the registered office’s address within the same municipal area.

Incorporate legal entities as stipulated under the law. assigning and investing all sorts of assets
and rights, as well as entering merger and cooperation agreements, association, grouping and
temporary union agreements between companies or business and joint property agreements,
and agreeing their alteration, transformation and termination.

Likewise, the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on March 26™, 2020, approved the delegation to
the Board of Directors of the power to issue in one or more occasions both:

Fixed income securities or other debt instruments of analogous nature.

Fixed income securities or other type of securities (warrants included) convertible or
exchangeable into EDP Renovdveis, S.A. shares, or that recognize at the Board of Directors’
discretion the right of subscription or acquisition of shares of EDP Renovdveis, S.A. or of other
companies, up to a maximum amount of three hundred million Euros (EUR 300,000,000) or its
equivalent in other currency.

As part of such delegation, the General Shareholder’s Meeting delegated into the Board of Directors
the power to increase the share capital up to the necessary amount to execute the related tasks
above. Additionally, it was also approved to authorize the Board of Directors for the acquisition of
own shares by the Company and/or the affiliate companies up to the maximum limit of 10% of the
subscribed share capital. These delegations may be exercised by the Board of Directors within a
period of five (5) years since the proposal was approved, and within the limits provided under the law
and the By-Laws.

Likewise, on the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on March 31, 2022, it was also approved the
delegation to the Board of Directors of the power to carry out increases of share capital with the
exclusion of the pre-emptive subscription rights (on one or several occasions) within the maximum
term of five years. The total maximum amount of the increase or increases decided upon under this
authorization shall be no higher than 50% of the present share capital. or in the event that the
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increase of capital excludes the pre-emptive subscription right of shareholders, than the 20% of the
present share capital. This authorization shall be extended, as broadly as may be required by Law, to
the setting and determination of those terms inherent in each of the increases in order to obtain any
authorizations required under the legal provisions in force (including, but without being limited to, the
determination of the amount and date of implementation, the number of shares to be issued, with or
without voting rights, with or without a share premium, consisting of the countervalue of the new
shares to be issued in monetary contributions, and being able to determine the terms and conditions
of the increase of capital and the characteristics of the shares). Should be noted that, it has been
specifically stated with regards to this authorization that the total or partial exclusion of the pre-
emptive subscription right shall be performed in terms of the corporate interest and pursuant to the
legal requirements, and that the Board of Directors shall issue a report detailing those reasons that
justify this in the corporate interest in each specific case, and which shall be made available to the
shareholders and communicated at the first General Shareholders’ Meeting held after the increase
in capital.

Additionally, in compliance with its personal law and Company’s internal regulations, some
functions of the Board of Directors are non-delegable and, as such, have to be performed at this
level, which are the following:

Election of the Chair of the Board of Directors.
Appointment of Directors by co-option.

Supervision of the effective functioning of any committees that it may have incorporated and of
the performance of any delegated bodies or managers it may have designated.

Determination of the company’s general policies and strategies.

Authorization or waiver of the obligations arising from the Directors duty of loyalty.

Its own organization and functioning.

Formulation of the annual accounts and its submission to the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

Preparation of any type of report required from the board by law, when the underlying transaction
to which the report refers cannot be delegated.

Appointment and removal of the delegated directors (“Joint Directors”) of the company, as well
as the determination of their contract conditions.
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Appointment or removal of the members of the Management Team, as well as the determination
of their basic contract conditions, including remuneration.

Decisions relating to directors’ remuneration, within the statutory framework and, if such is the
case, within the remuneration policy approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

Calling the General Shareholders’ Meeting and preparing the agenda and proposed resolutions.
Policy relating to own shares.

Any powers that the General Shareholders’ Meeting has vested to the board of directors, unless
the board has explicitly authorized that they may be sub-delegated.

Approval of the strategic or business plan, annual management objectives and budget,
investment and financing policies, sustainability policies and the dividends policy.

Determination of the risk control and management policy, including those related to tax matters,
and the supervision of the internal information and control systems.

Determination of the company’s corporate governance policy as well as the one applicable to the
group of which the company is the parent entity its organization and functioning and, in
particular, the approval and amendment of its own regulations.

Approval of the financial information that the company must disclose periodically.

The definition of the structure of the group of companies of which the company is the parent
entity.

Approval of all type of investments and transactions that due to their high amount or special
nature are considered as strategic or that may imply a financial risk, unless their approval falls
under the General Shareholders’ Meeting. For the purposes of this paragraph, the following
transactions shall be considered as included:

The purchase and sale of assets, rights or shareholdings by EDPR, included in the business
plan approved by the Board of Directors (“the Business Plan”), whenever their [A] (i) book
value, or (ii) market value assessed in terms of equity value, or (iii) the transaction price, or (iv)
the initial investment value, is over one hundred and fifty million Euros (150,000,000€) (at
present value), or [B] initial investment value consumes the total amount foreseen Business
Plan for these type of transactions, whenever their (i) book value, or (ii) its market value
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assessed in terms of equity value, or (iii) the transaction price, or (iv) the initial investment
value, is over seventy-five million Euros (€75,000,000) (at present value).

ii. Agreements regarding (i) bank loans and (ii) credit facilities in an amount above two hundred
and fifty million Euros (€250,000,000), provided that, as a result of such agreements, EDPR’s
overall indebtedness exceeds the amount set forth in the approved annual budget.

iii. Total or partial opening or closure of establishments, as well as extensions or reductions of its
activity, provided that, according to a reasonable estimate of the executive directors, they
result in a change in the turnover or in the assets of the Company of over seventy-five million
Euros (€75,000,000).

iv. Other operations and relevant transactions, and in particular, those excluded from the scope
of the Business Plan whenever their (i) book value or (ii) market value assessed in terms of
equity value, or (iii) the transaction price, or (iv) the initial investment value is above seventy-
five million Euros (€75,000,000)(at present value).

v. Any operations not directly related to the energy sector which amount is above twenty million
Euros (€20,000,000).

vi. Setting up or terminating strategic partnerships or any other forms of enduring cooperation, in
an amount above twenty million Euros (€20,000,000).

The approval of the creation or acquisition of shares in special purpose entities or registered in
countries or territories considered tax havens, as well as any other transaction or operation of a
similar nature that, due to its complexity, may undermine the transparency of the company and its

group.
The approval of Related Party Transactions, unless:

I.  Itsapproval corresponds to the General Shareholders’ Meeting; or

ii. transactions (i) between companies of the same group and that are performed in the ordinary
management of the company and under market conditions, or (ii) closed under standardized
conditions and wholesale applied to a high number of clients, and at prices or tariffs generally
established by the supplier of the good or service, the amount of which does not exceed the
0.5% of the net annual company turnover, which will be approved by the Audit, Control and
Related Party Transactions Committee.

The determination of the company’s tax strategy.
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The supervision of the elaboration and submission process of the financial information and the
management report, that will include, as the case may be, the required non-financial information
and the submission of the recommendations or proposals presented to the Board aimed to
protect its integrity.

Should be noted that in case of duly justified urgency situations, or when considered convenient in
an interim period between meetings of the Board of Directors, the decisions related to the reserved
matters referred above may be adopted by the delegated bodies or individuals and will be ratified at
the first Board meeting to be held after the adoption of the decision.

Notwithstanding the above, as from October 2022, a fast-track procedure has been established by
the Board of Directors of EDPR for certain matters that require urgent approval. This procedure is
extensively ruled under the regulations of the Board of Directors. As per the governance model
adopted, EDPR has to comply with the regulation established under the Spanish Companies Act,
which among others, as mentioned above, establishes that the approvals of the strategic lines and
policies of the company are a reserved matters of the Board of Directors that cannot be delegated,
and that shall be necessarily approved at this level.

Therefore, in compliance with recommendation V.1 and its personal Law (Spanish one), in case of
proposal of a new Business Plan, in EDPR such will be first assessed by the Audit, Control and
Related Party Transactions Committee (as per its Governance Model does not have a Supervisory
Body), and being the final proposal approved at the Board of Directors level.

10. Significant business relationships between the holders of qualifying holdings and the
Company

Information on any significant business relationships between the holders of qualifying holdings and
the Company is described on topic 90 of this Chapter of the Annual Report.
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l. General Shareholders’ Meeting

On March 31%, 2022 the General Shareholders’ Meeting resolved to approve the Regulations of the
General Shareholders' Meeting of EDPR which establishes the principles of its organization and
operation, and that contain the rules governing the convening, preparation, information, attendance
and development of the General Shareholders’ Meeting, as well as the exercise of the corresponding
rights of the shareholders when it is convened and held, all in accordance with the applicable
regulations in force. These regulations are available at the website of the Company www.edpr.com.
Any amendment to these Regulations shall require the resolution to be adopted by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting but not with qualified quorum.

A) Composition of the Board of the General Shareholders’ Meeting
1. Board of the General Shareholders’ Meeting

Since 2021, EDPR adopted the general practice followed under the personal law of the Company
(Spanish one) that allows the General Shareholders’ Meeting to be chaired by the Chair of the Board
of Directors, and in the absence thereof, to the Vice-Chair (in the absence of both of them, it will be
assigned to the oldest director).

As such, the Chair of the Board of Directors - or whoever acting as substitute - together with the
remaining Members of the Board, shall constitute the Board of the General Shareholders’ Meeting;
and its Secretary will be the Secretary of the Board of Directors. Therefore, in 2024 the role was
performed by Antonio Gomes Mota, who was re-elected as member of the Board for a three-year (3)
term by the General Shareholders’ Meeting held in April 4™ 2024, and for the position of Chair of the
Board of Directors on its meeting subsequently held on the same date—and the role of the Secretary
of the General Shareholders’ Meeting corresponds to the Secretary of the Board of Directors, Maria
Gonzdlez Rodriguez, who was appointed for that position on November 2" 2021.

It should also be highlighted that in accordance with article 180 of the Spanish Companies’ Law, all
the Board of Directors’ Members are obliged to attend the General Shareholders’ Meetings.

The Chair of the General Shareholders’ Meeting of EDPR has at his disposal the necessary human
and logistical resources required for the performance of his duties. Therefore, in addition to the
resources provided by the Company’s General Secretary, in 2024 the Company hired a specialized
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entity to give support to the meeting and to collect, process and count the votes submitted by the
shareholders on the Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meetings.

B) Exercising the right to vote
12. Voting rights restrictions

Each EDPR share entitles its holder to one vote. Neither EDPR’s Articles of Association, nor General
Shareholders' Meeting Regulations establish any restriction regarding voting rights. Additionally, the
Articles of Association do not include any provisions for double loyalty voting.

13. Votingrights

Neither EDPR’s Articles of Association, nor General Shareholders' Meeting Regulations have any
reference to a maximum percentage of voting rights that may be exercised by a single shareholder
or by shareholders that are in any relationship.

All shareholders, regardless the number of shares owned, may attend to the General Shareholders’
Meeting and request the information or explanations that they consider relevant regarding the
matters included in the agenda of the convened meeting, and are entitled, as shareholders of the
Company, to take part in its deliberations and to participate in its voting process. The logistics for the
exercise of the voting rights, including the procedure and requirements for the submission through
mail and electronic communication of voting forms, and the cut-off date for the shareholders to be
able to exercise suchrights, are set forth in the Regulations of the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

Any shareholder may be represented at the General Shareholders’ Meeting by a third party by
means of a revocable power of attorney (even if such representative is not a shareholder). The Board
of Directors may require shareholders’ power of attorney to be in the Company’s possession at least
two (2) days in advance, indicating the name of the representative.

These powers of attorney shall be granted specifically for each General Shareholders’ Meeting and
can be evidenced in writing or by remote means of communication such as email or post.

According to the applicable law and the Company’s Articles of Association, the notice of EDPR’s
General Shareholders’ Meetings is published in the Official Gazette of the Commercial Registry and
on the Company’s website at least thirty (30) days prior to the meeting date.

Likewise, the Notice of the General Shareholders’ Meeting is published at Interbolsa Platform and on
the website of the Comissdo do Mercado de Valores Mobilidrios (“CMVM”) — at www.cmvm.pt -
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and of the Comision Nacional del Mercado de Valores (“CNMV”) — at www.cnmv.es. Simultaneously
with the publication of the meeting Notice, the supporting documentation in relation to the General
Shareholders’ Meeting is published on the CMVM website. Likewise, as soon as the notice of the
meeting is formally published, the following information and documentation related to the General
Shareholders’ Meeting is made available at the Company’s website (www.edpr.com):

The notice of the General Shareholders’ Meeting.
The total number of shares and voting rights at the date of the Meeting notice.

The template of the letter of representation and the template of the ballot to be sent by mail, and
also, the links to the electronic platform that the Company provides for the voting on the topics
included in the agenda.

The full texts of the proposed resolutions (included when received if such were the case, those
proposed by shareholders) and related supporting documentation, that will be submitted to the
General Shareholders’ Meeting for approval. The consolidated texts in force (Articles of
Association and the other applicable regulations).

In 2024, the Company included the English and Portuguese versions of the information and
documents related to the General Shareholders’ Meetings on its website (www.edpr.com) with the
notice of the meetings being the Spanish version of the documents the one that prevailed.

Shareholders may vote on the topics included on the General Shareholders’ Meeting agenda in
person (including by means of the corresponding representative) at the meeting, by ordinary mail, or
by electronic communication (in this latest case, through a telematic vote platform made available at
the Company’s website or sending the related filled and signed templates by email), and in any case
providing the documentation indicated in the General Shareholders’ Meeting Regulations.

Pursuant to the terms of article 15 of the Articles of Association and Article 24.7 of the General
Shareholders’ Meeting Regulations, both electronic and mail-in votes must be received by the
Company before midnight (24.00 hours) of the day before the scheduled meeting date of first call.
Remote votes can be revoked subsequently by the same means used to cast them, always within the
deadlines established for that purpose, or by personal attendance to the General Shareholders’
Meeting of the shareholder who cast the vote to his/her representative.

In addition to the above-mentioned means, and pursuant IPCG recommendation Ill.4, the EDPR
General Shareholder’s Meeting held on April 4™ 2024 offered to the shareholders the possibility of
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attending the Meeting by telematic means in accordance with article 15.6 of the Articles of
Association and articles 11.3.e) and 16.5 of the General Shareholders’ Meeting Regulations.

14. Decisions that can only be adopted by a qualified quorum

According to EDPR’s Articles of Association and the General Shareholders’ Meeting Regulations,
and as established in the applicable law, both ordinary and extraordinary General Shareholders’
Meetings are validly constituted when first called if the shareholders, either present or represented,
jointly reach at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the subscribed voting capital. On second call, the
General Shareholders’ Meeting will be validly constituted regardless of the amount of the capital
present or represented.

Notwithstanding the above percentages, to validly approve the issuance of bonds, the increase or
reduction of capital, the transformation, global assignment of assets and liabilities, merger or spin-
off of the Company, the transfer of the Registered Office abroad, the elimination or limitation of pre-
emptive rights of new shares and in general, any necessary amendment to the Articles of
Association, in the Ordinary or Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, it is required that on first call,
the Shareholders, either present or represented, reach at least fifty percent (50%) of the subscribed
voting capital and, on second call, at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the subscribed voting
capital.

In relation to the quorum required to validly approve these matters, in accordance with the Law, the
Articles of Association and the General Shareholders’ Meeting Regulations, when the shareholders
attending represent more than fifty percent (50%) of the subscribed voting capital, the above
mentioned resolutions will be validly adopted by absolute majority, and in the case the shareholders
attending represent between the twenty-five percent (25%) and the fifty percent (50%) — but
without reaching it - the favourable vote of the two-thirds (2/3) of the present or represented capital
in the General Shareholders’ Meeting will be required to approve these resolutions.

EDPR has not established any mechanism that may intend to cause mismatching between the rights
to receive dividends or the subscription of new securities and the voting right of each common share
and has not adopted mechanisms that hinder the passing of resolutions by shareholders, including
fixing a quorum for resolutions greater than that provided by the law.
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Il. Management and supervision

A) Composition
15. Corporate Governance model

EDPR is a Spanish Company listed in a regulated stock exchange in Lisbon, Portugal. The corporate
organization of EDPR is subject to its personal low and to the extent possible, to the
recommendations contained in the Corporate Governance Code of the Instituto Portugués de
Corporate Governance (“IPCG”), resulted as of the Protocol signed on October 13™ 2017, between
the Comissdo do Mercado de Valores Mobilidrios (“CMVM” — Portuguese Securities Market
Commission) and the IPCG, which was last reviewed in 2023. This governance code is available at
the IPCG website (https://cam.cgov.pt/).

As such, the Company intends to comply with both legal systems but always taking into account that
its personal law is the Spanish one, and that in case of discrepancy, the aim is to adopt the law that
entails more protectionism for its shareholders.

The governance structure of EDPR is the one applicable under its personal law, that comprises a
General Shareholders’ Meeting and a Board of Directors that represents and manages the
Company.

Additionally, this model seeks to correspond it to the so-called “Anglo-Saxon” model set forth in the
Portuguese Commercial Companies Code, in which the management body is a Board of Directors,
and the supervision and control duties are of the responsibility of an Audit, Control and Related Party
Transactions Committee. The organization and functioning of EDPR corporate governance model
aims to achieve the highest standards of corporate governance, business conduct and ethics
referenced on the best national and international practices.

In line with the governance model above referred, and as detailed throughout sections 15 to 29 of this
Chapter and contemplated in the law and Articles of Association of the Company, as of December
31%, 2024, EDPR does not have a Supervisory Board, but its Board of Directors has set up three
Delegated Committees entirely composed by Independent Members of the Board of Directors:

I.  the Audit, Control and Related-Party Transactions Committee,
il. the Appointments and Remunerations Committee and

iii. the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee.
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This structure and its functioning, enables a fluent workflow between all levels of the governance
model, as:

i. each of the Delegated Committees shall report the decisions taken to the Board of Directors
(drafting the minutes of each of the meetings and also providing whatever further clarification is
required by the Board), and

il. as the committees members are also Members of the Board, all of them will also receive the
complete information at Board of Directors level (as convening of the meetings, supporting
documents and related minutes) in order to take the corresponding decisions; and all in all, thus
ensuring in time and manner the access to all the information to the whole Board of Directors in
order to appraise the performance, current situation and perspectives for the further
development of the Company.

The Secretary of the Board of Directors constitutes the focal point in charge of the centralization of
the reception and management of all the information and documents to be provided to the different
Governing Bodies.

This information is prepared by the different departments of EDPR, with the support, when
necessary, of external experts, and always managed in a strictly confidential basis.

Additionally, the corresponding duties and functioning procedures for the Governing Bodies
(including but without limitation, the performance of their functions, their Chairmanship, periodicity
of meetings, their functioning and the duties of their Members) have been defined at the Articles of
Association, the General Shareholders’ Meeting Regulations, and Board of Directors and Delegated
Committees Regulations (which are published at the website of the Company www.edpr.com), with
the aim of ensuring the adequacy in terms of time and manner of the elaboration, management and
access to the information in order to proceed at each level with the corresponding
acknowledgements and decisions. In line with the above, the Secretary of the Board of Directors
sends the notices and supporting documents of the topics to be discussed in each meeting of the
Board and of each of its committees, to their proper discussion during the meeting. Besides the
above, the Secretary of the Board of Directors also provides necessary legal advice to the Governing
Bodies. Finally, the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and Delegated Committees are
drawn and also circulated by the General Secretary.

Index Part | 72

The governance model of EDPR was designed to ensure the transparent and meticulous separation
of duties, management, and the specialization of supervision, through the following governing
bodies:

General Shareholders’ Meeting

Board of Directors

Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee
Appointments and Remunerations Committee
Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee

The experience gained operating the Company through this structure indicates that the governance
model approved by EDPR shareholders, and adopted in EDPR, is the most appropriate in line with the
corporate organization of its activity, especially because it affords transparency and a healthy
balance between the management and the supervisory functions.

16. Rules for the nomination and replacement of directors

According to Article 29(5) of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Appointments and
Remunerations Committee is empowered by the Board of Directors to propose, advise, and inform
the Board regarding the appointments (including by co-optation), re-elections, removals and
remuneration of the Board Members, as well as the composition of the committees of the Board.

This committee also advises on the appointment, remuneration and dismissal of top management
officers.

As also referred in the Company Articles of Association (Article 21) the term of office of the Board
Members shall be of three (3) years and may be re-elected once or more times for equal periods. The
appointment proposals shall be approved by majority.

Following the best Corporate Governance practices, the Appointments and Remunerations
Committee had since 2023 identified and predefined the criteria applicable in the selection of the
new members of its Governing Bodies.

The market trends, the Recommendation 11.2.1. and the specific needs of EDPR were taken into
account by profiling a blueprint of the professional competences of the Members, in order to ensure
the suitability of the roles, the contribution of the new profiles to a better performance, and the aim of
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ensuring a balanced composition in the bodies of the Company. Said requirements were the
following:

Individual attributes: education, competence, integrity, availability, and experience that were
particularized into:

o Core industry, Strategy & Business Development, Financial Acumen, Accounting,
Auditing and Control, International Experience, M&A and Capital Markets, Legal,
Governance, Environmental and Sustainability, Health and Safety, People Management,
IT/Cybersecurity, Digital Transformation, Technology, Procurement, Operations,
Communications and Public Affairs, Regulation, amongst others.

Diversity: to be considered as a wide criteria, analysed in accordance with the nature and
complexity of the businesses developed, as well as according to the social and environmental
context from time to time, and that will include, among others, gender, age and culture or
geographical origin.

It was expressly stated that this list should not be considered as an exhaustive nor limiting reference,
and that in any case, depending on the needs and competences required, other criteria may be
taken into account.

Notwithstanding the above, and in order to improve and create additional awareness of the
selection process and criteria, at the meeting held on October 30", 2024, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee approved to propose for approval to the Board of Directors (and expects it
to be formally approved by the Board in early 2025) a formal selection policy for the positions to the
Board of Directors and to the Management Team. The policy underlines the Company's commitment
to transparency and to adopt the best corporate governance practices. The policy also assured the
integration of a range of skills, professional experiences, diversity of knowledges, gender and culture,
in accordance with the specificities of the companies’ businesses. The selection process shall value
the following criteria and competences:

Criteria:
1) Promotion of equality of rights and opportunities in a context of diversity;

2) Enhancement of diversity, notably in matters of age, gender, geographical origin, skills,
competences, qualifications and experience;

3) Promotion of the increase of the numbers of the members of the under- represented gender;
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4) Prevention of potential conflicts of interest.

Competences:
1) Technical-professional competences suitable for the function;
2) Integrity, ethics and professional and personal values;

3) Sufficient knowledge of the legal, regulatory and statutory rules applicable to its functions and
to the Company;

4) Sufficient availability to comply with the respective legal and statutory functions;
5) Fulfilment of the independence requisites required by law and Articles of Association;

6) Commitment with the provisions set forth in Codes, and policies and Company's internal
regulations;

7) Commitment towards the compliance with the best practices in corporate governance;

8) Skills and experience in companies’ management, risk management and supervision suitable
for the function;

9) Industry Knowledge of the and experience in the sector.

Beyond the fulfilment of the above mentioned criteria and skills, the members to be appointed for the
Board of Directors shall be individuals of recognised national and/or international prestige, with
adequate professional knowledge and experience for the exercise of the respective functions.

Based on the above criteria, after the previous advice of the Appointments and Remunerations
Committee, the Board of Directors submits the related proposals to the General Shareholders’
Meeting (including for sake of clarity, the curriculum vitae of the candidates, and the justifying report,
which shall be publicly disclosed with the other supporting documents of the meeting in the terms
referred in section 13 above).

For more information about the composition of the Board of Directors please see chapter ©.
Sustainability Statement of the Annual Report at ESRS 2-Gov_1and Annex | of this Chapter, which
includes the curricular details of its members.

Additionally, in case of a vacancy, pursuant to the Articles of Association and the Spanish
Companies Law, the Board of Directors may co-opt a new Board Member, who will occupy the
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position until the next General Shareholders’ Meeting, to which a proposal will be submitted for the
ratification of such appointment by co-option.

Pursuant to the Spanish Companies Law, the co-option of Directors must be approved by absolute
majority of the Directors at the Board meeting.

Finally, pursuant to Article 23 of the Articles of Association and article 243 of the Spanish
Companies Act, shareholders may group their shares until constituting an amount of capital equal or
higher than the result of dividing the company’s capital by the number of Members of the Board, to
be entitled to appoint a number of Directors equal to the result of the fraction using only whole
amounts. Those shareholders making use of this power, cannot intervene in the nomination of the
other Members of the Board of Directors.

17. Composition of the Board of Directors

Pursuant to Article 20 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors shall consist
of no less than five (5) and no more than seventeen (17) Directors.

Taking into account the size of EDPR and the complexity of the risks intrinsic to its activity, following
the proposal of the Appointments and Remunerations Committee, the Board of Directors of EDPR
submitted to the Annual General Shareholders Meeting held on April 4" 2024, the proposal to
adjust the number of Directors of the Company to a total of nine (9) members. Out of the 9 members,
7 are non-executive, and the Chair is independent.

The presence of independent Directors is key for EDPR, representing 67% of the composition of the
Board. As also referred in the Company Articles of Association (Article 21) the term of office of the
Board Members shall be of three (3) years and may be re-elected once or more times for equal
periods.

On February 27", 2024, the Board acknowledged the resignation of Vera Pinto Pereira, Ana Paula
Marques and Acdcio Piloto to their position as Directors (with effects April 4" 2024). The General
Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 4th, 2024, appointed Ana Paula Serra as Independent Director
for the statutory term of three (3) years.

On April 15™ 2024, the Board of Directors acknowledge the resignation of Cynthia Kay McCall to
her position as Director (with effects May 7" 2024) and was replaced by Laurie Fitch, as an
independent member, following the proposal submitted by the Appointment and Remunerations
Committee and the approval of the co-option by the Board of Directors.
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On July 4”‘, 2024, the Board acknowledged the resignation of Allan Jack Katz to his position as
Director (with effects July 25™, 2024) and was replaced by Gioia Ghezzi, as an independent
member, following the proposal submitted by the Appointment and Remunerations Committee and
the approval of the co-option by the Board of Director. These two appointments will be proposed for
ratification at the next General Shareholders’ Meeting. Therefore, as of December 31%, 2024, the
Board of Directors was composed by the following Directors:

MEMBER POSITION illssglNTMENT RE-ELECTION END OF TERM
ANTONIO GOMES MOTA  Independent Chair 12/04/2021 04/04/2024 04/04/2027
Miguel Stilwell d’Andrade 8&3;& Executive Vice- 49,65/2021 04/04/2024 04/04/2027
Rui Teixeira CFOandExecutive  5q/10/2019 04/04/2024  04/04/2027
Director
Manuel Menéndez Director 04/06/2008 04/04/2024 04/04/2027
Rosa Garcia Garcia Director 12/04/2021 04/04/2024 04/04/2027
José Félix Morgado Director 12/04/2021 04/04/2024 04/04/2027
Laurie Fitch Director 08/05/2024 - 04/04/2027
Ana Paula Serra Director 04/04/2024 - 04/04/2027
Gioia Ghezzi Director 25/07/2024 - 04/04/2027

Likewise, since November 2™, 2021, the Secretary non-member of the Board of Directors is Maria
Gonzdlez Rodriguez.

18. Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Members of the Board

The independence of the Directors is evaluated according to the Company’s personal law, and
annually confirmed by each of the corresponding Directors through the signature of an
independence declaration. Likewise, EDPR Board of Directors Regulations, and Article 20(2) of its
Articles of Association, defines independent Directors as those who are able to perform their duties
without being limited by relations with the Company, its significant Shareholders, or its management
officers and comply with the other legal requirements.
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In order to comply with Recommendation IV.2.5 (cooling-off period) and explain Recommendation
IV.2.4. (Independence requirements) of the IPCG, the Company provides an explanation of the
considerations used to categorize Independent Directors.

As the independence of directors is regulated by law in Spain, the Company is required to adhere
strictly to its personal law. While the alignment between Spanish law and the IPCG recommendation
is highly similar, it is not fully comprehensive. Therefore, the Company follows the "comply-or-
explain” principle with respect to Recommendation 1IV.2.4. In this regard, the following is a
reproduction of Article 524 duodecies 4 of the Spanish Corporate Law, which outlines the criteria for
the classification of independent directors:

[..] 4. Independent Directors are those who, appointed based on their personal and professional
qualities, can perform their duties without being influenced by relationships with the company or its
group, significant shareholders, or executives. In no case can those who are in any of the following
situations be considered independent Directors:

a) Those who have been employees or executive Directors of group companies, unless 3 or 5 years,
respectively, have elapsed since the end of that relationship.

b) Those who receive from the company or its group any amount or benefit for a concept other than
Director's remuneration, unless it is not significant for the Director. For the purposes of this criteriq,
dividends or pension supplements received by the Director due to their previous professional or
employment relationship will not be considered, provided that such supplements are unconditional
and, therefore, the company that pays them cannot suspend, modify, or revoke their accrual without
a breach of its obligations.

c) Those who are or have been partners of the External Auditor or responsible for the audit report
during the last 3 years, whether it is the audit of the listed company or any other company in its

group.

d) Those who are executive-Directors or senior executives of another company in which any
executive Director or senior executive of the company is an external director.

e) Those who maintain, or have maintained during the last year, a significant business relationship
with the company or any company in its group, either on their own behalf or as a significant
shareholder, Director, or senior executive of an entity that maintains or has maintained such a
relationship. Business relationships will be considered those of supplier of goods or services,
including financial ones, and advisor or consultant.
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f) Those who are significant shareholders, executive Directors, or senior executives of an entity that
has received donations from the company or its group during the last 3 years. Those who are mere
trustees of a foundation that receives donations will not be included in this letter.

g) Those who are spouses, persons linked by an analogous affective relationship, or relatives up to
the second degree of an executive Director or senior executive of the company.

h) Those who have not been proposed, either for their appointment or renewal, by the appointments
committee.

i) Those who have been Directors for a continuous period of more than 12 years.

j) Those who are in any of the situations referred to in letters a), e), f), or g) above with respect to a
significant shareholder or representative on the board. In the case of the relationship of kinship
referred to in letter g), the limitation will apply not only with respect to the shareholder but also to their
dominical Directors in the participating company.

Corporate Governance recommendations of the IPCG Code state that the number of non-executive
directors should be higher than the number of executive directors, and that at least one third over the
total members shall be non-executive members that also comply with the independence criteria. In
this sense, and provided that the independence criteria applicable to EDPR Directors are the ones
established under its personal law, from a total of nine (9) positions that composed of EDPR’s Board
of Directors as of December 31%, 2024, seven (7) are non-executive, and the Chair is an
independent. In accordance with the law and Articles of Association, it has been established that
Non-Executive Directors can only be represented in the Board meetings by another Non-Executive
Director.

As such, it has been concluded that the composition of the Board and its Delegated Committees is
suitable for the size of the company and the complexity of the risks intrinsic to its activity mainly
considering that enables a separation of duties, management and specialization of supervision at
the same time that the non-executive and independent directors take part in all the decisions also at
the Board of Directors level. Should be noted to this extent that the Board of Directors is composed
by a majority of non-executive members, with a high percentage of independents and that the
Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee, the Appointments and Remunerations
Committee and the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee are entirely
composed by non- executive and independent Members. Likewise, the executive line of the Board is
centralized in two directors, who are supported in the daily activity of the Company by the Members
of a Management Team.
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Spanish law, Regulations of the Board of Directors and Company Articles of Association regulate the
criteria for the incompatibilities with the position of Director. Specifically, Article 23 of the Articles of
Association, establish that the following should not be Directors:

Those who are directors of or are associated with any competitor of EDPR or have family
relations with them. In this respect, a Company shall be considered as a competitor of EDPR
whenever it is engaged, if it is directly or indirectly involved in the production, storage, transport,
distribution, marketing or supply of electricity or fuel gas or also if has interests opposed to
those of EDPR, or to the ones of any competitor or any of the companies in its group, and the
Board Members, employees, lawyers, consultants, or representatives of any of them. Under no
circumstances shall companies belonging to the same group as EDPR, including abroad, be
considered competitors.

Those who are in any other situation of incompatibility or prohibition under the law or EDPR’s
Articles of Association. Under Spanish law, among others, are not allowed to be Directors those
who are underage — under eighteen (18) years - and were not emancipated-, disqualified,
competitors, convicted of certain offences, or that hold certain management positions.

The prevention and avoidance of the conflict of interest in the performance of the duties of the
Directors of EDPR is regulated in line with the terms contained in article 229 of the Spanish
Companies Law and implemented in article 28(3) of the Board of Directors Regulations, which is
also applicable to the committees under article 12 of their respective regulations. This article states
that in case any direct or indirect conflict of interest arose, it shall be communicated to the Board of
Directors, being the Director involved obliged to abstain from intervening in the corresponding
operation. Additionally, all the Board Members (and hence those of its Delegated Committees, as
they are entirely composed by Members of the Board) shall annually sign an statement declaring
their compliance with the terms of the requirements stated under article 229 of the Spanish
Companies Law, and their commitment to notify any variation in the information declared under the
statement as soon as it may occur, in order to fully comply with the loyalty duty and avoid any
interference or irregularity in any decision-making process.
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The following table includes the executive, non-executive, and independent members of the Board
of Directors as of December 31, 2024:

BOARD MEMBER

ANTONIO GOMES MOTA
Miguel Stilwell d’Andrade

Chair (non-Executive & independent)

CEO and Executive Vice-Chair

Rui Teixeira CFO and Executive Director

Manuel Menéndez Non-Executive Director

Rosa Garcia Garceia Non-Executive and independent Director

José Félix Morgado Non-Executive and independent Director

Laurie Fitch Non-Executive and independent Director

Ana Paula Serra Non-Executive and independent Director

Gioia Ghezzi Non-Executive and independent Director

19. Professional qualifications and biographies of the Members of the Board of Directors

The skills and main positions held by the Members of the Board of Directors, as well as those that
they currently hold in Group and non-Group companies and other relevant curricular information
details are available in the Annex | of this Chapter.

20. Family, professional and business relationships of the Members of the Board of Directors
with qualifying shareholders

Qualifying Shareholders in EDPR are subject to the Spanish Law, which regulates the criteria and
thresholds of the shareholders’ holdings. As of December 31" 2024, and as far as the Company was
informed, there are no family or business relationships of Members of the Board of Directors with
qualifying shareholders but only professional relationships due to the fact that some of the Members
of EDPR’s Board of Directors are currently Members of the Board of Directors in other companies
belonging to the same group as EDP Renovdveis S.A., which are the following: Miguel Stilwell d’
Andrade, Rui Teixeira, and Manuel Menéndez Menéndez.
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21. Corporate bodies and management structure

As exposed in section 15 above, the governance model of EDPR was designed to ensure the
transparent and meticulous separation of duties and the specialization of supervision through the
following governing bodies and management structure:
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General Shareholders’ Meeting: which is the body in which the shareholders participate.
Represents the Company with the full authority corresponding to its legal personality and has the
power to deliberate, vote and adopt decisions, particularly on matters that the law and Articles of
Association reserve for its decision and that must be submitted for its approval.

Board of Directors: that represents and administrates the Company under the broadest powers of
management, supervision and governance with no limitations other than the responsibilities
expressly and exclusively granted to the jurisdiction of the General Shareholders’ Meeting in the
Company’s Articles of Association, in the General Shareholders’ Regulations or in the applicable law.

Executive Directors: EDPR has two Executive Directors who are also Joint Directors, Miguel Stilwell
de Andrade (CEO) and Rui Teixeira (CFO), to whom the Board agreed to delegate all the
competences that can be delegated as per established under the Company Articles of Association
and the applicable law.

Delegated Committees: as regulated by the applicable Law and pursuant to the best corporate
governance recommendations, EDPR has set up three additional specialized internal committees:

The Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee, whose main duties are the
supervision of the financial and sustainability information and internal control, risk
management and Compliance systems. It also assumes the functions related to the analysis
and, when applicable, the approval of the Related Party Transactions of the Company.

The Appointments and Remunerations Committee, whose main duties are the assistance and
report to the Board of Directors in the appointments, re-elections, dismissals, evaluation, and
remunerations of Directors and Management Team Members.

The Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee, whose main duties are the
assistance and report to the Board of Directors in the alignment with the market trends and the
company needs regarding Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance matters, with the
aim of also providing the investors with more transparent and exhaustive information
regarding matters related to Corporate Governance and Sustainability.

Management Team: Following the last adjustments made to the operative model in 2021, in
February 2024 the Board of Directors agreed to adjust the Management Team in order to keep
evolving, leveraging scale and synergies between regions and functions, based on transversal
capabilities, at group level. The new model fully respect the principles related to EDPR being a listed
company:
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- Taking into consideration minorities’ interests;
+  Maintaining a compliant Corporate Governance structure and decision making process;

- Complying with the Framework Agreement between EDP and EDPR, which includes ; (i) EDPR
exclusivity in renewables, and (ii) arm’s length related party transactions.

B) Functioning
22.Board of Directors regulations
EDPR’s Board of Directors Regulations were last amended on December 12", 2022, and are

available at Company’s website (www.edpr.com), and at Company’s headquarters at Plaza del
Fresno, 2, Oviedo, Spain.

23. Number of meetings held by the Board of Directors and attendance report

According to the Law and its Articles of Association, EDPR’s Board of Directors meetings take place
at least once every quarter. During the year ended on December 31%, 2024, the Board of Directors
held eight (8) meetings. The notices and supporting documents of the topics to be discussed in each
meeting are sent to the Board Members in advance to their proper discussion during the meeting.
Additionally, the minutes of all meetings are drawn and also circulated.

The following table expresses the attendance percentage of the participation of the Directors to the
meetings held during 2024

ANTONIO GOMES MOTA Chair (Non-Executive and Independent) 100%
Miguel Stilwell d’Andrade CEO and Executive Vice-Chair 100%
Rui Teixeira CFO and Executive Director 100%
Vera Pinto Pereira * Non-Executive Director 100%
Ana Paula Marques * Non-Executive Director 100%
Manuel Menéndez Non-Executive Director 100%
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Acdcio Piloto * Non-Executive Director and independent Director 100%
Allan J. Katz * Non-Executive Director and independent Director 80%
Rosa Garcia Garceia Non-Executive Director and independent Director 100%
José Félix Morgado Non-Executive Director and independent Director 100%
Cynthia Kay Mc Call * Non-Executive Director and independent Director 100%
Ana Paula Serra ** Non-Executive Director and independent Director 100%
Laurie Fitch ** Non-Executive Director and independent Director 66.67%
Gioia Ghezzi ** Non-Executive Director and independent Director 50%

*The percentage reflects the meetings attended by the Members of the Board during 2024, provided that VVera Pinto Pereira, Ana Paula Marques and
Acdcio Piloto resigned on February 27" 2024 (with effects April 4™, 2024), Cythia Kay McCall resigned on April 15" 2024 (with effects May 7", 2024)
and Allan J. Katz resigned on July 4" 2024 (with effects July 25", 2024) thus the percentage shown in the table reflects the attendance calculated
over the meetings held until such date.

** The percentage of attendance in case of Ana Paula Serra, Laurie Fich and Gioia Ghezzi are computed over the meetings that were held after their
appointment.

Likewise, on January 26", 2024, it was held a meeting of non-executive Directors in order to
analyse and assess the organization, composition and functioning of the Board of Directors and its
Committees.

With the aim of improving the quality of corporate governance, focusing on supervision and
decision-making, one off-site meeting was held in Oporto (Portugal) in 2024. The meeting was held
in a different environment from the usual one, encouraging dialogue and creating a dynamic of
interaction and cohesion among Board Members and with the Management Team Members, with
the aim of improving the climate for future debates. The meeting focused on the medium-term
business model, with particular involvement of the teams from the geographical areas where the
meetings were held.

The Company has reported that it did not use artificial intelligence as a decision-making tool for
corporate bodies in 2024, in accordance with IPCG Recommendation VII.9.

The Company’s approach is to be cautious about the potential risk associated with the
implementation of automated decision-making systems. However, EDPR recognizes the
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importance of efficient management of Board meetings and, to this end, has adopted initiatives to
support the Board of Directors meetings. These tools are not directly related to automated artificial
intelligence, but rather to facilitate meeting management, decision support in a data-driven culture
and enhance operational efficiency. The Company remains committed to closely monitoring the
evolution of the artificial intelligence market and emerging trends in the use of Al in decision-
making. EDPR is committed to maintaining a proactive stance by closely monitoring technological
innovations and developments in the field. This is achieved through a multi-disciplinary team of
technology, business, ethics, legal and compliance experts.

24. Competent body for the performance appraisal of Executive Directors

The key performance indicators for the appraisal of the Executive Directors are set in advance and
approved by the General Shareholder’s Meeting.

Once the corresponding fiscal year is completed, the Appointments and Remunerations Committee
performs the first assessment about the compliance with such key performance indicators, and
submits its recommendation to the Board of Directors, which evaluates the proposal of this
committee and makes the final decision. Should be noted that according to the personal law of
EDPR, the definitive assessment of this performance is a non-delegable competence of the Board of
Directors.

25. Performance evaluation criteria applicable to Executive Directors

The criteria for assessing the Executive Directors’ performance are described on sections 70, 71and
72 of this Chapter.

26. Availability of the Members of the Board of Directors

The availability of the Members of the Board of Directors is one of the individual attributes
considered by EDPR in the selection processes, and a reference that is clearly being more observed
and acquiring material relevance in the Market. As such, and with the aim of complying with the best
governance practices, the Board of Directors resolved at its meeting held in October 25™, 2022 to
rule under its Regulations the performance of EDPR Executive Directors when they have executive
functions in entities outside the Group; in accordance to which it has been established that:

i. the Executive Members of the Board of Directors may not exercise executive functions in more
than two companies outside EDP Group; and
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ii. the exercise of that functions will be subject to prior assessment of the Appointments and
Remunerations Committee and of the approval by the Board of Directors.

The Members of Board of Directors of EDPR are fully available for the performance of their duties
having no constraints for the execution of this function simultaneously with other positions.

The positions held at the same time in other companies within and outside the Group, and other
relevant activities undertaken by Members of the Board of Directors throughout the financial year
are listed in the Annex | of this Chapter 5 of the Annual Report.

C) Committees within the Board of Directors or Supervisory Board and Board
Delegates

27.Board of Directors’ Committees

As previously exposed, in line with Spanish Law and as specifically foreseen in Article 10 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors is entitled to create delegated bodies. The
Board of Directors of EDPR has set up three committees:

Audit, Control and Related-Party Transactions Committee
Appointments and Remunerations Committee
Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee

The three Committees are composed exclusively by non-executive and independent Members.
28. Details of the Executive Delegates of the Board

On January 19", 2021, the Board of Directors agreed to appoint Miguel Stilwell d’Andrade and Rui
Teixeira as Joint Executive Directors, delegating in them all the competences that can be delegated
as per established under the Company Articles of Association and the applicable law.

First on April 12", 2022, and then on April 4™, 2024, the Board agreed to re-elect both of them as
Joint Executive Directors, as well as to again delegate in them all the competences that can be
delegated as per established under the Company Articles of Association and the applicable law.
The reserved matters of the Board of Directors are identified in section 9 of this Chapter.
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29. Committees’ competences
Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee

Composition

Pursuant to Article 28 of the Company’s Articles of Association and Article 9 of its Regulations, the
Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee was composed of o less than three (3) and
no more than five (5) members.

Until April 4™ 2024, the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee was composed of
three (3) non-executive and independent Members, as follows:

Acdcio Piloto (Chair)
Rosa Garcia Gareia
José Félix Morgado

After April 4", 2024 and as of December 31%, 2024, following the proposal submitted by the
Appointments and Remunerations Committee, the composition of the Audit, Control and Related
Parties Transactions of EDPR is as follows:

José Félix Morgado, who is the Chair
Rosa Garcia Garcia
Ana Paula Serra

The committee Members shall maintain their positions for as long as they are Company Directors.
Nevertheless, the Board may decide to discharge members of the committee at any time, and also
the members may resign of these positions but still maintaining their seat as Members of the Board
of Directors.

Additionally, Maria Gonzdlez Rodriguez is the Secretary of the Audit, Control and Related Party
Transactions Committee since November 2™, 2021.
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Competencies

Notwithstanding other duties that the Board may assign to this committee, it shall perform
supervisory functions of Audit and Control independently from the Board of Directors, as well as, by
delegation of the Board of Directors, the supervisory functions of the transactions between Related
Parties, as follows:

a. Audit and Control functions:

Reporting, through the Chairman, at General Shareholders’ Meetings on questions falling under
its jurisdiction.

Proposing the appointment of the External Auditors and validators (verificadores) of the
sustainability information to the Board of Directors for subsequent approval by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting, as well as the contractual conditions, scope of the work — specially
concerning audit services, “audit related” and “non audit” — annual activity evaluation and
revocation or renovation of External Auditor appointments.

Supervising the financing and sustainability reporting and the functioning of the internal risk
management and control systems, as well as, evaluate those systems and propose the adequate
adjustments according to the Company necessities, as well as supervising the suitability of the
preparation process and the disclosure of financial and sustainability information by the Board of
Directors, including suitable accounting policies, estimates, judgments, relevant disclosure and
its consistent application between financial years, in a duly documented and communicated
form.

Evaluate whether the policies and procedures for sustainability reporting and the metrics
established are consistent with applicable standards and best practices in this area, and whether
they are being followed and demonstrated to be appropriate to ensure that the company is
conducting its activities in a way that effectively contributes to sustainability in its various
dimensions.

Supervising internal audits, in particular: i) approving and supervising in coordination with the
CEOQ, the Annual Internal Audit Plan; ii) approving and reviewing the Internal Audit Rule; and iii)
supervising in coordination with the CEO and Management Team the implementation of the
recommendations issued by Internal Audit.

Establish a permanent contact with the External Auditors and the validator (verificador) of
sustainability information, to assure the conditions, including the independence, adequate to the
services provided by them, acting as the Company speaker for these subjects related to the
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auditing and verification process and receiving and maintaining information on any other
questions regarding accounting or sustainability subjects.

Preparing an annual report on its supervisory activities, including any limitations encountered.
This report will also address the allocation and impact of green financing derived from
sustainability credits. It will also give its opinion on the Management Report, the accounts and the
proposals presented by the Board of Directors, as well as its opinion on the reliability of the
Sustainability Report.

Receive communications about irregularities reported through the whistleblowing channel
regarding financial, accounting, internal accounting controls, and auditing matters, which have
been reported by Ethics & Compliance.

Engaging the services of experts to collaborate with Committee members in the performance of
their functions. When engaging the services of such experts and determining their remuneration,
the importance of the matters entrusted to them, and the economic situation of the company must
be taken into account.

Drafting reports at the request of the Board and its Committees.
Receive and evaluate potential opinions from employee representatives on sustainability issues.

Approving and supervising, in coordination with the Management Team, the Annual Activity Plan
of the Corporate Compliance Department.

Appreciating and monitoring the recommendations on measures to be taken in situations of
significant non-compliance.

Supervising compliance with regulations and alignment of business processes with the
requirements of the Compliance Management System in order to achieve a sustainable
compliance culture throughout the Company.

b. Related Party Transactions functions:
By delegation of the Board of Directors:

i. Analysing and, where appropriate, approving the (i) (a) intragroup transactions or (b)
transactions performed between EDPR Group and EDP Group when their amount is below
10% of the total assets at the last annual balance sheet approved by the company, as long as
they are in the ordinary management of the company and under market conditions; (ii)

Index Part | 81

transactions executed under contracts with standardized terms that are wholesale applied to
a high number of clients under prices or tariffs generally established by the supplier of the
goods or services, and which amount does not exceed the 0.,5% of the net annual company
turnover and periodically informing the Board of Directors about the transactions approved by
this Committee in the exercise of the above referred delegation, stating the fairness and
transparency of such transactions, and as the case may be, the compliance with the
applicable legal criteria.

il.  Analysing and informing about any modification of the Framework Agreement signed by EDP
and EDPR on May 4", 2008.

ii.  Submitting reports to the Board of Directors of the Company regarding the Related Party
Transactions — that shall be approved by the Board of Directors of EDPR or by its
Shareholder’s Meeting in accordance with the law — and that shall include: (i) the information
regarding the nature of the operation and the relation with the Related Party, (i) the identity of
the Related Party, the date and value or amount of the compensation of the transaction, and
any other information necessary to appraise if the operation is fair and reasonable for the
company and for the non-Related Party shareholders.

iv. Asking EDP for access to the information needed to perform its duties.
Functioning

In addition to the Articles of Association and the law, this committee is governed by its regulations
(that were last amended on July 25", 2024), which are available at the Company’s website
(www.edpr.com).

The committee shall meet at least once a quarter and additionally whenever its Chair deems it
appropriate. The notices and supporting documents of the topics to be discussed in each meeting of
this committee are sent to its Members in advance to their proper discussion during the meeting.
Additionally, this committee shall draft minutes of every meeting held and inform the Board of
Directors of its decisions at the first Board held after each committee meeting.

Decisions shall be adopted by majority and the Chair shall have the casting vote in the event of a tie.
2024 Activity

In 2024, the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee held eight (8) meetings, and
the main activities performed were:
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1. Audit and Control Activities:
Monitor the closure of quarterly accounts, first half-year and year-end accounts.

Information about the proposals of application of results for the fiscal year ended on December
31%, 2023, and the distribution of dividends.

Information about the independence of the External Auditor.

Assessment of the External Auditor’s work, especially concerning the scope of work in 2024,
approval of all “audit related” and “non- audit” services and analysis of External Auditor’s
remuneration.

Assessment on the policies and remunerations systems of the Company.

Supervision of the quality and integrity in the preparation and disclosure of the financial
information in accordance with the applicable accounting policies, estimates and judgments.

Issuance of an opinion about the individual and consolidated reports (including the Corporate
Governance report) and accounts, in a quarterly, half year and yearly basis.

Monitorization of Internal Audit Activity, including the supervision of the execution of the Audit
Plan for 2024, its Budget and headcount and pre-approval of the draft prepared for the 2025
Internal Audit Plan.

Monitorization of the recommendations issued by Internal Audit.

Follow-up and supervision of the quality, integrity and efficiency of the treasury management
(finance and debt), the Internal Control System, Compliance (including the supervision of the
execution of the Activity Plan for 2024 for EDPR and OW and approval of the draft prepared for
the 2025 Activity Plan) and Risk Management.

Monitorization and evaluation of the risk management performed during 2024, issuing a report
including the assessment about Internal Control System and Risk Management.

Information about claims received regarding financial irregularities.
Information about the contingencies affecting to the Group.

Issuance of the report of its activities performed during 2023.
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Issuance of a self-assessment about its performance and an appraisal of the Internal Audit
functions regarding fiscal year 2023.

Consideration and review of the Enterprise Risk Management Framework (ERM), taking into
account the new reference limits and changes to the taxonomy. Recommendation to the Board of
Directors for approval.

Following the best Corporate Governance practice, the Committee held a specific and
complementary meeting with the External Auditors twice a year to discuss any remark in the
process of the elaboration of the Company half year and year end accounts.

Propose minor amendments to the Regulation of the Audit, Control, Related Parties Regulations to
include supervision of corporate sustainability reporting.

Subsequent to Recommendation V.1 a dedicated session took place on March 1%, 2023 to
discuss the monitoring and risk assessment of the 2023-2026 Business Plan before its
submission to the Board of Directors.

On September 9" and 10", 2024, attended an off-site together with other Audit Committees of
the Group's companies. The purpose of the meeting was to discuss best practices for internal
audit, risk, compliance, accounting and tax functions, as well as to analyse key challenges
regarding these committees' responsibilities.

2. Related Party Transactions Activities:

In 2024, the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee revised, approved and
submitted to the Board of Directors the transactions between related parties submitted to its
consideration in accordance with its competences and the applicable law.

For further information, please see section 90 which includes a description of the fundamental
aspects of the agreements and contracts between related parties.

The Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee found no constraints during its control
and supervision activities.

The information regarding the meetings held by this Committee and the attendance of its related
members during 2024 is described in section 35.
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Appointments and Remunerations Committee

Composition

Pursuant to Article 29 of the Company’s Articles of Association and Article 9 the Appointments and
Remunerations Committee Regulations, this committee shall consist of no less than three (3) and no
more than six (6) Members. At least one of its Members must be independent and shall be its Chair.

In accordance with its personal law (Spanish law), with recommendation V.3.3. of the Corporate
Governance Code of IPCG, and to the extent possible with recommendation V.2.1. of the Corporate
Governance Code of IPCG (as considering that in Spain this committee shall be created by the
Board and being entirely comprised by Members of its Board of Directors), the Appointments and
Remunerations Committee of EDPR is entirely integrated by Non-Executive and Independent
Directors.

The Appointments and Remunerations Committee consists of three (3) non-executive and
independent Directors, as of December 31 2024, are the following:

Antonio Gomes Mota, who is the Chair.
Rosa Garcia Garcia
José Félix Morgado

None of the committee Members are spouses or up to third degree relatives in direct line of the other
members of the Board of Directors.

The committee Members shall maintain their positions for as long as they are Company Directors.
Nonetheless, the Board may decide to discharge members of the committee at any time and the
members may resign said positions while remaining Company Directors.

Additionally, Maria Gonzdlez Rodriguez is the Secretary of the Appointments and Remunerations
Committee since November 2™, 2021.

Competences
The Appointments and Remunerations Committee is a permanent body belonging to the Board of

Directors with an informative and consultative nature and its recommendations and reports are not
binding.
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The Appointments and Remunerations Committee has no executive functions. The main functions of
this committee are to assist and report to the Board of Directors about appointments (including by
co-option), re-elections, removals and remuneration of Directors and Members of the Management
Team. It also informs the Board of Directors on general remuneration and incentives for Board
Members and executive staff. These functions include the following:

Defining the standards and principles governing the composition of the Board of Directors and
the selection and appointment of its Members.

Proposing the appointment and re-election of Directors (including nominations by co-option)
for the submission to the General Shareholders’ Meeting by the Board of Directors.

Proposing to the Board of Directors the candidates for the different Committees.

Proposing to the Board, within the limits established in the Articles of Association, the
remuneration system, distribution method, and amounts payable to the Directors.

Making proposals to the Board of Directors on the conditions of the contracts signed with
Directors.

Informing and making proposals to the Board of Directors regarding the appointment and/or
removal of executives and the conditions of their contracts and generally defining the hiring
and remuneration policies of executive staff.

Reviewing and reporting on incentive plans, pension plans, and compensation packages.
Any other functions assigned in the Articles of Association or by the Board of Directors.

In accordance with the personal law of EDPR, all the Board Members shall attend to the General
Shareholder’s Meeting, and as exposed in section 15 of this Chapter, all the Delegated Committees
are composed Directors. As such, the Chair of the Appointments and Remunerations Committee
shall attend the Shareholder’s Meetings, and in case its agenda includes any topic related to
remuneration of the company’s governing bodies, this Director will be most adequate to answer.

In 2024 it was held one General Shareholders’ Meeting on April 4™ 2024, and the Chair of the
Committee, Antonio Gomes Mota attended.
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Functioning

In addition to the Articles of Association, the Appointments and Remunerations Committee is
governed by its Regulations (that were last amended on October 25", 2022), which are available at
the Company’s website (www.edpr.com).

The notices and supporting documents of the topics to be discussed in each meeting of this
committee are sent to its Members in advance to their proper discussion during the meeting.
Additionally, this committee shall draft minutes of every meeting held and inform the Board of
Directors of its decisions at the first Board held after each committee meeting.

Decisions shall be adopted by majority and the Chair shall have the casting vote in the event of a tie.
2024 Activity

In 2024 the Appointments and Remunerations Committee held four (4) meetings, and the main
activities performed were:

Issued its opinion regarding the performance evaluation for year 2023 of the Board of Directors,
the CEO, the CFO and the Management Team Members, as well as of the Delegated
Committees.

Drafted a report regarding the composition of the Board of Directors and the candidates to
became new member submitted by the Board of Directors to the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

Reviewed and approved the Remuneration Policy of the Board of Directors, submitted by the
Board of Directors to the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

Drafted areport submitted to the Board of Directors regarding the designation of the Compliance
Officer.

Reviewed and approved the Remunerations Report related to 2023, submitted by the Board of
Directors to the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

Acknowledged the resignation to the position as Board Member, and therefore as member of the
ESG Committee, presented by Mrs. Cynthia Kay McCall (with effects May 7" 2024). Considering
the vacancy the Committee analysed the potential candidates to cover this position, concluding
that the most adequate profile would be the candidate Mrs. Laurie Fitch. The Committee ratified
the co-optation appointment of Mrs. Fitch as member of the Board of Director and member for
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the ESG Committee for the period of time for which the previous member Mrs. Cynthia Kay Mc
Call, whom she replaces, had been appointed, which is on April 4™ 2027.

Drafted the report of its activities performed during the year 2023.

Acknowledged the resignation to the position as Board Member, and therefore as member of the
ESG Committee, presented by Mr. Allan Katz (with effects July 25", 2024). For the selection
process the Committee was supported by Egon Zehnder. Following the analysis, the Committee
ratified the co-optation appointment of Mrs. Gioia Gezzi as member of the Board of Director and
member for the ESG Committee for the period of time for which the previous member Mr. Allan
Katz, whom she replaces, had been appointed, which is on April 4™, 2027.

Review the Regulation of the Ethics Committee, including its new composition, to be submitted to
the Board of Director.

In order to ensure the CEAM recommendation, it was needed to formalise the criteria for the
selection of future members of the top management, i.e. members of the Management Team. In
this respect, the Committee proposed a selection policy for the positions to the Board of Directors
and to the Management Team to be submitted to the Board of Director, and then, to the General
Shareholders’ Meeting. The policy underlines the Company's commitment to transparency and
good governance.

Review the annual training plan for members of the Board of Directors elected for the term
2024-2026.

Following recommendation II.2.1 of the IPCG, drafted the competences matrix that will serve as a
basis for the evaluation of the effectiveness and efficiency of the board and its committees.

Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee

Composition

Pursuant to Article 9 the Environmental, Social, and Corporate Governance Committee Regulations,
this committee shall consist of no less than three (3) and no more than six (6) members, and the
majority of them shall be independent. The Chair of the Environmental, Social, and Governance
Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors amongst the Committee’s members and
must necessarily be an independent director.
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The Environmental, Social, and Corporate Governance Committee consists of five (5) non-executive
and independent Directors, that as of December 31% 2024, are the following:

Rosa Garcia Garcia, who is the Chair
Antonio Gomes Mota

Ana Paula Serra

Laurie Fitch

Gioia Ghezzi

Additionally, Maria Gonzdlez Rodriguez is the Secretary of the Environmental, Social, and Corporate
Governance Committee since its incorporation, on October 25™, 2022.

The committee members shall maintain their positions for as long as they are Company Directors.
Nonetheless, the Board may decide to discharge members of the committee at any time and the
members may resign said positions while remaining Company Directors.

Competences

The Environmental, Social, and Governance Committee is a specialized and delegated committee of
a merely informative and consultative nature whose recommendations are not binding and that
performs no executive functions. This Committee assists and reports to the Board of Directors in the
alignment with the market trends and the company needs regarding Environmental, Social, and
Governance matters, with the aim of also providing the investors with more transparent and
exhaustive information regarding matters related to Corporate Governance and Sustainability.
These functions include the following:

Oversee the Company's key environmental, social and corporate governance key performance
indicators included in the Business Plan and monitor their achievement.

Propose to the Board of Directors EDPR’s environmental, social, and corporate governance
strategy, plans, policies and objectives and their update.

Promote, steer, and oversee the Company’s objectives, action plans and practices in health,
safety and occupational risk prevention.

Assist in the process of calculating, defining, and synthesizing the concept of double materiality.
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Review and present to the Board of Directors the Annual Report (EINF) or any other document that
may replace it, which should be formulated by the Board of Directors itself. This excludes reports
that other committees should prepare in their supervisory and control functions. The Committee
shall also monitor the Company's relationship and reporting to investors, indexes and rating
agencies on sustainability issues.

Monitor and conduct a regular review of the main environmental, social, and corporate
governance trends and regulatory developments and best practices in sustainability relevant to
the Company’s activity.

Analyse the integration of environmental, social, and corporate governance risks and
opportunities into the Company’s procedures and its Risk Management System.

Update and inform the Board of Directors on the stakeholder relations and dialogue model, in
order to understand the needs and expectations of all EDPR's stakeholders (employees, clients,
suppliers, subcontractors, and others).

Oversee and assess the Company’s corporate image and its reputation with the various
stakeholders, namely in terms of the market in general and consumers, investors and supervisory
authorities, public and published opinion, monitoring the activity of the Company’s competent
services, taking into consideration the implemented strategies, policies, process and procedures
implemented, privileging the spirit of service to the Community.

Oversee and assess the suitability of the corporate governance model implemented by the
Company and their compliance with internationally accepted models of corporate governance,
forwarding any appropriate recommendations in this area to the Board of Directors.

Supervise compliance with, and the correct application of, the corporate governance principles
and standards in force, promoting and requesting the exchange of information necessary for this
purpose.

Any other functions assigned to it in the Articles of Association or by the Board of Directors.
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Functioning

In addition to the Articles of Association, the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance
Committee is governed by its Regulations (that were last amended on July 25" 2024), which are
available at the Company’s website (www.edpr.com).

The committee shall meet whenever its Chair deems it appropriate. The notices and supporting
documents of the topics to be discussed in each meeting of this committee shall be sent to its
members in advance to their proper discussion during the meeting. Additionally, this committee shall
draft minutes of every meeting held and inform the Board of Directors of its decisions at the first
Board held after each committee meeting.

Decisions shall be adopted by majority and the Chair shall have the casting vote in the event of a tie.
2024 Activity

In 2024, the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee held four (4) meetings, and the main
activities performed were:

Review the ESG Business Plan 2023-2026 considering ESG commitments and goals.
Review of non-financial information reporting for the 2023 financial year.

Analysis of the scores achieved in the Dow Jones Sustainability Benchmark Index and other
relevant indexes results (S&P Global, Ecovadis, Bloomberg Gender Equality, ISS ESG, MSCI and
Sustainalytics).

Review the Annual Activity Report of the Commission for the year 2023.
Review the 2023 Corporate Governance Report.

Review the S&P Corporate Sustainability Assessment.

Review the CSRD Materiality Matrix & Gap Analysis.

Review and approve the EDPR Local Stakeholder Engagement Policy and Procedure submitted
to the Board of Directors.

Review the strategy and initiatives regarding Communities.
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Discuss the Sustainable Supply Chain.

Review and propose the EDPR Social Investment & Volunteering Policies to the Board of
Directors.

Analysis the feedback of the CEAM regarding the EDPR’s Corporate Governance Report setting
the action plan that proposes solutions for those recommendations that have not been accepted
or need improvement.

Review the status of EDPR Health & Safety.

Analysis of the distribution and direction of the vote at the 2024 Annual General Shareholders’
Meeting.

In particular, in relation to sustainability, the principles and values that guide EDPR's actions for
environmental and social objectives are defined in the public commitments made, in the policies and
procedures adopted, and more broadly in EDPR’s Code of Ethics. Under its Environmental Policy,
EDPR is committed to environmental protection, mitigating its impacts, managing risks, stimulating
R&D + Innovation, and promoting continuous improvement of processes, practices, and
performance through a collaborative approach with stakeholders. The management of social
aspects is based globally on several corporate policies, the management of which is distributed
across various organizational units within EDPR.

For details, see EDPR’s health & safety, human and labour rights, local communities, ethics &

compliance and stakeholders webpages, and the table of Non-Financial Information Statement
(Spanish Law 11/2018) for details on monitoring the implementation of Environmental and Sociall
Policies and where the various points/subpoints of the report are addressed, developing the
progress of targets associated with objectives. (This disclosure is in line with Recommendation |.2. of
the IPGC).

To address sustainability risks, the Company implements a procedure for gathering and analyzing
data pertaining to these areas:

In 2024, EDPR completed the process of preparing the company for sustainability reporting
under Directive (EU) 2022/2464 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 December
2022 - Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD).

The 2024 Integrated Annual Report reflects the results of the implementation of the Double
Materiality Assessment under the CSRD and the fulfilment of the European Sustainability
Reporting Standards (ESRS). EDPR has an ongoing project to implement an Internal Control
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System on Sustainability Reporting (ICSSR) under the shared management of the Ethics &
Compliance and Investor Relations & ESG areas. This project is based on: (i) a scoping model,
which includes the calculation, assessment and documentation of the dual materiality exercise,
as well as the identification of mandatory disclosures in accordance with the assumptions and
obligations arising from current regulations, for EDPR; (ii) a gap analysis of sustainability reporting
disclosures, focusing on mandatory information, mapping processes and identifying the risks of
disclosures associated with these processes; (iii) the identification and analysis of control gaps;
and (iv) the definition of an implementation plan to address the identified gaps.

For further information please see Chapter 6 of this Report.

lll. Supervision

A) Supervision
30. Supervisory Board - model adopted

EDPR’s governance model, as long as it is compatible with its personal law (Spanish law),
corresponds to the so -called “Anglo- Saxon” model set forth in the Portuguese Commercial
Companies Code, in which the management body is a Board of Directors, and the supervision and
control duties are of the responsibility of an Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions
Committee.

31. Composition of the Audit, Control and related Parties Transactions

The Audit, Control and Related Parties Transactions is entirely composed by non-executive and
independent Directors. Committee members retain their positions for as long as they are Company
Directors, as disclosed in section1/.

Until April 4™ 2024, the composition of the Audit, Control and Related Parties Transactions of EDPR
was as follows:
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MEMBER POSITION FIRST APPOINTMENT
Acdcio Piloto President 27/06/2018
Rosa Garcia Garcia Member 12/04/2021
José Felix Morgado Member 12/04/2021

As of December 31%, 2024 the composition of the Audit, Control and Related Parties Transactions of
EDPR was as follows:

MEMBER POSITION FIRST APPOINTMENT
José Félix I\/Iorgodo* President 12/04/2021

Rosa Garcia Garcia® Member 12/04/2021

Ana Paula Serra Member 04/04/2024

*Re-elected on April 4™, 2024.

Additionally, Maria Gonzdlez Rodriguez is the Secretary of the Audit, Control and Related Party
Transactions Committee since November 2™, 2021.

32. Independence of the Members of the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions
Committee

Information concerning the independence of the members of the Audit, Control and Transactions
Party Committee is available on the chart of section 18 of this Chapter. As mentioned therein, the
independence of the members of the Board of Directors and of its committees is evaluated
according to the Company’s personal law, the Spanish law.

33. Professional qualifications and biographies of the Members of the Audit, Control and
Related Party Transactions Committee

Professional qualifications of each member of the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions
Committee and other important curricular information, are available in the Annex | of this Chapter.
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B) Operation
34. Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee Regulations
The Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee regulations are available at the

Company’s website (www.edpr.com) and at the Company’s Headquarters at Plaza del Fresno, 2,
Oviedo, Spain.

35. Number of meetings held by the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee

The Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee periodically meets representatives of
the internal specialized departments involved in the areas under committee’s competences in order
to discuss the information periodically reported about, among others, work plans and resources of
Internal Audit, Compliance and SCIRI, Company accounts, detection claims regarding financial
irregularities, global risk management and audit and non-audit services provided by the External
Auditor (including the appraisal about its independence). This regular interaction, in particular with
regards to the periodical discussion of the development and status of the alignment of the level of
risk and the accomplishment of objectives set by the Board of Directors, provides the committee
with the necessary information for the development of its functions and in particular, for the
assessments issued under the appraisal report over the functions of Internal Audit, and the Report
regarding Risk Management and appraisal of the Internal Control System , that this committee
issues for every fiscal year.

During 2024, the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee held a total of eight (8)
meetings, and as referred in paragraph above, in order to better perform its supervisory functions
over the activities reported by the areas within its competences, the committee invited the
responsible teams of the related areas to several of these meetings to provide the updates of the
status of their activity and accomplishment of targets. As such, the participation of these
departments at these meetings in 2024 was as follows: Internal Audit participated in eight (8), Ethics
& Compliance in four (4), Risk in five (5), Financial Planning & Analysis in four (4), Corporate Finance
inthree (3) and Accounting, Consolidation & Tax in five (5).

Likewise, the committee invited the External Auditors to four (4) of these meetings.

The following tables reflect the attendance of the members of the Audit, Control and Related Party
Transactions Committee to its meetings held during 2024.
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Until April 4™ 2024 the attendance of the Audit, Control and Related Parties Transactions of EDPR
was as follows:

MEMBER POSITION ATTENDANCE
Acdcio Piloto Chair 100%
Rosa Garcia Garcia Vocal 100%
José Félix Morgado Vocal 100%

From April 4™ 2024 to December 3T 2024, the attendance of the Audit, Control and Related Parties
Transactions of EDPR was as follows:

MEMBER POSITION ATTENDANCE
José Félix Morgado Chair 100%
Rosa Garcia Garcia Vocal 88%
Ana Paula Serra Vocal 100%

On September 9" and 10", 2024, an extraordinary meeting of the Committee was held in Madrid to
discuss the audit plan, the new reporting regulations and the update of different areas as IA, Ethics &
Compliance and Tax.

In that extraordinary meeting of the Committee, PwC experts conducted specialized seminar on the
new regulations.

36. Availability of the Members of the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions
Committee

The members of the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee are fully available for
the performance of their duties having no constraints for the execution of this function
simultaneously with positions in other companies. The positions held simultaneously in other
companies inside and outside the Group and other relevant activities undertaken by members of this
committee throughout the financial year are listed in Annex | of this Chapter.
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C) Powers and duties
37. Procedures for hiring additional services to the External Auditor

In July 2022, EDPR approved an internal regulation to rule the provision of services and relationship
with the External Auditor, with regards to both audit and non-audit services to be hired, and the
reporting and approval procedure to be applied. These regulations also establish the independence
criteria to be considered.

In accordance with the rules included under this regulation, and in line with recommendation VII.2.1.
of the IPCG Corporate Governance Code, in EDPR there is a policy of pre-approval by the Audit,
Control and Related Party Transactions Committee of the provision of non-audit services to be
provided by the External Auditor and any related entity. This policy was strictly followed during
2024. This competence is also established under Article 8. A) b) of the Committee Regulations.

The analysis of the adequacy of the provision of non-audit services by the External Auditor and
entities in a holding relationship (with or incorporated in the same network as the External Auditor) is
performed considering the following aspects: (i) such services having no effect on the independence
of the External Auditor and any safeguards used and (ii) the position of the External Auditor in the
provision of such services - notably the External Auditor’'s experience and knowledge of the
Company.

Furthermore, although hiring services other than auditing services to the External Auditor is
admissible, it is envisaged as an exception. In 2024 such services reached only around 6.16% of the
total amount of services provided to the Company.

38. Other duties of the Audit, Control Related Party Transactions Committee

Apart from the competences expressly delegated on the Audit, Control and Related Party
Transactions Committee according to Article 8 of its Regulations, and in order to safeguard the
independence of the External Auditor, the following additional competences of this committee were
exercised during the 2024 financial year and should be highlighted:

Pre-approval of any services to be hired from the External Auditor and perform its direct and
exclusive supervision.

Assessment of the qualifications, independence, and performance of the External Auditors, and
obtaining, yearly and directly from the External Auditors, written information on all relations
existing between the Company and the External Auditors or associated persons, including all
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services rendered and all services in progress. In order to evaluate independence, the Audit
Committee, obtained the information regarding External Auditors’ independence in light of the
Spanish Law no. 22/2015 of July 20", 2015 (“Ley de Auditoria de Cuentas”).

Review of the transparency report, signed by the External Auditor and disclosed at its website.
This report covers the matters provided for under Law no. 22/2015 of July 20", 2015 (“Ley de
Auditoria de Cuentas”) including those regarding the quality control internal system of the audit
firm and the quality control procedures carried out by the competent authorities.

Review with the External Auditors their scope, planning, and resources to be used in their
provision of services.

Following the best Corporate Governance practice, the Committee held a specific and
complementary meeting with the External Auditors twice a year to discuss any remark in the
process of the elaboration of the Company half year and year end accounts.

I\VV-V. Statutory and External Auditors
39-41.

According to the Spanish law, the External Auditor (“Auditor de Cuentas”) is appointed by the
General Shareholders’ Meeting and corresponds to the statutory auditor body (“Revisor Oficial de
Contas”) described on the Portuguese Law.

The information about the External Auditor is available in topics 42 to 47 of this Chapter.
42. External Auditor identification

The main criteria considered in the selection of the most suitable and competitive firm to be
appointed as External Auditor of EDPR are the following:

Recognized technical and professional track record as External Auditor.
Consolidated Know-How about the business developed by the whole Group.

Tailored and highly prepared working team.
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Competitive contractual conditions and working methodology (including but without limitation,
the total estimation of hours required for the development of the services- both as a total for the
complete provision of services, and per each professional category of the proposed team).

Competitive fee proposal, including the final cap and a breakdown referring the price average per
hour, and the remuneration per hour for each professional category of the proposed team.

As a result of a competitive process launched in 2017, during which the above criteria were
exhaustively analysed, PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. was appointed as EDPR SA
External Auditor by the Shareholder’s Meeting held on April 3" 2018.

The renewal of PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. as External Auditor of EDPR in 2021 for a
three year period was approved by EDPR’s Shareholders Meeting on April 12" 2021.

At the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 4™, 2024, PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores,
S.L. Statutory Auditor registered in the Spanish Official Register of Auditors under number S024 2,
with tax identification number B-79031290 was re-elected as External Auditor for the three-year
period 2024-2026. PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. is currently represented by Antonio
Velasco Danobeitia.

43. Number of years of the External Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. was first appointed as External Auditor of EDPR on April
3" 2018 and were re-elected on April 12", 2021 (for the 2021-2023 period) and on April 4™ 2024
(for the 2024-2026 period).

44, Rotation Policy

Until year end of 2022, the personal Law of EDPR —the Spanish Law— and EDPR External Auditor
Regulations, established the maximum term for an audit firm as the External Auditor of a listed
company in a 10-year term. However, this reference was updated under the Spanish Law with
effects in January 2023, in order to establish that the maximum term will be a total of 20 years,
provided that a public tender is launched after completing the tenth fiscal year.

Following the proposal of the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee presented to
the Board of Directors to its submission to the General Shareholders’ Meeting, on its meeting held on
April 3" 2018, it was approved to appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L as EDPR’s
External Auditor for the years 2018, 2019 and 2020. The renewal of PricewaterhouseCoopers
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Auditores, S.L. as External Auditor of EDPR SA for years 2021, 2022 and 2023 was approved by
EDPR’s Shareholders Meeting on April 12", 2021.

In view of the above, the Audit, Control and Related Parties Committee agreed at its meeting on
December 19™, 2023 to submit to the Board of Directors the proposal for the re-election of PwC as
External Auditors for the period 2024-2026, approved at the Annual General Shareholders’
Meeting held on April 4™, 2024,

Likewise, the applicable regulation requires that in case of listed companies, every five (5) years
since the initial contract, the person designated by the External Auditor as its signatory of the audit
report shall also rotate. For these purposes, it is hereby stated that 2024 was the second year of
Antonio Velasco Danobeitia, current partner signing the audit report of the Group, as External
Auditor of EDPR Group.

45, External Auditor evaluation

The Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee is responsible for the overview and
annual evaluation of the services provided by the External Auditor according to the competences
granted by its Regulations and in line with the rules established under the Regulations for the
provision of services by the External Auditor.

In order to perform this assessment, this committee periodically includes in the agenda of its
meetings a topic regarding the review of the services provided by the External Auditor (both audit
and non-audit) and the fees already incurred and those estimated until year end.

Likewise, and as mentioned in section 35 of this Chapter, the External Auditor attends and
participates in some of the meetings held by this committee, mainly in order to analyse the results of
their audit reports. As such, the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee acts as the
company speaker with the External Auditor, with whom establishes a permanent contact throughout
the year to assure the proper conditions for the provision of both the statutory audit services and
non-audit services and being also the body in charge of monitoring its independence along the year.
Likewise, the External Auditor shall sign an annual statement declaring its independence.

During 2024, according to the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee’s
competences and in line with Recommendation VIII.2.2, this committee was the first and direct
recipient and the corporate body in charge of the permanent contact with the External Auditor on
matters that may pose a risk to their independence as well as any other matters related to the
auditing of accounts.
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Additionally, in compliance with the auditing standards in effect, it also receives and maintains the
record of information about other matters as provided in the applicable auditing and accounting
legislation. The External Auditor, within the scope of its duties, verified the implementation of the
remuneration policies and systems of the corporate bodies as well as the efficiency and
effectiveness of the internal control mechanisms and report any shortcomings to the Audit, Control
and Related Party Transactions Committee of the Company.

46. Non-Audit Services carried out by the External Auditor

As previously referred, in July 2022, it was approved the regulation on the provision of services by
the External Auditor or Statutory Audit Firm, which defines and promotes criteria and methodologies
to safeguard the independence of the audit and non-audit services.

In accordance with such regulation, the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee
closely follows the requests of non- audit services, each of which necessarily require the
preapproval of this committee before its provision as per exposed in topic 29 of this Chapter and
Article 8.A), b) of its Regulations.

The identification of such non-audit services that will eventually be provided by the External
Auditors is performed under the rules issued by the European Union on this matter, in particular
under Regulation 537/2014 and the Spanish Auditing Law n°® 22/2015, of July 20™, as well as when
applicable, in line with the particularities of the local regulations where the service is to be provided.

During 2024 the non-audit services provided by the External Auditor of EDP Renovdveis S.A
(PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L) consisted mostly on i) limited review as of March 31%,
2024, June 30", 2024 and September 30™, 2024 for the issue of the interim report and quarterly
information on the EDPR accounts; ii) review of the internal control system on financial reporting for
the EDPR Group; and iii) review of the non-financial information related to sustainability included in
the EDPR Group’s annual report. Other non-audit services provided by the External Auditor or its
network to EDPR’s subsidiaries mainly refer to i) agreed-upon procedures related to the review of
covenants in the context of bank financing agreements; ii) agreed upon procedures on the financial
information prepared by EDP for application purposes; iii) access to a repository of international
accounting standards as well as to the PwC Accounting Manual in digital version; iv) agreed-upon
procedures for confirming the connection capacity of power generation centres to verify the
exemption from social tariff financing, in accordance with the criteria mentioned in Decree-Law No.
104/2023, Article 199-A, 1st paragraph, as of December 31%, 2023 and v) tax compliance report in
Greece, in accordance with the provisions of Article 65A of Law 4987/2022.
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PricewaterhouseCoopersAuditores, was engaged to provide the above-mentioned services due to
its in-depth knowledge of the Group’s activities and processes. These engagements did not risk
their independence as External Auditors and were pre - approved by the Audit, Control and Related
Party Transactions Committee prior to rendering the services.

47. External Auditor remuneration in 2024 for EDP Renovaveis, S.A. and subsidiaries

SERVICE Europe A Selli APAC TOTAL %
America America

Auditandstatutoryaudit 45173336 2378349€ 4075716 681125€  5384378€  94%

of accounts
Other non-audit services 338,683 € 14,249 € 0€ 632 € 353,564 € 6%
Total 2,256,016 € 2,392,598¢€ 407,571€ 681,757 € 5,737,942 € 100%

The amount of other non-audit services in Europe includes among others, services that refer to the
entire Group such as the review of the internal control system on financial reporting and review of the
non-financial information related to sustainability included in EDPR Annual Report, which are
invoiced to a European company. This amount also includes the limited review as of June 30™,
2024, of the EDPR Consolidated Financial Statements and other reviews for Group consolidation
purposes which are considered non-audit services according to the respective local regulation.

Total amount for Europe includes 1,098,101 Euros of services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers
Auditores S.L. in Spain from which 813,303 Euros refer to audit services and 284,798 Euros refer to
non-audit services.

|. Articles of Association
48. Amendments to the articles of association

The amendments of the Articles of Association of the Company are of the responsibility of the
General Shareholders’ Meeting. According to Article 17 of the Company’s Articles of Association
(“Constitution of the General Shareholders’ Meeting, Adoption of resolutions”), and article 9 of the
General Shareholders’ Meeting Regulations (“Competences”). In accordance with the applicable
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law, and the internal regulations, to validly approve any amendment to the Articles of Association,
the Ordinary or Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting will need:

On first call, that the Shareholders either present or represented by proxy, represent at least fifty
percent (50%) of the subscribed voting capital.

On second call, that the Shareholders either present or represented by proxy, represent at least
twenty-five percent (25%) of the subscribed voting capital.

In the event that the shareholders attending represent more than fifty percent (50%) of the
subscribed voting capital, the resolutions referred to in the present paragraph will be validly adopted
when reached absolute majority. If the shareholders attending represent between twenty-five
percent (25%) and fifty percent (50%) — but without reaching it — the favourable vote of two-thirds
(2/3) of the present or represented capital in the General Shareholders’ Meeting will be required in
order to validly approve these resolutions.

In 2024, there was one amendment to EDPR Articles of Association:

On May 22", 2024, the Company increased its share capital by issuing new shares out of reserves,
using the rights issued under the scrip dividend program. The decision to carry out this capital
increase was taken on April 23" 2024 by the Board of Directors, with the prior approval of the
General Shareholders’ Meeting on April 4™ 2024. The nominal amount of the capital increase was
EUR 79,388,850.00 and was carried out by issuing 15,877,770 new ordinary shares with a nominal
value of EUR 5 each. As a result, article 5 ("Share capital") of the Articles of Association was
amended, and the share capital is now 5,199,279,355€.

l. Reporting of irregularities
49. Irregularities communication channels

Speak Up Channel

The EDP Group has long pursued principles of trust and transparency regarding the way it develops
its activity and relates to all its stakeholders, making its options clear in this matter, both through the
Code of Ethics and the Integrity Policy. These principles of trust and transparency naturally include
channels for reporting alleged unethical and/or illegal behaviour, which all stakeholders can use
whenever they consider that the company's ethical and integrity principles may be atrisk.
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The implemented whistleblowing management system follows essential and deterministic guiding
principles at each stage, such as independence, impartiality, and objectivity in the analysis and
handling of registered cases, along with the guarantee of absolute confidentiality. Complaints can
also be reported anonymously, although the possibility of any interaction deemed necessary with
the complainant is guaranteed.

EDPR ensures the protection and non-discrimination of whistleblowers who make their
communications, reports, or complaints in good faith and on a well-reasoned basis, even if the
reported facts are not precise or do not lead to any disciplinary or judicial process, and no acts of
reprimand or retaliation will be admitted that, directly or indirectly, motivated by a report, cause or
may cause the whistleblower any unjustified harm.

EDPR provides access to the Speak up channels through its website, as well as to the respective
Whistleblowing Management Policy. Information about the mentioned channel and policy can be
found on the Speak up page on the company's website at https://www.edpr.com/en/speak-up

The Ethics Commission of EDPR play a crucial role in this system, being responsible for the analysis
and deliberation on the received reports, as well as for promoting principles of business ethics. This
commission is composed of qualified and independent members who act with impartiality and
rigour to ensure compliance with the Code of Ethics and the company's internal standards.

For further information on the reports received by the Ethics Commission in 2024, please see
Annexes available under "Other Indicators”.

lll. Internal Control and Risk Management
50. Internal Audit

The Group, in line with its commitment to ensure the exercise of its activity in accordance with the
highest standards of ethics and integrity, has implemented a Compliance Management System,
coordinated by the Ethics & Compliance Global Unit.

This system, aligned with the risk management model, founded on a solid internal control system,
structured according to the "three lines of defence," which operate in an integrated manner to
identify and adequately manage the risks arising from the activity. Under this system:

The First line of defence (Business): has, among others, the responsibility for the daily and
proactive management of compliance risks, in line with the established regulations. The
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decision makers are the main persons responsible for each functional, business or support unit
and all its employees working in these areas.

The Second line of defence (Ethics & Compliance): it has, among others, the responsibility of
ensuring business support in the identification, analysis, evaluation, mitigation, and monitoring
of risk, as well as challenging and questioning the potential risks that may arise. The Ethics &
Compliance team, the Ethics & Compliance Focal points and the Ethics & Compliance
Supporters can be identified as the mainresponsible parties.

The Third line of defence (Internal Audit): it has, among others, the responsibility for conducting
independent audits to the Compliance Management System. These audits may also be carried
out by independent external entities with recognized capacity for that purpose.

This model enables the rationalization of resources and efforts, promotes coordination between
functions, and standardizes language, connecting all Regions, Platforms and Global Business
Services through a common infrastructure that shares the same processes and information systems.
This facilitates the harmonization of guidelines and methodologies across the organization and
different regulatory scopes, ensuring alignment with other internal policies and procedures and
promoting the continuous improvement of the actions developed.

Specifically, within the scope of the 2nd line of defence, Ethics & Compliance has the mission to
promote a culture of compliance based on the highest ethical standards, through the identification
of relevant ethics and compliance risks and the dissemination and coordination of the
implementation of mechanisms that promote compliance and ethics, providing proactive and
systematic advice to the entire organization, namely regarding policies and instruments for
managing business ethics.

The Ethics & Compliance activity is essentially based on the following pillars:
Identification, analysis and assessment of ethics and compliance risks;

promotion and coordination of the implementation of policies, procedures, and other control
mechanisms, in order to mitigate the identified ethics and compliance risks;

development of training and communication on ethics and compliance;

monitoring the implementation of procedures and other ethics and compliance mechanisms
adopted, in order to assess the maintenance of their adequacy and effectiveness;

implementation of a whistleblowing management system;
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periodic reporting to Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee of the most
relevant topics that may represent a significant risk for the Group.

It also has as main responsibilities to contribute to the continuous improvement of risk management
processes associated, in an external plan, with legal and regulatory compliance and, in an internal
plan, with compliance with the internal regulations and procedures in force, also ensuring the
implementation of the Internal Control over for Financial Reporting System (ICFR).

In the performance of its duties, the Ethics & Compliance reports functionally to the Audit, Control
and Related Party Transactions Committee, a specialized committee of the Board of Directors of
EDPR.

A culture of tone at the top in ethics and compliance matters is approved and disseminated, ensuring
the implementation of the Compliance Management System in alignment with the Group's strategic
objectives.

A model to structure its Compliance Management System has been adopted, which is formalized in
the Compliance Standard, updated in 2024. This system is aligned with international best practices,
with EDPR obtaining dual certification in Criminal Compliance and Anti-Bribery Management
systems, thus meeting the requirements established by UNE 19601 and ISO 37001 standards. The
Compliance Management System demonstrates the Group’s commitment to ensure (i) an adequate
identification, assessment, and management of non-compliance risks, in order to minimize the risk
of sanctions, namely financial and possible operational and reputational impacts, and (ii) the
confidence of its stakeholders, reinforcing the Group's competitiveness.

Based on the defined governance model, the Group's Compliance Management System is
developed from a risk assessment, which is reviewed periodically or whenever there are material
changes in the legal and regulatory context or the organizational context. This assessment allows
the identification of the legal requirements and others compliance obligations or of the most relevant
normative scopes for the organization, resulting in the structuring and development of different
Specific Compliance Programs, through a process that goes through different sequential phases: (i)
planning, (ii) conceptual structuring and design, (iii) support for implementation; (iv) monitoring of
implementation and (v) ongoing maintenance and continuous improvement.

At the level of each Specific Compliance Program level, following the methodological approach of
the Group’s Compliance Management System and based on the identification and evaluation of
their specific risks, policies, procedures, and other compliance mechanisms are developed. Through
these policies, procedures and mechanisms, the fundamental principles of compliance
management are formalized, and the rules and control mechanisms implemented are detailed,
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reflecting on activities developed internally or by third parties on behalf of the company, and which
are key elements for the dissemination of a compliance culture throughout the Group.

Ethics & Compliance ensures the follow-up and monitoring of the development, operation, and
implementation of the Specific Compliance Programs.

In accordance with the respective annual activity plan, the Internal Audit function conducts specific
audit work, addressing ethics compliance topics. Additionally, the Compliance Management
System and some Specific Compliance Programs are also subject to independent external audit.

The results of the monitoring and any recommendations issued by internal or external audits are
considered for the purpose of improving compliance management, with a view to continuous
improvement.

For more information on the development of the main Specific Compliance Programs and training,
see section“Business Ethics” inthe Sustainability Statement.

EDPR’s Internal Audit Department (“IAD”) is composed by thirteen (13) members.

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add
value and improve an organization's operations. It helps an organization accomplish its objectives
by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.

The Internal Audit department has the mission of enhance and protect organizational value by
providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight, covering the following areas of
activity:

Evaluate and issue recommendations to improve the Company's governance processes.

Assist the organization to improve risk management processes and maintaining effective
controls by evaluating their effectiveness and efficiency and by promoting continuous
improvements covering the governance, operations and information systems of the
organization, regarding to:

I.  Achievement of the organization’s strategic objectives.
ii.  Reliability and integrity of financial, non-financial and operational information.

iii. Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programs.
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iv. Safeguarding assets.
v. Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts.
The Internal Audit services can be divided into two categories: assurance services and consulting.

Assurance services consist in objective analyses of evidence to provide an independent
assessment of the organization's governance, risk management, and control.

The consulting services performed at the specific request of the Company Governing Bodies or of
any of its Officers. They consist of advisory activities and related services designed to add value
and improve the organization's governance, risk management, and control processes without the
internal auditor assuming any management responsibility.

The fulfilment of these objectives aims to reduce the risks in pursuing the activity and increase the
creation of value for the Group. Therefore, approaches based on a proactive view of internal control
measures geared to the relevant risks must be taken, making them a relevant support tool for
management.

The lAD is not an executive body of EDPR, so it has no power in making management decisions in the
Group’s activities, nor any hierarchical or functional link with the audited units, thus maintaining a
relationship of total independence and objectivity in relation to them. This positioning makes it
possible to achieve the following objectives:

Ensure the independence of the Internal Audit activity and fulfils its responsibilities.

Ensure objectivity in obtaining the conclusions of work carried out and the resulting
recommendations, as well improvement actions to be implemented.

As such, the Internal Audit, in development of its function, should be an instrument to support
management with proactive view of internal control systems. In this sense, the collaboration of the
entire Organization is essential to achieve the objective set.

The Internal Audit Department, as well as all professionals assigned to this function, will govern their
performance by Internal Audit Standard, the Fundamental Principles for the Practice of Internal
Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Audit approved by The Institute of Internal Auditors (lIA).

The functions of the Internal Audit Department of EDPR were evaluated by the “Instituto de Auditores
Internos” for the first time in 2020, obtaining the highest qualification.
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51. Organisational structure of Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function in EDPR is a corporate function, carried out by the Internal Audit
Department (IAD), which has administrative dependence to the CEO of EDPR and functional
dependence to the Audit, Control and Related Parties Committee which supervise the activities and
to which Internal Audit activities are reported.

Administrative Dependence

In terms of the IAD’s administrative dependence to the CEO of EDPR, the CEO of EDPR shall:

Create adequate information flows that allow IAD to keep up to date on the company's activities,
plans and initiatives.

Support the internal audit function, positioning the IAD at an appropriate level within the EDPR’s
organization.

Facilitate direct and open communication to the EDPR Group's Management and Administration
bodies.

Provide the appropriate technical, human, financial and information-gathering means that
enable the IAD to fulfil its functions, in accordance with the approved Audit Plan.

Request assurance and consultancy projects from IAD that it deems necessary considering the
Organization's objectives and risks.

Approve, annually, in coordination with the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions
Committee, the IAD Audit Plan, based on the EDPR's risk matrix and the Basic Standard for
Internal Audit.

Approve, whenever applicable, in coordination with the Audit, Control and Related Party
Transactions Committee, the remuneration of the |IAD Director and the process of his/her
appointment, evaluation and removal.

Assess the activity and performance of the IAD and the adequacy of working conditions, namely
in terms of human resources and technical and financial means, checking if there are limitations
or interferences within the scope of the Internal Audit function or its budget that may make it
impossible to IAD to fulfil its responsibilities.
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Overseeing the effectiveness of the internal audit systems and, if necessary, proposing
improvement measures.

Functional Dependence

In terms of the IAD's functional dependence to the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions
Committee, the Audit, Control and Related Parties Committee should:

Approve, annually, in coordination with the CEO of EDPR, the IAD Audit Plan, based on the EDPR's
risk matrix and the Basic Standard for Internal Audit. In this context, also approve the human and
financial resources to be made available by EDPR to the IAD.

Approve, in coordination with the CEO of EDPR, the remuneration of the IAD Director and the
process for his/her appointment, evaluation and removal.

Receive communications and individual reports and conclusions, issued by IAD, on the activity
developed by IAD.

Assess the activity and performance of the IAD and the adequacy of working conditions, namely
in terms of human resources and technical and financial means, checking if there are limitations
or interferences within the scope of the Internal Audit function or its budget that may make it
impossible to IAD to fulfil its responsibilities.

Overseeing the effectiveness of the internal audit systems and, if necessary, proposing
improvement measures.

The functions of the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee regarding to Internal
Audit are defined in its Internal Regulation.

52. Risk Management

Risk management is an integral part of business management and is everyone's responsibility, from
the Board of Directors down to the individual employee. Everyone is responsible for being aware of
the risks in their area of activity and managing them in a way that is integrated with their roles,
competences and delegated responsibilities.

EDPR manages its significant risks from a portfolio perspective, optimising the risk-return ratio
across all its activities, with a view to creating value and standing out in the markets in which it
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operates. EDPR also endeavours to constantly improve its risk management to reflect the evolution
of its needs and to keep in line with the best international risk management practices.

The integration of risk management into the most relevant business and decision-making processes
is promoted, as a component of (i) strategic development, (ii) investment decisions, (iii) the business
plan and (iv) operations management, with the aim of ensuring stable results and optimising the
capacity to respond to changes in context and opportunities.

The risk management process is structured around three lines of defence (business, risk
management/compliance and internal and external auditing), each conducted independently and
ensuring an adequate degree of segregation from the others. The functions of identifying, analysing,
assessing, treating, and monitoring risk are overseen by a set of bodies with clearly established roles
and responsibilities, typified by EDPR’s policies, which are approved and ratified by the competent
bodies. Below are brief descriptions of these bodies:

The Board of Directors (BoD) is the primary direct stakeholder influencing governance. One of
the Board of Directors’ many functions is to adopt a risk oversight role, ensuring risk
management policies and procedures designed and implemented by the company are aligned
with its strategy and risk appetite. Additionally, it is also the responsibility of the BoD to ensure
these risk policies and procedures are functioning as intended and that necessary steps are
taken to foster an enterprise-wide culture that supports appropriate risk awareness,
behaviours and judgements. For that reason, the ERM Framework should be submitted for
approval to the Board of Directors every year, so that risk management practices, appetite and
limits can be validated. The Board of Directors has set up delegated Committees, (1)
Management Team, (2) Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee, (3)
Appointments and Remuneration Committee, and (4) Environmental, Social and Corporate
Governance Committee.

The Management Team is nominated by the BoD, and within the risk management process,
EDPR Management Team has the following accountabilities: (1) Approve EDPR’s strategic plan
and the implicit risk appetite; (2) Define the global objectives of the company and manage the
risk-return trade off; and (3) Approve the risk management policies and ensure their
compliance.

The Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee is an independent supervisory
body composed by non-executive members that closely supervises risk management
procedures, namely through the supervision of the quality, integrity and efficiency of the
internal control system, risk management and internal audit.
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The Risk area, headed by the Chief Risk Officer, performs a function that is independent from
the conduct of business, and supports the Management Team and remaining management
bodies at the level of the second line of defence. The Risk area is divided between:

> The Risk Centres of Excellence (CoE) are divided in three: Corporate CoE, responsible for
the Enterprise Risk Management, the analysis and overview of the strategic risks, the
aggregation of the full EDPR risks and the external risk reporting; Financial CoE,
responsible for the management of the financial risks, defining the insurance strategy and
developing risk analysis for new investments, and; Counterparty CoE, responsible for
counterparty risk management, including the analysis and establishment of limits for the
acceptance of new contracts.

o The Platform Business Partners, which play the main role in operationalising risk
management and are under the direct hierarchical dependence of both the Chief Risk-
Officer and of the respective Platform Management Team, acting in a segregated
manner and independent from the conduct of the business.

o Additionally, there is a EDPR risk responsible in the Risk area who is accountable to
ensure that risks for EDPR are being properly managed (within the approved risk limits)
and reported to EDPR Board of Directors and Audit, Control and Related Party
Transactions Committee.

The risk-owners of the Platforms, Regions and Support Functions are all the business
managers who assume risk in their day-to-day activities and act in accordance with the
definedrisk strategies.

Discussion and decision making of risk topics for EDPR is performed in the same committees as for
the EDP group (always with the presence of EDPR risk responsible):

The Global Risk Committee's main objective is to support the decisions of EDP’s Executive
Board of Directors in identifying, analysing, assessing, treating and monitoring risk. New
policies and risk limits or update of those are discussed and approved in this forum. This
Committee meets on a quarterly basis. The Committee is made up of the main decision-
makers and those responsible for the Group's and EDPR recurrent risk management (members
of EDP’s Executive Board of Directors, regional and platform heads, key corporate areas and
members with responsibility for risk management of the main platforms/geographies).

The Financial Risk Committee main objective is to review main financial risks and discuss the
execution of mitigation strategies. Exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk,
commodities risk and credit risk from financial counterparties are most relevant risks reviewed
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in this committee. Additionally, an overview of the risk assessments developed for the new 53. Risk Map

investments is also discussed. This Committee meets on a quarterly basis. The Committee is

made up of the main finance decision-makers and those responsible for the Group's and EDPR's risk taxonomy, from an integrated perspective and in a common language, is structured
EDPR’s recurrent financial risk management (members of EDP’s Executive Board of Directors, around six blocks: Energy Market risk, Financial risk, Strategic risk, Counterparty risk, Operational
regional and platform heads, key Finance team members, key corporate areas and members risk and ESG Risk.

with responsibility for risk management of the main platforms/geographies).
The figure below shows the risk categories to which EDPR is exposed. Further details on the The

The Risk Monitoring Committee meets monthly to provide an overview of the most relevant risk various risks to which EDPR is subject, which fall into these categories, are available on the EDPR
exposures, namely growth execution risk, energy market risk, regulatory risk and counterparty website: EDPR Risk Taxonomy | edp.com.

risk. Additionally, a status of all risk limits is provided, focusing on the exposures that are

beyond the limit and/or that had relevant changes. The Committee is made up of the main

decision-makers and those responsible for the Group's and EDPR’s recurrent risk management

(members of EDP’s Executive Board of Directors, regional and platform heads, key corporate

areas and members with responsibility for risk management of the main platforms/

geographies).

The Platform Risk Committees are set up and carried out at the level of the Group's Platforms
when the structure of the Platform and the degree of complexity of risk management justifies it,
assuming a structure replicated from the Group’s Risk Committee. These Committees are
typically coordinated by the respective Risk Business Partner and are attended by members of
the Platform Management Team, key areas of the Platform, as well as the Chief Risk Officer, to
ensure alignment at Group level. EDPR’s responsible also attends all meetings that may impact
EDPR risk management.
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54. Risk functions and framework

EDPR risk management is structured around five main phases (identification, analysis, evaluation,
treatment, and monitoring), complemented by a prior phase of establishing the context, and by
adequate levels of communication between the various stakeholders:

More details on each of the stages of the risk management process can be found on EDPR's website:
EDPR's Risk Management Process | edpr.com.
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To provide clarification on IPCG Recommendation V.1., EDPR’s Audit, Control and Related Parties
Committee conducted a review and gave a favourable opinion for the revised Enterprise Risk
Management Framework, which included updated baseline limits, a revised risk taxonomy and
other content additions.

Following this review, the revised ERM Framework was presented and approved by EDPR’s Board of
directors.

55. Details on the internal control and risk management systems implemented in the company
regarding the procedure for reporting financial information

With the purpose of not only controlling risks, but also managing them ex-ante, EDPR has created
Global Risk policies that are enforceable at a Global Level. These policies are proposed and
discussed in the Risk Committee and approved by the Management Team.

EDPR’s Enterprise Risk Management Process is inspired on Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision’s principles, guidelines and recommendations and is similar to other risk management
frameworks. In this respect, performance of risk metrics at EDPR and their compliance with
established internal risk limits are assessed on a monthly basis. Additionally, a formal review and
update of each Risk Policy, and the adequacy of its limits, is performed every two years.

Internal control system of financial reporting

EDP Renovdveis Group has implemented the Internal Control System of Financial Reporting (ICFR),
based on criteria established by the regulatory framework of internal control issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO 2013), in relation to
business processes and entity level controls, and the Control Objectives for Information and Related
Technologies (COBIT), in relation to the general controls of information technology.

According to the adopted methodology and the Internal Control System of Financial Reporting
Standard, activities were carried out related to the implementation, maintenance, monitoring and
assessment of the internal control system, within the competence of those responsible that
participate in the EDP Renovdaveis Group.

It is highlighted the development of the following activities:

Planning and monitoring the annual ICFR cycle, maintenance and review of reference models,
conceptual and methodological support to Regions/Platforms and Global Business Services
(GBS);
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Defining ICFR Scoping Model based in the consolidated financial information, supported on
materiality and risk criteria on a "top down" approach (Ethics & Compliance) and "bottom up"
approach (Regions/Platforms and Global Business Services), on annually basis and mid-year
review, which the processes considered relevant are identified;

Support for Regions/Platforms and Global Business Services (GBS) in the documentation and
review of new controls and redesign of the existing, as well as in the identification, review, and
appointment of ICFR responsible, resulting from the inclusion of new topics, by materiality and/
or risk and legal, structural, procedural and/or accounting changes;

Identification of relevant Information Systems that supports ICFR and analysis of "service
organizations", for monitoring the issuance of the ISAE 3402 (International Standard on
Assurance Engagements), reports corresponding to an independent assessment of the control
environment used by information technology service;

Monitoring and support provided to Regions/Platforms and Global Business Services (GBS) in
the resolution of identified non-compliances and improvement opportunities and reporting to
internal responsible and supervisors;

Launch and monitoring of the self-certification process, through which those responsible for
the internal control, declare their explicit recognition of (i) sufficiency or insufficiency of the
controls documentation in terms of updating and adjustment, (i) its execution and
maintenance of evidence, (iii) actions approval and implementation related to the resolution of
non-compliance and improvement opportunities and (iv) compliance with the Code of Ethics
and the Integrity Policy;

Monitoring of the annually assessment process conducted by the External Auditor, in terms of
work planning and interactions with Regions/Platforms and Global Business Services (GBS).

On this matter, the External Auditor issued an independent report on the EDPR's Internal Control of
Financial Reporting System related to the financial statements as of December 31%, 2024, without
reservations nor qualifications, presented in the annex "Certifications and Declarations", concluding
with a reasonable degree of assurance, regarding the design and effectiveness of the internal
control of financial reporting system of EDP Renovdveis Group.

Index Part | 99

V. Investor Assistance
56. Investor Relations department

EDPR seeks to provide to shareholders, investors, financial analysts and other stakeholders and the
market in general, all the relevant information about the Company and its business environment, on a
regular basis and whenever a relevant fact takes place. The promotion of transparent, consistent,
rigorous, easily accessible, and high-quality information is essential to an accurate perception of the
Company’s strategy, financial situation, accounts, assets, prospects, risks, and significant events.

EDPR, therefore, looks to provide the market with accurate information that can support them in
making informed, clear and concrete investment decisions.

The Investor Relations Department was created to ensure a direct and permanent contact with all
market related agents and stakeholders, to guarantee effective communication, equality between
shareholders and to prevent imbalances in the information access.

The EDPR Investor Relations Department (IR) is the intermediary between EDPR and its actual and
potential shareholders, the financial analysts that follow Company’s activity, all investors and other
members of the financial community. The main purpose of the department is to guarantee the
principle of equality among shareholders, by preventing asymmetries in the access of the
information and reducing the gap between market perception and Company’s strategy and intrinsic
value. The Investor Relations department centralizes all relevant and material information that could
impact EDPR share price. This information is prepared by the different departments of EDPR, with
the support, when necessary, of external experts, and always managed in a strictly confidential
basis. The department responsibility also comprises developing and implementing EDPR’s
communication strategy and preserving an appropriate institutional and informative relationship
with the financial market, the stock exchange at which EDPR shares trade and the regulatory and
supervisory entities (CMVM — Comiss@o de Mercado de Valores Mobilidrios — in Portugal and
CNMV — Comision Nacional del Mercado de Valores — in Spain).

EDPR is clearly aware of the importance of detailed and transparent information, delivered on-time
to the market. Consequently, EDPR publishes Company’s price sensitive information before the
opening or following the closing of the Euronext Lisbon stock exchange through CMVM’s
information system and, simultaneously, make that same information available on the website
investors’ section and through the IR department’s mailing list. In 2024, EDPR made almost 50
market notifications, in addition to quarterly, semi-annual and annual results presentations,
handouts and operating data statement elaborated by the IR Department. In addition, the IR
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Department also elaborates key data files and interim presentations which are available on the
website investors’ section.

On each earnings announcement, EDPR promotes a conference call and webcast, opened to the
market in general, at which the Company’s management updates the market on EDPR’s activities.
On each of these events, shareholders, investors and analysts had the opportunity to directly submit
their questions and to discuss EDPR’s results as well as the Company’s outlook and strategy.

EDPR IR Department is coordinated by Miguel Viana and is located at the Company’s head offices in
Madrid, Spain. The department structure and contacts are as follows:

- Miguel Viana, Head of Investor Relations & ESG
- Avenida de Burgos, 89; Edificio Adequa 1A — 7" floor; 28050 — Madrid — Espafa

« Website: www.edpr.com/en/investors

- E-Mail: ir@edpr.com
- Phone: +34 900 830 004

EDPR IR Department was in continuous contact with capital markets agents, namely shareholder
and investors, along with financial analysts who evaluate the Company. In 2024, as far as the
Company is aware, sell-side analysts issued more than 100 reports evaluating EDPR’s business and
performance.

At the end of the 2024, as far as the Company is aware of, there were 27 institutions elaborating
research reports and following actively EDPR activity. As of December 31%, 2024, the average price
target of those analysts was of Euro 14.61 per share with 17 “Buy”, 8 “Neutral” and 2 “Sell”
recommendations.

COMPANY ANALYST PRICE TARGET DATE RECOMMENDATION
Alantra Fernando Lafuente €15.73 07-Nov-24 Buy

Bank of America Alexandre Roncier €8.50 03-Dec-24 Underperform
Barclays Jose Ruiz €10.90 19-Dec-24 Equalweight
Bestinver Daniel Rodriguez €13.85 20-Dec-24 Buy

Part |
COMPANY ANALYST PRICE TARGET DATE RECOMMENDATION
Berenberg Andrew Fisher €16.50 14-Aug-24 Buy
BernsteinSG Jorge Alonso €19.30 20-Sep-24 Buy
BNP Paribas Manuel Palomo €10.00 02-Dec-24 Underperform
CaixaBank BPI Pedro Alves €15.60 13-Nov-24 Buy
Caixa Bl Carlos Jesus €15.40 03-Dec-24 Buy
Citi Jenny Ping €17.70 1N-Sep-24 Buy
Deutsche Bank Olly Jeffery €12.50 11-Sep-24 Hold
Goldman Sachs Alberto Gandolfi €15.50 1-Nov-24 Buy
HSBC Meike Becker €1.00 18-Dec-24 Buy
Intermoney Guillermo Barrio €19.00 09-Oct-24 Buy
JB Capital Jorge Guimardes €18.30 12-Jul-24 Buy
Jefferies Arturo Murua €13.00 27-Nov-24 Buy
JP Morgan Javier Garrido €13.40 27-Nov-24 Neutral
Kepler Cheuvreux Jose Porta €17.20 28-Nov-24 Buy
Morgan Stanley Arthur Sitbon €15.00 28-Nov-24 Overweight
Morning Star Tancrede Fulop €17.00 08-May-24 Buy
MedioBanca Enrico Bartoli €15.00 07-Nov-24 Outperform
ODDO BHF Philippe Ourpatian €16.50 10-May-24 Neutral
RBC Fernando Garcia €15.00 13-Nov-24 Outperform
Redburn Fawwaz Janjua €22.00 01-Feb-23 Neutral
Santander Bosco Muguiro €14.20 04-Jul-24 Neutral
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COMPANY ANALYST PRICE TARGET DATE RECOMMENDATION

UBS Gonzalo Sanchez- €14.40 20-Dec-24 Neutral
Bordona

Van Lanschot Paul Chabran €16.00 07-Nov-24 Buy

Kempen

57. Market Relations Representative

EDPR representative for relations with the market at CNMV and CMVM is Rui Teixeira, Chief
Financial Officer.

58. Information Requests

EDPR's aims to communicate to the market with objective and transparent information that is
understandable to all stakeholders. In order to achieve such intent and bearing in mind the
importance of keeping a trustworthy and sustainable behaviour, EDPR has adopted a financial
reporting policy based on transparent and consistent information properly conveyed to investors
and analysts.

In 2024, the Investor Relations received several requests for information during the year and the
average response time to queries was less than 24 hours, with complex requests being replied within
one-week time.

V. Website — Online information
59. Website Address

EDPR website: www.edpr.com

60. Location of information about the company, its status as a public limited company

Please see here.

61. Location of the Articles of Association and regulations of bodies or committees

Please see here.
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62. Location of information on the names of members of the corporate bodies, market relations
representative, investor relations office or equivalent body, their duties and forms of access

Please see here.

63. Location of accounting documents, which must be available for at least five years and the
six-monthly calendar of company events disclosed at the start of each half year, including
General Meetings, disclosure of annual, six-monthly and, if applicable, quarterly accounts

Please see here.

64. Location of notice of meeting for General Meetings and all their preparatory and
subsequent information

Please see here.

65. Location of history of decisions made at the company's General Meetings, the share capital
represented and result of votes for the previous three 3 years

EDPR considers online information a powerful tool in the dissemination of material information,
updating its website with all the relevant documents. Apart from all the required information by
CMVM and CNMV regulations, EDPR website also carries financial and operational updates of
Company’s activities ensuring an easy access to the information.

EDPR website: www.edpr.com

Company information here
Corporate by-laws and bodies/committees’ regulations here
Members of the corporate bodies and management structure here
Market relations representative, IR department here
Information channels here
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INFORMATION LINK
Financial statements documents here
Corporate events Agenda ere

|. Power to establish

66. Details of the powers for establishing the remuneration of corporate boards, members of
the executive committee or chief executive and directors of the company

The Appointments and Remunerations Committee is a permanent body belonging to the Board of
Directors with an informative and advisory nature. Its recommendations and reports are non-
binding.

The Appointments and Remunerations Committee has no executive functions. The main functions of
the Appointments and Remunerations Committee are to assist and inform the Board of Directors
regarding the appointments (including by co-option), re-elections, dismissals, and the remuneration
of the Directors and executive staff. It also informs the Board of Directors on general remuneration
and incentive policies and incentives for Board members and executive staff.

As such, the Appointments and Remunerations Committee is the body responsible for (i) proposing
to the Board of Directors the remuneration of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors, the
members of the Board Committees and the Executive Staff; (i) the Remuneration Policy; (iii) the
evaluation and compliance of the KPI's (Key Performance Indicators); and (iv) the annual and multi
annual variable remuneration, if applicable.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the approval of the above-mentioned proposals except the
Remuneration Policy which is approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting. The Board of
Directors also evaluates with an annual periodicity its own performance and the performance of its
delegated Committees. The evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors is then
additionally submitted for the approval of the General Shareholders’ Meeting.
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The proposal on the Remuneration Policy is submitted by the Board of Directors for the approval of
the General Shareholders’ Meeting as an independent proposal, which will be in effect for a
maximum of a three-year period. According to the Company’s Articles of Association the Board of
Directors remuneration is subject to a maximum value that can only be modified by a Shareholders’
agreement.

Il. Appointments and Remunerations Committee

67. Composition of the remuneration committee, including details of individuals or legal
persons recruited to provide services to said committee and a statement on the independence
of each member and advisor.

The composition of the Appointments and Remunerations Committee is available in section 29 of
this Chapter.

The Company has not established any restrictions within its Articles of Association, Regulations or
internal policies limiting the competence of the Appointments and Remunerations Committee to hire
any consulting services that may be considered necessary to carry out its duties.

Additionally in case such services would be hired, it should be noted that they should be rendered
independently, ensuring that the service provider do not provide any other services to EDPR or to any
company in controlling or group relationship.

In 2024 the Appointments and Remunerations Committee hired the services of an external
consultant for the identification of Independent Directors profiles to cover vacancies, and the
provision of these services strictly complied with the referred requirements.

68. Knowledge and experience regarding Remuneration Policy

The members of the Appointments and Remunerations Committee have knowledge and experience
regarding Remuneration Policy.
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lll. Remuneration structure
69. Description of the remuneration policy of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Boards

Pursuant to Article 26 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors shall be entitled to a
remuneration which consists of a fixed amount to be determined annually by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting for the whole Board of Directors. The above-mentioned article also
establishes the possibility of the Directors of receiving attendance fees or being remunerated with
Company shares, share options, or other securities granting the right to obtain shares or by means of
share-indexed remuneration systems. In any case, the system chosen must be approved by the
General Shareholders’ Meeting and comply with current legal provisions.

The total amount of the remunerations that the Company will pay to its Directors shall not exceed the
amount determined by the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

Pursuant to Article 26.5 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the rights and duties of any kind
derived from the condition of Board Member shall be compatible with any other rights and
obligations either fixed or variable that could correspond to the Board Members as a consequence of
other employment or professional engagements, if any, carried out in the Company.

For these purposes, the General Shareholders' Meeting held on May 13th, 2008, set a maximum
annual amount for the Board of Directors for fixed remuneration of EUR 2,500,000, and at its
meeting held on April 8™ 2014, also resolved to establish a maximum annual amount for variable
remuneration of EUR 1,000,000 for executive directors.

For 2023 onwards, the maximum annual amount for fix and variable remuneration for the Board of
Directors has been set in EUR 3,500,000 by the approval of the General Shareholders’ Meeting held
on March 371%, 2022. This amount results of the merge of the former EUR 2,500,000 that was
established for fix remuneration and the EUR 1,000,000 that was established for variable annual
remuneration.

EDPR, in line with EDP Group corporate governance practices, has signed a Management Services
Agreement with EDP, under which the Company bears the cost for such services to some of the
members of the Board of Directors to the extent their services are devoted to EDPR.

Variable remuneration resulting from said contracts or from any other relationship, including being a
Board Member, will be limited to a maximum annual amount to be also established by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting.
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The Non-Executive Directors only receive a fixed remuneration, which is calculated on the basis of
their work as Directors and a complement as Member or Chair of the Appointments and
Remunerations Committee, and/or the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee
and/or the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee. Such amounts are
cumulative, except for the Chair of the Board of Directors who does not receive any complement
derived from his role at any Committee.

EDPR has not incorporated any share remuneration or share purchase options plans as components
of the remuneration of its Directors.

No Director has entered into any contract with the Company or third parties that have the effect of
mitigating the risk inherent in the variability of the remuneration established by the Company.

In EDPR there are not any payments for the dismissal or termination of Director's duties.

70. Information on how remuneration is structured so as to enable the aligning of the interests
of the members of the board of directors with the company's long-term interests and how it is
based on the performance assessment and how it discourages excessive risk taking

The General Shareholders’ Meeting held on March 31%, 2022, approved the Remuneration Policy to
be applied for 2023-2025 term, following the proposal of the Appointments and Remunerations
Committee, which was updated on April 4", 2024, according to the same proceeding. This
Remuneration Policy maintains a structure with a fixed remuneration for all members of the Board of
Directors, whereas for the Executive Directors also defines a fixed and a variable remuneration, with
an annual component and a multi-annual component. During 2024, the Board of Directors
Remuneration Policy in place at any moment in time was duly applied.

For further information regarding ltem 70, please see Remuneration Report.

71. Reference, where applicable, to there being a variable remuneration component and
information on any impact of the performance appraisal on this component

Variable annual and variable multi-annual remuneration apply to the Executive Directors.

For further information regarding ltem 71, please see Remuneration Report.
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72. The deferred payment of the remuneration’s variable component and specify the relevant
deferral period

In line with corporate governance practices, the Remuneration Policy incorporates the deferral for a
period of three years of the multi-annual variable remuneration, subjecting its payment to the fact
that no malicious wrongdoing is discovered after the assessment has occurred and endangers the
sustainability of the company's performance, and is the subject of a claim for compensation to
EDPR, brought by shareholders or third parties.

For further information regarding Iltem 72, please see Remuneration Report.

73. The criteria whereon the allocation of variable remuneration on shares is based, and also on
maintaining company shares that the executive directors have had access to, on the possible
share contracts, including hedging or risk transfer contracts, the corresponding limit and its
relation to the total annual remuneration value

EDPR has not allocated variable remuneration on shares and does not maintain Company shares
that the Executive Directors have had access to.

74.The criteria whereon the allocation of variable remuneration on options is based and details
of the deferral period and the exercise price

EDPR has not allocated variable remuneration on options.

75. The key factors and grounds for any annual bonus scheme and any additional non-
financial benefits

The key factors and grounds for any annual bonus scheme are described in the Remuneration
Report.

No non-monetary benefits are paid by EDPR to its Board Members, except for a company car for the
Chair of the Board of Directors (whose total related cost for four years was borne and reported in in
2021) and the retirement savings plan for Executive Directors referred in the following section.

It is disclosed, as recommended by VI.2.3. of the IPCG, that no additional costs were incurred by the
Company in connection with the termination of functions in 2024.
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76. Key characteristics of the supplementary pensions or early retirement schemes for
directors and state date when said schemes were approved at the general meeting, on an
individual basis

The retirement savings plan applicable to 2024, which is included within the Remuneration Policy
applicable for such term was defined and proposed by the Appointments and Remunerations
Committee to the Board of Directors for its submission to the General Shareholder’s Meeting, which
was duly approved. In accordance with the Remuneration Policy in force, for the Executive Directors
of EDPR (Miguel Stilwell d’ Andrade and Rui Teixeira) it was established in a 5% of the fixed fee
under the Management Services Agreement.

For further information regarding ltem 76, please see Remuneration Report.

V. Remuneration disclosure

77. Details on the amount relating to the annual remuneration paid as a whole and individually
to members of the company's board of directors, including fixed and variable remuneration
and as regards the latter, reference to the different components that gave rise to same

For information regarding ltem 77, please see Remuneration Report.

78. Any amounts paid, for any reason whatsoever, by other companies in a control or group
relationship, or are subject to a common control

The members of the Board of Directors as of end of December 2024 did not receive any payment
from any company under EDPR control or subject to EDPR common control.

79. Remuneration paid in the form of profit sharing and/or bonus payments and the reasons for
said bonuses or profit sharing being awarded

In EDPR there is no payment of remuneration in the form of profit sharing and/or bonus payments
and the reasons for said bonuses or profit sharing being awarded.
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80. Compensation paid or owed to former executive directors concerning contract termination
during the financial year

In 2024 there was no compensation paid or owed to former Executive Directors concerning contract
termination during the financial year.

It should be noted for these purposes that in 2022, the General Shareholders’ Meeting approved and
updated of the Remuneration Policy to be applied for 2023-2025 under which, except as provided
in section below, is specifically established that no severance payment shall be made to Directors for
termination of their duties before the end of the term of office for which they were appointed, and
that Executive Directors shall not sign contracts, either with EDPR or with third parties, that have the
effect of mitigating the risk inherent in the variability of the remuneration set by EDP.

Considering the terms laid down by law and market practice, and approved under the Remuneration
Policy for 2023-2025, duly updated on April 4™ 2024, as on the remuneration of Executive
Directors in the event of early termination of office it has been established that:

In the event of termination for reasons not attributable to the Executive Director, he/she shall be
entitled to receive the full fixed component until the end of the term of office for which he/she was
elected, and the variable component accrued until the date of termination of office, but shall lose
the right to receive any other benefits inherent to the effective exercise of functions for periods of
annual or multi-annual performance not completed in their entirety.

In the event of resignation not arising from an early termination agreement with EDPR, the
Executive Director shall be entitled to receive only the fixed and variable remuneration accrued
up to the date of resignation, the payment of which shall be made on the same terms and
conditions as for serving executive Directors.

In the event of termination of service by agreement with EDPR whereby the Executive Director
agrees to resign, the Executive Director shall be entitled to receive the amount agreed at that
time, which shall not exceed (i) the amount of the fixed component until the end of the term of
office, plus (ii) the full variable component for the annual or multi-year period payable after it is
determined at the end of the relevant period, as if the Executive Director had remained in office.

81. Details of the annual remuneration paid, as a whole and individually, to the members of the
company's supervisory board

For information regarding Iltem 81, please see Remuneration Report.
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82. Details of the remuneration in said year of the Chairman of the Presiding Board to the
General Meeting

For information regarding ltem 82, please see Remuneration Report.

83. The envisaged contractual restraints for compensation payable for the unfair dismissal of
directors and the relevance thereof to the remunerations’ variable component

There are no contracts in force at EDPR that provide for payments in the event of dismissal or
termination by agreement of the director's duties.

84. Reference to the existence and description, with details of the sums involved, of
agreements between the company and members of the board of directors and managers

EDPR has no agreements with remuneration implication.

For avoidance of doubt, the Company has not adopted any mechanism that imply payments or
assumption of fees in the case of change in the composition of the managing body (Board of
Directors), and which could be likely to harm the free transferability of shares and a shareholder
assessment of the performance of the members of this managing body.

85. Details of the plan and the number of persons included therein

There are no option rights granted for the acquisition of shares (stock options) from which the
Company's employees and personnel are beneficiaries.

86. Characteristics of the plan (allocation conditions, non-transfer of share clauses, criteria on
share-pricing and the exercising option price, the period during which the options may be
exercised, the characteristics of the shares or options to be allocated, the existence of
incentives to purchase and/or exercise options)

There are no option rights granted for the acquisition of shares (stock options) from which the
Company's employees and personnel are beneficiaries.
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87. Stock option plans for the company employees and staff

There are no option rights granted for the acquisition of shares (stock options) from which the
Company's employees and personnel are beneficiaries.

88. Control mechanisms for a possible employee-shareholder system inasmuch as the voting
rights are not directly exercised by said employees

The Company has no such control mechanisms.
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l. Control mechanisms and procedures

89. Mechanisms implemented by the Company for the purpose of controlling transactions with
related parties

The Spanish Companies Act sets the regulation and requirements for Related Party Transactions,
including the definition of Related Party Transactions, and the approval and disclosure procedures
of these type of operations.

This definition of Related Party Transactions under Spanish Law considers those performed by a
company or its subsidiaries, with Directors, shareholders holding a 10% or more of the voting rights or
represented at the Board of the company, or with whomever that shall be considered as related party
under the International Accounting Standards.

With regards the competence to approve Related Party Transactions, as of such amendment, it has
been established an assignation of competence to different governing bodies depending on the
amount as follows:

The Shareholders Meeting: transactions of an amount equal or above a10% of the total assets
according to the last annual balance sheet. These transactions shall be submitted together
with a supporting report issued by the Audit Committee of the Company.

The Board of Directors: transactions of an amount below a 10% of the total assets according to
the last annual balance sheet. These transactions shall be also submitted together with a
supporting report issued by the Audit Committee of the Company.

Delegated Bodies: the Board of Directors may delegate the approval of: (i) transactions performed
between companies of the same group that are performed in the ordinary management of the
company and under market conditions, and (ii) that are executed under contracts with standardized
terms that are wholesale applied to a high number of clients under prices or tariffs generally

"To this extent the following shall be considered as Key Employees: (i) the members of the Management Team of EDP Renovdveis, S.A,, (i) the General
Secretary of the Company, (iii) the Directors of Internal Audit, Compliance and Internal Control, Global Risk, Finance, ACT, Planning and Control,
Investor Relations, Legal, IT, as well as (iv) any other that the Audit, Control, and Related Party Transactions Committee may designate.

"2 To this extent the following shall be considered as Relatives: the spouse or assimilated partners of a Board Member and or/ of a Key Employee, the
children of a Board Member and/or of a Key Employee, or of his/her spouse or assimilated partner, as well as the dependent individuals of the Board
Member and/or Key Employee or of his/her spouses or assimilated partners.
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established by the supplier of the goods or services, the amount of which does not exceed the 0.5%
of the net amount of the annual company business value.

The transactions approved by the delegated body will not require the issuance of the Audit
Committee report, but the Board shall establish a periodic internal reporting and control procedure
involving the Audit Committee, which will verify the fairness and transparency of the transactions
and the compliance with the applicable legal criteria.

In light of the above, on July 27" 2021, the Board of Directors approved to implement the necessary
adjustments in the process of analysis and approval of Related Party Transactions, and in particular
resolved to take the following decisions:

To approve the delegation in the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee of the
competence to approve Related Party Transactions that are delegable under the law.

To approve a procedure for reporting and control of such transactions involving the Audit, Control
and Related Party Transactions Committee.

To approve a new definition of Related Party Transactions to be regulated under the Audit,
Control and Related Party Transactions Committee, considering as Related Party the following: (i)
any company of the EDP Group, (i) any company in which both EDPR SA and a Related Party
have a stake, (iii) any shareholder holding a 10% or more of the voting rights or with representation
at the Board of the Company, and (iv) any party deemed as related Party under the International
Accounti1nzg Standards, including without limitation, Board members, Key Employees.11 and
Relatives “.

In order to formalize the above referred delegations, to amend article 8.B. (“Nature and
Competence”) of the Regulations of the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions
Committee including the necessary competences to perform its duties, as follows:

i.  Analyse and, where appropriate, approve the (i) (a) intragroup transactions or (b) transactions
performed between EDPR Group and EDP Group when their amount is below 10% of the total
assets at the last annual balance sheet approved by the company, as long as they are in the
ordinary management of the company and under market conditions; (ii) transactions
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executed under contracts with standardized terms that are wholesale applied to a high
number of clients under prices or tariffs generally established by the supplier of the goods or
services, and which amount does not exceed the 0.5% of the net annual company turnover,
and

ii.  Periodically inform the Board of Directors about the transactions approved by this Committee
in the exercise of the above referred delegation, stating the fairness and transparency of such
transactions, and as the case may be, the compliance with the applicable legal criteria.

iii. Analyse and inform about any modification of the Framework Agreement signed by EDP and
EDP Renovdveis on 7" May 2008."

iv. Submit a report to the Board of Directors of the Company regarding the Related Party
Transactions that shall be approved by the Board of Directors of EDPR SA or by its
Shareholder’s Meeting in accordance with the law, and that shall include: (i) the information
regarding the nature of the operation and the relation with the Related Party, (ii) the identity of
the Related Party, the date and value or amount of the compensation of the transaction, and
any other information necessary to appraise if the operation is fair and reasonable for the
company and for the shareholders that are not Related Parties.

v. Request EDP for access to the information needed to perform its duties.

It should be also noted that in accordance with article 13.3 of the Regulations of the Audit, Control
and Related Party Transactions Committee, the resolutions adopted by this committee are reported
to the Board of Directors at the first Board meeting held following the meeting of the committee in
which such proposals were discussed. That means that in case there are Related Party
Transactions, they are reported to the Board of Directors at least every quarter (maximum period
elapsed between Board of Directors Meeting in accordance with Article 22 of its Regulations).

90. Details of transactions that were subject to control in the referred year

During 2024, EDPR has not signed any contracts with the members of its corporate bodies or with
holders of qualifying holdings, excluding EDP, as mentioned below.

S This Framework Agreement was signed between EDP and EDPR in order to regulate the transactions closed between companies of EDP Group and
EDPR Group, stating that in compliance with the transparency purposes for future investors, such shall continue to be developed in line with the market
prices, in an arm’s length basis, and following certain predefined principles and rules (considering criteria as parties involved, scope and amount).
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The contracts signed between EDPR and its related parties have been analysed by the Audit,
Control and Related Party Transactions Committee according to its competences, as mentioned on
the previous topic, and have been concluded according to the market conditions.

The total amount of supplies and services in 2024 incurred with or charged by the EDP Group was
EUR 64,889 thousand corresponding to 10% of the total value of Supplies & Services for the year
(EUR 489,864,556 thousand).

The most significant contracts in force during 2024 are the following:

Framework agreement

The framework agreement was signed by EDP and EDPR on May 7" 2008 and came into effect
when the latter was admitted to trading. The purpose of the framework agreement is to set out the
principles and rules governing the legal and business relations existing when it came into effect and
those entered into subsequently.

The framework agreement establishes that neither EDP nor the EDP Group companies other than
EDPR and its subsidiaries can engage in activities in the field of renewable energies without the
consent of EDPR. EDPR shall have worldwide exclusivity, with the exception of Brazil, where it shall
engage its activities through a joint venture with EDP Energias do Brasil S.A., for the development,
construction, operation, and maintenance of facilities or activities related to wind, solar, wave and/or
tidal power, and other renewable energy generation technologies that may be developed in the
future. Nonetheless, the agreement excludes technologies being developed in hydroelectric power,
biomass, cogeneration, and waste in Portugal and Spain.

It lays down the obligation to provide EDP with any information that it may request from EDPR to fulfil
its legal obligations and prepare the EDP Group’s consolidated accounts. The framework agreement
shall remain in effect for as long as EDP directly or indirectly owns more than 50% of the share
capital of EDPR or appoints more than 50% of its Directors.

Management services agreement

On November 4™ 2008 EDP and EDPR entered into a Management Services Agreement that has
been amended during the last years in accordance with the variations in the services rendered by
EDP to the Company.
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Through this contract, EDP provides management services to EDPR, including matters related to the
day-to- day running of the Company. As of December 31°° 2024, under this agreement EDP renders
management services in EDPR’s Management, notably: (i) two Executive Directors, who are also the
CEO and CFO of EDPR, and (ii) two Non-Executive Directors in office until April 4th, 2024, for which
EDPR paid EDP an amount defined both by the Appointments and Remunerations Committee and
by the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee, and approved by the Board of
Directors and the General Shareholders Meeting. Under this contract, EDPR incurred an amount of
EUR 1,433,099 for the management services rendered in 2024.

Finance agreements and guarantees

The most significant finance agreements between EDP Group companies and EDPR Group
companies were established under the above-described Framework Agreement and currently
include the following:

Loan agreements

EDPR and EDPR Servicios Financieros SA (“EDPR SF” as the borrower) have loan agreements with
EDP Finance BV and EDP Servicios Financieros Espafia (“EDP SFE” as the lender), companies 100%
owned by EDP. Such loan agreements can be established both in EUR, USD and SGD, up to a 10-
year tenor and are remunerated at rates set at an arm’s length basis. As of December 31* 2024, such
loan agreements totalled USD 1,926,763,526, EUR 4,419,795,739 and SGD 1,000,000,000.

Current account agreement

EDPR SF and EDP SFE signed an agreement through which EDP SFE manages EDPR SF’s cash
accounts. The agreement also regulates the current account scheme on arm’s length basis. As of
December 31% 2024, there are two different current accounts with the following balance and
counterparties:

in USD, for a total amount of USD 177,913,100 in favour of EDP SFE
in EUR, for a total amount of EUR 814,318,060 in favour of EDP SFE

The agreements in place are valid for one year as of date of signing and are automatically renewed
for equal periods.
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Counter-guarantee agreement

A counter-guarantee agreement was signed, under which EDP or EDP S.A., Sucursal en Espaha
(hereinafter guarantor or EDP Sucursal) undertakes on behalf of EDPR, EDP Renewables Europe SLU
(hereinafter EDPR EU), and EDP Renewables North America LLC (hereinafter EDPR NA) to provide
corporate guarantees or request the issue of any guarantees, on the terms and conditions requested
by the subsidiaries, which have been approved on a case by case basis by the EDP’s Executive
Board.

EDPR will be jointly liable for compliance by EDPR EU and EDPR NA. The subsidiaries of EDPR
undertake to indemnify the guarantor for any losses or liabilities resulting from the guarantees
provided under the agreement and to pay a fee established in arm’s length basis.

Nonetheless, certain guarantees issued prior to the date of approval of these agreements may have
different conditions. As of December 31% 2024, such counter-guarantee agreements totalled in EUR
equivalent 588.239.

A counter-guarantee agreement was signed between EDPR Group and EDP Espana under which,
EDPR Group can request the issue of any guarantee, on the terms and conditions requested by the
subsidiaries of EDPR. EDPR group undertake to indemnify the guarantor for any losses or liabilities
resulting from the guarantees provided under this agreement and to pay a fee established in arm’s
length basis. As of December 31°" 2024, there were no guarantees issued under this agreement.

Cross currency interest rate swaps

Due to the net investments in North America, United Kingdom and Polish companies, EDPR’s
accounts were exposed to the foreign exchange risk. With the purpose of hedging this foreign
exchange risk, EDPR Group companies settled the following Cross Currency Interest Rate Swap
(CIRS). As of December 31°" 2024 the total amount of CIRS by geography and currency are as
following:

1. InUSD/EUR, with EDP for a total amount of USD 1,363,550,000
2. in GBP/EUR, with EDP for a total amount of GBP 13,400,000

3. inPLN/EUR, with EDP for a total amount of PLN 366,057,316
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Hedge agreements — exchange rate

EDPR Group companies entered into several hedge agreements with EDP, with the purpose of
managing the transactional exposure related to the short term or transitory positions, in Canada,
Hungary, Chile, APAC, Poland, United Kingdom and other subsidiaries, with USD exposure, fixing the
exchange rate mainly for USD and EUR, in accordance with the prices in the forward market in each
contract date. As of December 31°° 2024, the total amount of Forwards (“FWDs”) and Non Delivery
Forwards (“NDFs”) by geography and currency are as following:

1. APAC operations, for EUR/JPY, a total amount of EUR 22,717,199 (FWDs), for USD/JPY, a total
amount of USD 5,538,626 (FWDs), for EUR/SGD a total amount of EUR 73,233,000 (FWDs),
for USD/SGD a total amount of USD 28,951,358, (FWD) and for EUR/TWD a total amount of
EUR 23,018,320 (NDFs) for SGD/CNY a total amount of SGD 40,698,217 (NDFs) and for SGD/
TWD a total amount of SGD 12,550,018 (NDFs) and for EUR/AUD a total amount of EUR
1,908,252 (FWD) and for VND/USD a total amount of VND 11,767,646,343 (NDF) .

2. Canada operations, for EUR/CAD, a total amount of EUR 3,005,309 (FWD)
3. Hungary operations, for EUR/HUF, a total amount of EUR 32,432,610 (FWDs)

4. Polish operations, for EUR/PLN, a total amount of EUR 169,562,987 (FWDs plus NDFs) and for
USD/PLN, a total amount of USD 5,769,222 (FWDs plus NDFs)

5. United Kingdom operations, for GBP/EUR a total amount of EUR 127,294,023 (FWDs plus
NDFs)

6. Other Subsidiaries operations in Europe (Spain, Portugal, Italy, France, Germany and
Netherlands), for USD/EUR, a total amount of EUR 90,789,826 (FWDs)

Hedge agreements — commodities

EDP and EDPR SA (and its affiliates) entered into hedge agreements (settled) in 2024 for a total
volume of 4,851,599.18 MWh (sell position) and 798,145.52 MWh (buy position) at the forward
market price at the time of execution related with the expected sales of energy in the Spanish
market.
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Consultancy service agreement

On June 4" 2008, EDP and EDPR signed a consultancy service agreement. Through this agreement,
and upon request by EDPR, EDP (or through EDP Sucursal) shall provide consultancy services in the
areas of legal services, internal control systems, financial reporting, taxation, sustainability,
regulation and competition, risk management, human resources, information technology, brand and
communication, energy planning, accounting and consolidation, corporate marketing, and
organizational development.

The price of the agreement is calculated as the cost incurred by EDP plus a margin. For the first year,
it was fixed at 8% based on an independent expert on the basis of market research. For 2024 the
estimated cost of these services is EUR 18,5667,366.20. This was the total cost of services provided
for EDPR, EDPR EU, and EDPR NA.

The duration of the agreement is one (1) year tacitly renewable for equal periods.
Research and development agreement

On May 13™ 2008, EDP Inovacgdo S.A. (hereinafter EDP Inovagdo), an EDP Group Company, and
EDPR signed an agreement regulating relations between the two companies regarding projects in
the field of renewable energies (hereinafter the R&D Agreement).

The object of the R&D Agreement is to prevent conflicts of interest and foster the exchange of
knowledge between companies and the establishment of legal and business relationships. The
agreement forbids EDP Group companies other than EDP Inovacdo to undertake or invest in
companies that undertake the renewable energy projects described in the agreement.

The R&D Agreement establishes an exclusive right on the part of EDP Inovagdo to project and
develop new renewable energy technologies that are already in the pilot or economic and/or
commercial feasibility study phase, whenever EDPR exercises its option to undertake them. The fee
corresponding to this agreementin 2024 is EUR O.

The agreement shall remain in effect for as long as EDP directly or indirectly maintains control of
more than 50% of both companies or appoint the majority of the members of the Board and
Executive Committee of the parties to the agreement.
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Management support services agreement between EDP Renovaveis Portugal S.A., and EDP
GLOBAL SOLUTIONS - GESTAO INTEGRADA de Servicos S.A.

On January 1%, 2003, EDPR — Promocdio e Operacdio S.A., and EDP Global Solutions - Gestdo
Integrada De Servigos S.A. (hereinafter EDP Global Solutions), an EDP Group Company, signed a
management support service agreement.

The object of the agreement is the provision to EDPR — Promog¢do e Operagdo S.A. by EDP Global
Solutions of services in the areas of procurement, economic and financial management, fleet
management, property management and maintenance, insurance, occupational health and safety,
and human resource management and training.

The remuneration accrued by EDP Global Solutions by EDPR Promocgdo e Operacdo S.A. and its
subsidiaries for the services provided in 2024 totalled EUR 2,216,486.20. The initial duration of the
agreement was five (5) years from date of signing on January 1% 2008, and tacitly renewable for
equal periods of one (1) year. Either party may renounce the contract with one (1) year’s notice.

Information technology management services agreement between EDP Renovaveis S.A. and
EDP, S.A.

There exists an IT management services agreement effective since January 1%, 2020, which
supersedes the existing IT management services agreement from that date.

The object of the agreement is to provide to EDPR the information technology services described on
the contract and its attachments by EDP.

The amount incurred for the services provided in 2024 totaled EUR 8,895,803.30.

The initial duration of the agreement is one (1) year from date of signing and it is tacitly renewed for a
new period of one (1) year. Either party may renounce the contract with one (1) month notice.

Consultancy agreement between EDP Renovaveis Brasil S.A., and EDP Energias do Brasil S.A.

The object of the agreement is to provide to EDP Renovdveis Brasil S.A. (hereinafter EDPR Brasil) the
consultancy services described on the contract and its attachments by EDP — Energias do Brasil
S.A. (hereinafter EDP Brasil).

Through this agreement, and upon request by EDPR Brasil, EDP Brasil shall provide consultancy
services in the areas of legal services, internal control systems, financial reporting, taxation,
sustainability, regulation and competition, risk management, human resources, information
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technology, brand and communication, energy planning, accounting and consolidation, corporate
marketing, and organizational development.

The amount incurred by EDP Brasil for the services provided in 2024 totalled BRL 282,029.

The initial duration of the agreement is one (1) year from the date of signing and it is tacitly renewed
for a new period of one (1) year.

General Services Agreement between EDPR Renovaveis S.A. and EDP, S.A. Sucursal en
Espana

On October 1%, 2023, EDPR and EDP, S.A. Sucursal en Espafia signed a General Services
Agreement.

The object of the agreement is the provision by EDPR of preventive and corrective maintenance of
the offices leased by EDP in Edificio Adequa, Avenida de Burgos, 89 (Madrid), as well as the
management of accuses to the facilities, the supply of food and the use of canteen.

The duration of the agreement is unlimited from date of signing.
Sub-lease Agreement between EDPR Renovaveis S.A. and EDP, S.A. Sucursal en Espaia

Since 2023 EDPR Group and EDP, S.A. Sucursal en Espaia entered in a Sub-lease Agreement on
the offices leased by EDP in Edificio Adequa, Avenida de Burgos, 89 (Madrid).

The remuneration accrued by EDPR by EDP Sucursal for the sub-lease provided in 2024 under this
agreement totalled EUR 1,910,884.04. The duration of the ends on December 31%, 2028.

Additional Transactions analysed in 2024

Likewise, in the development of the delegation made by the Board of Directors to the Audit, Control
and Related Party Transactions Committee regarding the supervision of Related Party Transactions,
during 2024, the following were analysed and approved by this body, and further reported to the
Board of Directors:

New Long-Term (LT) Shareholder Loan (SHL) of EUR 750M
Partial or full prepayment of a USD 500M Long-Term (LT) Shareholder Loans (SHL).

PPAs adjustment to backwardation
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New Long-Term (LT) Shareholder Loan (SHL) of EUR 750M

Brazil: Contract with EDP Trading for the purchase of energy for Cantanduba wind cluster in Feb
‘24 and Mar'24.

Update of EDPR Group EUR and USD Current Account remuneration
Update of EDPR Group spreads to new long-term intercompany loans

Pre-hedge of interest rate risk of up to EUR 750 million, for a potential EUR LT Loan to be issue on
the 2H 2024.

Review of the billing model from EDPR to EDP Inovagao, S.A.

Early Repayment of a Shareholder Loans, with due date of 15" August 2024 to 15" of July 2024,
in a total amount of USD 300M.

New Long-Term (LT) Shareholder Loan (SHL) of EUR 150M

Calendar proposal for transferring EDPR Merchant Exposure to GEM in Iberia, Poland & Italy in
2025 and 2026

Brazil: Reinstate of the PPA with EDP Trading with Monte Verde solar cluster.
Short term hedge in Brazil for new merchant assets under construction
Updated list of related party transactions in 2023 YTD between EDPR and GEM.

New Intercompany Loans from EDP Energias do Brasil (EDP BR) to EDP Renovdveis Brasil (EDPR
BR)

New Long-Term (LT) Shareholder Loans (SHL) of EUR 100M.

New Long-Term (LT) Shareholder Loans (SHL) of 1.000M.
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Reallocation of PPA volumes closed for Tudela | and Tudela Il to Charneca Das Lebres and
Pracana Projects, located in Portugal.

Ratification of new Long-Term (LT) Shareholder Loans (SHL) of EUR 500M.
New Long-Term (LT) Shareholder Loans USD 778 and early repayment of existing LT SHL in USD.
One year market representation contract with EDP Espaiia for the Spanish portfolio.

Amendment to the MoU between EDPR, EDP and the generation business units for hydrogen
projects in thermal generation transition sites.

New Long-Term (LT) Shareholder Loans (SHL) of EUR 200M.

Implementation of Pracana Partnership under MoU between EDPP, EDPES, GEA and EDPR for
Hybridization and Conversion Projects

91. A description of the procedures and criteria applicable to the supervisory body when same
provides preliminary assessment of the business deals to be carried out between the company
and the holders of qualifying holdings or entity relationships with the former

Non applicable.

ll. Data on business deals

92. Details of the place where the financial statements including information on business
dealings with related parties are available, in accordance with IAS 24, or alternatively a copy
of said data.

The information on business dealings with related parties is available on Note 39 of the Financial
Statements.
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PART Il — Corporate Governance Assessment

1. Details of the Corporate Governance code implemented

EDP Renovdveis, S.A. is a listed company whose securities are admitted to trading on the NYSE
Euronext Lisbon stock market.

Following the entry into force of the Protocol between the CMVM and the Portuguese Institute for
Corporate Governance (Instituto Portugués de Corporate Governance - IPCG), on October 13"
201/, the Corporate Governance Code issued by CMVM was revoked, and changes were made to
the Corporate Governance Code issued by the IPCG, available at www.cgov.pt.

The choice of EDPR to adopt the Corporate Governance Code issued by the IPCG, from the moment
it entered into force, and under the current version, reflects the concern of always ensuring the
implementation of best corporate governance practices.
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According to the CMVM Circular, dated January 1™, 2019, this Report is structured in accordance
with Article 1(4) of CMVM Regulation 4/2013, and therefore abides by the model in its Annex |, not
including the sections not applicable to EDPR’s governance model.

2. Analysis of Compliance with the Corporate Governance code implemented

The following table sets out IPCG’s corporate governance recommendations as included in the
Corporate Governance Code 2018, according with the 2023 revision, along with the identification,
for each case, of EDP’s compliance or non-compliance, as the case may be, that the provisions to
not apply to the Company.

In this context, EDPR states that it has adopted the Corporate Governance recommendations on the governance of listed companies provided in the Corporate Governance Code of the IPCG, with the exceptions

indicated in the following table.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RECOMMENDATIONS - STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

CHAPTER |- COMPANY’S RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS, INTERESTED PARTIES AND THE COMMUNITY AT LARGE

1.1

The company specifies in what terms its strategy seeks to ensure the fulfiiment of
its long-term objectives [I.1. (1)] and what are the main contributions resulting Adopted
herefrom for the community at large [1.1. (2)]

1.2.

The company identifies the main policies and measures adopted with regard to

the fulfilment of its environmental [1.2. (1)] and social objectives [1.2. (2)]. Adopted

CHAPTER |- COMPOSITION AND FUNCTIONING OF THE CORPORATE BODIES

II.1. Information
11.1.1.

Chapter 2.3. of the Management Report

Section B- I, c) Topic 29
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The company establishes mechanisms to adequately and rigorously ensure the
timely circulation or disclosure of the information required to its bodies, the
company secretary, shareholders, investors, financial analysts, other
stakeholders and the market at large.

II.2. Diversity in the Composition and Functioning of the Corporate Bodies

11.2.1.

Companies establish, previously and abstractly, criteria and requirements
regarding the profile of the members of the corporate bodies that are adequate to
the function to be performed, considering, notably, individual attributes (such as
competence, independence, integrity, availability and experience), and diversity
requirements (with particular attention to equality between men and women),
that may contribute to the improvement of the performance of the body and of
the balance in its composition.

11.2.2.

The management [11.2.2. (1)] and supervisory bodies [11.2.2. (2)] and their internall
committees [11.2.2. (3)] are governed by regulations — notably regarding the
exercise of their powers, chairmanship, the frequency of meetings, operation, and
the duties framework of their members — fully disclosed on the website of the
company, whereby minutes [11.2.2.(4)]/[11.2.2.(5)]/[II.2.2.(6)] of the respective
meetings shall be drawn up.

11.2.3.

The composition [I1.2.3.(1)] and number of meetings for each year[11.2.3.(2)] of
the management and supervisory bodies and of their internal committees are
disclosed on the website of the company.

11.2.4.

The companies adopt a whistle-blowing policy that specifies the mainrules and
procedures to be followed for each communication[l1.2.4.(1)] and an internal
reporting channel that also includes access for non-employees, as set forth in the
applicable law [11.2.4.(2)].

11.2.5.

The companies have specialised committees for matters of corporate
governance [I1.2.5.(1)], remuneration [I1.2.5.(2)], appointments of members of the
corporate bodies [11.2.5.(3)] and performance assessment [11.2.5.(4)], separately
or cumulatively. If the Remuneration Committee provided for in Article 399 of the
Portuguese Commercial Companies Code has been set up, the present
Recommendation can be complied with by assigning to said committee, if not
prohibited by law, powers in the above matters.

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Index
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Section C-1V, Topic 56
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II.3. Relations between Corporate Bodies
11.3.1.

The Articles of Association or equivalent means adopted by the company set out
the mechanisms to ensure that, within the limits of the applicable laws, the
members of the management and supervisory bodies have permanent access to
all necessary information to assess the performance, situation and development
prospects of the company, including, specifically, the minutes of the meetings,
the documentation supporting the decisions taken, the convening notices and
the archive of the meetings of the executive management body, without
prejudice to access to any other documents or persons who may be requested to
provide clarification.

11.3.2.

Each body and committee of the company ensures, in a timely and adequate
manner, the interorganic flow of information required for the exercise of the legal
and statutory powers of each of the other bodies and committees.

Il.4 Conflicts of Interest

.4.1.

By internal regulation or an equivalent hereof, the members of the management
and supervisory bodies and of the internal committees shall be obliged to inform
the respective body or committee whenever there are any facts that may
constitute or give rise to a conflict between their interests and the interest of the
company.

11.4.2.

The company adopts procedures to ensure that the conflicted member does not
interfere in the decision-making process, without prejudice to the duty to provide
information and clarification requested by the body, committee or respective
members.

II.5. Transactions with Related Parties

1.5.1.

The management body discloses, in the corporate governance report or by other
publicly available means, the internal procedure for verification of transactions
withrelated parties.

CHAPTERII1-SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETING

ln.1.

l1l.1. The company does not set an excessively large number of shares to be
entitled to one vote [lIl.1. (1)] and informs in the corporate governance report of its
choice whenever each share does not carry one vote [lll.1. (2)].

l.2.

The company that has issued special plural voting rights shares identifies, in its
corporate governance report, the matters that, pursuant to the company’s
Articles of Association, are excluded from the scope of plural voting.

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

I111. (1) Adopted/ lIl.1. (2) Not applicable

Not applicable
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l.3.

The company does not adopt mechanisms that hinder the passing of resolutions
by its shareholders, specifically fixing a quorum for resolutions greater than that
foreseen by law.

l.4.

The company implements adequate means for shareholders to participate in the
general meeting without being present in person, in proportion to its size.

ll.5.

The company also implements adequate means for the exercise of voting rights
without being present in person, including by correspondence and electronically.

l1.6.

The Articles of Association of the company that provide for the restriction of the
number of votes that may be held or exercised by one single shareholder, either
individually or jointly with other shareholders, shall also foresee that, at least
every five years, the general meeting shall resolve on the amendment or
maintenance of such statutory provision — without quorum requirements greater
than that provided for by law — and that in said resolution, all votes issued are to
be counted, without applying said restriction.

ln.7.

The company does not adopt any measures that require payments or the
assumption of costs by the company in the event of change of control or change
in the composition of the management body and which are likely to damage the
economic interest in the transfer of shares and the free assessment by
shareholders of the performance of the Directors.

CHAPTER IV - MANAGEMENT

IV.1. Management Body and Executive Directors

IV.1.1.

The management body ensures that the company acts in accordance with its
object and does not delegate powers, notably with regard to: i) definition of the
corporate strategy and main policies of the company [IV.1.1. (1)]; ii) organisation
and coordination of the corporate structure [I\V.1.1. (2)]; iii) matters that shall be
considered strategic due to the amounts, risk and particular characteristics
involved [IV.1.1. (3)].

IV.1.2.

The management body approves, by means of regulations or through an
equivalent mechanism, the performance regime for executive directors
applicable to the exercise of executive functions by them in entities outside the
group.

IV.2. Management Body and Non-Executive Directors

IvV.2.1.

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Not applicable

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted
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Notwithstanding the legal duties of the chairman of the board of directors, if the
latter is not independent, the independent directors — or, if there are not enough
independent directors, the non-executive directors — shall appoint a coordinator
among themselves to, in particular (i) act, whenever necessary, as interlocutor
with the chairman of the board of directors and with the other directors, (ii) ensure
that they have all the conditions and means required to carry out their duties, and
(iii) coordinate their performance assessment by the administration body as
provided for in Recommendation VI.1.1,; alternatively, the company may establish
another equivalent mechanism to ensure such coordination.

IV.2.2.

The number of non-executive members of the management body shall be
adequate to the size of the company and the complexity of the risks inherent to
its activity, but sufficient to ensure the efficient performance of the tasks
entrusted to them, whereby the formulation of this adequacy judgement shall be
included in the corporate governance report.

IV.2.3.

The number of non-executive directors is greater than the number of executive
directors.

IV.2.4.

The number of non-executive directors that meet the independence
requirements is plural and is not less than one third of the total number of non-
executive directors. For the purposes of the present Recommendation, a person
is deemed independent when not associated to any specific interest group in the
company, nor in any circumstances liable to affect his/her impartiality of analysis
or decision, in particular in virtue of:

i. Having carried out, continuously or intermittently, functions in any corporate
body of the company for more than twelve years, with this period being counted
regardless of whether or not it coincides with the end of the mandate.

il. Having been an employee of the company or of a company that is controlled by
or ina group relationship with the company in the last three years.

iil. Having, in the last three years, provided services or established a significant
business relationship with the company or with a company that is controlled by or
in a group relationship with the company, either directly or as a partner, director,
manager or officer of alegal person.

iv. Being the beneficiary of remuneration paid by the company or by a company
that is controlled by or in a group relationship with the company, in addition to
remuneration stemming from the performance of the functions of director.

v. Living in a non-marital partnership or being a spouse, relative or kin in a direct
line and up to and including the 3rd degree, in a collateral line, of directors of the
company, of directors of a legal person owning a qualifying stake in the company
or of natural persons owning, directly or indirectly, a qualifying stake.

vi. Being a holder of a qualifying stake or representative of a shareholder thatis
holder of a qualifying stake.

Not applicable

Adopted

Adopted

Explain
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IV.2.5.

The provisions of paragraph (i) of the previous Recommendation do not prevent
the qualification of a new Director as independent if, between the end of his/her
functions in any corporate body and his/her new appointment, at least three
years have elapsed (cooling-off period).

CHAPTER V - SUPERVISION

V.1.

With due regard for the competences conferred to it by law, the supervisory body
takes cognisance of the strategic guidelines [V.1. (1)] and evaluates and renders
an opinion on the risk policy, prior to its final approval by the administration body
[V.1.(2)].

V.2.

The number of members of the supervisory body [V.2. (1)] and of the financial
matters committee [V.2. (2)] should be adequate in relation to the size of the
company and the complexity of the risks inherent to its activity, but sufficient to
ensure the efficiency of the tasks entrusted to them, and this adequacy
judgement should be included in the corporate governance report.

CHAPTER VI- PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT, REMUNERATION AND APPOINTMENTS

VI1.1. Annual Performance Assessment
VI.1.1.

The management body — or committee with relevant powers, composed of a
majority of non-executive members — evaluates its performance on an annual
basis [VI.1.1. (1)], as well as the performance of the executive committee [VI.1.1.
(2)], of the executive directors and of the company committees [VI.1.1. (3)], taking
into account the compliance with the strategic plan of the company and of the
budget, the risk management, its internal functioning and the contribution of each
member to that end, and the relationship between the bodies and committees of
the company.

V1.2 Remunerations
VI.2.1.

The company constitutes a remuneration committee, whose composition shall
ensure its independence from the board of directors, whereby it may be the
remuneration committee appointed pursuant to Article 399 of the Portuguese
Commercial Companies Code.

VI1.2.2.

The remuneration of the members of the management and supervisory bodies
and of the company committees is established by the remuneration committee or
by the general meeting, upon proposal of such committee.

VI1.2.3.

Not applicable

Adopted

V.2. (1) Adopted/ V.2. (2) Not applicable

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted
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The company discloses in the corporate governance report, or in the
remuneration report, the termination of office of any member of a body or
committee of the company, indicating the amounts of all costs related to the
termination of office borne by the company, for any reason, during the financial
year in question.

VI.2.4.

In order to provide information or clarification to shareholders, the president or
another member of the remuneration committee shall be present at the annual
general meeting and at any other general meeting at which the agenda includes
a matter related to the remuneration of the members of bodies and committees of
the company, or if such presence has been requested by shareholders.

VI.2.5.

Within the budget constraints of the company, the remuneration committee may
freely decide to hire, on behalf of the company, consultancy services that are
necessary or convenient for the performance of its duties.

VI.2.6.

The remuneration committee ensures that such services are provided
independently.

VI.2.7.

The providers of said services are not hired by the company itself or by any
company controlled by or in group relationship with the company, for the
provision of any other services related to the competencies of the remuneration
committee, without the express authorisation of the committee.

VI.2.8.

In view of the alignment of interests between the company and the executive
directors, a part of their remuneration has a variable nature that reflects the
sustained performance of the company and does not encourage excessive risk-
taking.

VI.2.9.

A significant part of the variable component is partially deferred over time, for a
period of no less than three years, and is linked to the confirmation of the
sustainability of performance, in terms defined in the remuneration policy of the
company.

VI.2.10.

When the variable remuneration includes options or other instruments directly or
indirectly subject to share value, the start of the exercise period is deferred for a
period of no less than three years.

VI.2.1.

The remuneration of non-executive directors does not include any component
whose value depends on the performance of the company or of its value.

VI.3. Appointments

VI.3.1.

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Not applicable

Adopted
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The company promotes, in the terms it deems adequate, but in a manner
susceptible of demonstration, that the proposals for the appointment of members
of the corporate bodies are accompanied by grounds regarding the suitability of
each of the candidates for the function to be performed.

VI.3.2.

The committee for the appointment of members of corporate bodies includes a
majority of independent directors.

VI.3.3.

Unless itis not justified by the size of the company, the task of monitoring and
supporting the appointments of senior managers shall be assigned to an
appointment committee.

VI1.3.4.

The committee for the appointment of senior management provides its terms of
reference and promotes, to the extent of its powers, the adoption of transparent
selection processes that include effective mechanisms for identifying potential
candidates, and that for selection those are proposed who present the greatest
merit, are best suited for the requirements of the position and promote, within the
organisation, an adequate diversity including regarding gender equality.

CHAPTER VII-INTERNAL CONTROL

VIiA.

The management body discusses and approves the strategic plan [VII.1. (1)] and
risk policy of the company, which includes setting limits in matters of risk-taking
[VILA. (2)].

VII.2.

The company has a specialised committee, or a committee composed of
specialists in risk matters, which reports regularly to the management body.
VIIL.3.

The supervisory body is organised internally, implementing periodic control
mechanisms and procedures, in order to ensure that the risks effectively incurred
by the company are consistent with the objectives set by the administration
body.

Vii.4.

The internal control system, comprising the risk management, compliance, and
internal audit functions, is structured in terms that are adequate to the size of the
company and the complexity of the risks inherent to its activity, whereby the
supervisory body shall assess it and, within the ambit of its duty to monitor the
effectiveness of this system, propose any adjustments that may be deemed
necessary.

VII.5.

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted
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The company establishes procedures of supervision, periodic assessment and
adjustment of the internal control system, including an annual assessment of the
degree of internal compliance and performance of such system, as well as the
prospects for changing the previously defined risk framework.

VIl.6.

Based onitsrisk policy, the company sets up a risk management function,
identifying (i) the mainrisks to which it is subject in the operation of its business
[VII.6. (1)], (ii) the probability of their occurrence and respective impact [VI.6. (2)],
(iii) the instruments and measures to be adopted in order to mitigate such risks
[VII.6. (3)], and (iv) the monitoring procedures, aimed at following them up [ VII.6.
(4)]-

VIL.7.

The company establishes processes to collect and process datarelated to the
environmental and social sustainability in order to alert the management body to
risks that the company may be incurring and propose strategies for their
mitigation.

VII.8.

The company reports on how climate change is considered within the
organisation and how it takes into account the analysis of climate risk in the
decision-making processes.

VII.9.

The company informs in the corporate governance report on the manner in which
artificial intelligence mechanisms have been used as a decision-making tool by
the corporate bodies.

VII.10.

The supervisory body pronounces on the work plans and resources allocated to
the services of the internal control system, including the risk management,
compliance, and internal audit functions, and may propose adjustments as
deemed necessary.

VIL1.

The supervisory body is the addressee of reports made by the internal control
services, including the risk management, compliance, and internal audit
functions, at least when matters related to accountability, identification or
resolution of conflicts of interest and detection of potential irregularities are
concerned.

CHAPTER VIII- INFORMATION AND STATUTORY AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS

V1. Information
VI,

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted
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The regulations of the supervisory body requires that the supervisory body
monitors the suitability of the process of preparation and disclosure of
information by the management body, including the appropriateness of
accounting policies, estimates, judgements, relevant disclosures and their
consistent application from financial year to financial year, in a duly documented
and reported manner.

VIII.2. Statutory Audit and Supervision

VIIl.2.1.

By means of regulation, the supervisory body defines, in accordance with the
applicable legal regime, the supervisory procedures to ensure the independence
of the statutory auditor.

VIIL.2.2.

The supervisory body is the main interlocutor of the statutory auditor within the
company and the first addressee of the respective reports [VIIl.2.2. (1)], and is
competent, namely, for proposing the respective remuneration and ensuring that
adequate conditions for the provision of the services are in place within the
company [VIII.2.2.(2)].

VIil.2.3.

The supervisory body annually evaluates the work carried out by the statutory
auditor, its independence and suitability for the exercise of its functions and shall
propose to the competent body its dismissal or termination of the contract for the
provision of its services whenever there is just cause to do so.

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted
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Annex |

FullName

Position

Academic Qualifications

Skills and Experience

Current External Appointments

Index

ANTONIO GOMES MOTA

Chair of the Board of Directors - EDP Renovdveis, S.A. (since 2021)

Chair of the Appointments, Remunerations and Corporate Governance Committee - EDP Renovdveis, S.A.
Chair of the Ethics Committee — EDP Renovdveis, S.A.

Member of the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee - EDP Renovdveis, S.A.

« PhD inmanagement — ISCTE, University Institute of Lisbon
+ MBA - Nova School of Business and Economics
- Bachelor’s degree in management — ISCTE, University Institute of Lisbon

+ Non-executive director and Chair of Nominations and Remuneration Committee - CIMPOR

+ Non-executive director as member of the Supervisory Board and Chair of the Audit Committee - EDP
« Non-executive director as Chair of the Audit Committee and then as Chairman of the Board — CTT
«Dean - ISCTE Business School

- He has been a consultant for large corporations in the areas of corporate restructuring and valuation, regulation, corporate

governance and remuneration policies
« President — Portuguese Institute of Corporate Governance

Part |

+ He is the author of several books in the areas of corporate finance, investments and risk management and a regular invited speaker

at professional and industry conferences

« Full Professor of finance - ISCTE Business School
« Chair of the Audit Committee - MYSTICINVEST HOLDING
« Chair of the Remuneration Committee - PHAROL, SGPS
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FullName MIGUEL STILWELL DE ANDRADE

CEO — EDP, S.A. (since 2021)
CEO — EDP Renovdveis S.A. (since 2021)

- MBA — MIT Sloan (2003)
- MEng with Distinction — University of Strathclyde (1998)

Position

Academic Qualifications

- President of Board of Directors — EDP — Energias do Brasil, S.A (since 2023)
- Member of Executive Board of Directors — EDP, S.A. (since 2012)

- Vice-Chair of Board of Directors — EDP Renovdveis S.A. (since 2021)

- CFO — EDP — Energias de Portugal S.A. (2018-2021)

- Member of Board of Directors — EDP — Energias do Brasil, S.A. (2018-2020)
- CEO — EDP Comercial and EDP Solugdes Comerciais S.A. (2012-2018)

- CEO — Hidroeléctrica del Cantdbrico (Spain) (2012-2018)

- CEO — Naturgds Energia Grupo (2012-2015)

- Member of Board of Directors — EDP Distribuicdio (2009-2012)

- Member of Board of Directors — EDP Inovagdo, EDP Ventures (2007-2012)

- Strategy, M&A and Corporate Development — EDP — Energias de Portugal S.A. (2000-2001and 2003-2009)
« UBS Investment Bank (1998-2000)

Skills and Experience

- Member of the Executive Committee and Vice-Chair — WBCSD

- Member — Alliance of CEO Climate Leaders — World Economic Forum

« Co-Chair — Hydrogen Producers Roundtable — European Clean Hydrogen Alliance (ECH2A)
+ Member — Business Roundtable Portugal

« Member of the General Council —FAE — Forum de Administradores e Gestores de Empresas
+ Member of the Board of Governors — St. Julian’s School

Current External Appointments
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FullName RUIMANUEL RODRIGUES LOPES TEIXEIRA

Position CFO — EDP, S.A. (since 2021)
CFO — EDP Renovdveis, S.A. (since 2021)

- Advanced Management Programme — Harvard Business School (2013)

Academic Qualifications « MBA — Nova University, Lisbon (2001)

- Naval Architecture and Marine Engineering Graduate — Instituto Superior Técnico, Lisbon (1995)

- President of the Board of Directors — EDP Global Solutions - Gestdo Integrada de Servigos, S.A. (since 2023)
- Vice-President of the Board of Directors — EDP — Energias do Brasil, S.A (since 2024)
- Member of the Board of Directors — EDP Renovdveis, S.A. (2008-2015 and since 2019)
- Chair of the Board of Directors — OW Offshore S.L.U. (since 2024)
- Member of the Board of Directors — EDP - Energias do Brasil, S.A (2021-2024)
- Member of the Board of Directors — EDP Esparia, S.A.U. (since 2018)
- Member of the Executive Board of Directors — EDP, S.A. (since 2015)
Skills and Experience - Vice-President of the Board of Directors — OW Offshore S.L.U. (2022-2024)
- CEO — EDP Espaiia S.A.U. (2018-2021)
- CEO — EDP - Gestdo da Produgdo de Energia, S.A. (2015-2020)
- CFO — EDP Renovdveis, S.A. (2008-2015)
- Head of Corporate Planning and Control — EDP (2004-2007)
- Consultant — McKinsey & Company (2001-2004)
- Ship Surveyor — Det Norske Veritas (1997-2001)
- Sales — Gellweiler — Sociedade de Equipamentos Maritimos e Industriais, Lda. (1996-1997)

* Member of the Strategic Council — ISEG MBA

Current External Appointments « Vice-Chair of the Board — BCSD Portugal
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FullName

Position

Academic Qualifications

Skills and Experience

Current External Appointments

Index

MANUEL MENENDEZ
Member of the Board of Directors — EDP Renovdveis, S.A. (since 2008)

- Executive Certification: Certificate for International Directors Programme — INSEAD, 2024

- Executive Certification: Certificate in Corporate Governance — INSEAD, 2024

« Professor of Financial Economics and Accounting — University of Oviedo, 1991

« PhD in Economics- University of Oviedo, 1985 (Cum Laude, Extraordinary Doctorate Award)

« Chairman — EDP Spain (May 2002 - Present)

« Chairman — EDP Spain Foundation (December 2002 — Present)

- Chief Executive Officer — Unicaja Banco, S.A. (August 2021 — September 2023)

- Chairman — Caja de Ahorros de Asturias Bank Foundation (August 2014 - June 2016)
- Chair and Chief Executive Officer — Liberbank, S.A. (May 2011 - August 2021)

- Chairman and Chief Executive Officer — Bank of Castilla La Mancha (May 2011 - February 2013)
- Chair and Chief Executive Officer — Asturias Savings Bank (May 1995 - April 2009)

- Member of the Board of Trustees — FUNCAS (2013-2021)

- Member of the Board of Directors — ENAGAS (2004-2012)

- Member of the Board of Directors — CECABANK (2004-2012)

« Chairman of the Board of Directors — NATURGAS (2003-2016)

- Member of the Board of Directors — AELEC (2001-2022)

- Member of the Board of Directors — CECA (2000-2021)

« Chairman of the Board of Directors — ASTURGAR (1986-1995)

« Member of the Executive Committee and Board of Directors — CEOE (2024 -present)
« Member of the Board of Trustees — FUNSEAM (2024 -present)
« Member of the Board of Trustees — the Donostia International Physics Center (2012-present)

Part |
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FullName

Position

Academic Qualifications

Skills and Experience

Current External Appointments

Index Part |

ROSA MARIA GARCIA

Independent Member of the Board of Directors - EDP Renovdveis, S.A. (since 2021)

Member of the Audit, Control, and Related Party Transactions Committee - EDP Renovaveis, S.A.
Member of the Appointments, Remunerations Committee - EDP Renovaveis, S.A.

Chair of the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee - EDP Renovaveis, S.A.

- Bachelor’s degree in Mathematics - Universidad Autbnoma de Madrid

+ She has more than thirty years of international experience in the fields of Information Technology, Energy, Infrastructure, and
Manufacturing. The majority of her career was spent at Microsoft and at Siemens

- Director of Corporate Strategy - Microsoft working at the company's headquarters in Redmond United States (1996-1999)

+ General Manager - Microsoft Worldwide Partner Group. She directed Microsoft's worldwide strategy for more than 640,000
independently owned-and-operated partner companies (1999-2002)

« Executive Chair - Microsoft in Spain (2002-2008)

- Consumer & Online Vice-President - Microsoft Western Europe (2008- 201M)

« Executive Chair - Siemens in Spain (2011-2018)

- Non-Executive Chair - Siemens Gamesa immediately after the merger of Siemens Wind Power and Gamesa (2017-2018)

- She has more than fifteen years of experience as a Non-Executive Director of the Board for several IBEX companies including
Banesto, Bolsas y Mercados Espaifoles, Acerinox and Bankinter. In every company, she has been either a member of the audit and
control committee or of the nominations and remuneration committee

- Non-Profit work: Member of the Board at the Asociacion para el Progreso de la Direccion (2002-2019). President of the German
Chamber of Commerce in Spain (2016-2018). Member of the Advisory Board for the Universidad Europea de Madrid and Vice-
president of Consejo Social de la Universidad Carlos lll de Madrid (2008-2018)

- Awarded by AED (the most prestigious Spanish CEO association) as “Spanish CEO of the Year”

+ Awarded by the President of Germany the Cross of Merit, one of the highest civilian honor that can be granted in the country

+ Member of the Board - Mapfre and Sener
+ Non-Executive Chair - Exolum
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Full Name JOSE MANUEL FELIX MORGADO

Independent Member of the Board of Directors - EDP Renovdveis S.A. (since 2021)

Chair of the Audit, Control, and Related Party Transactions Committee - EDP Renovdaveis S.A.
Member of the Appointments and Remunerations Committee - EDP Renovdveis, S.A.
Member of the Ethics Committee - EDP Renovdveis, S.A.

Position

+ IMD’s Driving Sustainability from the Board Certificate
- Certification Corporate Governance at INSEAD in Fontainebleau
Academic Qualifications - Postgraduate degree in Corporate Governance - Universidade de Lisboa — Law Department and the International Directors
Programme — IDP
- Degree in Business and Management - Universidade Catdlica

- Employed in the investment banking arm of Midland Bank and HSBC (1984)
- Joined BCP Investimento in Lisbon as an investment banker and within Banco Comercial Portugués (1997-1999)
- Member of the Board and Chief Financial Officer - Seguros e Pensdes SGPS, and member of the board of the insurance companies
of the group in Portugal and Mozambique as well as Chairman of the Board of Império Vida y Diversos, SA (2000-2005)
- Vice President and Chief Financial Officer - ONI SGPS (2005-2007)
Skills and Experience - CEO - INAPA IPG SGPS (2007-2015)
- Chairman - EUGROPA, European Paper Merchant Association in Brussels (2012-2015)
- Board Member — REN - Redes Energéticas Nacionais SGPS (201 — 2012)
- Chairman of the Board - OZ Energia SA (2011-2015)
- CEO - Banco Montepio (2015 — 2018)
- Member of the Board - Associagdio Portuguesa de Bancos (2015 — 2018)

» Chairman of the Board — VERLINGUE - Corretores de Seguros, S.A.
Current External Appointments + Member of the Board - NORFIN — SGOIC
- Corporate Governance adviser of family-owned groups
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FullName

Position

Academic Qualifications

Skills and Experience

Current External Appointments

Index

LAURIEFITCH

Independent Member of the Board of Directors - EDP Renovdveis S.A. (since 2024)
Member of the Ethics Committee - EDP Renovaveis, S.A.
Member of the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee - EDP Renovaveis, S.A.

- Georgetown University, School of Foreign Service M.A. (with honors) (1992-1994)
- American University, B.A., Arabic and Middle East Studies (1988-1992)

- Member of USA Business and Corporate Gov and Sustainability Committees — EDP, S.A. (2021-2024)
- Partner - Strategic Advisory — PJT Partners (2016-2023)

- Member of Strategy and Performance Committee - EDP, S.A. (2018-2021)

- Member of Remuneration (Chair) and Risk Committees - Enquest PLC (2018-2021)

- Managing Director, Co-Head Global Industrials Group - Morgan Stanley & Co (2012-2016)

- Senior Analyst and Partner, International Growth - Artisan Partners LP (2006-201M)

- Managing Director and Director of European Research - TIAA-CREF (2002-2006)

- Associate Analyst- Equity Research - Schroder & Co./UBS (1999-2002)

- VP, Middle East and Africa Division - The Bank of New York (1994-1999)

Part |

- Trustee, Member of the Executive, Audit,and Finance Committees and Chair of Trusteeship Committee - The American University

in Cairo (2019-prersent)
- Co-opted Member - Tate Board of Trustees Finance & Operations and Audit committees (UK) (2015-present)

- Chair, Board of Advisors - Center for Contemporary Arab Studies, Georgetown University (Washington, DC) (2015-present)

- Member of the Aurora Energy Research Advisory Board (2018-present)

- Chair, Remuneration Committee and member of Nominations and Audit and Risk Committees - Man Group plc (2023-present)

- Senior Advisor — PJT Partners (2024 -present)
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FullName

Position

Academic Qualifications

Skills and Experience

Current External Appointments

Index

ANA PAULA DE SOUSA FREITAS MADUREIRA SERRA

Independent Member of the Board of Directors - EDP Renovdveis S.A. (since 2024)
Member of the Audit, Control, and Related Party Transactions Committee - EDP Renovdveis S.A.
Member of the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee - EDP Renovaveis, S.A.

« PhD in Financial Economics — London Business School, UK (1999)
- MBA — Porto Business School, Portugal (1990)
- Degree in Economics — Faculty of Economics — Porto University, Portugal (1988)

- Professor of Corporate Finance and Financial Institutions — University of Porto, School of Economics and Management (1987-
current)

- Finance Professor and Program Director — Porto Business School (2005-current)

- Researcher at the Economics and Finance Research Centre, CEF.UP — University of Porto (1999 - current)

- Member non-Executive of the Supervisory Board — European Central Bank, Frankfurt (2019-2022)

- Member non-Executive of the Board of Supervisors — European Banking Authority, Paris (2019-2022)

- Member of the Board of Directors — Banco de Portugal (2017-2022)

- Member of the Advisory Board — Agéncia de Gestdo da Tesouraria e da Divida Pablica — IGCP, Portugal (2015-2017)
- Vice-Dean — University of Porto, School of Economics and Management (2015-2017)

- Member of the Audit Board — Banco de Portugal (2014-2017)

- Member of the Audit Board — BPI Banco Portugués de Investimento (2012-2014)

- Vice-Dean and Head of Executive Education and Post-Graduate Programs - Porto Business School (2009-2015)

- Prime Representative at UNICON — The International Consortium for Executive Education - Porto Business School (2009-2015)

- Director of the MSc in Finance — University of Porto, School of Economics and Management (2005-2007)
- Director of the MSc in Management Sciences — University of Porto, School of Economics and Management (2004-2010)
- Financial Analyst & Asset Manager — BPI Banco Portugués de Investimento (1988-1993)

- Chair of the Board of Directors of Sociedade Gestora dos Fundos de PensGes do Banco de Portugal (2024 -current)
- Member of the Audit Board of INESCTEC (2024 -current)
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FullName

Position

Academic Qualifications

Skills and Experience

Current External Appointments

Index

GIOIA GHEZZI

Independent Member of the Board of Directors - EDP Renovdveis S.A. (since 2024)

Member of the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee - EDP Renovaveis, S.A.
- Executive Master of Business Administration, Finance, London Business School, UK (1999-2000)

- Degree in Theoretical Physics, University of Milan, Italy (1981-1989)

+ Non-Executive Director and Finance and Risk Committee Member — SWISS RE - SWISS RE INTERNATIONAL, Luxemburg
(2021-2023)

- Non-Executive Director and Chair of Nominations Committee — ATLANTIA, ltay (2019-2022)

- Non-Executive Director — CREDITO FONDIARIO, Italy (2018-2021)

- Non-Executive Director — ASSONIME, Italy (2017-2021)

+ Non-Executive Director — GRUPPO INVESTIMENTI PORTUALL, Italy (2017-2020)

- Non-Executive Director — THE TRILATERAL COMMISSION. Italy (2017-2019)

- Chair — EIT - EUROPEAN INSTITUTE OF INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY, Hungary (2018-2022)
- Chair — RGI GROUP, ltaly (2018-2022)

- Non-Executive Director — HUMANITAS, Italy (2017-2022)

« Member, General Council — CONFINDUSTRIA, Italy (2016-2021)

- Non-Executive Director — UNINDUSTRIA, Italy (2016-2017)

« Chair — FERROVIE DELLO STATO ITALIANE, Italy (2015-2018)

- Chair — ZURICH EUROLIFE (ZURICH GR.), Switzerland (2014-2016)

- Non-Executive Director — FERROVIE DELLO STATO ITALIANE, ltaly (2014-2015)

« CEO, International Group Risk Solutions — ZURICH INSURANCE GROUP, Switzerland (2013-2016)
- Group Chief Operating Officer — WILLIS GROUP, UK (2013-2013)

« Partner, European Insurance & Healthcare Practices — MCKINSEY & COMPANY, UK (2007-2012)
- Group Strategy Director — AVIVA, UK (2007-2007)

- Associate Partner — MCKINSEY & COMPANY, UK (2004-2006)

- Engagement Manager — MCKINSEY & COMPANY, UK (2000-2004)

- Executive Editor, Head, International "Hard" Sciences — ACADEMIC PRESS, UK (1995-2000)

- Systems Engineer, IBM Research Centre — IBM, Italy (1989-1995)

- Non-Executive Director — TERNIUM (TECHINT GR) (2020-present)

+ Chair — AZIENDA TRASPORTIMILANESI (ATM) (2020-present)

- Non-Executive Director and Member of the Strategic Committee — SIRTI (2020-present)
- Non-Executive Director — RAINBOW MAGICLAND (2018-present)

- Non-Executive Director — GARDANT, Italy (2021- December 2024)

Part |

133



EDPR Integrated Annual Report 2024

Index Part| 134
Corporate Governance | Corporate Governance Assessment de a 3

Full Name MARIA GONZALEZ

Company Secretary of the Board of Directors - EDP Renovdveis, S.A.

Position Head of Legal - EDP Renovdveis, S.A.

- Bachelor of Laws (LL.B.) and Bachelor Degree in Economics - Universidad Pontificia de Comillas (ICADE)
Academic Qualifications - Executive Program - |E Business School
* International Directors Program - INSEAD

- Between 1997 and 2000 she worked as Corporate Lawyer at the Madrid office of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey LLP (American
law firm)
- Between 2000 and 2008 she worked as Senior Lawyer at Duro Felguera, S.A. (Spanish EPC contractor, listed at the Spanish
Stock Exchange) being responsible for its international legal area

Skills and Experience - Joined EDPR in 2008 and has since then worked at the General Secretary areaq, serving from 2019 as Vice-Secretary of the
Board of Directors and Board Committees
- Member and/or Secretary of several Boards of Directors of EDPR’s subsidiaries
- Executive Director - EDPR Legal Department, in charge of the Legal Business Development area which manages Procurement,
Finance and Energy Management legal activities of EDPR in all its geographies

Current External Appointments -
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5.1. Remuneration Report

In compliance with both the Portuguese Securities Code, and the Spanish Companies Act, EDP
Renovdveis S.A. ("EDPR" or "Company") issues this Remuneration Report with the aim to provide a
comprehensive view of the remuneration received by the members of its governing bodies, including
all benefits, regardless of their form, attributed or due during the 2024 financial year.

The update of the 2023-2025 Remuneration Policy of EDPR was approved by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting held on 4 April 2024, following the proposal presented by its Appointments
and Remunerations Committee to its Board of Directors.

EDPR is a Spanish Company listed in a regulated stock exchange in Portugal. The corporate
organization of EDPR is subject to its personal law and to the extent possible, to the
recommendations contained in the Corporate Governance Code of the Instituto Portugués de
Corporate Governance (“IPCG”). As such, the Company intends to comply with both legal systems
but always taking into account that its personal law is the Spanish one, and that in case of
discrepancy, the aim is to adopt the law that entails more protectionism for its shareholders.

The Remuneration Policy in force during 2024 (duly approved by its General Shareholders’ Meeting)
complies comply with Article 26 — C of the Securities Code (as amended by Law No. 99 A/2021 of
31% December), with article 529 novodecies of the Spanish Companies Act, with the IPCG Corporate
Governance Code adopted by EDPR and with the international good practices, being aligned and
consistent with the remuneration policy and remuneration practices applied to all employees of the
Group.

Total remuneration, and the remuneration model in general, should be competitive, aligned with the
practices of the international electricity sector and the renewables market, facilitating the attraction
and retention of talent, and the commitment to the challenges and ambitions of the company.

The definition of the proposal of the Remuneration Policy for the members of the Board of Directors
of EDPR is incumbent on the Appointments and Remunerations Committee, delegated body of the
Board of Directors, that in order to avoid any conflict of interest, is entirely composed by non-
executive and independent members.
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This Committee proposes to the Board of Directors the determination of the remuneration of the
Executive Directors; the Remuneration Policy, the evaluation and compliance of the KPI's (Key
Performance Indicators); the annual and multi annual variable remuneration, and also proposes the
remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors and members of the Board Committees.

As such, this Committee prepares a proposal that defines the remuneration to be attributed to
Directors, with the purpose that it reflects the performance of each of them, establishing for the
Executive Directors a variable component which is consistent with the maximization of the
Company's long term performance (variable annual and multi-annual remuneration for a three-year
period), for the achievement of the most challenging objectives of the business plan, thereby
guaranteeing the alignment of the performance of the governing bodies with the interests of the
shareholders.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the approval of the above-mentioned proposals except to
the extent it concerns the Remuneration Policy which is approved by the General Shareholders’
Meeting as an independent item of the agenda.

As a Company integrated in a multinational business group, EDPR aims to maintain a solid culture
that ensures the management, monitoring, control and supervision of the risks that the Group, its
shareholders, employees, customers and, in general, all its stakeholders face, including those arising
from the remuneration systems it adopts. EDPR adopts the transversal remuneration practices
applied in EDP group, consistent and based on common principles that comply with the regulations
applicable in the jurisdictions where it operates.

As such, the remuneration systems applied, including those applicable to the Executive Directors,
are defined to promote a culture of merit and high performance that ensures that people and teams
are recognized, encouraged and awarded on the basis of responsibility, availability, loyalty and
competence placed at Group’s service, ensuring actions aligned with the long-term interests of
shareholders and promoting sustainable initiatives.

The proposal for remuneration policy of the Executive Directors also aimed at simplifying, and
provide transparency and clarity, favouring a complete understanding of the framework of principles
and rules that constitute it, and which will be applied and evaluated by the Appointments and
Remunerations Committee.
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The definition of the Remuneration Policy of EDPR is submitted for approval by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting, on a proposal from the Board of Directors, based on the proposal presented
by the Appointments and Remunerations Committee.

Likewise, and in line with EDP Group corporate governance practices, EDPR has signed a
Management Services Agreement with EDP under which the Company bears the cost for such
services to two executive members of the Board of Directors to the extent their services are devoted
to EDPR; and the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee (entirely composed by
non-executive and independent members) reviews and monitors the proposed changes to this
agreement.

The definition and possible proposals for revision of the Remuneration Policy by the Appointments
and Remunerations Committee are based on the articulation of EDPR long-term objectives,
measured according to its strategic plan at all times, in the conclusions of comparative remuneration
studies with national listed companies and with foreign sectoral peers and on an articulation of
principles with the remuneration plan of other employees of the Group.

The Appointments and Remunerations Committee may hire the external consultants and support
necessary for the performance of comparative remuneration studies within the framework of
directors' remuneration policies, assessing their conditions of independence for the provision of the
services that may be requested.

Upon the proposal of the Appointments and Remunerations Committee, the Board of Directors may
decide that the executive directors receive directly from EDPR the entirety or part of the
remuneration that is currently being paid to EDP as a management fee, with the corresponding
reduction, in such cases, of the corresponding amount, and without this implying, in any case, a
modification of the amounts provided for in the Remuneration Policy for such executive functions.

Pursuant to Article 26 of the Company’s Articles of Association the Directors shall be entitled to a
remuneration which consists of a fixed amount to be determined annually by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting for the whole Board of Directors. This provision also establishes the
possibility of the Directors of receiving attendance fees or being remunerated with Company shares,
share options, or other securities granting the right to obtain shares or by means of share-indexed
remuneration systems. In any case, the system chosen must be approved by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting and comply with current legal provisions.
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The remuneration policy applicable for 2024 defines a structure with a fixed remuneration for all
members of the Board of Directors, and for the Executive Directors also defines a variable
remuneration, with an annual component, and a multi-annual component.

The Non-Executive Directors only receive a fixed remuneration, which is calculated on the basis of
their work exclusively as Directors or, if such is the case, considering their membership/
chairmanship of the Appointments and Remunerations Committee, the Audit, Control and Related
Party Transactions Committee and the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance
Committee. Except in the case of the Chair of the Board of Directors, the directors that are also
members/chair of the Delegated Committees receive for these functions a complement to their fixed
remuneration as members of the Board

As already indicated, EDPR has signed a Management Services Agreement with EDP, under which
the Company bears the cost for such services to executive directors of the members of the Board of
Directors to the extent their services are devoted to EDPR. In 2024 these Directors were Miguel
Stilwell de Andrade and Rui Teixeira (Executive Directors).

Under the terms of the Remuneration Polity in force, the maximum annual amount for fix and variable
remuneration for the Board of Directors has been set in EUR 3,500,000.

Remuneration of EDPR Directors for their functions as Members of the Board

This section includes the information regarding the remuneration received by EDPR Board members
in 2024 for their functions at the Board of Directors.

Fixed component — base remuneration
Conditions

The fixed remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors is aligned with the base salary
strategy practiced by a number of companies comparable to EDPR, the national market and the
international electricity sector; in terms of size, market capitalization, risk profile, relevance and
geographical implementation, while also considering, at all times, the complexity of the functions
performed, the remuneration conditions of its employees and the non-increase of the average
market pay gap between workers and administrators.

The amounts corresponding to the fixed annual component are shown below:
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FIXED ANNUAL COMPONENT — GROSS VALUES FIXED COMPONENT - GROSS VALUES
Management Fee paid by EDPR to DIRECTORS REMUNERATION FEESXAG%';'ES?SEEEFS,’F;Y;CRE%
Position Remuneration EDP under Management Services
Agreement EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Chair of the Board € 265,000 - Miguel Stilwell de Andrade - 550,000€
. . . Rui Teixeira - 360,000€
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) - € 550,000
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) - € 360,000 o
Anténio Gomes Mota 256,250€ =
Non-Executive Independent or
External Directors P €75,000 B Vera Pinto Pereira - 16,250€
Ana Paula Marques - 16,250€
The Non-Executive Directors only receive a fixed remuneration, which is calculated on the basis of ) )
Manuel Menéndez Menéndez 72,500€ -

their work as Directors and if such is the case, a complement as Member or Chair of the
Appointments and Remunerations Committee, the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Acdcio Piloto (%) 30,000€ -
Committee and/or the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee, as set below:

Allan J. Katz (%) 50,417€ -
Rosa Maria Garcia Gareia (%) 140,000€ -
ANNUAL SUPPLEMENT FOR COMMITTEES — GROSS VALUES )
José Manuel Félix Morgado (°) 147,500€ -
Audit, Control and A int t d Envi tal. Social and
Related Party ppointmen .S an nvironmentai, social an Cynthio Koy Mc Call (2) 34.583€ _
T ti Remunerations Corporate Governance
ransdctions Committee Committee Ana Paula Serra 93,750€ -
Committee
Chair +€ 65,000 +€25,000 +€25000€ Laurie Fitch 61546€ -
Gioia Ghezzi 39,583€ -
Member +€ 30,000 +€20,000€ +€20,000€
Sub- Total 926,129€ 942,500€
These amounts are cumulative, except for the Chair of the Board of Directors who does not receive Total 1.868,629¢€
any complement derived from his role at any Committee.
Figures 2024
The following table contains EDPR's Directors in 2024, as well as the amounts paid by EDPR either
as (i) remuneration paid to them, including the amounts received as a result of belonging to a certain
committee, or (ii) as a fee to EDP, under the terms of the Management Services Agreement, for the These amounts correspond to the service fee paid by EDPR to EDP under the terms of the
respective services (which do not constitute remuneration), for the respective functions performed at Management Services Agreement, for the services provided in 2024 by the director in question.
the Board of Directors level: EDPR also pays 5% of this service fee, which is applied to the Executive Directors' retirement

savings plan.
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In line with Spanish Law and as specifically foreseen in Article 10 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Board of Directors of EDPR is entitled to create delegated bodies. The Board of
Directors of EDPR has set up three committees that are composed exclusively by non-executive and
independent members:

+ Audit, Control and Related-Party Transactions Committee
Appointments and Remunerations Committee
- Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee

Except in the case of the Chair of the Board of Directors, the directors that are also members/chair of
the Delegated Committees receive for these functions a complement to their fixed remuneration as
members of the Board of Directors.

Figures 2024 — Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee

The below table lists the members of the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee
as of 31 December 2024, as well as the amounts paid by EDPR as remuneration to the functions
performed in this body in 2024

« Until 4 April 2024:

COMMITTEE MEMBERS POSITION REMUNERATION - GROSS VALUES
Acdcio Piloto Chair 13,750€
Rosa Garcia Garcia Member 6,250 €
Joseé Félix Morgado Member 6,250 €

From 4 April 2024:

COMMITTEE MEMBERS POSITION REMUNERATION - GROSS VALUES
José Félix Morgado Chair 48,750€
Rosa Garcia Garcia Member 22.500€

Ana Paula Serra Member 22.500€
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Figures 2024 — Appointments and Remunerations Committee

The following table contains the list of the members of the Appointments and Remunerations
Committee as on 31 December 2024, as well as the amounts paid by EDPR as remuneration for the
functions performed in this body in 2024. As indicated at the beginning of this section, the Chair of
this Committee, Antonio Gomes Mota, does not receive a supplement to his remuneration as Chair of
the Board for the functions performed on this Committee:

« Until 4 April 2024

Antonio Gomes Mota (*) Chair 0
Rosa Garcia Garceia Member 2,500€
José Félix Morgado Member 2,500€

(*) The Chair of the Board of Directors does not receive any complement derived from his role at any Committee.

+ From4 April 2024

Antonio Gomes Mota (*) Chair 0
Rosa Garcia Garceia Member 15,000€
José Félix Morgado Member 15,000€

(*) The Chair of the Board of Directors does not receive any complement derived from his role at any Committee.

Figures 2024 — Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee

The below table lists the members of the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance
Committee as on 31 December 2024, as well as the amounts paid by EDPR as remuneration to them
for the functions performed at this body in 2024,
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«  Until 4 April 2024

COMMITTEE MEMBERS POSITION REMUNERATION - GROSS VALUES
Antonio Gomes Mota (*) Chair 0
Rosa Garcia Garcia Member 2,500 €
José Félix Morgado Member 2,500€
Allan J. Katz Member 2,500€
Cynthia Kay Mc Call Member 2,500€

(*) The Chair of the Board of Directors does not receive any complement derived from his role at any Committee.

« From4 April 2024

COMMITTEE MEMBERS POSITION REMUNERATION - GROSS VALUES
Rosa Garcia Garcia Chair 18,750€
Antonio Gomes Mota Member -
Cynthia Kay Mc Call (1) Member 3,333€
Laurie Fitch (%) Member 13,333€
Allan J. Katz (°) Member 6,667€
Gioia Ghezzi () Member 8,333€
Ana Paula Serra Member 15,000€

1

As announced to the market on 8 May 2024, Kay Mc Call resigned from her position.

2) As announced to the market on 8 May 2024, EDPR's Board of Directors approved the appointment by co-option on that date.

% As announced to the market on 25 July 2024, Allan J. Katz resigned from his position.

*) As announced to the market on 25 July 2024, EDPR's Board of Directors approved the appointment by co-option on that date.
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Variable component
Conditions

The annual and multi-annual variable remuneration applies only to Executive Directors.

The payment of the variable remuneration is conditional on the Executive Director remaining with
EDPR until the end of the relevant annual or three-year performance period, without prejudice to the
provisions of the remuneration policy.

The variable remuneration will be a percentage of the fixed annual component, with a weighting that
varies between 0% and 80% for the annual component and between 0% and 145% for the multi-
annual component, applying to the fixed annual component of the CEO and CFO.

The key performance indicators (KPIs) used to determine the amounts of the annual and multi —
annual variable remuneration for each year of the term is proposed by the Appointments, and
Remunerations Committee with the aim of aligning them with the EDPR’s Business Plan.

The policy took into account the working conditions and remuneration of the company's employees
when determining its terms, and a KPI relating to people and the organisation was specifically
established, under which, among other things, the results of employee climate surveys are collected,
reflecting their level of satisfaction with performance and the conditions applied.

The indicators thus defined apply to the years covered by the policy, without prejudice to any
adjustments that may be proposed by the Appointments and Remunerations Committee for each
year (KPI Targets):

In the assessment of annual and multi-annual performance and in the determination of the value of
the cumulative variable component, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee may take into
account exceptional circumstances where a KPI cannot be met as a result of political or
administrative decisions beyond the control of the Executive Directors, that have an impact on
EDPR's performance and on the level of achievement of EDPR's objectives, neutralise their impact
on the annual and multi-annual performance metrics, provided that they ensure that, in the event
that the political or administrative decisions in question are reversed by administrative, judicial or
arbitration means, those Directors will not benefit from the effects of that reversal decision either.
Likewise, the Appointments and Remunerations Committee may take into account other
exceptional conjunctural and exogenous circumstances faced by EDPR that have an impact on the
Company's performance and on the level of fulfilment of the objectives set for the Executive
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Directors, adjusting or adopting in a reasoned manner appropriate solutions to neutralise, in relation
to EDPR or the Executive Directors, as the case may be, in whole or in part, the impact of such
consequences on the annual and multi-annual performance metrics.

Annual variable remuneration:

The annual variable remuneration has the nature of incentive/performance premium linked to
financial and non-financial objectives (linked to the Business Plan and budget) of short-term,
evaluated annually, reflecting in the year under analysis and possible repercussion in the following
years, being paid in cash.

The amount of the annual performance premium shall be determined within three months of the
approval of EDPR's accounts at the ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting in each year, by
reference to the previous year/annual performance period.

The maximum annual variable component may not exceed 80% of the annual management fee
applicable for the financial year to which it relates, calculated and payable after approval of the
accounts for the financial year to which it relates, and allocated in accordance with the following
parameters, calculated on alinear basis:

If performance reaches less than 85% of the objectives set, no annual variable component will
be awarded;

If performance is between 85% and 95% of the target, an amount of between 10% and 25% of
each Executive Director's reference annual management fee will be accrued;

If performance is between 95% and 100% of the target, an amount of between 25% and
52.5% of each Executive Director's annual management fee will be accrued,;

If performance is between 100% and 110% of the target, an amount between 52.5% and 80%
of each Executive Director's reference annual management fee will be accrued;

If the performance achieved exceeds 110% of the objectives, an amount corresponding to 80%
of the reference annual management fee of each of the Executive Directors will be added.

The payment of the annual variable component is partially deferred by 30% of its value for a period
of 2 years, with the payment of this deferral being made in 50% each year, with EDPR reserving,
through the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, the possibility of not applying this deferral
when the value of the deferral does not exceed 20% of the annual management fee.
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The key indicators and their weighting for the annual variable remuneration would be as follows:
Quantitative: 90%
Growth: Recurring earnings per share (25%).

Shareholder remuneration; Total shareholder return vs Eurostoxx Utilities and S&P Clean
Energy (25%).

Balance sheet strength: FFO/net debt (10%).
Operational efficiency: Adjusted Core OPEX/MW (10%).

ESG (20%): Performance in the Dow Jones Sustainability Index (10%), Total Frequency Rate
(5%), Climate Survey Results (5%).

Qualitative: 10% (assessment carried out by the Appointments and Remunerations Committee)
Execution of the activity plan during the year (2.5%)
Team management (2.5%)
Teamwork (2.5%)
Stakeholder management (2.5%)
Multi-annual variable remuneration:

The multi-annual variable remuneration is calculated and approved within three months of the
approval of the accounts for the last financial year of the three-year period to which it refers.

The payment of two thirds (2/3) of the multi-annual variable component is deferred and paid in two
equal and successive annual instalments, ensuring that the multi-annual variable remuneration is
paid in the third year following each year of performance of the respective multi-annual plan, in the
first year and in the second two years, respectively, after the Annual General Meeting at which the
accounts for the last year of the respective remuneration plan are finalised.

The maximum multi-annual variable component must not exceed 145% of the total fixed
component for the multi-annual performance reference period and must be allocated according to
the following parameters, calculated on a linear basis:
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If performance reaches less than 85% of the objectives set, no multi-annual variable
component will be awarded,;

If performance is between 85% and 95% of the target, an amount of between 15% and 40% of
each Executive Director's fixed annual management fee will be accrued;

If performance is between 95% and 100% of the target, an amount of between 40% and
97.5% of each Executive Director's fixed annual management fee will be accrued;

If performance is between 100% and 110% of the target, an amount of between 97.5% and
145 % of each Executive Director's fixed annual management fee will be accrued;

If the performance achieved exceeds 110% of the objectives, an amount corresponding to
145% of the fixed annual management fee of each of the Executive Directors will be added.

The key indicators and their weighting for the multi-annual variable remuneration would be as
follows:

Quantitative: 90%
Growth: Earnings per share cumulative recurring (25%).

Shareholder remuneration; Total shareholder return vs Eurostoxx Utilities and S&P Clean
Energy (40%).

ESG (25%): Total MW of renewable energy built (20%), Performance in the Bloomberg Gender
Equality Index (5%).

Qualitative: 10% (assessment carried out by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee)
Strategy and implementation (2.5%)
Employee development (2.5%)
Teamwork and new ways of working (2.5%)
Stakeholder management (2.5%)

The assessment of compliance with the indicators is carried out by EDPR's Appointments and
Remuneration Committee, which in turn submits it to the Board of Directors for approval.
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Figures 2024

The variable remuneration only applies to Executive Directors, and the evaluation of compliance
with the indicators and related level of performance is appraised by the Appointments and
Remunerations Committee, which in turn submits it to the Board of Directors for approval.

Variable Annual Remuneration

On 31 December 2024, the Executive Directors of EDPR were Miguel Stilwell de Andrade and Rui
Teixeira. As aresult of the analysis of their performance, the following amounts were paid in 2024 by
EDPR to EDP as management fee, for the variable annual component amounts accrued for their
services provided in 2024

ANNUAL VARIABLE COMPONENT - GROSS VALUES

MANAGEMENT FEES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Miguel Stilwell de Andrade 125,940 €
Rui Teixeira 82,433 €
Total 208,373 €
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Variable Multionnual Remuneration

WEIGHT EDPR RESULT
VARIABLE ANNUAL REMUNERATION

Quantitative

Growth: Recurring earnings per share 25.00% 96.53%
Shareholder remuneration: Total shareholder return vs Eurostoxx

Utilities and S&P Clean Energy 25.00% 77:50%
Balance sheet strength: FFO/net debt 10.00% 78.96%
90% Operational Efficiency: Core OPEX/MW Adjusted 10.00% 98.31%
ESG: Dow Jones Sustainability Index Performance 10.00% 106.97%
ESG: Total Frequency Rate 5.00% 86.74%
ESG: Climate survey results 5.00% 106.65%
10% Qualitative - Appointments and Remuneration Committee 120%
VARIABLE MULTIANNUAL REMUNERATION
Quantitative
Growth: Earnings per share cumulative recurring 25,00% 96,53%
90% Szﬁtricaek;cz;igrsrzrglg:;?E):.e:'g;oI shareholder return vs Eurostoxx 20.00% 1.91%
ESG: Total MW of Renewable Energy Built 20.00% 92.55%
ESG: Performance in the Bloomberg Gender Equality Index 5.00% 120.00%
10% Qualitative - Appointments and Remuneration Committee 120.00%

Non-Monetary Benefits

No non-monetary benefits are paid by EDPR to its Board Members, with exception of a company car
allocated to the Chair of the Board of Directors and the retirement savings plan for Executive
Directors mentioned in the following section. No non-monetary benefits were paid to Directors who
have resigned from their positions during the current year.

Retirement Savings Plan
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Within the scope of the remuneration policy in force, defined and proposed by the Appointments and
Remunerations Committee to the Board of Directors for its submission to the General Shareholder’s
Meeting, the Directors do not have a complementary pension plan paid by EDPR, and there are no
non-cash benefits as part of the remuneration of the Board of Directors, except: (i) the payment that
EDPR makes to EDP under the Management Services Agreement, corresponding to the Executive
Directors' pension plan in the range between 3% and 6% of the fixed annual management fee, and
(ii) the company car to which the Chair of the Board of Directors is entitled.

For the Executive Directors of EDPR (Miguel Stilwell d’ Andrade and Rui Teixeira) it was stablished in
a 5% of the fixed fee under the Management Services Agreement. For the year 2024, EDPR paid a
fee to EDP under the Management Services agreement of 27,500€ corresponding to the retirement
saving plan of Miguel Stilwell d” Andrade, and of 18,000€ corresponding to the retirement saving
plan Rui Teixeira.
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In 2024, the Board of Directors Remuneration Policy in place for this term was duly applied.

As a summary of all the above breakdowns detailed, it is hereby provided a summary table including
the total amounts paid by EDPR in 2024 either (i) as remuneration to them for Director functions at
the Board level and Delegated Committees or (ii) as fee to EDP under the Management Services
Agreement for their services (not remuneration):

REMUNERATION FEES
ANNUAL MULTIANNUAL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FIXED VARIABLE VARIABLE (¥) RSP
Miguel Stilwell de Andrade - 550,000€ 125,940€ 143,076€ 27,500€
Rui Teixeira - 360,000€ 82,433€ 93,650€ 18,000€

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Anténio Gomes Mota 256,250€ - - - -
Vera Pinto Pereira - 16,250€ - - -
Ana Paula Marques - 16,250€ - - -
Manuel Menéndez Menéndez 72,500€ - - - -
Acdcio Piloto 30,000€ - - - -
Allan J. Katz 50,418€ - - - -
Rosa Garcia Garcia 140,000€ - - - -
José Félix Morgado 147,500€ - - - -
Cynthia Kay Mc Call 34,583€ - - - _
Ana Paula Serra 93,750€ - - - -
Laurie Lee Fitch 61,546€ - - - _
Gioia Ghezzi 39,583€ - - - -

Sub- Total1 926,129€ 942,500€ 208,373€ 236,726€ 45,500€
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Sub- Total 2 926,129€ 1,433,099€
Total 2,359,228€

Gross amounts
(*) The multiannual variable remuneration takes into consideration the previous year(s) as per the relevant remuneration policy in force.

The total amount paid by EDPR in 2024 either (i) as remuneration and (ii) as fee to EDP under the
Management Services Agreement, for the services performed by its Directors as members of its
Board (including the retirement savings plan) was of 1,433,099€, which is below the maximum
amount agreed by the General Shareholders’ Meeting for 2022 and subsequent years
(2,500,000€). Likewise, the total amounts that were paid as fee to EDP under the Management
Services Agreement for the variable remuneration paid to the Executive Directors in 2024 was of
445,099€ which is also aligned with the maximum amount agreed by the General Shareholders’
Meeting for these purposes (1,000,000€).

The remuneration policy in force includes key elements to enhance a Company’s management
performance not only focused on short-term objectives, but also incorporate as part of its results the
interests of the Company and of shareholders in the medium and long term. These elements are: (i)
the definition of the indicators in accordance with the 6 clusters, (ii) the relative weight assigned to
each KPIs to calculate annual and multiannual variable remuneration (iii) the relevance associated
with the achievement of such KPIs (iv) the three-year term considered for determining the value of
variable multi-annual component of the remuneration (v) the deferral in three years for the payment
of the variable multi-annual as recommended by CMVM as a good corporate governance practices,
as well as conditioning its payment to the fact of there has not been unlawful actions known after the
performance evaluated that may jeopardize the sustainability of the company’s performance, (vi)
the use of the qualitative criteria focused on a strategic and medium term perspective of the
development of the Company, and (vii) the existence of a maximum limit for the variable
remuneration.
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Total shareholder return

120%

36%

12%

-3% 6% _9%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Average employees’ remuneration (€) - gross amounts per month

6,217

5,843
5388 5.315 5384 5,651

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Note: Exchange rate at constant values (average from 2015 to 2017) 3.72 EUR/BRL, applied to the period from 2019 to 2023.

Index Part | 148

On 31December 2024, and for the respective activity carried out at EDPR, the members of the Board
of Directors have not received any payments from any company under EDPR control or subject to
EDPR common control.

EDPR does not have Share-Allocation and/or Stock Option Plans.

In accordance with corporate governance practices, the Remuneration Policy includes the deferral,
for a three year period, of the multiannual variable remuneration, the payment of which is conditional
on the absence of any malicious wrongdoing, known after the assessment and which jeopardises
the sustainability of the company’s performance, and which is subject of a claim for compensation
to EDPR, submitted by shareholders or third parties.

If the above is confirmed, the variable remuneration paid during the period in which the facts
occurred, accrued or pending award, will be reimbursed, withheld or not awarded to compensate for
the damage caused up to its total amount.

It is also established in this policy that no amount will be paid to Directors as compensation for
leaving office before the end of the term for which they were appointed, and that Executive Directors
will not sign contracts, either with EDPR or with third parties, which have the effect of mitigating the
risk inherent in the variability of the remuneration set by EDPR.

Considering the terms of the law and market practice on the remuneration of Executive Directors in
the event of early termination of office, the following is indicated:

a. Inthe event of termination of office for reasons not attributable to the Executive Director, he or
she shall be entitled to receive the full fixed component until the end of the term of office for
which he or she was elected and the variable component accrued up to the date of termination
of office, but shall lose the right to receive any other benefits inherent to the effective exercise of
office for annual or multi-annual performance periods not fully complied with.
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b. In the event of resignation not resulting from an early termination agreement with EDPR, the
Executive Director shall be entitled to receive only the fixed and variable remuneration accrued
up to the date of resignation, the payment of which shall be made under the same terms and
conditions as for Executive Directors in office.

c. Inthe event of termination of office by agreement with EDPR, whereby the Executive Director
agrees to resign, the Executive Director shall be entitled to receive the amount agreed at that
time, which shall not exceed (i) the amount of the fixed component until the end of the term of
office, plus (ii) the entire variable component for the annual or multi-annual period to be paid
after determination at the end of the relevant period, as if the Executive Director had remained in
office.

In accordance with market practice, a non-compete agreement may be signed with an outgoing
Executive Director, regardless of the cause of the termination or, within the scope of the termination
agreement, an obligation not to compete with EDPR may be established for a certain period of time,
including, where appropriate, the payment of compensation.

The remuneration policy in force at any given time during 2024 was applied without exceptions.

Remuneration of the Chair of the General Shareholders’ Meeting

The Board of the General Shareholders’ Meeting is chaired by the Chair of the Board of Directors
(Antonio Gomes Mota), and there is no additional remuneration for his duties.

Remuneration of the External Auditor in 2024 for services provided to EDP
Renovaveis S.A. and subsidiaries

According to the Spanish law, the External Auditor (“Auditor de Cuentas”) is appointed by the
General Shareholders’ Meeting and corresponds to the External Auditor body (“Revisor Oficial de
Contas”) described on the Portuguese Law.

As a result of a competitive process launched in 2017, and following the proposal of the Audit,
Control and Related Party Transactions Committee to the Board of Directors,
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PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. was appointed as EDPR SA External Auditor by the
General Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 3rd, 2018. PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L.,isa
Spanish Company registered at the Spanish Official Register of Auditors under number SO0242 with
Tax Identification Number B-79031290. The renewal of PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. as
External Auditor of EDPR SA for years 2021, 2022 and 2023 was approved by EDPR’s General
Shareholders’ Meeting on April 12th, 2021, and the current audit partner in charge of EDPR is Antonio
Velasco Danobeitia.

At the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 4", 2024, PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores,
S.L. Statutory Auditor registered in the Spanish Official Register of Auditors under number S0242,
with tax identification number B-79031290 was re-elected as External Auditor for the three-year
period 2024-2026. PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. is currently represented by Antonio
Velasco Dafobeitia.

In July 2022, EDPR approved an internal regulation to rule the provision of services and relationship
with the External Auditor, with regards to both audit and non-audit services to be hired, and the
reporting and approval procedure to be applied. These regulations also establish the independence
criteria to be considered.

Figures 2024

North South

SERVICES Europe . . TOTAL
America America

Auditand statutory auditof o7 3556 5378349€  407571¢€ 681125€  5384,378€ 94

accounts

Other non-audit services 338,683 € 14,249 € 0€ 632€ 353,564 € 6

Total 2,256,016 € 2,392,598 € 407571€ 681,757€ 5,737,942 € 100

The amount of other non-audit services in Europe includes among others, services that refer to the
entire Group such as the review of the internal control system on financial reporting and review of the
non-financial information related to sustainability included in EDPR Annual Report, which are
invoiced to a European company. This amount also includes the limited review as of June 30",
2024, of the EDPR Consolidated Financial Statements and other reviews for Group consolidation
purposes which are considered non-audit services according to the respective local regulation.

Total amount for Europe includes € 1,098,101 of services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers
Auditores S.L. in Spain from which € 813,303 refer to audit services and € 284,798 refer to non-
audit services.
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6.1. General InNformation

BP-1_01- Basis for preparation of sustainability statement

The Sustainability statement is presented in a consolidated form.

BP-1_02 - Scope of consolidation of consolidated sustainability statement is same
as for financial statements

The scope of consolidation is the same as that of the financial statements.

BP-1_03 - Indication of subsidiary undertakings included in consolidation that are
exempted from individual or consolidated sustainability reporting

The EDPR's sustainability performance is reported on a consolidated basis and includes the Group's
subsidiaries. EDPR discloses the list of companies and corresponding geographies included in its
consolidation perimeter in Part Il - Financial Statements and Notes to this report.

BP-1_04 - Disclosure of extent to which sustainability statement covers upstream
and downstream value chain

The value chain of EDPR can be divided into three main phases: upstream, own operations, and
downstream.

In the upstream phase, there is the supply chain, namely suppliers of raw materials for electricity
production, such as materials for renewable energy assets. The logistics and transportation of raw
materials to the energy generation facilities are also part of this phase.

In its own operations, EDPR focuses on generating electricity from renewable sources such as wind
and solar. The company also implements energy storage solutions to ensure the efficient and safe
delivery of electricity to consumers.

In the downstream phase, EDPR is dedicated to providing clean energy solutions.
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To define impacts, risks and opportunities, all activities that are part of EDPR's value chain were
included, including EDPR's upstream and downstream activities. For further details, see SBM-3_01
and SBM-3_02.

BP-1_05 - Option to omit specific piece of information corresponding to intellectual
property, know-how or results of innovation has been used

EDPR did not omit information corresponding to intellectual property, know-how or innovation
results.

BP-1_06 - Option allowed by Member State to omit disclosure of impending
developments or matters in course of negotiation has been used

EDPR did not use the exemption of omitting the disclosure of impending developments or matters in
course of negotiation.

BP-2_01 - Disclosure of definitions of medium- or long-term time horizons

Short-term: the period adopted by EDPR as the reporting period in its financial statements, i.e.
within one-year.

Medium-term: from the end of the short-term reporting period up to 5 years.

Long-term: more than 5 years.

BP-2_02 - Disclosure of reasons for applying different definitions of time horizons

The adopted time horizons comply with ESRS 1 section 6.4 Definition of short-, medium- and long-
term for reporting purposes.

BP-2_03 - Disclosure of metrics that include value chain data estimated using
indirect sources / BP-2_04 - Description of basis for preparation of metrics that
include value chain data estimated using indirect sources / BP-2_05b - Description
of resulting level of accuracy of metrics that include value chain data estimated
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using indirect sources / BP-2_06 - Description of planned actions to improve
accuracy in future of metrics that include value chain data estimated using indirect
sources

EDPR does not utilize estimates in the calculation of Supply chain metrics. Instead, we employ direct
sources of information from our suppliers.

BP-2_07 - Disclosure of quantitative metrics and monetary amounts disclosed that
are subject to high level of measurement uncertainty / BP-2_08 - Disclosure of
sources of measurement uncertainty / BP-2_09 - Disclosure of assumptions,
approximations and judgements made in measurement

Estimates were made for part of the calculation of energy consumption presented in datapoints
E1-5_01,E1-5_02, E1-5_03, E1-5_05, E1-5_07, E1-5_08 and E1-5_14. The assumptions made were
disclosed in these datapoints.

With regard to the E1-6 datapoints where calculations are made using emission factors, they
present estimates given the nature of these indicators.

BP-2_10 - Explanation of changes in preparation and presentation of sustainability
iInformation and reasons for them

With regard to changes in preparation and presentation of sustainability information compared to
the previous reporting period, if applicable, this is identified together with the information.

BP-2_11 - Adjustment of comparative information for one or more prior periods is
impracticable /BP-2_12 - Disclosure of difference between figures disclosed in
preceding period and revised comparative figures

Comparative figures are provided for metrics that have been disclosed in one or more prior periods,
where their definition and scope were aligned with the ESRS requirements or required only minor
adjustments. In accordance with the ESRS transitional provision, no comparative figures are
disclosed for new metrics introduced in 2024.
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BP-2_13 - Disclosure of nature of prior period material errors / BP-2_14 - Disclosure
of corrections for prior periods included in sustainability statement / BP-2_15 -
Disclosure of why correction of prior period errors is not practicable

No material errors were identified in the previous reporting period.

BP-2_16 - Disclosure of other legislation or generally accepted sustainability
reporting standards and frameworks based on which information has been
included in sustainability statement / BP-2_17 - Disclosure of reference to
paragraphs of standard or framework applied

The Sustainability Statement was prepared in accordance with the European Sustainability
Reporting Standards (ESRS), as defined in Commission Delegated Regulation EU 2023/2772 of 31
July 2023, which complements the requirements of the Corporate Sustainability Reporting
Directive, Directive (EU) 2022/2464 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 December
2022 (Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive or CSRD). This Regulation is not yet transposed
into Spanish law.

This CSRD covers companies such as EDPR, which are covered by the Non-Financial Reporting
Directive (NFRD), and which was transposed into Spanish law by Royal Legislative Decree 1/2010 of
2 July,and Law 22/2015 of 20 July.

In accordance with ESRS 1, paragraph 35, EDPR presents a correspondence table between the ESRS
and the Sustainable Finance Disclosures Regulation (SFDR), Pillar 3, Benchmark Regulation and EU
Climate Law.

The Sustainability Statement also complies with the professional rules of general acceptance
applicable in Spain and specifically with the guidelines of action contained in the 47 Revised and 56
Performance Guides issued by Instituto de Censores Jurados de Cuentas and the Law 11/2018
(Annex 7.5.1. Non-financial information statement, page 401).

BP-2_20 - List of DRs or DPs incorporated by reference

No information has been incorporated by reference.
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GOV-1_01- Number of executive members / GOV-1_02 - Number of non-
executive members

Board of Directors

UN MALE FEMALE TOTAL
Number of executive members # 2 0 2
Number of non-executive members # 3 4 7

All Committees members are non-executive members of the Board of Directors.

GOV-1_03 - Information about representation of employees and other workers

EDP Renovdveis does not include employee or worker representation within its administrative,
management, and supervisory bodies.

GOV-1_04 - Information about member's experience relevant to sectors, products
and geographic locations of undertaking

In accordance with Article 29(5) of EDP Renovdveis' Articles of Association, the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee is authorised by the Board of Directors to propose, advise and inform the
Board on the appointment, re-election, dismissal and remuneration of the members of the Board of
Directors, as well as the composition of the Board's committees. Thus, the members of the Board of
Directors of EDP Renovdveis are selected according to their profile of professional competences, in
order to ensure the adequacy of the functions and contribution to a better performance, in order to
ensure a balanced composition in the bodies of the Company. In this way, it is ensured that the
members of the Board of Directors have on the one hand, the necessary individual characteristics,
namely training, competence, integrity, availability and experience and, on the other hand, that they
ensure diversity.

The Board of Directors is composed of nine members with diverse skills and backgrounds. Notably,
many of the members have significant experience in fields as Strategy & Business Development,
Financial Acumen, M&A/Capital Markets and Governance. The Board of Directors is supported by
the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee, whose main functions are to assist and
inform the Board of Directors with regard to alignment with market trends and society's needs in

14 .
Average ratio of female to male board members
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Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance matters, with the aim of also providing investors
with more transparent and exhaustive information on Corporate Governance and Sustainability
issues. This Committee is made up of independent members of the Board of Directors who have the
necessary qualifications and experience: Rosa Garcia Garecia as Chair and the rest of the members,
Antonio Gomes Mota, Ana Paula Serra, Laurie Fitch and Gioia Ghezzi. In turn, the Audit, Control and
Related Parties Committee supervises the process of reporting financial and sustainability
information and the functioning of the internal control and risk management systems, as well as
evaluating these systems and proposing the respective adjustments appropriate to the company's
needs, as well as supervising the adequacy of the process of preparation and disclosure of financial
and sustainability information by the Board of Directors. This Committee is made up of independent
members of the Board of Directors who have the necessary qualifications and experience: José Félix
Morgado as Chair and the rest of the members, Rosa Garcia and Ana Paula Serra.

GOV-1_05b - Percentage of members of administrative, management and
supervisory bodies by gender and other aspects of diversity/ GOV-1_06 - Board's
gender diversity ratio / GOV-1_07 - Percentage of independent board members

BOARD OF DIRECTORS UN 2024
Board's gender diversity ratio™ X 0.8
Percentage of independent board members % 67
COMMITTEES UN 2024

Appointments and Remunerations Committee

Board's gender diversity ratio X 0.5
Percentage of independent board members % 100
Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee

Board's gender diversity ratio X 2.0
Percentage of independent board members % 100
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

Board's gender diversity ratio X 4.0

Percentage of independent board members % 100
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GOV-1_08 - Information about identity of administrative, management and
supervisory bodies or individual(s) within body responsible for oversight of impacts,
risks and opportunities

EDP Renovdveis' governance model was designed to ensure the transparent and meticulous
separation of functions and the specialisation of supervision. According to EDP Renovdveis'
corporate governance model, the Board of Directors is the body responsible, in general terms, for the
administration, management and governance of the Company.

Since the Board of Directors acts as a body, its nine members are collegially responsible for
overseeing impacts, risks and opportunities. The members of the Board of Directors are Antdnio
Gomes Mota, Miguel Stilwell de Andrade, Rui Teixeira, Manuel Menéndez Menéndez, Rosa Garcia,
José Félix Morgado, Laurie Fitch, Ana Paula Serra and Gioia Ghezzi.

In addition, EDP Renovdveis has three specialised internal committees, including the Audit, Control
and Related Party Transactions Committee, whose main functions are to oversee financial and
sustainability information and the functioning of internal control and risk management systems and
compliance systems (Article 8 of the Committee's Internal Regulations). The members of this
Committee are José Félix Morgado, Rosa Garcia and Ana Paula Serra.

In turn, the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee assists and informs the Board of
Directors with regard to alignment with market trends and the Company's needs in ESG matters,
with the aim of also providing investors with more transparent and exhaustive information on
matters related to Corporate Governance and Sustainability, namely to analyse the integration of
environmental, social and corporate governance risks and opportunities into the Company's
procedures and its Risk Management System and to monitor and conduct regular analysis of the
main trends and regulatory developments in environmental, social and corporate governance
matters that are relevant to the Company's activity, among others (Article 8 of the ESG Committee's
Internal Regulations). The members of this Committee are Rosa Garcia Garcia, Anténio Gomes
Mota, Ana Paula Serra, Laurie Fitch and Gioia Ghezzi.

GOV-1_09 - Disclosure of how body's or individuals within body responsibilities for
Impacts, risks and opportunities are reflected in undertaking's terms of reference,
board mandates and other related policies

The responsibilities of the Board of Directors in relation to sustainability issues at EDP Renovaveis
are divided between the Board of Directors, which in general terms is vested with the broadest
powers for the administration, management and governance of the Company, having, among
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others, the competence to approve the corporate social responsibility policy and determine the risk
control and management policy, and its Environmental, Social and Governance Committee, which
assists and informs the Board of Directors with regard to alignment with market trends and the
company's needs in terms of ESG, with the aim of also providing investors with more transparent and
exhaustive information on matters relating to Corporate Governance and Sustainability, and the
Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee, whose main functions are to supervise
financial information and sustainability information, and internal control, risk management and
compliance systems.

From a material point of view, the principles and values that guide EDP Renovdveis' actions towards
environmental and social goals are defined in the public commitments made, in the policies and
procedures adopted and, more broadly, in the Code of Ethics. Within the scope of its Environmental
Policy, EDP Renovdveis is committed to protecting the environment, mitigating its impacts,
managing risks, stimulating R&D + Innovation and promoting the continuous improvement of
processes, practices and performance through a collaborative approach with stakeholders. The
management of social aspects is based globally on various corporate policies, the management of
which is distributed across EDP Renovdveis' various organisational units.

GOV-1_10 - Description of management's role in governance processes, controls
and procedures used to monitor, manage and oversee impacts, risks and
opportunities

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for managing the company's business, defining
internal strategies and procedures and monitoring business risks. The Board of Directors plays a
central role in approving the company's Business Plan, investment budget and forecast and its
Sustainability Strategy.

The Specialised Committees of the Board of Directors, the Audit, Control and Related Parties
Committee and the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee, assist it in making
decisions related to sustainability matters, particularly with regard to assessing material impacts,
risks and opportunities.

Regarding risk management, the Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the decision,
supervising and controlling risk management, and setting the EDPR's management objectives and
policies. In addition, it is also responsible for defining the Risk Appetite set out in the Business Plan,
defining the EDPR's risk policies (in particular, the respective exposure limits by risk category) and
for allocating resources in accordance with the risk-return profile of the various options available.
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The Board of Directors is supported by its Specialised Committees, the Environmental, Social and
Corporate Governance Committee and the Audit, Control and Related Parties Committee, and by
the internal departments of Investor Relations & ESG, Risk and Regulation, Markets & Stakeholders,
including in what concerns the monitoring of defined strategy implementation.

GOV-1_1 - Description of how oversight is exercised over management-level
position or committee to which management'srole is delegated to

The powers relating to the definition of processes, controls and procedures to monitor, manage and
supervise the impacts, risks and opportunities related to sustainability matters are exercised
collectively by the Board of Directors with the support of the Specialised Committees.

The Audit, Control and Related Parties Committee independently supports the actions of the Board
of Directors, specifically with regard to supervising the process of reporting financial and
sustainability information and the functioning of the internal control and risk management systems,
as well as evaluating the systems and proposing the respective adjustments appropriate to the
Company's needs, as well as supervising the adequacy of the process of preparation and disclosure
of financial and sustainability information by the Board of Directors, including the adequacy of
accounting policies, forecasts, judgements, external disclosures and their consistent application
between financial years, in the form of appropriate communication and documentation, as well as
verifying that the policies and procedures on sustainability reporting and the respective indicators
established are consistent with the applicable standards and best practices in this areq, as well as
whether they are complied with and prove adequate to ensure that the Company conducts its
activities in such a way as to effectively contribute to sustainability in its different dimensions,
among others (article 8 of the Committee's Internal Regulations). In turn, the Environmental, Social
and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for monitoring and conducting regular
analyses of the main trends and regulatory developments in environmental, social and corporate
governance matters that are relevant to the Company's activity and for analysing the integration of
environmental, social and corporate governance risks and opportunities into the Company's
procedures and its Risk Management System.

GOV-1_12 - Information about reporting lines to administrative, management and
supervisory bodies

Two committees support the Board of Directors in defining and monitoring sustainability strategies,
procedures and responsibilities.
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The Audit, Control and Related Parties Committee supports the actions of the Board of Directors,
namely with regard to supervising the process of reporting financial and sustainability information
and the functioning of the internal control and risk management systems, as well as evaluating these
systems and proposing the respective adjustments appropriate to the Company's needs, as well as
supervising the adequacy of the process of preparation and disclosure of financial and sustainability
information by the Board of Directors, including the adequacy of accounting policies, forecasts,
judgements, external disclosures and their consistent application between financial years, in the
form of appropriate communication and documentation, checking that the policies and procedures
for sustainability reporting and the respective indicators established are consistent with the
applicable standards and best practices in this areq, that they are complied with and that they are
adequate to ensure that the company conducts its activities in such a way as to effectively
contribute to sustainability in its different dimensions, establishing a permanent relationship with the
Auditors and the verifier of sustainability information, receiving and assessing any opinion issued by
the employees' representatives on sustainability matters, among others.

The role of the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee is to supervise the
Company's main environmental, social and governance performance indicators included in the
Business Plan and monitor their implementation, propose the sustainability and environmental,
social and corporate governance strategy, plans, policies and objectives to the Board of Directors
and update them, regularly monitoring and analysing the main trends, environmental, social and
corporate governance issues, as well as regulatory developments and best practices in terms of
sustainability for the Company's activity, analysing the integration of risks and opportunities related
to environmental, social and corporate governance issues into the Company's procedures and its
Risk Management System, among others.

GOV-1_13 - Disclosure of how dedicated controls and procedures are integrated
with other internal functions

The sustainability strategy is transversal to all EDP Renovdveis' activities.

The Audit, Control and Related Parties Committee oversees financial and sustainability information,
internal control, risk management and compliance systems, and the Environmental, Social and
Corporate Governance Committee assists and informs the Board of Directors with regard to
alignment with market trends and the Company's ESG needs, with the aim of also providing
investors with more transparent and exhaustive information on matters relating to Corporate
Governance and Sustainability.
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Additionally, the Risk Management is also part of key committees, namely Investment Committees,
Regulatory Committees, among others, guaranteeing the strategic alignment.

Additional information on internal controls, please refer to ESRS 2 GOV-b.

GOV-1_14 - Disclosure of how administrative, management and supervisory bodies
and senior executive management oversee setting of targets related to material
Impacts, risks and opportunities and how progress towards them is monitored

EDPR ensures that its administrative, management, and supervisory bodies, along with senior
executive management, effectively oversee the setting of targets related to material impacts, risks,
and opportunities, and monitor progress towards these targets through several key mechanisms:

a) Board of Directors and Specialized Committees - The Board of Directors is responsible for the
overall administration, management, and governance of the company. It is supported by specialized
committees, including the Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) Committee and the Audit,
Control, and Related Party Transactions Committee. These committees assist the Board in making
decisions related to sustainability matters, particularly with regard to assessing material impacts,
risks, and opportunities;

b) ESG Committee - This committee assists and informs the Board of Directors on ESG matters,
ensuring alignment with market trends and the company's needs. It is composed of independent
members with the necessary qualifications and experience to oversee sustainability issues. The
committee's responsibilities include analysing the integration of ESG risks and opportunities into the
company's procedures and Risk Management System;

c) Audit, Control, and Related Party Transactions Committee - This committee supervises the
process of reporting financial and sustainability information, the functioning of internal control and
risk management systems, and compliance systems. It evaluates these systems and proposes
adjustments to meet the company's needs, ensuring the adequacy of the process of preparation and
disclosure of financial and sustainability information;

d) Investor Relations & ESG Department - This department supports the Board of Directors by
analysing and discussing the ESG strategy, defining sustainability metrics and objectives,
coordinating sustainability reporting, and benchmarking sustainability trends. It ensures that the
Board is kept informed about the progress and effectiveness of sustainability initiatives;

e) Business Plan - EDPR's Business Plan for 2023-2026 outlines the company's commitment to the
energy transition and sustainable growth. The plan includes targets for increasing renewable energy
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capacity and investing in innovative technologies. These targets are aligned with the company's
sustainability strategy and are monitored through regular progress reports and performance
evaluations;

f) Annual Integrated Report - The 2024 Integrated Annual Report provides detailed insights into
EDPR's sustainability performance, including the implementation of due diligence processes, the
effectiveness of policies and actions, and the progress towards sustainability targets. This reportis a
key tool for informing the administrative, management, and supervisory bodies about material
impacts, risks, and opportunities.

GOV-1_15 - Disclosure of how administrative, management and supervisory bodies
determine whether appropriate skills and expertise are available or will be
developed to oversee sustainability matters

The Board of Directors monitors the implementation of the sustainability strategy and objectives,
drawing up a report. In this monitoring process, the Board assesses the skills and knowledge and any
need to improve them and is accompanied by the Investor Relations & ESG Department, whose main
responsibilities are to analyse and discuss the ESG strategy, namely to define the sustainability
strategy and policies for EDP Renovadveis, in accordance with the EDPR ESG ambition and the needs
of the business, defining the Company’s sustainability metrics and respective objectives,
coordinating reporting, communication, training and mobilisation activities for sustainability,
supervising external financial and ESG-related communication, and benchmarking the main
sustainability trends.

The Board is also supported by the Environmental, Social, and Corporate Governance Committee,
which assists and informs the Board of Directors regarding alignment with market trends and the
company's ESG needs, aiming to provide investors with more transparent and exhaustive
information on matters related to Corporate Governance and Sustainability. Additionally, the Audlit,
Control, and Related Parties Committee carries out comprehensive supervision of sustainability
issues and assesses compliance.

By leveraging these mechanisms, EDP Renovdveis ensures that its administrative, management,
and supervisory bodies can determine whether appropriate skills and expertise are available or
need to be developed to effectively oversee sustainability matters.
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GOV-1_16 - Information about sustainability-related expertise that bodies either
directly possess or can leverage

The Board of Directors is composed of nine members with diverse backgrounds and training. In
particular, many Directors have significant experience in fields as Strategy & Business Development,
Financial Acumen, M&A/Capital Markets and Governance.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee assists and informs the Board of Directors on
appointments, re-elections, dismissals and remuneration of Directors and members of the
Management Team, and is responsible, among other things, for defining the principles and criteria
regarding the composition of the Board of Directors, the selection and appointment of its members
and proposing the members of the Committees to the Board of Directors. This ensures that the
members of the Board of Directors and Committees collectively have specialized knowledge in
various sectors. The Specialised Committees of the Board of Directors, the Audit, Control and
Related Parties Committee and the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Committee,
assist it in making decisions related to sustainability matters, particularly with regard to assessing
material impacts, risks and opportunities.

GOV-1_17 - Disclosure of how sustainability-related skills and expertise relate to
material impacts, risks and opportunities

In accordance with Article 29(5) of EDP Renovdveis' Articles of Association, the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee is authorised by the Board of Directors to propose, advise and inform the
Board on the appointment, re-election, dismissal and remuneration of the members of the Board of
Directors, as well as the composition of the Board Committees. Thus, the members of the Board of
Directors of EDP Renovdveis are selected according to their profile of professional competences, in
order to ensure the adequacy of the functions and contribution to a better performance, in order to
ensure a balanced composition in the bodies of the Company. In this way, it is ensured that the
members of the Board of Directors have on the one hand, the necessary individual characteristics,
namely training, competence, integrity, availability and experience and, on the other, that they
ensure diversity.

The collective skills and knowledge ensure that the different governing bodies are able to
adequately assess the impacts, risks and opportunities, taking into account EDP Renovdveis'
specific business and the geographies in which it operates. The qualifications and skills of the
members of the Board of Directors are publicly disclosed in in their CVs.
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GOV-2_01- Disclosure of whether, by whom and how frequently administrative,
management and supervisory bodies are informed about material impacts, risks
and opportunities, implementation of due diligence, and results and effectiveness of
policies, actions, metrics and targets adopted to address them

The Board of Directors of EDP Renovdveis is responsible for approving policies, codes, procedures,
rules, and mechanisms that ensure the proper conduct of the company's business. They are
supported in this process by transversal departments, which ensure global functional leadership and
manage their activities end-to-end, aligning objectives, programmes, and initiatives, and promoting
global excellence across the function. Examples of these departments include People &
Organisation (P&O), Procurement (PROC), Investor Relations & ESG (IR&ESG), Risk, and Ethics &
Compliance (E&C). Their mission is to recognise material impacts, risks, and opportunities related to
their focus areas, and the status of due diligence (e.g., employees, supply chain, risk, etc.) and inform
regularly the Board through detailed report and presentations. For instance, P&O develop clear
policies and procedures in key processes such as recruitment, job offers, and salaries to prevent
systemic impacts like gender pay disparity.

The Ethics & Compliance (E&C) area is responsible for preparing a consolidated report on cases of
violations of the Code of Ethics, which is sent quarterly to the Board of Directors. This report includes
the total number of complaints received, their classification, the measures taken, and their status.

The Investor Relations & ESG (IR&ESG) area works closely with the Risk areq, facilitating the
integration of climate risks into the company's risk management. The head of Investor Relations
(IR&ESG) reports directly, at least monthly, to the Management Team of the company, including
updates on the implementation of climate-related policies, actions, and goals.

These areas and other relevant departments compile detailed reports and presentations for the
quarterly review meetings. The reports include comprehensive data on material impacts, identified
risks and opportunities, and the status of due diligence processes. Additionally, the effectiveness of
implemented policies and actions is evaluated using specific metrics and targets, and the results are
discussed in these meetings.

Feedback from these bodies is collected and used to refine and improve future policies and actions,
ensuring continuous improvement in managing sustainability-related matters.
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GOV-2_02 - Disclosure of how administrative, management and supervisory
bodies consider impacts, risks and opportunities when overseeing strategy,
decisions on major transactions and risk management process

EDP Renovdveis' strategic plan for 2023-2026 has been approved and is currently being
implemented. This plan incorporates a strong sustainability dimension, including objectives related
to decarbonisation, valuing the community, protecting the planet, promoting a strong ESG culture,
safeguarding and enhancing human life and measures to involve EDP Renovdveis' partners in the
climate transition. In this context, medium-term targets are set to ensure that these objectives are
realised.

The Board of Directors is fully committed to the strategy, since it was involved in its development and
approval and considers it in the performance of its duties. The Audit, Control and Related Party
Transactions Committee oversees financial and sustainability information, internal control, risk
management and compliance systems, and the Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance
Committee assists and informs the Board of Directors with regard to alignment with market trends
and the Company's ESG needs, with the aim of also providing investors with more transparent and
exhaustive information on matters relating to Corporate Governance and Sustainability.

At EDPR, the risk management function follows a three lines of defence governance model, in which
Board of Directors, Management Team, the Audit, Control and Related Parties Committee play arole
on the implementation of risk strategy, definition of risk strategy and supervision of risk strategy
implementation.

As previously referred to guarantee that the strategy is defined taking into consideration the risks,
opportunities and potential impacts, Risk Management is also part of key committees, namely
Investment Committees, Regulatory Committees, among others.

Additional, the Risk Management functions has Risk Committees where the CFO of EDP Renovaveis
and Heads of key Regions as well as relevant functions are present, to follow up and discuss relevant
matters regarding risk strategy.
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GOV-2_03 - Disclosure of list of material impacts, risks and opportunities
addressed by administrative, management and supervisory bodies or their relevant
committees

The material impacts, risks, and opportunities are presented to the Board of Directors of EDPR in
various structured and detailed ways through: a) Monthly Reports; b) Quarterly Reports; ¢) Annual
assessments.

Following the Double Materiality analysis, all the impacts, risks and opportunities were presented to
the Board of Directors.

When defining its strategy, EDP Renovdveis considers and assesses material impacts, risks, and
opportunities of various natures related to its activities. These assessments are conducted based on
the Platform and Region Level of the company. The primary guideline for this process is the Climate
Transition, which is supported through a robust strategy that includes assessing climate risks and
opportunities, aligning with international climate goals, and engaging with stakeholders.

EDPR already has in place a comprehensive risk management framework to identify and assess
sustainability related risks. This includes environmental, social, and governance (ESG) risks across
our value chain that could impact our operations, reputation, and financial performance. Based on
in-depth knowledge of the organisation and the context in which it operates, it is possible to
determine the most relevant aspects, namely those that may impact or be impacted by EDPR
business.

Specifically for the Audit, Control and Related Parties Committee, the Risk Management function,
meets quarterly to provide an overview of the most relevant impacts, risks and opportunities, namely
presenting EDPR’s Risk Appetite Dashboard, and the Annual Risk Map. Additional, the Risk
Management functions has Risk Committees where the CFO of EDP Renovdveis and Heads of key
Regions as well as relevant functions are present, where the list of material impacts, risks and
opportunities are addressed periodically.

GOV-3_01- Incentive schemes and remuneration policies linked to sustainability
matters for members of administrative, management and supervisory bodies exist /
GOV-3_02 - Description of key characteristics of incentive schemes

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee is responsible for defining the proposal for the
Remuneration Policy for the members of the Board of Directors of EDP Renovadveis. The General
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Meeting of 4 April 2024 approved the updating of the Remuneration Policy for EDP Renovadveis'
Directors for the period 2023-2025.

The Remuneration Policy for 2023-2025 establishes a fixed component for all members of the
Board of Directors and a variable component (with an annual part and a multi-annual part) for
Executive Directors. The variable component is consistent with maximising the company's long-
term profits, in order to meet the most demanding objectives of the Business Plan, thus ensuring that
the performance of the management bodies is aligned with the interests of the shareholders.

It should be noted that the quantitative component is associated, among other factors, with ESG
indicators, which have a weight of 20% in the annual component and 25% in the multi-annual
component.

GOV-3_03 - Description of specific sustainability-related targets and (or) impacts
used to assess performance of members of administrative, management and
supervisory bodies

The variable component of the Executive Directors' remuneration is calculated taking into account,
among other factors, the ESG indicators, as described in the Remuneration Policy. ESG indicators
are used to determine both the annual and multi-annual components of the variable remuneration.

With regard to the annual component, the ESG indicators considered include the Dow Jones
Sustainability Index results, the total frequency rate and the performance results in the annual
employee climate survey. For the multi-year component, the ESG performance indicators
considered are the total renewables MWs build-out and the Bloomberg Gender Index Performance.

GOV-3_04 - Disclosure of how sustainability-related performance metrics are
considered as performance benchmarks or included in remuneration policies

The ESG performance indicators used to determine the variable component of members'
remuneration include benchmarks for the annual and multi-annual components. In the annual
component, the main indicators considered include Performance in the Dow Jones Sustainability
Index (10%), Total Frequency Rate (5%), Climate Survey Results (5%). In the multi-annual
component, the main indicators considered include Total MW of renewable energy built (20%),
Performance in the Bloomberg Gender Equality Index (5%).
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GOV-3_0b - Percentage of variable remuneration dependent on sustainability -
related targets and (or) impacts

REMUNERATION DEPENDENT ON SUSTAINABILITY UN 2024
Percentage of variable remuneration dependent on sustainability-related o 20
targets and (or) impacts - Annual Variable Remuneration °
Percentage of variable remuneration dependent on sustainability-related o o5

(o]

targets and (or) impacts - Multiannual Variable Remuneration

GOV-3_06 - Description of level in undertaking at which terms of incentive
schemes are approved and updated

The Remuneration Policy for the members of EDPR’s Board of Directors is approved by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting on a proposal from the Appointments and Remuneration Committee. An
updated version of the Remuneration Policy is submitted to the General Meeting for approval at least
every three years, or whenever a significant change occurs.

The General Shareholders' Meeting of EDP Renovdveis held on 4 April 2024 approved an update to
the Remuneration Policy for the period 2023-2025.

In this regard, a new Remuneration Policy of EDP Renovdveis, S.A. for the period 2026-2028 is
expected to be renewed or, as the case may be, approved at the general meeting to be held in April
2025.

GOV-4_01- Disclosure of mapping of information provided in sustainability
statement about due diligence process

EDPR's due diligence process is a comprehensive approach to integrating sustainability into all
aspects of our operations. The core elements of this process include:

- Embedding sustainability due diligence - This involves incorporating sustainability
considerations into governance structures, strategic planning, and business models. It ensures
that sustainability is a fundamental part of decision-making at all levels of the organization and
integrated in the company business plan. (ESRS 2: GOV -1, GOV-2, GOV-3, SBM-3)

- Double materiality assessment - The structuring process of EDPR’s Due Diligence process is
the materiality assessment. EDPR employs a double materiality assessment to identify the main
material topics for the company and its stakeholders, identifying both the topics that are
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significant for stakeholders, including their social and environmental impacts and the topics that
are significant for EDP's business operations, including financial impacts, risks, and opportunities.
(ESRS 2: GOV-2,IRO-1)

- Engaging with affected stakeholders - EDPR actively involves stakeholders, enabling the
company to understand their concerns and expectations, ensuring that our actions are aligned
with their interests. (ESRS 2 SBM-2, MDR-P; S1-2,S2-2,S3-2)

- Identifying and assessing adverse impacts - EDPR systematically identifies and assesses
potential adverse impacts on society and the environment. This assessment helps prioritize
actions and allocate resources effectively. (ESRS 2: IRO-1, SMB-3)

- Taking actions to address adverse impacts - Based on these assessments, EDPR implements
targeted actions to mitigate or eliminate adverse impacts. These actions are integrated into the
broader sustainability strategies and plans. (ESRS 2: MDR-A; E1-3, E4-3, E5-2, S1-4, S2-4,
S3-4)

- Tracking effectiveness and communicating - EDPR monitors the effectiveness of the efforts
through established metrics and targets. Regular reporting ensures transparency and
accountability, allowing stakeholders to track progress and hold EDPR accountable. (ESRS 2:
MDR-M, MDR-T; E1-4,E4-4,E5-3,81-5,S2-5,S3-5).

GOV-5_01- Description of scope, main features and components of risk
management and internal control processes and systems inrelation to
sustainability reporting

EDPR is committed to implementing robust and effective governance practices to ensure proper
oversight of our sustainability initiatives. Our governance structure is designed to integrate
sustainability at all levels of the organization, ensuring that strategic and operational decisions
consider environmental, social, and governance (ESG) impacts. To make this happen, the
component of Risk Management and internal controls over sustainability must be one of the drivers
of the company's governance in terms of sustainability.

Taking all these aspects into consideration, EDPR is developing a project to implement an Internal
Control System over Sustainability Reporting (ICSSR) under the shared management of the areas of
Ethics & Compliance and Investor Relations & ESG.

This project is based on: (i) a scope definition model, which includes the calculation, assessment,
and documentation of double materiality exercise, as well as the identification of mandatory
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disclosures in line with the assumptions and obligations arising from current regulations for EDPR; (ii)
a gap analysis of sustainability reporting disclosures, focusing on mandatory information, mapping
the processes, and identifying reporting disclosures risks associated with those processes; (iii) the
identification and gap analysis of controls; and (iv) the definition of an implementation plan to
address the identified gaps.

GOV-5_02 - Description of risk assessment approach followed

EDPR applies a comprehensive risk management framework to identify and assess sustainability-
related risks. This includes environmental, social, and governance (ESG) risks across our value chain
that could impact our operations, reputation, and financial performance.

The aim of the Risk Assessment phase is to identify the sources of risk, and subsequently assess
whether they could result in a material misstatement in the Sustainability Disclosures. Risk
assessment has two distinct parts: (i) identifying the risk (realising "what could go wrong"); and (ii)
evaluating the risk (determining the significance of each risk). The internal methodology that is being
defined for Risk Assessment in the Sustainability Disclosures consists of characterising two
dimensions of risk. The first is Magnitude and the second dimension is Likelihood, which evaluates
the probability of identified risks materializing.

GOV-5_03 - Description of mainrisks identified and their mitigation strategies

Since the mentioned project is still ongoing, we are currently in the phase of mapping that risks,
processes, and controls. Globally, the risks being mapped are related to: (i) completeness and
integrity of the data (risks associated with missing or incomplete data and ensuring the reliability
and accuracy of the information collected), (ii) accuracy of estimation results (risks related to
potential errors or inaccuracies in estimation methodologies or calculations) and (iii) timely
availability of information across the entire data reporting value chain (risks concerning delays in
data collection, processing or reporting that could impact reporting timelines), among others.

To address these risks, mitigation strategies are being developed and will be implemented, which
will include, for example, implementing robust data validation and verification procedures to ensure
completeness and accuracy; enhancing estimation methodologies and documentation standards to
minimize errors and inconsistencies in results; streamlining data collection and reporting processes
by defining clear roles, responsibilities, and timelines across the value chain to ensure timely
availability of information; establishing automated systems and tools to improve data quality and
reduce manual interventions; developing training programs for internal teams to strengthen their
understanding of the reporting requirements and processes.
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For the next reporting period, EDPR aims to provide more detailed information on this matter.

GOV-5_04 - Description of how findings of risk assessment and internal controls
as regards sustainability reporting process have been integrated into relevant
internal functions and processes

Since the mentioned project is still ongoing, we are currently in the phase of mapping processes,
identifying associated risks and defining controls.

Once this phase is complete, the findings will be systematically integrated into relevant internal
functions and processes. This integration will involve: i) Ensuring that identified risks and controls are
assigned to appropriate teams or departments for oversight and management; ii) Embedding the
findings into key processes, such as data collection, validation, and reporting, to ensure consistency
and reliability in sustainability disclosures; iii) Addressing identified gaps by defining action plans,
implementing new controls, and improving existing procedures to minimize risks; iv) Providing
targeted training to internal teams to ensure understanding of updated processes and controls, as
well as the implications for sustainability reporting; v) Establishing mechanisms for ongoing
monitoring and periodic review to assess the effectiveness of integrated processes and controls,
making adjustments as necessary.

GOV-5_0b - Description of periodic reporting of findings of risk assessment and
internal controls to administrative, management and supervisory bodies

Once the implementation project of the Internal Control System over Sustainability Reporting is
completed, the periodic reporting to the supervisory bodies should follow the same reporting line as
the other internal control matters of EDPR. On a quarterly basis, or whenever requested or deemed
necessary, Ethics & Compliance reports to the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions
Committee on the status of the ICSSR's work:

Monitoring the annual activity plan, approved by the Audit, Control and Related Party
Transactions Committee.

Monitoring the External Auditor's work on the ICSSR assessment (when applicable).

Monitoring the design and effectiveness non-conformities and/or opportunities for improvement,
respective implementation plans, dates and implementation status (if applicable).

Other matters deemed relevant in the respective reporting period.
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SBM-1_01 - Description of significant groups of products and (or) services offered

EDPR offers arange of products and services, such as:

Site identification and grid connection: search for sites with top-class wind conditions or
irradiance resource and analyse grid connection feasibility.

Renewable resources analysis: install meteorological equipment to collect and study wind profile
and solar radiance.

Design layout & equipment choice: optimise the layout of the asset and select the best fit of
equipment model based on the site characteristics.

Construction: build access roads, prepare foundations, assemble wind turbines or solar panels,
construct substation.

Ongoing maintenance service of power plants.

Data analysis: monitor real-time operational data, analyse performance and identify
opportunities for improvement.

SBM-1_02 - Description of significant markets and (or) customer groups served

EDPR serves a diverse range of significant markets across the globe. Here is a description of these
markets, mainly in five regions:

in Iberia, it mainly operates in wind and solar energy projects

in Europe, in addition to Iberiaq, it is present in other European countries, focusing on renewable
energy

in North America, it operates in the United States, Canada and Mexico, with significant
investments in wind and solar energy projects. The company is one of the largest renewable
energy operators inthe US

in South America, where the company is expanding its renewable energy footprint, particularly in
wind and solar energy

in Asia-Pacific, it has investments in solar energy.
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SBM-1_03 - Total number of employees (head count)

EMPLOYEE HEAD COUNT BY REGION UN 2024
lberia # 931
Rest of Europe # 415
South America # 170
North America # 1,060
Asia Pacific # 359
Total # 2,935

SBM-1_06 - Total revenue

REVENUE UN EUROPE NORTHAMERICA D00 APAC SEGMENTS TOTAL
AMERICA

Revenues 000€ 1,003,014 808,961 53,944 136,080 2,001,999
Income frpm.lnstltutlonol ‘ 000€ 0 303108 . . 303108
partnerships in North America

000€ 1,003,014 1,112,069 53,944 136,080 2,305,107
REVENUE UN 2024
Revenues of the Reported Segments 000€ 2,305,107
Revenues of Other Segments 000€ 35,982
Elimination of intra-segment transactions 000€ -21,259
Revenues of the EDPR Group 000€ 2,319,830

SBM-1_21- Description of sustainability-related goals in terms of significant
groups of products and services, customer categories, geographical areas and
relationships with stakeholders / SBM-1_22 - Disclosure of assessment of current
significant products and (or) services, and significant markets and customer
groups, inrelation to sustainability-related goals

The EDPR's goals for 2026 are as follows:
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In terms of decarbonisation, the goal is to achieve approximately 10 GW of renewable capacity
additions between the years 2024 and 2026

+ Regarding communities, EDPR plans to invest approximately 16 million euros in social initiatives
until 2026 and make over 2,000 new hires

Concerning the planet, the goal is to recover 85% of waste annually

+ For partners, EDPR aims to have 100% of suppliers compliant with ESG due diligence and align
90% of the purchase volume with the company's ESG goals

In the area of ESG culture, EDPR aims to have zero fatal accidents, achieve 36% woman
employees, and 31% female leadership.

These targets are being monitored, and EDPR continues to actively contribute to them, focusing on
capital allocation to prioritize the most attractive returns.

SBM-1_23 - Disclosure of elements of strategy that relate to or impact
sustainability matters

By producing clean energy, EDPR is working every day to achieve Net Zero, while operating with the
best ESG practices along the value chain. The Company will Decarbonize for a climate-positive
world, while empowering its Communities for an active role in the transition, protecting the Planet
and engaging its Partners.

To take early action in the energy transition and be better positioned to seize the opportunities
presented by this shift, EDPR in its Business Plan clearly reaffirms the Company’s commitment to
step-up to the Net Zero challenge and create superior value as a leading pure renewables player,
focused on profitable and diversified growth backed by a solid investment plan.

EDPR will keep on managing the value chain in its entirety in order to ensure the delivery of
competitive and quality projects at the highest excellence standards. Supplier base diversification,
strong ESG audit requirements and manufacturing origin are the key elements that define our
procurement strategy.

SBM-1_25 - Description of business model and value chain

The value chain of EDPR can be divided into three main phases: upstream, own operations, and
downstream.
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In the upstream phase, there is the supply chain, namely:

suppliers of raw materials for electricity production, such as materials for renewable energy
assets. The logistics and transportation of raw materials to the energy generation facilities are
also part of this phase

contractors and subcontractors, such as construction workers and individuals working on
maintenance of facilities

service providers, such as workers providing services for EDPR.

In its own operations, EDPR focuses on generating electricity from renewable sources such as wind
and solar. The company also implements energy storage solutions to ensure the efficient and safe
delivery of electricity to consumers.

The business model of EDPR is based on four main areas which are Development, Construction,
Operation and Dismantling/Repowering:

Development

Site identification and resources analysis: search for sites with top-class conditions, analyse grid
connections and meteorological equipment to study wind profiles and solar radiance

Obtaining permits: engage with local public authorities to secure environmental, construction,
operating, and other licenses

Design layout and equipment choice: optimise the layout of the asset and select the best fit of
equipment model based on site characteristics

Origination and funding: secure long-term contracts for energy sale with stable and predictable
cash flows and find appropriate financing for the project.

Construction
Procurement: source major equipment and construction contracts globally

Construction: build access roads, prepare foundations, assemble wind turbines or solar panels,
and construct substations.
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Operation

Start of operations and deliver clean energy: initiate operations to generate and deliver clean
energy

Ongoing maintenance service: keep availability figures at the highest level possible and minimise
failure rates

Data analysis: monitor real-time operational data, analyse performance, and identify
opportunities for improvement

Risk and energy management: mitigate market exposure and manage energy sales.
Dismantling/Repowering

End of Life: once wind farms and solar plants reach the end of their useful life (30-35 years), wind
turbines and solar panels need to be assessed and replaced

Efficiency: EDPR increases power generated by reducing the overall number of wind turbines and
replacing them with more efficient machines.

In the downstream phase, EDPR is dedicated to providing clean energy solutions. EDPR's end users
include technology and industrial companies that are looking for clean energy solutions and
retailers.

SBM-1_26 - Description of inputs and approach to gathering, developing and
securing inputs

The value chain is impacted by various stakeholders and market trends and forces. EDPR has
several resources that impact the value chain, including:

financial resources such as third-party capital, income, financing, stocks
infrastructural resources such as assets and other facilities (such as raw materials)
intellectual resources such as brand, patent, innovation and partnerships

human resources such as employees and suppliers

social resources such as qualified skills of employees and suppliers and business partnerships
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natural resources such as renewable resources (wind and solar).

SBM-1_27 - Description of outputs and outcomes in terms of current and expected
benefits for customers, investors and other stakeholders

The results obtained and their respective impacts were as follows:

at the financial level, profits and remuneration of third-party capital and dividends were obtained,
financial risks were minimized and debt was reduced

at the infrastructure level, the quality and efficiency of the energy supply was guaranteed and the
safety of facilities and equipment was promoted

at the intellectual level, it was ensured that products and services are innovative and knowledge
was generated by promoting innovation and research and capitalizing on acquired knowledge

at the human resources level, a diverse workforce was ensured by promoting diversity and equal
opportunities, an adequate amount of training by promoting the development of employee skills,
remuneration and social benefits for employees by promoting employee satisfaction, and
occupational health and safety were promoted

at the social level, the brand's reputation and recognition were maintained, social investment and
volunteering were promoted, and the contractual relationship with suppliers was taken
advantage of to develop these stakeholders

at the natural value level, emissions were reduced, consumption of natural resources was
reduced, and energy consumption was reduced through energy efficiency measures, as well as
biodiversity was preserved.

SBM-1_28 - Description of main features of upstream and downstream value chain
and undertakings position in value chain

The value chain of EDPR can be divided into three main phases: upstream, own operations, and
downstream.
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In the upstream phase, there is the supply chain, namely:

suppliers of raw materials for electricity production, such as materials for renewable energy
assets. The logistics and transportation of raw materials to the energy generation facilities are
also part of this phase

contractors and subcontractors, such as construction workers and individuals working on
maintenance of facilities

service providers, such as workers providing services for EDPR.

EDPR works with a vast network of suppliers that provide raw materials, components, and essential
services for its operations. These suppliers provide raw materials for electricity production, wind
turbines and solar panels for EDPR's wind and solar farms, automation and electrification solutions,
and equipment and solutions for energy generation. EDPR maintains a relationship based on trust,
collaboration, and the creation of shared value, ensuring the quality and sustainability of the
materials and services acquired.

In its own operations, EDPR focuses on generating electricity from renewable sources such as wind
and solar. The company also implements energy storage solutions to ensure the efficient and safe
delivery of electricity to consumers.

In the downstream phase, EDPR is dedicated to providing clean energy solutions.

EDPR's end users include technology and industrial companies that are looking for clean energy
solutions and retailers. EDPR maintains a close relationship with these stakeholders, offering
technical support, electric mobility solutions and energy efficiency programmes to help reduce
energy consumption and carbon emissions.

SBM-2_01- Description of stakeholder engagement

EDPR has a Stakeholder Management Policy, under permanent update for the Board of Directors by
the Stakeholder team. This Policy had a further Methodology published and a specific Local
Stakeholder Engagement Policy published in 2023, with an extensive set of Procedures approved
by the Management Team and shared only under internal communication.

The Stakeholder engagement has a Strategic Vision, Mission and Objectives subject to public
evidence under the Policy and EDPR website under stakeholders (out policy/ our stakeholders/
transparency). Its methodology requires an internal and an external views withdrawn from
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independent assessments, from which an action plan has to be drawn, with specific monitoring and
reporting criteria, defined per project and project phase.

Within double materiality assessment:
Own workforce

« Internal Studies - The results of the employees’ climate study were used to analyse EDPR
employees' perceptions on several relevant ESG topics

- Meetings with Focal Points - Direct evaluations of IROs (Impact, Risks and Opportunities) were
conducted with several internal focal points. These focal points assessed their assigned risks and
opportunities using defined scales and criteria. This evaluation involved key departments,
covering all Platforms and Regions.

Workers in the value chain

- Surveys: EDPR developed and distributed surveys to several suppliers to gather insights on
potential impacts.

Surveys were structured around key questions where stakeholders assessed EDPR’s impacts on
the environment and society for potential material topics. They were asked to rate these impacts
on a scale from -4 (significant negative impact) to 4 (significant positive impact). Additionally,
stakeholders were asked to choose 3 topics that they felt most knowledgeable about,
considering EDPR’s activities. Stakeholders were then asked to assess EDPR’s impacts on
environment and society for the potential material sub-topics of the selected topics. The scale for
the sub-topics assessment was the same (from -4 to 4). Finally, suppliers were invited to list any
additional topics they believed were important but had not yet been covered in the survey.

Affected communities

- EDPR has established stakeholder management procedures and a Local Stakeholder
Engagement Policy to ensure effective community engagement. These procedures outline the
steps for identifying, segmenting, and prioritizing stakeholders, as well as methods for
engagement and performance monitoring. The Local Stakeholder Engagement Policy supports
these procedures by detailing the responsibilities and governance for affected community
engagement. EDPR teams gather information about affected communities' concerns through
internal focal points, who act as direct links between EDPR and these communities. This ensures
that the perspectives of affected communities inform decisions and activities aimed at managing

Index Part | 166

actual and potential impacts. The procedures also include methods for continuous disclosure,
consultation, and reporting to stakeholders, ensuring transparency and responsiveness to
community needs.

The double materiality assessment, included focal points that when consulted would ensure that
community perspectives and concerns were considered and included in the evaluation of IROs.

The process for affected stakeholder consultation is described in IRO-1_05.

SBM-2_02 - Description of key stakeholders / SBM-2_03 - Description of
categories of stakeholders for which engagement occurs / SBM-2_04 -
Description of how stakeholder engagement is organised

There are 24 different groups identified, under the 4 main groups of stakeholders: Democracy,
Market, Value Chain and Social/local communities. These have a further description disclosed at
the Policy, Methodology and at EDPR's website.

The Value Chain segment tends to value as critical issues such as: energy tariffs and prices, climate
change (namely the promotion of energy efficiency in consumption) and innovation.

The Market segment considers critical issues such as financial sustainability (including debt,
macroeconomic context and the EDPR’s strategy) and regulations, fees and subsidies (regulatory
context).

The Democracy segment identifies as the most relevant issues climate change, promoting energy
efficiency in consumption, investment in renewable energies and energy tariffs and prices (tariff
deficit).

The Social and Local Communities segment gives particular emphasis to issues such as climate
change (promoting energy efficiency in consumption and investment in renewable energies) and
rates and energy prices (price of electricity and tariff deficit); engaging through energy transition's
impacts on communities and biodiversity, preventing major shock waves and promoting shared
value approaches.
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During 2024 EDPR actively engaged with Institutional Stakeholders (European Council, European
Parliament and European Commission) on the future priorities of the EU in the energy and climate
policy domain, either directly or in the framework of public consultations, leveraging in many
instances on the advocacy activities of associations.
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EDPR has advocated for a continuous commitment of the EU in the decarbonization journey, as a
way to ensure climate neutrality, while also contributing to competitiveness and security:

a. prioritizing the objectives of the EU Green Deal policies and legislations focusing on investments
in renewables, storage, power grids and electrification technologies. This will work geo
strategically as an engine of growth and security (Joint Statement of June 2024, cosigned with
EU companies, associations, local entities and NGOs).

b. similar actions were taken at the main European sectoral associations, in particular Eurelectric,
WindEurope, Solar Power Europe, or EASE.

Also highlighting another fundamental engagement process that EDPR pursues with its European
Union Stakeholder, the European Funds.

EDPR is deeply committed to identifying and securing European funding opportunities to support
innovative projects that align with our strategic goals of sustainability, innovation, and energy
transition. By actively engaging with European funding mechanisms such as Horizon Europe, the
Innovation Fund, and national programs such as Recovery and Resilient Plan, EDPR strives to
accelerate the development and implementation of cutting-edge solutions that address critical
challenges inrenewable energy, decarbonization, and digital transformation.

2024 was an especially productive year on fund applications, with tens of proposals submitted
(most still waiting for results). Among the highlights are two projects approved under the highly
competitive Innovation Fund, the EU’s most prestigious funding program. One of the projects
approved was EDPR Green Ammonia in Spain, focusing on producing green ammonia at the off-
taker facility using innovative electrolysis technology to channel hydrogen produced at the Abofno
plant.

SBM-2_05 - Description of purpose of stakeholder engagement / SBM-2_06 -
Description of how outcome of stakeholder engagement is taken into account /
SBM-2_07 - Description of understanding of interests and views of key
stakeholders as they relate to undertaking's strategy and business model

The Stakeholder engagement has a Strategic Vision, Mission and Objectives subject to public
evidence under the Policy and EDPR website under stakeholder management approach. Its
methodology requires internal and external views withdrawn from independent assessments, from
which an action plan has to be drawn, with specific monitoring and reporting criteria, defined per
project and project phase.
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The involvement of Stakeholders in governance models is more than an example of good business
practice: it is a competitive lever with a positive impact on the EDPR’s performance.

The goals are:

To dynamically and systematically identify the Stakeholders that influence and are influenced by
the activities of EDPR

To be familiar with the perceptions EDPR Stakeholders have of the company and what issues
they consider relevant in to interaction with the organization

To strengthen the relationship of trust, transparency and proximity to all EDPR Stakeholders
To integrate Stakeholders’ expectations with the management of the EDPR
To identify emerging risks and opportunities in the relationship with the Stakeholders

To identify, explore and develop new opportunities to create value either through dialogue with
the various areas and business units of EDPR or through the promotion of many-levered projects
with the Stakeholders

To turn the Stakeholder management into a tangible exercise with a positive impact in the
company.

SBM-2_08 - Description of amendments to strategy and (or) business model /
SBM-2_09 - Description of how strategy and (or) business model have been
amended or are expected to be amended to address interests and views of
stakeholders

There were no amendments to EDPR’s strategy or business model.

SBM-2_10 - Description of any further steps that are being planned and in what
timeline

The strategy for stakeholder management will remain, although developing further tools towards
measuring impact and outcomes of community engagement (also developed in external groups at
global associations like WBCSD or WEF), as well as the content enhancement for advocacy and
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positioning on the energy transition, with the SCOPE 360 project with coordinators from all EDPR
Regions.

SBM-2_11 - Further steps that are being planned are likely to modify relationship
with and views of stakeholders

Affected Communities will have a deeper and further assessment, fastening the preventive side of
operation, avoiding risk and promoting the energy transition. The SCOPE 360 tool will also reinforce
EDPR positioning at major external entities, promoting an intelligence sharing and knowledge
assisting on all strategy plans defined ahead, as well as assisting the Board through systemic and
better prepared intelligence.

SBM-2_12 - Description of how administrative, management and supervisory
bodies are informed about views and interests of affected stakeholders with regard
to sustainability-related impacts

The Board of Directors and the Management Team are permanently informed on stakeholder
engagement developments, at various levels of stakeholder management, being so the Regulation
updates, the Global Policy updates and the annual presentations on stakeholder engagement at
External Representation entities and Local Community operations.
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SBM-3_01 - Description of material impacts resulting from materiality assessment
S$1- Own workforce: material impacts

E1- Climate change: material impacts

Positive vs. Actual vs. TimeHorizon  Value chainorigin
negative potential Positive vs. Actual vs. TimeHorizon  Value chain origin
Climate adaptation strategy Upstream negative potential
Climate adaptation plans ensure Positive Actual n/a Direct operations Diverse and inclusive workplace
infrastructure resilience Creating a workplace that embraces  Positive Actual n/a Direct operations
Greenhouse gas emissions diversity fosters a fairer society
High GHG emissions from ener . Upstreom . i i
gh™ . 9y Negative Actual n/a Direct operations Wage d.lsparl.ty . .
OCtlleeS Worse.n climate Chcnge and Downstream Woge d|SpOr|t|eS based on |dent|ty
environmental impact factors perpetuate financial N . : .
Climate mitigation strategy inequality, limit career growth, and egative Actual n/a Direct operations
Climate mitigation strategies reduce Positive Actual n/a Direct operations reduce job satisfaction, motivation,
GHG emissions and productivity
Low carbon solutions Inclusive recruitment
Investing in renewable energy and Positive Actudl n/a Upstream Employing people with disabilities
efficiency helps mitigate climate Direct operations promotes their financial stability, Positive Actual n/a Direct operations
change growth, social integration, and a more
Decentralized generation inclusive society
Decentralized renewable energy Positive Actual n/a Direct operations Fair and equal career opportunities
reduces reliance on fossil fuels Equal career opportunities promote  Positive Actual n/a Direct operations
diversity and motivation
. . . . g Injuries and ilinesses
E4 - Biodiversity and ecosystems: material impacts |nédequote health and safety Upstream
measures lead to injuries and Negative Actual n/a Direct operations
illnesses, which can result in harmful Downstream
Positive vs. Actual vs. ) ) ) o consequences for individuals' safety
. . Time Horizon Value chain origin Safety culture
negthe potentlol Safety initiatives reduce accidents . . .
Biodiversity loss and habitat and ensure a healthy work Positive Actual n/a Direct operations
degrqc!qtmn . . Negative Actual n/a Direct operations environment
Operations can cause biodiversity Mental issues awareness
loss and habitat degradation Mental health initiatives promotea  Positive Actual n/a Direct operations

healthy work environment

Psychosocial risk assessment

Assessment of psychosocial risks

among employees, contributing to the Positive Actual n/a Direct operations
improvement of working conditions

and the promoting mental health

E5 - Resource use and circular economy: material impacts

Positive vs. Actual vs. Flexible working setups

negotive potentiol Time Horizon Value chain origin Eljléi:iworking improves work-life  Positive Actual n/a Direct operations

Improving operational efficiency
and moving towards circular
practices

Recycling and upcycling reduce
environmental impact and preserve
resources

Preventive health care programs

Health programs promote a safe,
Positive Potential Short-term Direct operations healthy work environment, provide
access to support services, educate
on preventative care, and foster well-
being

Positive Actual n/a Direct operations
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Positive vs.
negative

Actual vs.

potential

Time Horizon

Value chain origin

Failure to meet a well-being culture

Failing to prioritize reasonable

working hours and discouraging work Negative
overload can lead to increased stress

and burnout, harm work-life balance

Actual

n/a

Direct operations

Index

Part |

Employee social support
Psychosocial support services Positive
improve employee well-being

Actual

n/a

Direct operations

Worker participation and

consultation

Worker participation and involved in  Positive
decision-making, enhances

communication and engagement

Actual

n/a

Direct operations

Positive vs. Actual vs. : : o
: . Time Horizon Value chain origin

negative potential

Inappropriate labour practices

Neglecting to monitor working

conditions can lead to labour . . . Upstream

o . Negative Potential Medium-Term . .

exploitation, human rights abuses, Direct operations

and discrimination, harming

individuals and society

ESG criteria consideration

ESG factors in supplier selection Positive Actual n/a Upstream

create a win-win for businesses
society and environment

Direct operations

Undermining human development

Forced labour hinders international
development goals by perpetuating  Negative
poverty, inequality, and social

injustice

Potential

Medium-Term

Upstream

Professional growth and career
progression

Career paths, mentorship, and
leadership development boost
motivation, purpose, growth, and
workforce well-being

Positive

Actual

n/a

Direct operations

Establish collaborative relations
with employee representatives
Maintaining constructive relations
with official bodies and employee
representatives enhances their voice,
rights, well-being, and satisfaction

Positive

Actuadl

n/a

Direct operations

S2 - Workers in the value chain: material impacts

S3 - Affected communities: material impacts

Positive vs.
negative

Energy access and affordability
Reliable energy access improves Positive
quality of life for communities

Actual vs.
potential

Actual

Time Horizon

n/a

Value chain origin

Direct operations

G1- Business conduct : material impacts

Positive vs. Actual vs. : : o
: : Time Horizon  Value chainorigin
negative potential
Transparent disclosure of
sustainability practices . . .
Strengthening ESG disclosure fosters Positive Actual n/a Direct operations
stakeholder trust
Informed consumer choice
Ethical market practices ensure Upstream
transparency about products and Positive Actual n/a Direct operations
supply chains, allowing customers to Downstream

make informed, ethical choices

Positive vs. Actual vs. : : L
: . Time Horizon Value chain origin

negative potential

Undermining human development

Forced labour hinders international

development goals by perpetuating  Negative Potential Medium-Term Upstream

poverty, inequality, and sociall

injustice

Actlv_e supphey sqreenmg . Upstream

Ensuring suppliers' ESG compliance . . .

. Positive Actual n/a Direct operations
guarantees strategic alignment and Downstream

mitigates supply chain constraints
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Positive vs. Actual vs. : : o
: : Time Horizon Value chain origin
negative potential
Transparent communication with
SOOI LD Positive Actual n/a Direct operations

Efficient communication reduces
risks and builds strong relationships

Healthy corporate environment
Ethical practices enhance employee Positive Actual n/a
well-being and engagement

Direct operations
Downstream

Entity-specific - Fair energy transition: material impacts

Positive vs. Actual vs.

: : TimeHorizon  Value chainorigin
negative potential

Requalification and job creation
Reskilling initiatives reduce Positive Actual n/a Direct operations
unemployment and stimulate growth

Entity-specific - Digital transformation and innovation: material impacts
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Entity-specific -Business continuity & resilience: material impacts

Positive vs. Actual vs. : : o
: : Time Horizon  Value chainorigin
negative potential
Infrastructure failure leading to
service disruption
Insufficiently resilient infrastructure Upstream
can cause service outages, disrupting Negative Potential Medium-Term Direct operations
consumers and the broader Downstream

economy, including businesses,
healthcare, and daily life

SBM-3_02 - Description of material risks and opportunities resulting from
materiality assessment

E1- Climate change: material risks and opportunities

Positive vs. Actual vs. : : L
: . Time Horizon Value chain origin

negative potential

Job reductions

Digital transformation and Al could Upstream

change job profiles, leading to the Negative Potential Medium-Term Dp .

L2 . . irect operations

extinction of some jobs and causing

labour unrest

Widening social inequalities

Focusing on unaffordable . . . Upstream
Negative Potential Medium-Term

technologies can worsen social
inequities

Direct operations

Entity-specific - Responsible investment and sustainable finance: material impacts

Positive vs. Actual vs. : : o
: . Time Horizon Value chain origin
negative potential
Positive impact projects
Investing in ESG-focused projects Positive Potential Long-Term Direct operations

can greatly benefit the environment
and society

Risk / Opportunity Time Horizon Value chain origin
Climate physical risks - acute
. Upstream
Severe weather events pose risks to . . - .
e . Risk Medium-Term Direct operations
facilities, increasing costs and
.. Downstream
efficiency losses
Climate physical risks - chronic
. Upstream
Long-term climate changes threaten . . .
. . Risk Long-Term Direct operations
operations, causing damage and
) . Downstream
disruptions
Climate transition risks
Depending on the nature, speed, and Upstream

focus of these changes, transitionrisks  Risk Long-Term
may pose varying levels of financial and
reputational risk

Direct operations

Energy efficiency

Energy efficiency measures lower costs Direct operations

and improve environmental Opportunity Short-Term Downstream
performance

Energy from renewable sources

e e EOON e S D] Opportunity Short-Term Direct operations

offers cost savings and reduces reliance
on non-renewable sources

Reduction of emissions and better

utilization of electricity produced

fromrenewables

Promoting electric mobility encourages = Opportunity Short-Term Direct operations
the adoption of electric vehicles to

reduce transport emissions and

optimize renewable energy use
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Risk / Opportunity Time Horizon Value chain origin

Charging infrastructure
Attract new customers and generate

revenue by offering efficient charging Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations
solutions

Decentralized generation

Diversify revenue by adopting Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations

decentralized renewable energy

E4 - Biodiversity and ecosystems: material risks and opportunities

Risk / Opportunity Time Horizon Value chain origin

Index

S$1- Own workforce: material risks and opportunities

Women in STEM

Increasing women's participation in
STEM enhances innovation,
competitiveness, and culture. Investing
in supportive initiatives ensures long-
term success in a diverse industry

Risk / Opportunity

Opportunity

Time Horizon

Long-Term

Part |

Value chain origin

Direct operations
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Fair and equal career opportunities
A positive work environment attracts
talent and drives innovation

Opportunity

Medium-Term

Direct operations

Generation diversity
A diverse workforce boosts innovation
and adaptability

Opportunity

Medium-Term

Direct operations

Inclusive working environment
Inclusivity drives innovation and
competitiveness

Opportunity

Medium-Term

Direct operations

Conservation and restoration
initiatives

Conservation and restoration initiatives
reinforces the license to operate

Opportunity Short-Term Direct operations

Safety culture

Protects employees, saves resources,
enhances culture, ensures compliance,
attracts talent, gains an edge, and
drives sustainability and growth

Opportunity

Medium-Term

Direct operations
Downstream

E5 - Resource use and circular economy: material risks and opportunities

Risk / Opportunity Time Horizon Value chain origin
Embracing circular principles
Circular principles optimize resource Opportunity Short-Term
use and promote sustainability

Upstream
Direct operations

Flexible working setups

Adaptable work arrangements increase

satisfaction, a better work-life balance
and productivity

Opportunity

Short-Term

Direct operations

Attractiveness strategy

Strong employer branding attracts
talent, retains skilled employees,
valuable knowledge and fosters robust
partnerships

Opportunity

Medium-Term

Direct operations

Resource scarcity

Resource scarcity encompasses the

restricted availability of raw materials  Risk Medium-Term
and essential inputs crucial for

production processes

Upstream
Direct operations

Depletion of knowledge due to
employee turnover

Employee turnover leads to loss of
knowledge, higher training costs,
operational disruptions, and reduced
productivity, impacting efficiency,
innovation, and financial performance

Risk

Short-Term

Direct operations

New business models

Circular economy principles enhance

sustainability, minimize waste, and Opportunity Short-Term
improve efficiency while fostering

profitability

Direct operations

Lack of talent on the job market
Talent shortages and competition
challenge recruitment

Risk

Short-Term

Upstream
Direct operations

Association and collective bargaining

Denying association and collective
bargaining can lower investor
confidence, reduce efficiency, and lead
toregulatory penalties

Risk

Short-Term

Upstream
Direct operations
Downstream
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Risk / Opportunity

Index

Time Horizon

Part |

Value chain origin
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Reduced dependence

Supplier diversification reduces reliance
on asingle supplier, minimizes
disruptions, and lowers exposure to risks

Opportunity

Medium-Term

Upstream
Direct operations

Risk / Opportunity Time Horizon Value chain origin
Career progression frameworks
Transparent career paths and
mentorship enhance skill development, Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations
productivity, engagement, retention,
and knowledge consolidation
Grievance mechanisms
Creating accessible channels for
stakeholders to voice concerns can help
minimize financial risks. Promptly Upstream
addressing issues through these Opportunity Short-Term Direct operations
channels can prevent escalation, legal Downstream

actions, or reputational harm, thereby
reducing the likelihood of financial
losses

S2 - Workers in the value chain: material risks and opportunities

Child labour in the value chain
Child labour violations result non
compliance with the law, affects
stability and damages trust

Risk / Opportunity

Risk

Time Horizon

Short-Term

Value chain origin

Upstream

Hiring process transparency
Non-transparent procurement

processes or biased selection criteria Risk
can lead to disputes with suppliers or
competitors, potentially resulting in fines

Medium-Term

Upstream

S3 - Affected communities: material risks and opportunities

Risk / Opportunity

Social dialogue and stakeholder

engagement

Effective communication through social

dialogue fosters valuable insights that ~ Opportunity
shape responsive business strategies,

enables proactive issue resolution, and

strengthens a social licence to operate

Time Horizon

Medium-Term

Value chain origin

Direct operations

Human rights due diligence

Any form of child or forced labour, or
labour rights abuses across the value
chain, can lead to indirect risks of non-
compliance, resulting in financial and
reputational consequences

Risk

Short-Term

Upstream

Community collaboration
Community collaboration, through
digital tools and virtual global
communities, fosters collective
problem-solving, innovation, and
inclusivity

Opportunity

Short-Term

Direct operations
Downstream

Grievance mechanisms

Creating accessible channels for
stakeholders to voice concerns can help
minimize financial risks. Promptly
addressing issues through these
channels can prevent escalation, legal
actions, or reputational harm, thereby
reducing the likelihood of financiall
losses

Opportunity

Short-Term

Upstream
Downstream

Grievance mechanisms

Creating accessible channels for
stakeholders to voice concerns can help
minimize financial risks. Promptly
addressing issues through these
channels can prevent escalation, legal
actions, or reputational harm, thereby
reducing the likelihood of financial
losses

Opportunity

Short-Term

Upstream
Downstream

Corporate sustainability due
diligence

Non-compliance can lead to legal
consequences, regulatory penalties,
and fines due to failing to meet
sustainability standards and legall
obligations

Risk

Medium-Term

Upstream
Direct operations

Community resistance

Community resistance canresult in
delays, increased costs, reputational
damage, or even project cancellations

Risk

Short-Term

Direct operations

Failure to address indigenous
property rights

Failing to address indigenous property
rights and failure to build trust within
communities poses legal, reputational,
financial, and operational risks

Risk

Short-Term

Upstream
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G1 - Business conduct: material risks and opportunities Risk / Opportunity  Time Horizon

Part |

Value chain origin
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Project development & innovation

Risk / Opportunity Time Horizon Value chain origin Fostering innovation through
cooperation and resource integration Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations
Fair and robust payment practices drives industry progress and generates
Limited engagement risks brand Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations ideas, leading to increased revenues
reputation and consumer trust Build strategic partnerships
Public scrutiny Building strategic partnerships fosters ~ Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations
Operating in diverse regulatory knowledge exchange
environments makes a company Effectively managing relationships
. . . Upstream

vulnerable to scrutiny over its tax Risk Short-Term Direct operations with investors
practices, with any perceived missteps Transparent interactions attractnew  Opportunity Short-Term Direct operations
potentially leading to reputational capital and align strategies with
damage and public backlash investor preferences
Representation of interests and Upstream Inappropriate media involvement Upstream
market access Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations Limited.engogement risks brand Risk Short-Term Direct operations
Representation of interests and market Downstream reputation and consumer trust Downstream

access can create growth opportunities Financial misconduct and illicit

Scrutiny from regulators practices
Engaging in unfair practices risk fines, Engaging in bribery, corruption, or

. . Risk Short-Term Direct operations ; ! ) . .
penalties, reputational damage, and money laundering results in legall Risk Short-Term Direct operations
lawsuits repercussions, financial fines, business
Accountability and transparency expansion impediments, financial
Ensuring accountability and Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations setbacks, and disruptions
transparency in business practices Compliance with ESG regulations
A thriving organizational culture Non-compliance affects investment Risk Medium-Term Direct operations
Fostering dedication and productivity ~ Opportunity Short-Term Direct operations prospects and reputation
through cultural transformation
Public perception
Misleading or incomplete reports can
distort stakeholders' perception of a Upstream Entity-specific - Fair energy transition: material risks and opportunities
company, leading to scepticism, . : .

. ) : . Risk Short-Term Direct operations
mistrust, and a negative view. This
. . Downstream
mistrust can result in loss of support,
reduced investments, and decreased
customer loyaity Risk / Opportunity ~ Time Horizon Value chain origin
Access to capital
Tronstporent cgmlrgunpstlon el Upstream Requalification and job creation
re:oczr |nghc_:c|n L:Ih p03|t|ve d Opportunity Short-Term Direct operations Implementing reskilling initiatives and
;? a IO_nsl 1 lpi}[NIt_ inves k?rs eln] Downstream supporting new job opportunities helps
tmonofl lms TUtions, enhancing access reduce unemployment, improve Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations
° Cf]p' a - — productivity, and stimulate innovation
Ethical marketing principles and economic growth in local
Aligning with consumer values boosts ~ Opportunity Short-Term Direct operations communities
sales and brand reputation
Disclosure of ESG ratings and
rankings
Reporting ESG data reinforces a Upstream
company's image, strengthen Opportunity Short-Term Direct operations
stakeholder relations, and facilitate Downstream

access to capital, leading to cost
efficiencies
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Entity-specific - Digital transformation and innovation: material risks and opportunities

Risk / Opportunity

Time Horizon

Value chain origin

Innovative projects
Reducing carbon emissions by
integrating advanced technologies

Opportunity

Long-Term

Direct operations

Index

Part |

Entity-specific - Business continuity & resilience: material risks and opportunities

175

Increasing employee productivity as a

result of technological innovation

Upstream

Risk / Opportunity Time Horizon Value chain origin
Infrastructure optimization
Embracing infrastructure improvements
Lo . Upstream

enhances reliability and resilience, . . ) .

. . . Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations
mitigates disruptions and power

. Downstream
outages, reduces operational costs, and
improves investor confidence
Disaster recovery and business
continuity plans
InSL{ff|C|ent dlgosjter recovery and Risk Short-Term Upstreom .
business continuity plans can leave a Direct operations
company exposed to prolonged
disruptions and financial losses
Social and political instability
st egors eooseeo
pany 1K€ pOlicy changes, Risk Short-Term Direct operations
corruption, and civil unrest, which can
Downstream

disrupt operations and increase
financial volatility

Increases employee knowledge and Opportunity Medium-Term : .
L . A Direct operations

productivity, improving motivation and

work-life balance

Digital products

Leveraging Al for maintenance . . Upstream

prediction, due diligence automation, Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations

and cloud security

Operational disruptions

Transitioning tg Q|g|to| platforms can Risk Short-Term Upstreom .

cause productivity losses and customer Direct operations

dissatisfaction

Operational efficiency

Digital transformotlon opt|m|zgs Opportunity Medium-Term Upstreom .

processes, leading to cost savings and Direct operations

efficiency

Innovation

Investing in cutting-edge technologies  Opportunity Medium-Term Direct operations

enhances efficiency and reputation

Entity-specific - Responsible investment and sustainable finance

Risk / Opportunity Time Horizon Value chain origin
Greenwashing allegations
Misleading practices damage
reputation and have legal Upstream
consequences, including negative Risk Short-Term Direct operations
publicity, loss of consumer trust, Downstream
regulatory investigations, fines,
decreased sales, and potential lawsuits
Reduced long-term costs
Investments in energy efficiency,
resource conservation, and renewable . . .
Opportunity Long-Term Direct operations

energy can reduce operational costs
and improve resource management
over time

Entity-specific - Information privacy and security: material impacts

Risk / Opportunity Time Horizon Value chain origin
Cyberattacks incidents
Rapid technological advancements like
: Upstream
automation and Al can create new . : .
- . Risk Short-Term Direct operations
cyber vulnerabilities, leading to
Downstream

financial, reputational, and operational
damage

SBM-3_03 - Disclosure of current and anticipated effects of material impacts, risks
and opportunities on business model, value chain, strategy and decision-making,
and how undertaking has responded or plans to respond to these effects /
SBM-3_04 - Disclosure of how material negative and positive impacts affect (or
are likely to affect) people or environment / SBM-3_05 - Disclosure of whether and

how material impacts originate from or are connected to strategy and business

model

These data points are addressed in the topical ESRS SBM-3 datapoints.
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SBM-3_06 - Disclosure of reasonably expected time horizons of material impacts /
SBM-3_07 - Description of nature of activities or business relationships through
which undertaking is involved with material impacts

Answered in the tables for datapoints SBM-3_01.

SBM-3_08 - Disclosure of current financial effects of material risks and
opportunities on financial position, financial performance and cash flows and
material risks and opportunities for which there is significant risk of material
adjustment within next annual reporting period to carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities reported in related financial statements

The main risks identified that impacted EDP Renovdveis' current financial position are related to
social and political instability, leading to policy and regulatory changes, and increased costs in doing
business.

EDP Renovadveis, decided not to proceed with the remaining investments in wind farms in this region,
concluding that the investments made will not be recovered. Consequently, the assets linked to
these projects have been impaired. The impairment of the wind portfolio in Colombia resulted in a
significant financial adjustment. As of December 31, 2024, the total impaired amount is 552,881
thousand Euros. Additionally a 118,576 thousand Euros provision was recognized regarding
guarantees granted by group companies.

No future material adjustments are foreseen at the time of this Report's publication.

SBM-3_10 - Information about resilience of strategy and business model regarding
capacity to address material impacts and risks and to take advantage of material
opportunities

This data pointis addressed in E1.SBM-3.

SBM-3_11 - Disclosure of changes to material impacts, risks and opportunities
compared to previous reporting period

Not applicable. This is the first year EDPR implementing the Double Materiality Assessment under
the CSRD.
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SBM-3_12 - Disclosure of specification of impacts, risks and opportunities that are
covered by ESRS Disclosure Requirements as opposed to those covered by
additional entity-specific disclosures

Answered in the tables for datapoints SBM-3_01(impacts) and SBM-3_02 (risks and opportunities).

IRO-1_01 - Description of methodologies and assumptions applied in process to
identify impacts, risks and opportunities

The identification of impacts, risks, and opportunities (IROs) within EDPR is established by the
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework, which is structured around four categories:
Strategic & ESG, Business, Financial, and Operational. There are several processes established that
complement each other, guaranteeing a solid and integrated risks management.

EDPR conducts detailed annual assessments of country risks for the geographies in which it
operates and performs deep-dive analyses on the risk profiles of specific business ventures. The
IROs identification walkthrough involves several steps. Firstly, EDPR reassesses its internal
operational risks through a bottom-up analysis across all departments, utilizing historical data to
update the visibility of main operational risks. This process includes the involvement of focal points
and external stakeholders to ensure a comprehensive evaluation. For example, EDPR uses tools and
methods such as the ERM Framework, stress tests, and internal company methods to identify and
manage risks.

Focusing on outside-in impacts, three wide processes are established:

Risk Map: Overview of key risks and impacts of budget and business plan execution, focusing on
business, financial and operational risks. It involves the entire group, focusing on the different
geographies and businesses. This exercise is performed annually and continuously reviewed,
monitored and updated throughout the year. The risk quantification is based on the potential loss
in EBITDA, in a P95% scenario, estimated through the application of Monte Carlo simulations.
Monte Carlo simulation, through the definition of probabilistic distributions for each risk factor/
variable, allows to simulate possible future outcomes; for each simulation, different values are
randomly generated for each of the probability distributions of the various risk variables (inputs).
The result of a Monte Carlo simulation is a probability distribution, i.e., a representation of the
different possible future outcomes and their probability of occurrence. In addition, a qualitative
assessment of the potential financial impact and probability/ likelihood of each risk is also made,
and the impact matrix for the mainrisks identified above is presented below.
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- Emerging Risks assessment: a survey of the most relevant strategic and ESG risks and impacts
on business activities and geographies. This exercise is updated every 2 years.

« Climate Risk Assessment and Quantification process: annual analysis spearheaded by the
Risk and Sustainability departments that evaluates the primary physical and transition climate
risks and opportunities across all businesses and regions. See more detail in the Climate change
section.

A more overarching process, aligned with CSRD, is the Double Materiality process described here
on:

Methodologies

Regarding the double materiality analysis and identification of potential IROs, the following
methodological approach was carried out, allowing information from multiple sources to be cross-
referenced and identify the major topics, subtopics and IROs:

- Previous EDPR's reports and materiality assessment results - the results of previous
materiality assessments conducted by EDPR were also considered.

- Desk research and benchmark analysis - conducted to identify and classify IROs based on
their relevance to EDPR’s operations and value chain.

- ESRS Topical Standards - the list of sustainability matters in the topical ESRS (ESRS 1— AR 16)
was consulted to identify material topics. This list served as a starting point, as EDPR followed the
ESRS guidance, which states that organizations must conduct their own comprehensive
assessment to determine material matters based on their specific circumstances.

- International institutions and reporting standards - relevant reporting and rating frameworks
were reviewed to identify key topics. The analysis focused on sector-specific standards.

- Internal meetings - meetings were held with key departments (IR&ESG, Risk, EU Affairs, Policy &
Stakeholders, Internal Control, People & Organisation) to identify emerging trends, risks, and
opportunities. These sessions promoted crossed-functional collaboration and helped align
insights with the company's strategic priorities and risk plans.

« Library of IROs - a library of IROs from specialized consultant was used to identify sector-
agnostic and sector-specific IROs.
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- Stakeholder engagement - surveys and consultations with stakeholders to gather insights on
potential impacts and material issues.

The process to identify IROs involved multiple iterations and reviews with various stakeholders to
finalize the list. During this process, the connections between impacts and dependencies, along with
the associated risks and opportunities, were identified and duly considered.

Impact materiality

Eachimpact was classified according to criteria defined by the ESRS, namely:

impacts were classified as actual or potential, positive or negative on people or the
environment over the short-, medium- or long-term and according to whether they related to
the upstream value chain, downstream or direct operations.

assessment criteria, methodology, and thresholds were established to provide a structured
framework for evaluating the materiality of impacts. Scales and criteria were based on EDPR’s
risk analysis methodology (by ERM) and on ESRS guidance. The scope of the assessment
included all activities of EDPR.

Assessment scales and criteria

a. Severity

« Scale: how grave the negative impact is or how beneficial the positive impact is for people or
the environment.

- Scope: how widespread the negative or positive impacts are. In the case of environmental
impacts, the scope may be understood as the extent of environmental damage or a
geographical perimeter. In the case of impacts on people, the scope may be understood as the
number of people adversely affected.

- Irremediability: whether and to what extent the negative impacts could be remediated, i.e.,
restoring the environment or affected people to their prior state.

b. Likelihood: likelihood of occurrence of identified potential impacts.
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Severity

Scale

4 - Very high

3 - High

Regarding environmental impacts, critical damage to the water, soil, air, climate, ecosystems, posing a
severe threat to ecosystems and the overall environment; Concerning impacts on people and society,
widespread and severe impact on individuals, especially those in vulnerable situations, with long-lasting
consequences.

Regarding environmental impacts, significant and potentially long-lasting impact, causing substantial
damage to the water, soil, air, climate, ecosystems; Concerning impacts on people and society, many
individuals are affected, with a notable impact on their vulnerabilities.
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Irremediability

The negative impacts cannot be remediated, even with significant effort and resources. The environmental
Irreversible damage or social damage is irreversible.

Remediation is possible, but it would be extremely challenging and expensive. It may require advanced

Long-termreversible damage ) X )
9 9 technology, extensive resources, or be achievable in the long term.

Remediation is possible, but it would be difficult and require a significant investment, or it could be
Medium- term reversible damage achievable in the medium term. It would take time and money to restore the environment or affected people
to their prior state.

2 - Medium

1- Reduced

Scope

Regarding environmental impacts, noticeable impact on the water, soil, air, climate, ecosystems, requiring
attention and mitigation efforts, but not causing severe damage; Concerning impacts on people and
society, some individuals experience a moderate impact on their vulnerabilities, requiring support or
adaptation.

Remediation is possible with minimal effort (time and cost) in the short-term. The negative impacts can be

SIS O D C EIEE ) reversed relatively easily and efficiently.

Regarding environmental impacts, the impact on the water, soil, air, climate, ecosystems is reduced;
Concerning impacts on people and society, individuals are not significantly affected, and there is little to no
impact on their economic, social, or other vulnerabilities.

Global/total

Widespread

Moderate

The impact is totally spread throughout the universe of the IRO. Regarding environmental impacts, the
extent of environmental damage or geographical perimeter is global; Concerning impacts on people and
society, the entirety of the considered universe is impacted.

The impact is significantly spread throughout the universe of the IRO, but not in its entirety. Regarding
environmental impacts, widespread extent of environmental damage or geographical perimeter;
Concerning impacts on people and society, a significant majority of the considered universe is impacted.

The impact is moderately spread throughout the universe of the IRO. Regarding environmental impacts, the
extent of environmental damage or geographical perimeter is moderate; Concerning impacts on people
and society, a moderate number of individuals in the considered universe are impacted.

Likelihood

Likelihood

Occurs punctually or regularly. It is known and could be recurrent. There are defined controls however it is

- Hi °
3 - High (>50%) likely to occur. It may be possible to prevent the event with a different approach or process.

It could happen but the Likelihood is low, or it only occurs sporadically. The threat is not expected to occur,
2 - Medium (5-50%) although the possibility is real. It is usually sufficient to prevent this type of event. There are controls in place,
but additional actions will be necessary.

Minimal

The impact is minimal in a specific location in the context of the IRO. Regarding environmental impacts, the
extent of environmental damage or geographical perimeter is minimal; Concerning impacts on people and
society, a minimal number of individuals in the considered universe are impacted.

The threat may only occur in exceptional situations. Defined controls and processes are stable and in

1-Low (<5%) operation.

Financial materiality

Eachrisk and opportunity was classified according to criteria defined by the ESRS, namely

- Risks and opportunities were classified over the short-, medium- or long-term and according to
their position in the value chain (upstream, downstream or direct operations).

- The assessment is based on their magnitude (reputation and economic impact) and likelihood,
the assessment criteria was defined by EDPR. The specific dimensions of Magnitude and their
respective assessment scales were adopted from the EDPR Risk Framework.
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Assessment scales and criteria

a. Magnitude: potential magnitude of financial effects.

b. Likelihood:likelihood of occurrence of identified risks and opportunities.
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Likelihood

Likelihood

3 - High (>50%)

Occurs punctually or regularly. It is known and could be recurrent. There are defined controls however it is
likely to occur. It may be possible to prevent the event with a different approach or process.

2 - Medium (5-50%)

It could happen but the Likelihood is low, or it only occurs sporadically. The threat is not expected to occur,
although the possibility is real. It is usually sufficient to prevent this type of event. There are controls in place,
but additional actions will be necessary.

Magnitude
Reputation
. Risk of international or national media coverage, without the possibility of mitigation and likely impact on
4 - Very high | -
the Group's credibility
3 _High Risk of national media coverage, reduced possibility of mitigation and possible impact on the Group's
9 credibility
2 - Medium Risk of local or national media diffusion and possible partial resolution
1- Reduced Risk of dissemination to arestricted group of stakeholders, with reduced media coverage and possible

resolution in its entirety

NA - Not applicable Manifestation of risk has no effect

Economic impact

4 - Very high >€100m (catastrophic if >€500m)
3 - High €20m-€100m

2 - Medium €6m-€20m

1- Reduced <€5m

NA - Not applicable Manifestation of risk has no effect

1- Low (<5%)

The threat may only occur in exceptional situations. Defined controls and processes are stable and in
operation.

IRO-1_02 - Description of process to identify, assess, prioritise and monitor
potential and actual impacts on people and environment, informed by due diligence
process /IRO-1_07 - Description of process used to identify, assess, prioritise and
monitor risks and opportunities that have or may have financial effects/ IRO-1_09 -
Description of how likelihood, magnitude, and nature of effects of identified risks
and opportunities have been assessed

The process to identify impacts, risks and opportunities under the double materiality analysis, is
described inIRO-1_01.

Assessment

Surveys: EDPR developed and distributed surveys to different stakeholder groups to gather
insights on potential impacts.

Surveys were structured around key questions where stakeholders assessed EDPR’s impacts on
the environment and society for potential material topics. They were asked to rate these impacts
on a scale from -4 (significant negative impact) to 4 (significant positive impact). Additionally,
stakeholders were asked to choose 3 topics that they felt most knowledgeable about,
considering EDPR’s activities. Stakeholders were then asked to assess EDPR’s impacts on
environment and society for the potential material sub-topics of the selected topics. The scale for
the sub-topics assessment was the same (from -4 to 4). Finally, stakeholders were invited to list
any additional topics they believed were important but had not yet been covered in the survey.
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- Internal studies: EDPR conducted internal surveys and studies to analyse and quantify the
perceptions of employees, clients, and investors on several relevant impacts, risks and
opportunities.

- Direct evaluation: multiple internal focal points assessed their assigned impacts, risks and
opportunities using defined scales and criteria. This evaluation involved key departments
covering all business areas, including Risk; IR&KESG; People & Organisation; Energy Planning;
Procurement; Ethics & Compliance; Policy, Competition & Stakeholders; Safety & Business
Continuity; Finance; Legal & Governance; and others.

Consolidation of inputs

- Combining data: each impact final score was calculated by averaging the assessment criteria
(RIO-1_01), taking into consideration the combined inputs from desk research, stakeholder
engagement, and internal evaluations. The final score for each risk and opportunity is
determined by averaging the focal points' evaluations for reputation, economic impact, and
likelihood.

- Materiality threshold: A threshold value (e.g., =2) was set to determine which IROs were
considered material. Those that meet or exceed this threshold are prioritized for reporting.

- Cadlibration and validation: after consolidating inputs, the preliminary results were presented to
the Management Team.

Materiality assessment results

The materiality assessment results were approved by the Management Team. The DMA results
were presented to both the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions Committee and the
ESG Committee.

Monitoring of impacts

i. Continuous monitoring

« Regular tracking: regularly tracking and reviewing the identified impacts to ensure they
remain relevant and up-to-date.

- Stakeholder feedback: ongoing engagement with stakeholders to gather feedback and
insights on the effectiveness of the measures implemented.
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ii. Reporting Requirements

« Reporting and disclosure: transparent communication of the identified material impacts in
company reports, aligning with the European Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRS).

- Double materiality assessment: The DMA will be conducted every two to three years, aligning
with the release of new Business Plans. If required, EDPR may shorten the period in between
assessments, in accordance with the CSRD recommendations.

IRO-1_03 - Description of how process focuses on specific activities, business
relationships, geographies or other factors that give rise to heightened risk of
adverse impacts

In the DMA assessment, EDPR engaged focal points from key departments across business areas.
This involvement enabled the identification and assessment of impacts, providing a broader and
more comprehensive view of emerging trends with a particular focus on specific activities, business
relationships, geographies, or other factors that may give rise to a heightened risk of adverse
Impacts. It also enabled the collection of insights to ensure alignment with EDPR’s strategic priorities
and risk mitigation plans.

IRO-1_04 - Description of how process considers impacts with which undertaking
Is involved through own operations or as result of business relationships

Each impact, whether potential or actual, positive or negative, was identified within the value chain
through rigorous due diligence. These impacts originated either upstream (such as from suppliers
and raw material extraction), in direct operations (including energy generation and facility
maintenance), or downstream (affecting end-users and local communities). EDPR is involved
through its operations by implementing predictive maintenance strategies to maximize asset value
and leveraging its global scale for competitive procurement processes. Additionally, EDPR's due
diligence process includes screening suppliers for compliance and integrity, monitoring critical
suppliers during service delivery, and ensuring adherence to ESG requirements through contractual
clauses and regular audits.
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IRO-1_05b - Description of how process includes consultation with affected
stakeholders to understand how they may be impacted and with external experts

Within Double Materiality Assessment:
Identification of stakeholders

- Stakeholder groups: EDPR identified stakeholder groups based EDPR’s stakeholder
segmentation, following ESRS guidelines for identifying stakeholders based on their relevance to
the materiality assessment process. These groups included employees, suppliers, NGOs,
international institutions & associations, partners, clients, investors, analysts and media & opinion
leaders.

- Selection criteria: Stakeholders were selected based on their representativeness and
geographical scope, ensuring a diverse and comprehensive consultation process.

Engagement methods

- Surveys: EDPR developed and distributed surveys to different stakeholder groups to gather
insights on potential impacts.

Surveys were structured around key questions where stakeholders assessed EDPR’s impacts on
the environment and society for potential material topics. They were asked to rate these impacts
on a scale from -4 (significant negative impact) to 4 (significant positive impact). Additionally,
stakeholders were asked to choose 3 topics that they felt most knowledgeable about,
considering EDPR’s activities. Stakeholders were then asked to assess EDPR’s impacts on
environment and society for the potential material sub-topics of the selected topics. The scale for
the sub-topics assessment was the same (from -4 to 4). Finally, stakeholders were invited to list
any additional topics they believed were important but had not yet been covered in the survey.

« Internal studies: EDPR conducted internal surveys and studies to analyse and quantify the
perceptions of employees, clients, and investors on several relevant impacts.

Additionally, EDPR:

Did a peer group analysis, focusing on the sustainability reports, materiality assessments, and
strategic approaches of peer companies to identify key sustainability issues and strategic
approaches.
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Consulted relevant reporting and rating frameworks/standards.
Consulted indirect external sources, such as:

- Media analysis: to access media news about all topics related to EDPR, ensuring
comprehensive coverage and accuracy in identifying relevant articles

« Public information: analysed public information from key associations and rating agencies to
identify main themes addressed in their publications.

IRO-1_06 - Description of how process prioritises negative impacts based on their
relative severity and likelihood and positive impacts based on their relative scale,
scope and likelihood and determines which sustainability matters are material for
reporting purposes

For negative impacts, the DMA process evaluates the additional criterion of ‘irremediability,’
considering the extent to which these impacts can be remedied. For potential negative impacts
related to human rights, 'severity' takes precedence over 'likelihood’. Information on how to process
to identify, assess, prioritise and monitor potential and actual impacts, please refer to IRO-1_02.

IRO-1_08 - Description of how connections of impacts and dependencies with risks
and opportunities that may arise from those impacts and dependencies have been
considered

Impact Analysis

- ldentification of impacts: EDPR identifies the effects its operations, along its value chain, have
on the environment and society. This includes both positive and negative impacts, which can be
actual (currently occurring) or potential (may occur in the future).

- Classification of impacts: impacts are classified based on their severity, scope, and
irremediability. This supports EDPR in understanding the extent and significance of each impact.

Dependency Analysis

- Identification of dependencies - EDPR evaluates how its operations depend on external factors
such as natural resources, regulatory environments, and social conditions.
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- Assessment of dependencies - dependencies are assessed to determine their criticality and the
potential risks and opportunities they present. The dependencies are inherent to the risks and
opportunities assessed.

Integrated Approach

- Linking impacts and dependencies - EDPR integrates the analysis of impacts and
dependencies to provide a holistic view. This involves identifying how the organization’s impacts
on the environment and society can create dependencies, and vice versa.

- Risks and opportunities identification - by linking impacts and dependencies, EDPR can
identify specific risks and opportunities.

IRO-1_10 - Description of how sustainability-related risks relative to other types of
risks have been prioritised

The result from Double Materiality Assessment is approved by the EDPR's Management Team. The
DMA results were presented to both the Audit Control and Related Party Transactions Committee
and Environmental, Social and Governance Committee. The objective is to highlight the most
relevant risks and opportunities of the company regarding ESG topics, which is complemented by
other assessments focusing in other categories (hamely business, financial and operational related).
To be actionable, there are mitigation actions identified for the most relevant guaranteeing that each
priority is adequately managed.

Some additional assessments complement / reinforce the priority of certain topics, namely the
Emerging Risks Assessment, which highlight the most relevant priorities for the company strategy
for the next 10 years (focusing on strategic and ESG impacts, risks and opportunities) and the
Climate Risk Assessment and Quantification process that evaluates the primary physical and
transition climate risks and opportunities across all businesses and regions.

IRO-1_11 - Description of decision-making process and related internal control
procedures

The strategy for EDPR is defined by the company in its Business Plan exercises where several risk
categories are considered, namely ESG related.
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According to the risk governance model, the risk strategy is defined by the second line of defence,
embodied by the Board of Directors together with risk management, sustainability and other
relevant functions.

To assure the risk strategy is implemented, the third line of defence, embodied by the Audit Control
and Related Party Transactions Committee supervise its implementation, producing
recommendations for improvement whenever necessary.

IRO-1_12 - Description of extent to which and how process to identify, assess and
manage impacts and risks is integrated into overall risk management process and
used to evaluate overall risk profile and risk management processes /I1RO-1_13 -
Description of extent to which and how process to identify, assess and manage
opportunities is integrated into overall management process

The process follows the risk management process established in EDPR Enterprise Risk management
framework, structures around five main phases:

- identification: the identification of impacts, risks, and opportunities (IROs) follows EDPR risk
taxonomy, which is structured around four categories: Strategic & ESG, Business, Financial, and
Operational. There are several processes established that complement each other, guaranteeing
a solid and integrated risks management

- analysis: risk analysis involves establishing criteria to assess their nature and materiality, as well
as analysing their individual and aggregate exposure in accordance with the criteria defined

- evaluation: risk evaluation consists of comparing the risk profile with EDPR risk exposure
appetite (explicit or implicit), as well as the consequent definition of appropriate strategies for the
respective treatment, when necessary

- treatment: risk treatment consists of properly implementing the risk mitigation strategies
previously established, including the definition of appropriate control mechanisms

« monitoring: risk monitorization ensures effective action on the risks identified, both in terms of
control and periodic reporting of the position of the various risk factors, and in terms of the
effective implementation of the policies, standards and procedures established for risk
management.
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EDPR is exposed to several risks due to its size, and diversity of geographies in which it operates.
Therefore, it recognises risk-taking as an integral and unavoidable component of its activity, both in
terms of threat and opportunity. In this context, EDPR explicitly and implicitly establishes its risk
appetite with its stakeholders through a series of mechanisms:

- The development and periodic approval by the Board of Directors of the Business Plan, which sets
out and explains the main strategic guidelines over a three-to-five-year horizon

- Rigorous assessment of the risk associated with investment and divestment opportunities carried
out by the Regions and approved by the Board of Directors, supported by the opinion of the
Investment Committee

- The development of risk management policies establishing guidelines, assessment
methodologies and exposure limits for key risks™

- Periodic risk maps based on objective, quantitative and comparable criteria, with the aim of
analysing exposure to the most relevant risks and taking preventive action to deal with excessive
exposure inrelation to the established risk tolerance

- The development of periodic risk reports for the main risk categories, making it possible to
regularly monitor the evolution of current and emerging risks and compare the various exposures
against the established limits

- The definition of an internal Risk Appetite Framework.

IRO-1_14 - Description of input parameters used in process to identify, assess and
manage material impacts, risks and opportunities

EDPR has in place an internal climate risk management governance model, integrated into the
global risk management process, to annually review and report on the resilience of EDPR's strategy
to climate change. One of its phases is Climate scenario alignment which includes the validation
and updating of the physical and transition sub-scenarios, as well as the main climate variables
(physical and transition).
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In resume, the inputs considered for physical and transition risks are:

- Physical Risks: These include both acute risks (event-driven, such as extreme weather events)
and chronic risks (longer-term shifts in climate patterns, such as sustained higher temperatures).

- Transition Risks: These include risks related to the transition to a lower-carbon economy, such
as policy changes, market shifts, and technological advancements.

PHYSICAL RISK

RISK CATEGORY
CHRONIC

ACUTE

TRANSITION RISK

PRICES
FOREIGN EXCHANGE

GENERATION MIX

RENEWABLE ADJUSTMENT

FACTORS
ELECTRICITY DEMAND

RISK

Temperature increase
Sealevelrise
Water availability

Wind availability

Extreme hot days

Extremely consecutive hot days
Extreme cold days

Extremely consecutive cold days
Extreme wind events

Extreme rain events

Extreme wildfire events

VARIABLE

Average temperature rise
Rise of sealevel

Average precipitation variation
Average days with rainfall <Imm var

Average wind speed

Days w/ temperature >35°C
Consecutive days w/ temperature >35°C
Days w/ temperature <0°C

Consecutive days w/ temperature <0°C
Extreme events per year

Wildfires per 100ha

VARIABLE

CcOo2

Electricity price

EUR/USD

EUR/BRL

Hydro

Thermal

CHP

Nuclear

Wind

Solar

WAF (Weighted Average Factor)
SAF (Sustainable Aviation Fuel)

®These include, among others, the Enterprise Risk Management Policy, the Risk Appetite Framework Policy, the Energy Risk Management Policy, the Financial Management Policy, the Counterparty Risk Policy, the Insurable Risk Management Policy, the Occupational Health and Safety Policy, the Information Security

Policy and the Crisis Management and Business Continuity principles, structure and procedures.
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IRO-1_15 - Description of how process to identify, assess and manage impacts,
risks and opportunities has changed compared to prior reporting period

Not applicable, as EDPR only began conducting the double materiality analysis in 2024.
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IRO-2_01- Disclosure of list of data points that derive from other EU legislation and information on their location in sustainability statement
: Benchmark Regulation EU Climate Law
DR Paragraph  Name SFDR: Annex1 Pillar reference (Note 1) N DMAresults Page
reference (Note 2) reference (Note 3)
Indicator no. 13 - Table 1Statement on Commission Delegated Regulation (EU)
GOV-1 21d Board's gender diversity ratio principal adverse impacts of investment 9 9 Material 154
o L 2020/1816, Annex I
decisions on sustainability factors
_ Percentage of independent board ~ Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) .
GOV-1 2le members 2020/1816, Annex I Material o4
. . . . Indicator no. 10 - Table 3 Additional indicators
Disclosure of mapping of information for social and employee, respect for human
GOV-4 30 provided in sustainability statement . ; PIOYee, respect I Material 160
- rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
about due diligence process
matters
Disaggregation of revenues derived
from coal, from oil and from gas, as well
as the revenues derived from Indicator no. 4 - Table 1 Statement on principal Article 449a Regulation (EU) No Commission Delegated Regulation (EU)
SBM-1 40di Taxonomy-aligned economic activities adverse impacts of investment decisions on 575/2013; Commission Implementing 2020/1816 Annefll 9 Not applicable
related to fossil gas as required under sustainability factors Regulation (EU) 2022/245328 ’
Article 8(7)(a) of Commission Delegated
Regulation 2021/217818
SBM-1 20dii Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1816, Not applicable
Annexll
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1818
SBM-1 40 diii (29), Article 12(1) Delegated Not applicable
Regulation (EU) 2020/1816, Annex I
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1818,
SBM-1 40div Article 12(1) Delegated Regulation (EU) Not applicable
2020/1816, Annex I
N Transition plan to reach climate Regulation (EU) 2021/1M9, Article . .
E1-1 14 neutrality by 2050 20) Material Not applicable
Article 449a Regulation (EU)
No575/2013; Commission
. - Implementing Regulation (EU) .
E1-1 16 g) Updertoklngs excluded from Paris 2022/2453 Template 1: Banking book Del'egated Regulation (EU) .2020/1818’ Material Not applicable
aligned Benchmarks . e X Article12.1(d) to (g), and Article 12.2
Climate Change transition risk: Credit
quality of exposures by sector,
emissions and residual maturity
Article 449a Regulation (EU) No
. ~ . . 575/2013; Commission Implementing .
E1-4 34a+34b GHG emission reduction targets Indicator no. 4 Table 2 Add|t|o.nol-cllmote Regulation (EU) 2022/2453 Template Del.egoted Regulation (EU) 202071818, Material Not Stated
and other environment-related indicators ) . . Article 6
3: Banking book — Climate change
transition risk: alignment metrics
Total eneray consumotion related to Indicator no. 5 - Table 1Statement on principal
E1-5 37 9y P adverse impacts of investment decisions on Material 230
own operations . s
sustainability factors
Indicator no. 5 - Table 1Statement on principal
Fuel consumption from coal and coal adverse impacts of investment decisions on
E1-5 38 roducts P sustainability factors and Indicator no. 5 - Material 229
P Table 2 Additional climate and other
environment-related indicators
Energy intensity from activities in high Indicator no. 6 - Table 1 Statement on
E1-5 40t043 9y Y 9 principal adverse impacts of investment Material 230/230/230

climate impact sectors

decisions on sustainability factors
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DR Paragraph  Name SFDR: Annex1 Pillar reference (Note 1) N DMAresults Page
reference (Note 2) reference (Note 3)
Article 449a; Regulation (EU) No
575/2013; Commission Implementing
Gross Scope, 2, 3 and Total GHG Indicators n.os1and 2 - Table 1 Statementon - Regulation (EU) 2022/2453 Template 1y v Regulation (EU) 2020/1818, .
E1-6 44 . principal adverse impacts of investment 1:Banking book — Climate change . Material 231
emissions g S e 2 . . Article 5(1), 6 and 8(1)
decisions on sustainability factors transition risk: Credit quality of
exposures by sector, emissions and
residual maturity
Article 449a Regulation (EU) No
Indicator no. 3 - Table 1 Statement on principal 575/2013; Commission Implementing .
E1-6 53to55 Gross GHG emissions intensity adverse impacts of investment decisions on Regulation (EU) 2022/2453 Template Deliegoted Regulation (EU) 202071818, Material 2357235
ST . . ) Article 8(1
sustainability factors 3: Banking book — Climate change
transition risk: alignment metrics
E1-7 56 GHG removals and carbon credits ga?ulatlon (EU) 2021/1m9, Article Material 236
: Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1818,
E1-9 66 Eri(racc)xstz[er;;ttzz bincs::wcrglorrilgfsortfollo to Annex Il Delegated Regulation (EU) Material Not Stated
phy 2020/1816, Annex ||
Article 449a Regulation (EU) No
575/2013; Commission Implementing
Disaggregation of monetary amounts b Regulation (EU) 2022/2453
E1-9 66q) ggreg ) owary Y paragraphs 46 and 47; Template 5: Material Not Stated
acute and chronic physical risk - .
Banking book - Climate change
physicalrisk: Exposures subject to
physicalrisk.
Article 449a Regulation (EU) No
575/2013; Commission Implementing
Location of significant assets at Regulation (EU) 2022/2453
E1-9 66c¢) ; gnitie paragraphs 46 and 47; Template 5: Material Not Stated
material physical risk - )
Banking book - Climate change
physical risk: Exposures subject to
physicalrisk.
Article 449a Regulation (EU) No
575/2013;Commission Implementing
Breakdown of the carrying value of its Regulation (EU) 2022/2453 paragraph
E1-9 67¢c) real estate assets by energy-efficiency 34;Template 2:Banking book -Climate Material Not Stated
classes change transition risk: Loans
collateralised by immovable property -
Energy efficiency of the collateral
E1-9 69 Dggree of exposure of the-portfoho to Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1818, Material Not Stated
climate-related opportunities Annex |
Amount of each pollutant listed in Annex Indlcotor. no.8 - Tok?le1 Statement on principal
Il of the E-PRTR Regulation (European adverse impacts of investment decisions on
E2-4 28 . sustainability factors; Indicators no.1,2 and 3 Not applicable
Pollutant Release and Transfer Register) o .
. . . - Table 2 Additional climate and other
emitted to air, water and soil . —
environment-related indicators
The undertaking shall describe its
E3-1 9 policies adopted to manage its material Indicator no. 7 Table 2 Additional climate and Not applicable

impacts, risks and opportunitiesrelated  other environment-related indicators
to water and marine resources72
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DR Paragraph  Name

SFDR: Annex 1 Pillar reference (Note 1)

Benchmark Regulation
reference (Note 2)

Index

EU Climate Law
reference (Note 3)

Part |

DMAresults Page

187

If at least one of the sites of the
undertaking is located in an area of
high-water stress and it is not covered
by a policy, the undertaking shall state

Indicator no. 8 - Table 2 Additional climate

E3-1 13 this to be the case and provide reasons . L Not applicable
for not having adopted such a policy. and other environment-related indicators
The undertaking may disclose a
timeframe in which it aims to adopt such
apolicy
Policies or practices related to
E3-1 14 sustainable oceans and seas have been Not applicable
adopted
Indicator no. 6.2 - Table 2 Additional climate .
E3-4 28¢c Total water recycled and reused and other environment-related indicators Not applicable
. . . Indicator no. 6.1- Table 2 Additional climate .
E3-4 29 Water intensity ratio and other environment-related indicators Not applicable
E4_2 24b Sustolln.oble land or agriculture practices Material 249
or policies have been adopted I
E4_2 24 Sugtglnoble oceans or seas practices or Not applicable
policies have been adopted
Policies to address deforestation have In@cgtor no. 15 - Tgble1 Stotgment on .
E4-2 24d been adoobted principal adverse impacts of investment Material 249
P decisions on sustainability factors
Indicator no. 13 - Table 2 Additional climate .
E5-5 87d Non-recycled waste and other environment-related indicators Notmaterial
Indicator no. 9 - Table 2 Additional climate .
E5-5 39 Total amount of hazardous waste and other environment-related indicators Not material
Information about type of operations at Indicator no.13 - Table 3 Additional indicators
SBM-3 141 (i) significant risk of incidents of forced for social and employee, respect for human Material 263
labour or compulsory labour rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
Information about tvoe of operations at Indicator no.12 - Table 3 Additional indicators
. - . AN perat for social and employee, respect for human .
SBM-3 14 g (i) significant risk of incidents of child ) ; ) o Material 263
labour rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
. Disclosure of activities negatively .
SBM-3 16ai affecting biodiversity sensitive areas Material 238
Material negative impacts with regards
SBM-3 16b to land degradation, desertification or Material 241
soil sealing have been identified
SBM-3 16 Spv;zic;zerotlons affect threatened Material 241
Indicator no. 9 - Table 3 Additional indicators
Description of relevant humanrights fpr social gnd emplpyee, respept fqr human
S1-1 20 policy commitments relevant to own rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery Material 65/266/2

workforce

matters; Indicator no. 11 - Table 1 Statement on
principal adverse impacts of investment
decisions on sustainability factors
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DR Paragraoph  Name SFDR: Annex1 Pillar reference (Note 1) N DMAresults Page
reference (Note 2) reference (Note 3)
Due diligence policies on issues
_ addressed by the fundamentall Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1816, .
S1-1 21 International Labour Organisation Annex | Material 267
Conventions1to 8
Indicator no. 11 - Table 3 Additional indicators
_ Processes and measures for preventing for social and employee, respect for human .
S1-1 22 trafficking in human beings rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery Material 268
matters
Indicator no.1- Table 3 Additional indicators
for social and employee, respect for human
_ Workplace accident prevention policy  rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery .
S1-1 23 or management systemis in place matters; Indicator no. 11 - Table 1 Statement on Material 268
principal adverse impacts of investment
decisions on sustainability factors
Indicator no. 5 - Table 3 Additional indicators
Grievance or complaints handlin for social and employee, respect for human
S1-3 32¢ mechanisms relotzd to emplo eg rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery Material 272
matters exist ploy matters; Indicator no. 11 - Table 1 Statement on I
principal adverse impacts of investment
decisions on sustainability factors
Number of fatalities and number and Indicator no. 2 - Table 3 Additional indicators
S1-14 88b)ec) rate of work-related accidents fpr social gnd emplpyee, respect fgr human Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1816, Materidl 86/ 28
rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery Annex | D
paragraph
matters
Indicator no. 3 - Table 3 Additional indicators
N Number of days lost to injuries, for social and employee, respect for human .
S1-14 88¢) accidents, fatalities or illness rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery Material 287
matters
Indicator no.12 - Table 1 Statement on .
S1-16 97q) Unadjusted gender pay gap principal adverse impacts of investment ,[A)\ilr?g;ltled Regulation (EU) 202071816, Material 288
decisions on sustainability factors
Indicator no. 8 - Table 3 Additional indicators
S1-16 97b Excessive CEO pay ratio for social and employee, respect for humarn Not material
rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
Indicator no. 7 - Table 3 Additional indicators
S1-17 103 a) Incidents of discrimination fpr social gnd emplpyee, respect fqr human Material 288
rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
Indicator no.10 - Table 1Statement on
principal adverse impacts of investment
Non-respect of UNGPs on Business and decisions on sustainability factors and Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1816,
S1-17 104 q) Human Rpi hts and OECD quidelines Indicator no. 14 - Table 3 Additional indicators Annex |l Delegated Regulation (EU) Material 293
9 9 for social and employee, respect for human 2020/1818 Art12 (1)
rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
Indicators no.12 and 13 - Table 3 Additional
SBM-3 b Significant risk of child labour or forced  indicators for social and employee, respect for Material 290

labour in the value chain

human rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
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: Benchmark Regulation EU Climate Law
DR Paragraoph  Name SFDR: Annex1 Pillar reference (Note 1) N DMAresults Page
reference (Note 2) reference (Note 3)
Indicator no. 9 - Table 3 Additional indicators
for social and employee, respect for human
B . . . rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery .
S2-1 17 Human rights policy commitments matters and Indicator no. 11 - Table 1 Material 293
Statement on principal adverse impacts of
investment decisions on sustainability factors
Indicators no. 4 and 11 - Table 3 Additional
S2-1 18 Policies related to value chain workers |nd|cqtors for SOCI.Ol and employee, respegt for Material 295/ 29
human rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
Non-respect of UNGPs on Business and Indicator no. 10 - Table 1Statement on Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1816,
S2-1 19 Human RF? hts and OECD quidelines principal adverse impacts of investment Annex Il Delegated Regulation (EU) Material 96/2
9 9 decisions on sustainability factors 2020/1818, Art12 (1)
Due diligence policies on issues
_ addressed by the fundamentall Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1816, .
S2-1 19 International Labour Organisation Annex | Material 2967296
Conventions1to 8
Human rights issues and incidents Indicator no. 14 - Table 3 Additional indicators
S2-4 36 connected to its upstream and for social and employee, respect for human Material 304
downstream value chain rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
Indicator no. 9 - Table 3 Additional indicators
Description of relevant human rights fpr social gnd emplpyee, respgct fqr human
S3-1 16 policy commitments relevant to affected rights, Gntl—corryptlon and anti-bribery Material 31/312
communities matters and Indicator no. 11 - Table 1
Statement on principal adverse impacts of
investment decisions on sustainability factors
Indicator no.10 - Table 1Statement on
principal adverse impacts of investment
Non-respect of UNGPs on Business and decisions on sustainability factors and Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1816,
S3-1 17 Human Rpi hts and OECD guidelines Indicator no. 14 - Table 3 Additional indicators Annex Il Delegated Regulation (EU) Material 313
9 9 for social and employee, respect for human 202071818, Art12 (1)
rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
Indicator no. 14 - Table 3 Additional indicators
S3-4 36 Human rights issues and incidents for social and employee, respect for human Material 327
rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
Indicator no. 11 - Table 1 Statement on principal
adverse impacts of investment decisions on
S4-1 16 Policies related to consumers and end-  sustainability factors and Indicator no. 9 - Not material
users Table 3 Additional indicators for social and
employee, respect for human rights, anti-
corruption and anti-bribery matters
Non-respect of UNGPs on Business and Indicator no. 10 - Table 1 Statement on Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1816,
S4-1 17 Human Rpi hts and OECD quidelines principal adverse impacts of investment Annex |l Delegated Regulation (EU) Not material
9 9 decisions on sustainability factors 2020/1818, Art12 (1)
Indicator no. 14 - Table 3 Additional indicators
S4-4 35 Human rights issues and incidents for social and employee, respect for human Not material

rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
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DR Paragraoph  Name SFDR: Annex1 Pillar reference (Note 1) DMAresults Page
reference (Note 2) reference (Note 3)
Indicator no. 15 - Table 3 Additional indicators
G1-1 10b United Natlons Convention against fpr social gnd emplpyee, respept fqr human Not applicable
Corruption rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
Indicator no. 6 - Table 3 Additional indicators
N . o for social and employee, respect for human .
G1-1 10d Protection of whistle- blowers rights, anti—corruption and anti-bribery Not applicable
matters
Indicator no. 17 - Table 3 Additional indicators
Gl-4 244 F|n§s fqr violation of anti-corruption and fpr social gnd emplgyee, respept fqr human Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1816, Material 340
anti-bribery laws rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery AnnexI) —
matters
Indicator no. 16 - Table 3 Additional indicators
Gl-4 24k Standards of anti- corruption and anti-  for social and employee, respect for human Material 340

bribery

rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters
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IRO-2_02 - Disclosure of list of ESRS Disclosure Requirements complied with in
preparing sustainability statement following outcome of materiality assessment

Disclosure

. Page
requirements
ESRS 2 General disclosures BP-1 152
BP-2 152
GOV-1 154
GOV-2 158
GOV-3 159
GOV-4 160
GOV-5 161
IRO-1 176
IRO-2 185
SBM-1 162
SBM-2 165
SBM-3 169
Disclosure
. Page
requirements
E1Climate change E1.GOV-3 214
E1.SBM-3 214
E1IRO-1 217
E1-1 214
E1-2 226
E1-3 226
E1-4 227
E1-5 229
E1-6 231
E1-7 236
E1-8 237
E1-9 Not stated
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Disclosure
. Page
requirements
E2 Pollution E2.IRO-1 Not applicable
E2-1 Not applicable
E2-2 Not applicable
E2-3 Not applicable
E2-4 Not applicable
E2-5 Not applicable
E2-6 Not applicable
Disclosure
. Page
requirements
E3 Water and marine IRO-1 Not applicable
resources E3-1 Not applicable
E3-2 Not applicable
E3-3 Not applicable
E3-4 Not applicable
E3-5 Not applicable
Disclosure
. Page
requirements
E4 Biodiversity and SBM-3 238
ecosystems IRO-1 24
E4-1 246
E4-2 247
E4-3 250
E4-4 251
E4-5 252
Disclosure
. Page
requirements
E5 Circular economy IRO-1 254
E5-1 255
E5-2 256
E5-3 Not applicable
E5-4 257
E5-5 258
E5-6 259
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Datarequirement  Page Datarequirement Page
S10wn workforce SBM-3 261 S3 Affected communities SBM-3 306
S1-1 264 S3-1 3n
S1-2 270 S3-2 315
S1-3 27 S3-3 319
S1-4 273 S3-4 324
Sil=5 278 SiEitE) 330
S1-6 280
S1-7 Not stated
31-8 282 Data requirement Page
8811__1% ﬁ S4 Consumers and end- SBM-3 Not material
= users S4-1 Not material
S1-1 284 :
S4-2 Not material
Sl 285 S4-3 Not material
S1-13 286 S4-4 Not material
SR 286 S4-5 Not material
S1-15 287
S1-16 288
S1-17 268 Datarequirement  Page
G1Business conduct GOV-1 334
Datarequirement Page G1-1 335
. G1-2 337
S2 Workers in the value SBM-3 290
chain 521 293 G1-3 338
— G1-4 340
S2-2 296 G1-5 340
S 298 G1-6 341
S2-4 300
S2-5 304

IRO-2_13 - Explanation of how material information to be disclosed inrelation to
material impacts, risks and opportunities has been determined

To determine which information should be disclosed, EDPR identified and correlated the assessed
Impacts, Risks, and Opportunities (IROs) to each data point. If one or more IROs were deemed
material, then the corresponding data point was required to be reported.
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0.2. Environmental Information

Background

The European Union Taxonomy Regulation (Taxonomy) published in the official journal of the
European Union on June 18, 2020 (EU 2020/852) sets out the criteria for an activity to be qualified
as environmentally sustainable. It is the key instrument to achieve the path of carbon neutrality
proposed by the European Commission and adopted in 2019 with the European green deal. It is also
a forward-looking tool for the transition finance process purpose of the companies. Concerning
capital expenditure, EDPR is a 100% renewable energy company and its investments are aimed at
continuing to grow its renewable installed capacity, investing in new technologies such as hydrogen
and storage.

The Taxonomy has the following three main areas according to article 3

The performance levels of activities which make a substantial contribution (SC) to at least one of
the six EU’s environmental objectives as defined in the articles 10° to 15° regulation of the
Taxonomy (1. Climate change mitigation; 2. Climate change adaptation; 3. Protection and
restoration of biodiversity & ecosystems; 4. Transition to a circular economy; 5. Sustainable use
and protection of water and marine resources; 6. Pollution prevention and control) and complies
with technical screening criteria (TSC) that have been established in accordance with Articles 10°
to 15° (point A and B of this section)

Do no significant harm (DNSH) to any of the other five environmental objectives as stipulated in
the article 17° of Taxonomy (point C of this section), and

Comply with the minimum social safeguards (MSS) as stipulated in the article 18° of the
Taxonomy, meaning complying with governance standards and not violating social norms,
including human rights and labour rights (point D of this section).

This section presents the outcomes of the taxonomy assessment in the form of KPlIs, which are
required to be disclosed in tabular form by using predefined reporting templates (point E) to fulfil the
requirements of the article 8, point 4, of the Taxonomy Regulation. To achieve these indicators, we
must follow the main steps mentioned previously.
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EU Taxonomy Key Dates

2020 — Taxonomy Regulation| Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the Parliament and of the Council of
June 2020.

2021 - Climate Taxonomy | Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2139 of 4 June 2021
(applicable from 1 January 2022) which establishes the technical screening criteria for determining
the conditions under which an economic activity qualifies as contributing substantially to climate
change mitigation or climate change adaptation.

2021 - Taxonomy article 8" | Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178 of 6 July 2021-
specify the content and presentation of information to be disclosed by undertakings subject to
Articles 19a or 29a of Directive 2013/34/EU concerning environmentally sustainable economic
activities, and specifying the methodology to comply with that disclosure obligation. Includes also
the templates for the KPIs of non-financial companies (applicable from 1 January 2022).

2022 - Climate Taxonomy | Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214 of 9 March 2022
which amending the delegated regulation 2021/2139 and 2021/2178, which includes the activities
for nuclear energy generation and gas natural.

2022 - Taxonomy article g™ | Commission Notice on the interpretation of certain legal provisions of
the Disclosures Delegated Act under Article 8 of EU Taxonomy Regulation on the reporting of eligible

economic activities and assets 2022/C 385/01 (1 notice).

2023 - Climate Taxonomy | Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2023/2485 of 27 June 2023
amending Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2139, establishing additional technical screening

criteria for determining the conditions under which certain economic activities qualify as
contributing substantially to climate change mitigation (on macro-sectors of 3. manufacturing; 6.
transport) or climate change adaptation (5. Water supply, sewerage, waste management and
remediation; 8. Information and communication; 9. Professional, scientific and technical activities;
14. Disaster Risk Management).

2023 - Environmental Taxonomy | Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2023/2486 of 27 June
2023 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2020/852, by establishing the technical screening criteria for
determining the conditions under which an economic activity qualifies as contributing substantially:
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to the sustainable use and protection of water and marine resources (1. Manufacturing; 2. Water
supply, sewerage, waste management and remediation; 3. Disaster Risk Management; 4.
Information and communication)

to the transition to a circular economy (1. Manufacturing; 2. Water supply, sewerage, waste
management and remediation; 3. Construction and real estates activities; 4. Information and
communication; 5. Services)

to pollution prevention and control or to the protection and restoration of biodiversity and
ecosystems (1. Manufacturing; 2. Water supply, sewerage, waste management and remediation)

to protection and restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems (1. Environmental protection and
restoration activities; 2. Accommodation activities)

Includes also the amendments to templates of the delegated act (EU) 2021/2178 (which are set to
apply from January 2024).

2023 — Taxonomy Regulation | Commission Notice of 16 June 2023, 2023/C 211/01, on the
interpretation and implementation of certain legal provisions of the EU Taxonomy Regulation and
links to the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation.

2023 - Climate Taxonomy | Commission Notice of 20 October 2023, C/2023/267, on the
interpretation and implementation of certain legal provisions of the EU Taxonomy Climate
Delegated Act establishing technical screening criteria for economic activities that contribute
substantially to climate change mitigation or climate change adaptation and do no significant harm
to other environmental objective.

2023 — Article 8" of EU Taxonomy | Commission Notice of 20 October 2023, C/2023/305 on the
interpretation and implementation of certain legal provisions of the Disclosures Delegated Act under
Article 8 of EU Taxonomy Regulation (2" notice).

2024 - Article 8" of EU Taxonomy | Draft Commission Notice on the interpretation and
implementation of certain legal provisions of the EU Taxonomy Environmental Delegated Act, the EU
Taxonomy Climate Delegated Act and the EU Taxonomy Disclosures Delegated Act (approved by
European Commission on 29 November).
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Alignment with sustainability strategy

The Company’s core business, to deliver clean energy by developing, building and operating top
quality wind farms and solar plants, inherently implies the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions,
contributing to the world’s fight against climate change and its impacts.

Since its inception, EDPR has been performing a strategy focused on selective growth, by investing
in quality projects with predictable future cash-flows, and execution, supported by core
competences that yield superior profitability, all embedded within a distinctive and self-funding
model designed to accelerate value creation. As a result of undertaking such strategy, at the same
time flexible enough to accommodate changing business and economic environments, EDPR
remains today as aleading company in the renewable energy industry.

According with the 2024-2026 business plan update, EDPR will add ~10 GW of gross renewable
capacity in 2024-26, with the ambition to be Net Zero by 2040. EDPR will diversify its portfolio
geographically and technologically even more, developing more wind onshore, solar, wind offshore,
green hydrogen and storage technology along with the entrance in new markets.

Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation in practice

EDPR falls within the scope of the article 8" of the Taxonomy Regulation which defines new
transparency requirements for undertakings in their non-financial statements. This means that
EDPR is obliged to provide a non-financial statement pursuant to Art. 19a (29a) of the Accounting
Directive (Directive 2013/34/EU of 26 June 2013).

As a result, EDPR must give information about the eligibility of its activities based on the list of
environmental sustainable economic activities under Taxonomy. Additionally, EDPR must report on
the alignment in accordance with the main parts mentioned previously (SC; DNSH; MSS) and
disclose taxonomy-aligned activities. These discloses should be expressed as share of turnover
(reflecting the share of green revenues from green activities), Capital Expenditure (reflecting the
share of green investments from green activities) and OPEX (reflecting the share of green
operational costs from green activities).
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Implementation of Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy at EDPR

In the process of implementing and applying the standard, EDPR used the tool (EU Taxonomy
Compass) developed by the European Commission to check which activities are included in the EU
Taxonomy (taxonomy-eligible activities) and which criteria must be met for each activity to be
considered aligned.

In accordance with the EU Taxonomy and what it establishes, EDPR has disclosed since 20210on the
three KPIs requested: the proportion of its turnover, capital expenditure (CAPEX), and operational
expenditure (OPEX). EDPR has been reporting its eligible economic activities associated to one of
the environmental objectives, the climate change mitigation and assessed the requirements in
accordance with the main requirements for that environmental objective.
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As aresult, EDPR discloses:
A. The eligibility by NACE code activities for “climate change mitigation”

Considering that its core business is the planning, construction and operation of electricity
generating power stations using renewable energy sources (mainly wind and solar), EDPR assigned
the Taxonomy-eligible economic activities to the electricity generation from wind and solar power
utility scale (economic activities 4.1 and 4.3) and the economic activity of installation, maintenance
and repair of renewable energy technologies (7.6) when it refers to EDPR’s distributed generation
activity— in accordance with Annex | of the Climate Delegated Act (EU 2021/2139). The economic
activities in this category could be associated mainly with NACE codes D35.11 and F42.22, in
accordance with the statistical classification of economic activities established by Regulation (EC)
No1893/2006.

B. The substantial contribution to meet the climate change mitigation (TSC)

C. The confirmation that its activities do no harm (DNSH) the remaining environmental
objectives

D. The compliance with the Minimum Social Safeguards (MSS)

E. The turnover, the capital expenditures and the expenditures associated with activities
eligible, aligned and non-eligible

Scope of the disclosure for the three financial environmental indicators

This Scope refers to the compliance with the EU Taxonomy requirements for the “control entities”,
the assets where EDPR exercises control as of 31 December 2024. These entities have their
revenues consolidated in the EDPR’s total revenues (note 7 “Revenues and cost of energy sales" in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements of the 2024 Consolidated Annual Accounts in
EDPR Annual Report 2024).

The investments in joint ventures and associates are included in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method from the date the Group acquires joint control/ and has
significant influence, to the date it ceases. These entities do not have their revenues consolidated in
the EDPR’s revenues, only the changes in the company’s value (note 20 "Investments in Joint
Ventures and Associates” in the notes to the consolidated financial statements of the 2024
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Consolidated Annual Accounts in EDPR Annual Report 2024). Consequently, and according to
Taxonomy regulation, this type of revenues, as they are not consolidated in the EDPR's revenues, are
not accounted for when calculating the turnover KPI.

For changes in the consolidation perimeter, please refer to 2024 Consolidated Annual Accounts,
Notes to the consolidated annual accounts: note 6 “Consolidation perimeter”.

EDPR generation activities: Considering that EDPR’s core business is the development, construction,
operation and maintenance of electricity generating power stations using renewable energy sources
(wind and solar).

D35.11 — Electricity generation using solar photovoltaic technology (activity 4.1); Electricity
generation from wind power (4.3)

F42.22 - Installation, maintenance and repair of renewable energy technologies (7.6)

This year, EDPR adopted a different approach by not using proxies for the total amount of each
KPIs to obtain information for each EDPR technology and economic activities. Consequently, in
order to disaggregate the Turnover for each economic activity (4.1, 4.3, and 7.6) under Article 8 of
the EU Taxonomy Regulation (EU) 2021/2178, EDP Renovdveis uses the information provided by
analytical accounting, which means using the data from each reporting unit of EDP Renovaveis to
obtain the information by technology for that company. This analysis excluded the holdings of
EDP Renovdveis, which were treated as a non-eligible activity because they do not generate
energy from renewable sources. Allocations were used in the calculation of sustainability KPIs
whenever it was necessary to reconcile the information by technology for each reporting unit with
the reported operating segments (<=0,6%):

i.  The proportion of each technology in generation to distribute revenues
il.  The proportion of capacity under construction for each technology for distributing CAPEX

iii.  And for Sustainable OPEX, we use the operational MW, categorized by technology type.
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In its Environmental Policy, EDPR outlines a set of commitments (Climate Change mitigation;
Circular Economy promotion; and Biodiversity protection) that safeguard the implementation and
maintenance of appropriate and effective environmental management systems and processes.

EDPR's Environmental Policy provides the framework for determining material environmental issues.
EDPR promotes environmental protection and integrates it into the decision-making processes in
the different phases of the projects: 1) Development; 2) Construction; 3) Operation and maintenance;
4) Dismantling and Repowering. The Company also includes a previous prospection phase, in order
to identify the best locations for the future facilities. This additional phase also includes the
identification of potential environmental issues.

As mentioned previously, EDPR uses the climate change mitigation as the environmental objective
to which its activities will make a substantial contribution by leading the reduction of greenhouse
gas emissions. Therefore, it is necessary to apply the DNSH criteria in relation to the other five
environmental objective, depending on the specific activity. EDPR’s approach regarding to DNSH
criteriais detailed below.

Climate Change Adaptation

i. How EDPR demonstrates that has a process to evaluate climate risk and perform
vulnerability assessment for our projects and operations?

Climate change-related risks and opportunities are fully integrated into EDPR’s risk management
procedures. The Company assess these risks and opportunities each year following a process
structured into three distinct phases:

« Risk identification — EDPR ensures an identification of risks and opportunities in its main
markets, under the TCFD's recommendations. This identification involves the validation process
of the taxonomy of climate risks and opportunities aligned with EDP’s corporate taxonomy. It
should be noted that the identification of material risks for EDPR is based on a prior list, as
identified in the table in Section Il of Appendix A of Annex | of the Delegated Regulation
2021/2139, of June 4.

« Climate Scenario Alignment — In its climate-related risk analysis EDPR validates and updates
the climate-related scenarios for physical risks. Mid/Long-term risk (6 to 26 years, specifically



EDPR Integrated Annual Report 2024
Consolidated Statement of Non-Financial Information and Sustainability Information | Environmental Information

2030 and 2050) is mainly related to physical risks that may affect EDP's asset portfolio, namely
regarding extreme temperatures, extreme wind and rain events, and structural changes in
physical parameters. EDPR restricted the number of physical scenarios to three: RCP 2.6, RCP
4.5 and RCP 8.5. The analysis of physical variables was conducted by a specialized external
consultant, utilizing the Copernicus database and other international databases. The next steps
involve enhancing the harmonization of methodologies across the various business units,
updating the scenarios and narratives to incorporate the 6th IPCC Climate Assessment Report
(physical scenarios), and procuring a climate assessment tool to support the analysis and
quantification of physical risks. Results highlighted two types of risks: structural reduction of
water availability in lberia and Brazil, affecting the productivity of hydroelectric generation assets
in Portugal and Spain (chronic physical risk) and increased occurrence and severity of extreme
weather events, causing damages to our electricity distribution assets (acute physical risks).

« Climate-risk quantification and analysis of the risks based on the aggregated climate-
related value@risk - Each Business Unit and each area does a unique analysis of the impact of
each risk and opportunity on EBITDA, which forms the basis of the quantification process. This
quantification considers the expert identification of physical variables, their evolution, and the
narratives about politics, society, economy, and technology associated with the various
scenarios. Whenever feasible, the direct technique (anticipated loss/gain and maximum loss/
gain at P95%) or, alternatively, the indirect method (probability/frequency, impact medium, and
maximum impact P95%) is used to quantify each risk and opportunity. The aggregation of losses
and gains takes into account correlations between opportunities and risks as well as between
geographies for the EDPR's analysis. In addition, the Company has climate change adaptation
plans in place in its business units to ensure the resilience of infrastructure that may be exposed to
extreme events of greater intensity and frequency, compared to reality as we know it to-day.

What are the adaptation solutions implemented?

In addition, the identification of climate risks, climate projections and assessment of impacts allow
EDPR to identify and implement adaptation measures. Adaptation measures start from the selection
of the facility in the development phase, with environmental and other complementary studies. After
this first step, the Company identifies the characteristics necessary for the equipment to withstand
the potential weather conditions of the region, current and future ones. Procurement teams select the
appropriate equipment with the necessary characteristics to adapt the assets to the weather
conditions in the different regions. During the procurement process, priority is given to
characteristics such as: greater panel thickness, position of the structures, ice protection systems,
lightning protection, measures to prevent corrosion or measures to protect the assets against
extreme winds or other meteorological events.

Index Part | 197

Finally, EDPR implements climate change adaptation measures at its own facilities and continuously
monitors environmental variables that may affect its activity.

It should be noted that EDPR began working in 2023 on identifying solutions that will enable it to
identify physical risks at the asset level. This work has continued into 2024 and will proceed in the
coming months, with the aim of being able to compile this type of risk at the level of wind or solar
farms or sets of distributed panels.

For more details about our approach and compliance with Appendix A “Generic Criteria for DNSH to
climate change adaptation” consult EDP website for a breakdown of the physical risks associated
with climate change by activity, an assessment of the main physical risks, and examples of
initiatives that execute solutions for climate change adaption.

It should be emphasised that EDPR has not made a differentiation between CAPEX related to
eligible activities that contributes substantially to Climate Change Mitigation to which that are
CAPEX associated with Climate Change Adaptation initiatives.

Protection and restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems

EDPR's Business Plan for 2023-2026 includes targets related to Nature, with the overarching goal
of achieving net zero emissions by 2040. EDPR has set a corporate objective to attain a Biodiversity
"Net Gain" in all new projects with significant residual impacts by 2030. By 2026, EDPR aims to
have implemented Net Gain Biodiversity tracking systems in 100% of new projects, signifying the
need for all internal knowledge and resources to be in place to enable the company to meet Nature's
2030 targets. Additionally, under EDP’s corporate commitments, EDPR will not build new generation
facilities in Natural Heritage Sites from the UNESCO World Heritage List.

EDPR is aware of the sensitivity of natural ecosystems and the pressures affecting biodiversity.
EDPR's Environmental Policy establishes the Company's specific commitments to contribute to the
mitigation of climate change, the promotion of the circular economy and the protection of
biodiversity. This Policy is supplemented by internal guidance to establish a shared understanding
of how to act, emphasizing the use of the mitigation hierarchy approach throughout the project life
cycle as the initial step in fulfilling the overall biodiversity commitments.

Moreover, it is EDPR’s duty to contribute to the development of research and conservation programs,
as well as to broaden scientific knowledge on biodiversity matters by supporting institutions and
strengthening dialogue and partnerships.
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To support these commitments, EDPR is still working on a document that will define the specific
content of Biodiversity Action Plans (BAP). A Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) is an initiative, or a set of
initiatives, framed by the mitigation hierarchy framework, with the overall goal of enhancing the
biodiversity quality of the surrounding areas of an infrastructure/asset or a region where several
infrastructures/assets of the company are located. These BAPs will be implemented in those areas
considered at risk for biodiversity. This document outlines the main components of a BAP, the
biodiversity monitoring process and the reporting and communication process.

Protecting biodiversity in all the phases of EDPR’s projects

« Development

EDPR projects/operations comply with EU regulations or equivalent national provisions or
international standards.

During the development phase of any project of the Company, the potential environmental impacts
are analysed in detail in the environmental impact studies and other specific environmental studies,
always performed by professional external experts. These studies evaluate the possible impacts of
the projects in factors such as fauna, flora, soil, air and water bodies, among others.

Through the prospection phase and prior to other procedures and ElAs (Environmental Impact
Assessments), EDPR carries out an analysis of environmental constraints and other environmentall
issues, with the objective of selecting the best location for the project, based on various criteria.

The environmental studies and impact assessment (EIAs and other studies) procedures are
developed and conducted to ensure that the necessary studies are carried out to identify the
environment state and the potential impacts so that they are avoided, minimised and compensated
-following the mitigation hierarchy- during all the project phases. EDPR is committed to protecting
the environment and biodiversity, and therefore the scope of environmental assessment follows the
regulation and legal requirements defined by Authorities. Based on the environmental impact
assessments, the national authority approves or not the project's construction, by submitting a
declaration through the Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) or other kind of declarations.

« Construction and operation phases

During the construction and operational phases, EDPR conducts on-site environmental monitoring
to identify and prevent possible impacts on the biodiversity.

During the construction phase, the Company implements a set of minimisation, restoration and
compensation measures, necessary to avoid and remediate potential impacts. The main preventive
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measure the Company has in place is the environmental surveillance during the construction phase.
This surveillance enables EDPR to check that applicable requirements are fulfilled and preventive
measures are implemented, as well as to control potential impacts not expected and manage them
properly. In addition, the guarantee of a mitigation hierarchy approach is considered and
incorporated into national laws. Under the responsibility of National Authorities, the licensing
process is overseen throughout the project cycle; otherwise, the right to operate this project is
inhibited.

EDPR interacts with relevant stakeholders such as wildlife regulatory agencies, in order to assess the
best solutions to compensate environmental impacts of present and future operations.

Finally, EDPR has an Environmental Management System and a Health & Safety, certified according
to ISO 14001 and ISO 45001, respectively, by an accredited external independent third party. To
obtain this certificate external audits are performed each year to assess:

The implementation of Environmental Policy

The internal procedures in place to minimise the potential effects of EDPR activity on the
environment (mainly Climate Change, Biodiversity, Circular Economy)

A safe and health work environment and to prevent health effects.

EDPR has achieved 100% ISO 14001:2018 environmental certifications reinforcing its commitments
and procedures for managing environmental aspects. The calculation is based on installed capacity
EBITDA.

For the different markets, EDPR has procedures for compliance with applicable environmental
regulations. This regulatory monitoring is reviewed periodically and allows establishing measures
and action plans to ensure compliance.

- Dismantling and repowering phase

Under its Environmental Policy, EDPR recognize through the implementation and maintenance of
appropriate and effective environmental management systems, the need to protect the Environment
and integrate its components within decision-making processes at the different stages of
development, construction, operation, and decommissioning of infrastructure. The EDPR is
committed to providing innovative and competitive solutions by ensuring coherence across all its
activities and ecosystems. There is a provision in EDPR's accounts to cover all costs associated with
the activities necessary to deactivate the power plants. These activities are integrated into the
mission of the Decommissioning Department, which updates this provision every year, taking into
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account both the activities that have been carried out in the meantime and any new activities that
have been identified.

Mitigation and compensation measures for protecting the environment

Through its on-site management systems, EDPR promotes continuous improvement in its facilities,
identifying any opportunity for improvement in its processes. All those projects located near or inside
a protected area include the necessary studies and measures to protect biodiversity. EDPR’s
initiatives have the same mitigation hierarchy: avoid, minimise, restore and compensate all the
negative impacts that our projects could have. The application of the mitigation hierarchy approach
is a core element of the biodiversity strategy under development. EDPR started using IBAT
(Integrated Biodiversity Assessment Tool) to characterize its renewable assets and as an early risk
screening tool for new projects. The use of this tool reinforces the mitigation hierarchy approach,
integrating biodiversity into the investment decision-making process. Following IBAT datasets, by
the end of 2024, EDPR has analysed all its assets, identifying its location and exposure to
biodiversity sensitive areas, with around 12% of assets (wind+solar) located in or adjacent to World
Database Protected Areas (WDPA), and 15% located in Key Biodiversity Areas (KBA). The coverage
is 21% when considering WPDA and/or KBA. During 2025, EDPR will drill down this info to improve
data quality, supported by internal Geographic Information Systems, already in place and being
used thoroughly in Europe.

EDPR establishes several measures, procedures and commitments towards biodiversity protection:

Contribute to preventing or reducing biodiversity loss by promoting dynamic, global and locally
owned management, long-term thinking and the search for a positive global balance

Contribute to deepening scientific knowledge on different aspects of biodiversity, including
through the establishment of partnerships

EDPR has created landscape and wildlife protection programs in impacted areas, in partnership
with local public entities. These efforts have been recognised as valuable to maintain biodiversity
and natural heritage

Depending on the environment and its facilities’ EDPR has compulsory and voluntary initiatives in
place in terms of biodiversity and habitat conservation. The main environmental initiatives can be
found on this report (Part 6- Sustainability Statement)

Not building new generation facilities in areas included in the UNESCO World Heritage List,
ensuring that it continues to have no presence in these territories. EDPR monitors all its facilities
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located in protected areas in order to identify those wind farms and solar plants that may have a
potential impact on biodiversity and ensuring that all the necessary measures are in place. This
monitoring process helps the Company to implement actions to avoid and mitigate such impact.
EDPR has made a first exercise following the LEAP approach (TNFD) for the identification and
assessment of the nature-related impacts and dependencies in its direct operations. The impact
materiality for EDPR has been assessed based on the company knowledge and experience, as
well as reinforced by the participation of EDP in taskforces leading collaborative experiences
around the identification and assessment of impacts as dependencies on nature, as the WBCSD
‘Roadmaps to Nature Positive Foundations’ taskforce and the working group on ‘Natural capital
in the Spanish energy sector’

During the construction and operation phases, EDPR conducts on-site environmental monitoring
to identify and prevent possible impacts on biodiversity and the ecosystem

EDPR has mechanisms in place to fight biodiversity potential impacts within its facilities, such as:
Monitor collisions of birds and bats and their cumulative effect on species while limiting
indiscriminate accesses that disturb sensitive species and habitats, restoration of affected
vegetation areas, among other mechanisms

EDP participates in several national and international organizations, working in these topics in a
learning by sharing perspective involving not only other peers, but also partners such as NGO or
Academia. This participation has supported the design of these targets although without direct
contribution. Examples of these organizations where EDP participates: WBCSD; Act4Nature
Portugal, Fundacion Biodiversidad, Spain; REWI, USA

Be a TNFD adopter: Commit to disclose EDP's TNFD alignment by 2026.

Transition to a circular economy and waste management

i. EDPR promotes Circular Economy and the efficient use of natural resources in all its value
chain.

The Company has set our four ambitious circular economy targets for 2026 and 2030 supported in
four main axis of action(efficient use of resources and materials; durability; digitalization and
resources enhancement).
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The Company’s Environmental Policy outlines the circular economy commitments and how EDPR
promotes efficient use of natural resources in its activities, wherever possible, within the framework
of alife-cycle analysis, in particular:

Minimise the use of natural resources necessary to properly carry out its activities

Optimise and efficiently manage internal products and services, promoting a circular economy
for our customers

Maximise the recovery of waste and its reintroduction into the economy as by-products.
ii. EDPR includes circularity and waste management aspects from the procurement phase

EDPR's supplier management approach is based on a holistic view of the sustainable supply chain
which that enables the Group to ensure the integrated coordination of activities.

EDPR’s supply chain management also includes waste management and circular economy. The
Company also includes circular economy within its engagement process with suppliers:

Sustainable Procurement Policy

Sustainable Procurement Protocol that defines the Company's action protocol and due diligence
process

EDP Supplier Code of Conduct

For EU&South America contract conditions: there are suppliers sustainability guides for
construction and O&M phases, including recycling guidance and recommendations

ESG priorities for strategic suppliers, including circular economy.
iii. Engaging with manufacturing suppliers to promote circular economy

In 2024, EDPR has continued to enhance its analysis of five ESG priorities in its tenders (Request for
Proposals and other processes) for strategic equipment purchases, primarily solar and wind
equipment. These priorities include Decarbonisation, Circular Economy, Human and Labour Rights,
Health and Safety, and Transparency and Biodiversity. The Company has also engaged with
suppliers to share their LCAs and environmental information about their products, including circular
economy and recycling rates and information. During EDPR’s engagement process with suppliers,
the Company shares its ESG priorities with turbine, modules, structure and inverters suppliers.

Index Part | 200

iv. EDPR waste approach during operations and dismantling

EDPR promotes the recycling during its operations. The Company engages with waste treatment
suppliers and contractors to find solutions that help the Company achieve its expected recovery
rates. In 2019 and in 2021, EDPR has repowered 3 wind farms (Corme, Zas and Blue Canyon Il) with
high levels of recycling rates. In addition, EDPR includes circular economy as a priority for the coming
dismantling and repowering projects. Finally, the Company promotes and rewards those contracts
that offer solutions and opportunities for circularity.

The efficiency of wind turbines and solar panels, as well as their end of life, are evaluated by the
Company for their replacement or dismantling. The repowering of wind farms has been one of the
solutions applied by EDPR, which consists of reducing the number of wind turbines and replacing
them with more efficient models. The new modern models allow the Company to increase installed
capacity, CO2 avoided, and clean energy generated, while reducing the land area per MW.

v. Joining industry initiatives, forums and pilot projects

Since 2017, the Company has joined some initiatives and projects, and has also worked with
suppliers such as: the collaboration with Thermal Recycling of Composite (R3FIBER), RECICLALIA,
the LIFE REFIBRE project or the pilot project with the Associagdo Portuguesa de Energias
Renovdveis (APREN). EDP is also a member of the Global Alliance for Sustainable Energy, which also
addresses the circular economy.

EDPR promote the circularity practices. The Close the Loop Program is an example of this
commitment. This initiative focuses on keeping the environment at the forefront through more
efficient use of resources and materials. It promotes solutions that extend the life cycle of products
and ensures accountability for product materials and assets. This announcement highlights EDPR
North America's partnership with SOLARCYCLE, an advanced technology-based solar recycling
company, and underscores ongoing collaboration with 18 additional leaders in the recycling services
sector throughout North America.

Water

Given EDPR's activity and the criteria included in the EU Taxonomy through the technical criteria
and DNSH, the Company has no impact on water and aquatic resources.
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These policies allow the Company to comply with international guidelines such as:

EDPR's approach to compliance with the established minimum safeguards is detailed below. Some OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises on Responsible Business Conduct

specific procedures, policies and measures are established at EDPR. UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights

EDPR has several measures and procedures that allow the Company to manage the minimum

: . : : International L r Organisation’s (IL laration on Fundamental Rights and Principl t
safeguards requirements and ensure that risk situations do not occur, regarding to: ernational Labour Organisation’s (ILO) declaration on Fundamental Rights and Principles a

Work

Corruption and Bribery The eight ILO core conventions

Fair Competition International Bill of Human Rights.

Toxation The Company’s Code of Ethics outlines its commitment to respecting human and labour rights,

ensuring integrity in its actions, such as preventing corruption and bribery, and establishing
relationships of trust with various stakeholders. It also details the processes for detecting infractions

EDPR complies with guidelines pertaining to human rights and labour rights, as well as corruption, of the ethics code and responding to non-compliance situations.
taxation and fair competition. EDPR’s policies are listed below:

Human and Labour Rights.

EDPR’s measures and processes to combat corruption, bribery, bribe solicitation

H d Labour Rights Policy is publicl ilable in this link .
uman and Labour Rights Policy is publicly available in this link and extortion

The Integrity Policy (bribery and corruption) is available in this link , _ . .
The Company has internal control procedures, as well as ethics and compliance programs in place to

EDP Group Fiscal Policy is publicly available in this link detect and avoid potential corruption and bribery risks.

Healthy Competition Practices Commitment is publicly available in this link. The Company has a Global Compliance Program which includes:

: : : Integrity Compliance Program
Ethics and compliance in EDPR grity P g

Criminal Compliance Program for Spain
EDPR's policies and procedures on human and labour rights, anti-bribery and anti-corruption are

listed below: «  Personal Data Protection.

EDPR has launched its Human and Labour Rights Policy where the Company commits to respect
and undertakes to promote fair human and labour rights practices, being committed to guarantee
responsible operations throughout the whole value chain

In addition, the Company has an Integrity Policy that defines the general principles of action and
duties for EDPR to prevent illegal conducts such as crimes of corruption, bribery, undue receipt of
advantages, money laundering and terrorism financing, antitrust/anti-competitive practices and
non-compliance with data protection requirements.


https://www.edpr.com/sites/edpr/files/2023-01/EDPR_HumanAndLabourRightsPolicy_FullVersion.pdf
https://www.edpr.com/sites/edpr/files/2022-11/EDPR_IntegrityPolicy_2022.pdf
https://www.edp.com/en/investors/corporate-governance/edp-groups-tax-mission-policy
https://www.edp.com/en/investors/corporate-governance/healthy-competition-practices-commitment
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Ethics, Integrity and Compliance Governance within the Company

EDPR has a Compliance Standard that formalise the mission and responsibilities of the Compliance
functions and establishes different measures and procedures that enable the Company to fight and
prevent corruption and bribery:
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Interaction with Public Agents and Politically Exposed Persons procedure
Prevention of Conflicts of Interests procedure

Donations and Sponsorships procedure

Audit Control and Related Party Transactions Committee responsible for the supervision of the
financial information and internal control, risk management and Compliance systems

EDPR Ethics Commission ensures compliance with the Code of Ethics compliance within the
Company. This Commission is composed by: (i) the Chairman of the Appointments and
Remunerations Committee, who shall chair the Committee, (ii) the Chairman of the Audit, Control,
and Related Party Transactions Committee, (iii) the Compliance Officer, (iv) the Human
Resources Director, (v) the General Counsel & Compliance of EDPR North America LLC, and (vi)
the Secretary of the Board of Directors, who shall also perform the duties of the Secretary of the
Ethics Committee meetings

The Ethics&Compliance Officer to lead all the ethical, integrity and compliance measures. The

Offers and Events procedure
Intermediary Agreements procedure.

EDPR, only enters formalised legal transactions with third parties and other partners that comply with
the laws of their countries and adopt internal procedures that are aligned with EDPR internal policies
and standards.

The Company’s Integrity Policy is based on zero-tolerance policy in dealing with the prevention and
fight against this type of illicit acts, such as corruption and bribery. The Policy establishes a common
commitment and minimum requirements for legal compliance.

The Policy sets out several measures and control mechanisms, such as those listed below:

Ethics&Compliance Officer reports to the Audit, Control and Related Party Transactions
Committee and to the CEO.

Risk Management, including ESG and integrity issues

Risk identification and assessment processes for assessing the non-compliance risk

Risk analysis and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of existing control mechanisms
Risk mitigation and control measures

Other policies and procedures to ensure integrity and ethics in the Company:

EDPR Code of Ethics

EDPR Integrity Policy

EDP Code of conduct for Top Management and Senior Financial Officers

EDP Suppliers Code of Conduct

Third parties’ Integrity Due Diligence (IDD) processes

Procedures and Internal control mechanisms: As a result of the risk assessment, EDPR implements
transversal and specific control mechanism to ensure the application of EDPR’s Integrity Policy

Training and Communication: The procedures associated with the Global Compliance Program
are shared to all employees by specific and transversal trainings. All current and employees must
understand and commit to what the Policy outlines and global communication campaigns are
often launched to all the employees

Contact and Reporting Channels (Whistleblowing): EDPR makes available several reporting
channels for communicating irregularities and encourages its own employees to report any type
of behaviour that breaches of this Policy. Some of these channels are: Speak Up Channel;
Specific internal whistle-blower channels for EDPR companies, in which any whistleblowing
related to matters provided for in the aforementioned legislation can be reported; Ethics and
Compliance Officer

Monitoring, Continuous Improvement and Report: Compliance teams are responsible for
promoting appropriate mechanisms to monitor the Global Compliance Program, lead the analysis
of misalignment situations and promote corrective actions
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Audit: The Company has an Internal Audit Department in charge of ensuring that audits comply
with the Global Compliance Program and that they guarantee the fight against corruption and
bribery, as well as risk management. The Company also has an external audit process that allows
EDPR to obtain a double certification from AENOR that verifies and accredits that the Company
has developed a system of criminal and anti-bribery compliance based on UNE 19601 and ISO
37001 standards. The AENOR Certifications (UNE 19601 and ISO 37001) were obtained in 2021
and, inboth 2022 and 2023, EDPR has renewed both Certifications.

Compliance with the fair competition requirements of the Minimum Safeguards

The Company follows the applicable regulations on fair competition, ensuring compliance in all
markets in which it operates.

Through its Code of Ethics EDPR prioritises relationships of trust and fair competition with all its
stakeholders, promoting an honest and respectful relationship with all of them. In this sense, it is
fundamental for the Company to promote integrity in its business practices, through good practices
of healthy competition.

In this sense, the Company establishes through its Code the guidelines for action and the situations
that must be avoided, in order to ensure that no anti-competitive practices take place. EDPR,
through training of new hires on the Company's Code of Ethics and periodic communications
regarding the Code and its compliance.

Compliance with tax regulation, tax governance and tax risk management
processes

The Company ensures compliance with applicable tax regulations and has certifications to support
it. The EDP Group's Tax Policy establishes the Company's approach to tax management.

Compliance with Human and Labour Rights and due diligence requirements from
the EU Taxonomy and the Minimum Safeguards

The Company's commitment to respect human rights is part of its public statements and
commitments, such as the Human and Labour Rights Policy, the Code of Ethics, the Integrity Policy
and the Supplier Code of Conduct, among others.
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The Company understands the protection of human rights throughout the value chain. To this end, it
starts with a materiality analysis to identify human and labour rights as a fundamental criterion for
the activity of the Company and its stakeholders.

As a result of this materiality study, it analyses the potential risks that may occur in the value chain
(from the supply chain to the communities in which it operates, including its direct activity and that of
its employees), with the aim of establishing policies, procedures, codes and systems to avoid any
type of risk.

EDPR identifies its supply chain as a key segment to achieve its sustainability goals and anticipate
potential risks. The Company has a due diligence process for the management of the supply chain,
which can be summarised as follows:

Series of commitments established by the Company to ensure respect for human and labour
rights in its activity

Supply chain screening process
Risk assessment

Monitoring of suppliers and continuous dialogue and engagement with the supply chain, in order
to anticipate and avoid potential risks

For the direct activity of EDPR and its contractors, the Company has a series of policies and
procedures that outline its commitments and measures to manage human rights in its value
chain.

The Company also has in place several policies to protect human and labour rights in its own
operations.

Regarding to human capital EDP has internal policies and procedures that seek to promote equality
and non-discrimination, the recruitment and retention of talent and the reconciliation of work and
personal life. In addition, for each country in which the Company operates, it has systems in place to
ensure compliance with regulations regarding collective bargaining agreements and workers' rights.
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The disclosure of the proportion of the turnover, capital expenditure and operating expenditures
aligned, eligible and non-eligible with the European Taxonomy is made under the new templates for
reporting the financial environmental key indicators under the Annex V of the European Commission
Notice C (2023) 3851 which amends the Annex Il of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU
2021/2178). In addition, the disclosure of the proportion of fossil gas energy activities is made under
the templates of the annex Xll of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU 2022/1214).

In points A to D, we identified the economic activities covered by the European Classification and
then collaborated with different units of EDPR regarding the technical alignment criteria, the DNSH,
and MSS to determine eligible, non-aligned, and non-eligible activities, thereby imputing the
environmental financial KPIs. We are aware of the need to adapt our financial process system and
processes for data collection and production of financial environmental information. This means that
from the very first moment we disclosed the KPIs under Regulation (EU) 2021/2178, we have been
constantly improving the calculation process, resulting in some methodological changes every year.
This year was no exception, and some changes were introduced as presented below.

Data collection

I.  For the generation activities of EDP Renovdveis, in order to disaggregate the Turnover, CAPEX,
and OPEX volumes for each economic activity (4.1, 4.3, and 7.6) under Article 8 of the EU
Taxonomy Regulation (EU) 2021/2178, we use the information provided by analytical
accounting, which means using the data from each reporting unit of EDP Renovdveis to obtain
the information by technology for that company (Europe, North America, South America and
APAC. The Group EDP Renovdveis generates energy from renewable resources and has four
reportable segments)

ii.  Non- eligibility - The mentioned analysis excluded the holdings of EDP Renovdveis, which were
treated as a non-eligible activity because they do not generate energy from renewable sources

ii. For OPEX we use the information collected under the analytical system for each reporting unit
of EDP Renovdveis Europe, North America, South America and APAC. The mentioned costs
correspond to some of the items of the "Maintenance and Repair", namely, "Subcontracts";
"Office materials and tools"; “leases and tools"; "Maintenance and repairs”; Cleaning and
hygiene"; "Maintenance and repairs - Other" and "Surveillance and security" which are
necessary to ensure the continued and effective functioning of the eligible activities. In addition

to the costs indicated, we also considered personnel costs related with maintenance and
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repairs. These costs were calculated based on the total personnel costs and allocated by
reporting segment unit, considering the number of employees involved in operation and
maintenance activities. This approach ensured the acquisition of information related to the
human resources costs necessary to maintain the continuity and effective functioning of these
activities.

Methodology- Allocations were used in the calculation of sustainability KPIs whenever it was
necessary to reconcile the financial information by technology for each reporting unit of each
reportable segments of EDP Renovdveis and reported operating segment (<=0.6%):

I.  The proportion of each technology in generation to distribute revenues
ii.  The proportion of capacity under construction for each technology for distributing CAPEX

iii.  And for Sustainable OPEX, we use the operational MW, categorized by technology type.

Approach to double counting

EDPR’s eligibles activities contribute substantially for the climate change mitigation. Thus, the
taxonomy alignment was assessed in this context. It was not necessary to distinguish for the three
indicators the amounts allotted to the different environmental objectives because EDPR does not
have eligible activities that are simultaneously contributing to other environmental objectives. It
should be emphasised that EDPR has not made a differentiation between CAPEX related to eligible
activities that contributes substantially to Climate Change Mitigation to which that are CAPEX
associated with climate change adaption initiatives.

The calculations of those financial environmental indicators follow the accounting policies which are
described in the Annual Report 2024, 2024 Consolidated Annual Accounts, Notes to the
consolidated annual accounts: note 2 “Accounting policies” and note 3 “Recent accounting
standards and interpretations issued”. As a result, double counting (mainly related with intragroup
transactions eliminations) is avoided.
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Content of KPIrelated to Turnover in 2024 eligible and aligned

PROPORTION OF PROPORTION OF
TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE TOTALELIGIBLE TAXONOMY TAXONOMY
A= Turnover(€m) | CIBLE TURNOVER (%)  Aligned TURNOVER (%)
Electricity generation using solar o o
photovoltaic technology (4.1) 270,709,232 1.4 % 1.4 %
Electricity generation from wind 1068,416.749 826 % 826 %
power (4.3)
Installation, maintenance and repair
of renewable energy technologies 133,278,690 56 % 5.6 %
(7.6)
Total 2,372,404,671 99.5 % 99.5 %

Note: Refer to Taxonomy Tables

The proportion of Taxonomy-eligible and aligned turnover was calculated as the portion of the
turnover derived from products and services associated with electricity generation from wind and
solar in the reporting period (numerator) divided by the total turnover in the reporting period
(denominator).

In order to disaggregate the Turnover for each economic activity (4.1, 4.3, and 7.6) under Article 8 of
the EU Taxonomy Regulation (EU) 2021/2178, we use the information provided by analytical
accounting, which means using the data from each reporting unit of EDP Renovdveis to obtain the
information by technology for that company. This analysis excluded the holdings of EDP
Renovdveis, which were treated as a non-eligible activity. Allocations were used in the calculation of
sustainability KPIs whenever it was necessary to reconcile the information by technology for each
reporting unit and reported operating segments (<=0.6%):

i.  The proportion of each technology in generation to distribute revenues
il.  The proportion of capacity under construction for each technology for distributing CAPEX
iii.  And for Sustainable OPEX, we use the operational MW, categorized by technology type.

The denominator of the turnover KPI is based on the Company’s consolidated revenues in
accordance with IAS 1.82(a) and amounts to €2,383m. This value refers to the item "Revenues and
Cost of Energy Sales" (€2,016m) in the “Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
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December 2024 and 2023” of the EDPR Annual Report 2024, Consolidated Annual Accounts,
added to the cost of consumed electricity (€286m) and changes in inventories and cost of raw
materials and consumables used (€81m).

The amount corresponding to the non-eligible activities of the company, related to the turnover of
the holdings, is the difference between €2,383m (the total turnover of EDP Renovdveis) and the total
turnover derived from products or services associated with Taxonomy-aligned and Taxonomy non-
aligned activities (€2,372m).

Content of KPIrelated to CAPEX in 2024 eligible and aligned

PROPORTION OF PROPORTION OF
TAXONOMY -ELIGIBLE TOTAL ELIGIBLE CAPEX OT:XOI\(I)OIV(IJY OTEXOI\?OMOY
LTS (€m) ELIGIBLE CAPEX (%) Aligned CAPEX (%)
Electricity generation using solar o o
photovoltaic technology (4.1) 1261731146 36.0 % 36.0 %
Electricity generation from wind o o
oower (4.3) 2,046,299,007 58.4 % 58.4 %
Installation, maintenance and
repair of renewable energy 62,290,740 1.8 % 1.8 %
technologies (7.6)
Total 3,370,320,892 96.2 % 96.2 %

Note: Refer to Taxonomy Tables.

The proportion of Taxonomy-eligible and aligned CAPEX was calculated as the portion of the total,
CAPEX derived from products and services associated with electricity generation from wind and
solar (numerator) and the total in the financial year on tangible and intangible fixed assets
(denominator).

Consequently, all CAPEX invested into planning, construction, operation and maintenance of wind
farms and solar plants are considered in the numerator of the CAPEX KPI. EDP Renewables also
includes the amount related to intangible projects, such as essential hardware communications and
software licenses for the operation of eligible activities.

Additionally, EDP Renewables deducts from its total CAPEX the amounts that are not essential for
eligible activities, specifically referring to the amounts related to the holdings of EDP Renovaveis, as
they do not generate energy from renewable sources.
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It also excludes the grants that EDP Renovdveis received from various government institutions,
totalling €157m. This amount is reflected in the total operational investment of the EDP Renovdveis
Group (€3,504m), as seen in the table "Reconciliation between the segment information and the
financial statements" 2024 Consolidated Annual Accounts (EDPR Annual Report 2024).

The denominator corresponds to the total CAPEX consists of additions to tangible and intangible
fixed assets during the financial year, before depreciation, amortisation and any re-measurements,
including those resulting from revaluations and impairments, as well as excluding changes in fair
value. It includes acquisitions of tangible fixed assets (IAS 16), intangible fixed assets (IAS 38), right-
of-use assets (IFRS 16) and investment properties (IAS 40). Additions resulting from business
combinations are also included. Goodwill is not included in CAPEX, as it is not defined as an
intangible asset in accordance with |IAS 38. Refer to notes 16 “Property, plant and
equipment” (€3,399m), note 17 “Right of use assets” (€84m) and 18 “Intangible assets” (€21m) of the
EDPR Annual Report 2024, Consolidated Annual Accounts.

Content of KPIrelated to OPEX eligible and aligned

TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE TOTAL ELIGIBLE OPEX PRO-:-D :;gkogw?ylz PRO-:-D E)ECT)K,)(')\IMO\';
SRS (€m) ELIGIBLE OPEX (%) Aligned OPEX (%)
Electricity generation using

solar photovoltaic technology 45,799,652 12.2 % 12.2 %
(4.1)

Electricity generation from

o povz’ef 4.3) 312,506,424 83.2 % 83.2 %
Installation, maintenance and

repair of renewable energy 14,868,137 40 % 4.0 %
technologies (7.6)

Total 373174114 99.4 % 99.4 %

Note: Refer to Taxonomy Tables.

The proportion of Taxonomy-eligible and aligned OPEX is defined as the OPEX considered
sustainable in the reporting period (humerator) divided by the Company’s total OPEX (denominator).

The numerator consists of the OPEX related to maintenance of assets or processes associated with
electricity generation from wind and solar power (considered as components necessary to execute
the activity). The mentioned costs correspond to some of the items of the "Maintenance and Repair":

"Subcontracts"; "Office materials and tools"; “leases and tools"; "Maintenance and repairs”; Cleaning
and hygiene"; "Maintenance and repairs - Other" and "Surveillance and security" of the note 10.
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which are necessary to ensure the continued and effective functioning of the eligible activities. The
mentioned costs also include training and other human resources adaptation needs. These costs
were calculated based on the total personnel costs and allocated by reporting segment unit,
considering the number of employees involved in operation and maintenance activities. This
approach ensured the acquisition of information related to the human resources costs necessary to
maintain the continuity and effective functioning of these activities.

The denominator, total OPEX, consists of direct non-capitalised costs that relate to leases and rents,
and maintenance and repairs, and any other direct expenditures relating to the day-to-day
servicing of assets of property, plant and equipment. This value cannot be directly cross-referenced
with the Company’s consolidated financial statements, as it only includes the maintenance and
repair and other direct expenditures relating to day-to-day servicing of assets of property, plant and
equipment as allocated to the Company’s internal cost centres for maintenance and repairs and
non-capitalised costs for leases. In 2024, the denominator also includes personnel costs related
with maintenance and repairs, but did not yet include direct non-capitalised costs for research and
development.

Comparative information

During the 2024 exercise, all activities disclosed by EDPR as eligible in all three taxonomy indicators
(Turnover, CAPEX, and OPEX) met the alignment criteria. Compared to the 2023 eligibility exercise,
there have been no significant changes for turnover, which slightly decreased in eligibility (-0.3pp
YoY), while CAPEX decreased in eligibility by 3.6pp YoY. The decrease was attributed to the
reduced development of solar projects. Regarding OPEX, the comparison to 2023 shows an
increase of 1.8pp YoY. This change was due to the improvement in the method of obtaining
sustainability OPEX for each technology and economic activity of EDP Renovaveis.
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A. TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES
A.1. Environmentally sustainable activities (Taxonomy-aligned)
Electricity generation using solar photovoltaic technology CCM 4.1 270,709,232 N4 % Y N N/EL N/EL N/EL N/EL Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 6.2 %
Electricity generation from wind power CCM4.3 968,416,749  82.6 % Y N N/EL N/EL N/EL N/EL Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 9.4 %
Installation, maintenance and repair of renewable energy technologies CCM7.6 133,278,690 56 % Y N N/EL N/EL N/EL N/EL Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 22% E
Turnover of environmentally sustainable activities (Taxonomy-aligned) (A1) 2,372,404671 995 % 995% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 99.8 %
Of which Enabling 133,278,690 56 % 56 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 2.2 % E -

A.2 Taxonomy-Eligible but not environmentally sustainable activities (not
Taxonomy-aligned activities)

Turnover of Taxonomy eligible but not environmentally sustainable activities
(not Taxonomy-aligned activities) (A.2)

A. Turnover of Taxonomy eligible activities (A.1+A.2) 2,372,404,671 995 % 995 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

B. TAXONOMY-NON-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

0 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

Turnover of Taxonomy non-eligible activities 1,134,744 05 %

Total 2,383,539,415 100 %
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TAXONOMY-ALIGNED PER OBJECTIVE TAXONOMY -ELIGIBLE PER OBJECTIVE

99.5 % 99.5 %
0 99.5 %
0 0]
0 0]
0 0




EDPR Integrated Annual Report 2024
Consolidated Statement of Non-Financial Information and Sustainability Information | Environmental Information

A. TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

A.1. Environmentally sustainable activities (Taxonomy-aligned)

Electricity generation using solar photovoltaic technology
Electricity generation from wind power

Installation, maintenance and repair of renewable energy technologies

CAPEX of environmentally sustainable activities (Taxonomy-aligned
activities) (A.1.)

Of which Enabling
Of which Transitional

A.2 Taxonomy-Eligible but not environmentally sustainable activities
(not Taxonomy-aligned activities)

CAPEX of Taxonomy eligible but not environmentally sustainable
activities (not Taxonomy-aligned activities) (A.2)

A. CAPEX of Taxonomy eligible activities (A.1+A.2)

B. TAXONOMY-NON-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

CAPEX of Taxonomy non-eligible activities

Total

CCM 421 1,261,731,146
CCM 4.3 2,046,299,007

CCM7.6 62,290,740
3,370,320,892

62,290,740

0

3,370,320,892

134,063,109

3,504,384,001

36.0

58.4

1.8

96.2

1.8

0.0

0.0

96.2

3.8

% Y N N/EL N/EL N/EL N/EL
% Y N N/EL N/EL N/EL N/EL
% Y N N/EL N/EL N/EL N/EL
%  96.2 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

% 1.8 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

% 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

%  96.2 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

%

100 %

Index

Part |

65.4 %

32.3 %

21%

99.8 %

21%
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TAXONOMY-ALIGNED PER OBJECTIVE TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE PER OBJECTIVE

96.2 % 96.2 %
0 96.2 %
0 0
0 0
0 0
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euros % YN Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N % E T
A. TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES
A.1. Environmentally sustainable activities (Taxonomy-aligned)
Electricity generation using solar photovoltaic technology CCM 4.1 45799652 122 % Y N N/EL N/EL  N/EL N/EL Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 41 %
Electricity generation from wind power CCM 4.3 312,506,424 832 % Y N N/EL  N/EL  N/EL  N/EL Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 92.0 %
Installation, maintenance and repair of renewable energy technologies CCM7.6 14,868,137 40 % Y N N/EL  N/EL  N/EL  N/EL Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 1.4 %
OPD.(.Of environmentally sustainable activities (Taxonomy-aligned 37317414 994 % 994% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 976%
activities) (A1)
Of which Enabling 14,868,137 40 % 40% O00% O00% O00% O00% 00% Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 1.4 %

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
A.2 Taxonomy-Eligible but not environmentally sustainable activities (not

OPEX of Taxonomyeligible but not environmentally sustainable activities

(not Taxonomy-aligned activities) (A.2)

Taxonomy-aligned activities)
O 00 % 00% 00% 00% O00% O00% 0.0%
97.6 %

A. OPEX of Taxonomy eligible activities (A.1+A.2) 37317414 994 % 994% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00%

Il-l-I !
_|I

B. TAXONOMY-NON-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

OPEX of Taxonomy non-eligible activities 2,216,203 0.6 %

Total 375,390,317 100 %
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TAXONOMY-ALIGNED PER OBJECTIVE TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE PER OBJECTIVE

99.4 % 99.4 %
0 99.4 %
0 0
0 0
0 0
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Key performance indicators under the templates of the annex Xll of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU 2022/1214) — Template 1

Nuclear and fossil gas related activities

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to research, development, demonstration and deployment of innovative electricity generation facilities that produce energy from nuclear processes with No
minimal waste from the fuel cycle.

5 The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction and safe operation of new nuclear installations to produce electricity or process heat, including for the purposes of district heating or No
industrial processes such as hydrogen production, as well as their safety upgrades, using best available technologies.
3 The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to safe operation of existing nuclear installations that produce electricity or process heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial No

processes such as hydrogen production from nuclear energy, as well as their safety upgrades.

4 The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction or operation of electricity generation facilities that produce electricity using fossil gaseous fuels. No

5 The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment, and operation of combined heat/cool and power generation facilities using fossil gaseous fuels. No

6 The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment and operation of heat generation facilities that produce heat/cool using fossil gaseous fuels. No
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E1.GOV-3_01- Disclosure of whether and how climate-related considerations are
factored into remuneration of members of administrative, management and
supervisory bodies

Yes, EDPR factors climate-related considerations into its Board of Directors' remuneration policy by
including among its KPIs a series of ESG objectives for the Company, specifically for climate action,
through an increase inrenewable installed capacity.

The 2023-2025 Remuneration Policy, which was approved as the ninth item on the agenda of the
General Shareholders Meeting held on April 4, 2024, specifies that climate-related considerations
are factored in the multi-annual variable remuneration, weighing in 20% of the total key
performance indicators considered.

E1.GOV-3_02 - Percentage of remuneration recognised that is linked to climate
related considerations

REMUNERATION 2024 2023

Percentage of remuneration recoanised Multiannual variable remuneration, Multiannual variable remuneration,

that is Iinl?ed to climate related 9 cuantitative - 25% ESG Indicators cuantitative - 20% ESG Indicators
(Total renewables MWs build-out (Total renewables MWs build-out,

considerations (20%), Bloomberg GEI (5%)) Bloomberg GEI)

E1.GOV-3_03 - Explanation of climate-related considerations that are factored
into remuneration of members of administrative, management and supervisory
bodies

Climate-related considerations are included in the Board of Directors' remuneration policy in multi —
annual variable remuneration. The key performance indicators and their weighting regarding the
multi-annual variable remuneration are:
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Quantitative - 90%:
Growth: earnings per share cumulative recurring - 25%
Shareholder remuneration: TSR vs Eurostoxx utilities and S&P Clean Energy - 40%
ESG: Total renewables MWs built-out - 20%; Bloomberg GEI - 5%.
Qualitative - 10%:
Strategy and execution - 2.5%
Employee development - 2.5%
Team work and new forms of working - 2.5%
Stakeholder management - 2.5%
E1-1_16 - Date of adoption of transition plan for undertakings not having adopted
transition plan yet

EDPR has submitted its intent to the SBTi to reduce Scope 1, 2, and 3 emissions. Scope 1 and 2
emissions represent 1% of the company's total GHG emissions. The commitments are a 35%
reduction by 2030 and a 90% reduction by 2040, using 2020 as the base year. For Scope 3
emissions, the commitments are a 52% reduction per net generation (intensity reduction — tCO,/
MWh) by 2030 and a 97% reduction per net generation by 2040, also using 2020 as the base year.
It is important to note that these numbers do not represent final targets, as EDPR's decarbonization
planis still being defined.

E1.SBM-3_01- Type of climate-related risk

EDPR defines climate risks in line with the taxonomy defined by TCFD recommendation. In the first
exercise of EDPR’s Climate Risk Assessment, all risks were evaluated, however only material risks
were reported (over €1m). Every annual update, the extended list of risks is checked, to understand if
there was any relevant change on materiality, and to select the material risks to be reported.

As climate risks and opportunities with a material impact (over €1m) are calculated based on the
analysis of the impact on EBITDA and reported by each geography, the main risks of EDPR are the
following:
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PHYSICAL RISK

MAIN IMPACT
Temperature increase Rise of energy losses
CHRONIC Loss of efficiency
Demand increase
Extreme temperatures Unpredictability of consumption
Malfunctioning turbines and panels
ACUTE Extremesevents (wind/  Disruptions of generation activities and damage to
rain) assets

Increase operating costs

TRANSITION RISK

MAIN IMPACT

Increase exposure to environmental litigation

REGULATORY AND LEGAL . )
Changes in product regulation
MARKET Effect of additional environmental measures on market price variables
TECHNOLOGICAL Devaluation/replacement of assets due to technological obsolescence
Stakeholders’ concerns regarding the company's path to climate transition
REPUTATIONAL Implementation failures of environmental measures or market positioning regarding

the new climate reality

E1.SBM-3_02 - Description of scope of resilience analysis

EDPR’s strategy is aligned with energy transition. The climate risk assessment analysis is integrated
within EDPR’s resilience analysis, identifying the key vulnerabilities of the company. Additionally, the
resilience analysis ends up with the definition of adaptation plans taking into consideration the key
vulnerabilities identified.

EDPR participates in the Climate Risks Assessment, where key risks and opportunities to move
forward are highlighted, and test resilience under several climate scenarios, including the bellow
2°C Scenario. To inform strategy, three climate scenarios are used aggregating physical and
transition variables mostly based on the RCP (Representative Concentration Pathway) scenarios of
the IPCC (Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change) and on the IEA (International Energy
Agency) scenarios, respectively. Specifically for the transition risks, and considering that the
reference scenarios (IEA, Baringa, AFRY, Aurora, IHS and S&P) do not have specific data for Portugal
and Spain, some internal adjustments were considered to reflect EDPR’s specific geographies,
taking into account country-specific databases for Iberia, fine tuning information in terms of
installed capacity, generation mix, energy demand, among others. The quantification process
involves each business unit analysing the impact of each risk and opportunity on EBITDA,

Index Part | 215

considering physical variables, their evolution, and narratives about policy and legal, technology,
market, and reputation. The aggregation of losses and gains takes into account correlations
between opportunities and risks as well as between geographies.

Climate risks and opportunities with a material impact (over €1m) are periodically calculated based
on the analysis of the impact on EBITDA and assessed through a Climate Value@Risk approach.

It covers directly all operations, identifying and quantifying risks associated whenever it falls into the
criteria defined previous. It currently covers Wind and Solar business activities (excluding BESS and
Wind-offshore), in lberia, Brazil and North America (excludes rest of Europe, APAC, rest of Latin
America, in undergoing efforts to be included in 2025 exercise).

The timeframe for the resilience analysis is detailed next on E1.SBM-3_05.

E1.SBM-3_03 - Disclosure of how resilience analysis has been conducted

EDPR performs the Climate Risks Assessment of its portfolio, integrated into the global risk
management process, to annually review and report on the resilience of the strategy to climate
change, within the scope previously defined in E1.SBM-3_02.

The process is structured in three distinct phases:

Risk identification: Guarantees the exhaustive identification of risks and opportunities in each
business and main geographies and in line with the structure defined in the TCFD
recommendations;

Climate Scenario Alignment: Includes the validation and updating of the physical and transition
sub-scenarios, as well as the main climate variables (physical and transition);

Risk quantification and Climate Value@Risk aggregation: Considers the quantification of the
most relevant climate-related risks and opportunities of each business/geography (i.e., with an
impact on EBITDA of over €1m).

Climate risks and opportunities with a material impact (over €1m) are periodically calculated based
on the analysis of the impact on EBITDA and reported by each Platform/geography and duly
aggregated through a Climate Value@Risk (considering a set of assumptions of correlation between
risks and opportunities).
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The assessment of each material risk is done according to 3-time horizons (0-1years, 2-6 and 7-26
years) and under 3 different climate scenarios. The exercise is consolidated at Group level, by
Platform and by business segment.

E1.SBM-3_04 - Disclosure of whenresilience analysis has been conducted

EDPR has in place an internal climate risk management governance model, integrated into the
global risk management process, to annually review and report on the resilience of EDPR's strategy
to climate change. The process is overseen by Risk Management and Sustainability. The last
exercise was performed in 2024.

E1.SBM-3_05 - Time horizons applied for resilience analysis

The time horizons applied for the resilience analysis are Short/Mid-term risk (0 to 6 years,
specifically 2025 and 2030) is mainly related to transition risks, namely energy market design,
prices, regulatory framework, and technological developments. Mid/Long-term risk (6 to 26 years,
specifically 2030 and 2050) is mainly related to physical risks that may affect EDPR's asset
portfolio, namely regarding extreme temperatures, extreme wind and rain events, and structural
changes in physical parameters.

Short-term (0-1 years): This timeframe (2024-2025) encompasses EDPR’s Business Plan time
horizon, in which EDPR presents its commitments for the period. It allows to anticipate the most
immediate consequences of possible transition risks and opportunities

Medium-term (2-6 years): This timeframe corresponds to the 2026-2030 period, for which
EDPR has several energy transition targets defined. It allows to anticipate possible transition risks
and opportunities — namely how governments can structure viable roadmaps towards carbon
neutrality (policies and regulation) and the role companies such as EDPR can play in supporting
this transition with the knowledge and the technology required to deliver these roadmaps, under
certain economic conditions — as well as it can also foresee possible physical risks and
opportunities, with an impact on the company’s strategy

Long-term (7-26 years): This timeframe (2031-2050) is in line with the global objective set by the
Paris Agreement to control unprecedented climate change effects by limiting global warming to
below 2°C and pursuing efforts to limit it to 1.5°C, in the second half of the century. It foresees
long-term structural risks and opportunities for the company. For the physical risks and
opportunities, the main driver is resilience. Anticipate and adapt to what can be the
consequences of structural changes in climate patterns, such as chronic physical impacts which
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are not immediate and can only be truly assessed in the long-term. As for the transition risks/
opportunities, it is not contemplated in this time horizon, as its impact is on short medium term.

E1.SBM-3_new - Explain how the estimated anticipated financial effects from
material physical and transition risks as well as the mitigation actions and
resources were considered

EDPR does not report this indicator as it is related to E1-9, which is not answered because it is in
phase in.

E1.SBM-3_06 - Description of results of resilience analysis

The climate assessment allows for the identification of the most relevant risks and opportunities
arising from different climate paths. The previous table showed the key results of the prior exercise,
and the most relevant mitigation measures in place to contain/ prevent risk impacts.

According to the Climate Risks Assessment, the EDPR demonstrates a resilient portfolio in both the
RCP 2.6 + NZE (integrated into the AGG scenario) and the RCP 8.5 + Base scenario (integrated into
the SMT scenario) of which will be detailed in table below. Nonetheless, the exercise enabled the
identification of the most relevant risks, which informed EDPR's adaptation plans for assets that are
more exposed according to assets mentioned on E1.SBM-3_02 .

CLIMATE SCENARIOS

PHYSICAL SCENARIOS TRANSITION SCENARIOS
AGG RCP 2.6: considers (1) compliance with the Paris Agreement; Net Zero Emissions by 2050 Scenario (NZE) with internal
(2) that the energy system reaches carbon neutrality by adjustments (as reference scenarios - IEA, Baringa,

(AS greenas it gets) 2070; (3) that the temperature rises between 1.5°C and 2°C;  AFRY, Aurora, IHS and S&P - do not have specific data

and (4) that the average sea level rises by 0.4mand ocean  for Portugal and Spain, some internal adjustments were

acidification begins to recover by 2050 considered to reflect EDP’s specific geographies, namely
installed capacity, generation mix, energy demand,
among other): considers (1) the global energy sector
reaching net zero CO2 emissions by 2050; (2) economic
growth and job creation related to sustainable energy; (3)
a more resilient and cleaner energy

BGT RCP 4.5: considers that (1) the Paris Agreement is not fulfilled; Base Scenario: assumes that (1) the announced policies

(A bit greener than (2) the temperature rises between 2°C and 3°C and extreme  are generally complied with, and no additional effort is
temperatures become more frequent; and (3) the sea level made towards sustainable development; and (2) policies,

tOdOy) rises by 0.5m and many species are unable to adapt albeit limited, are adopted to reduce the use of fossil

SMT RCP 8.5: considers that (1) the Paris Agreement is not fulfilled; fuels, butdemandiis still high
oSVIT i puld
(SlOW move to (2) the temperature rises by more than 3°C; (3) extreme
.. events become more frequent and there are large variations
transition) inrainfall; and (4) the sea level rises by 0.7 metres
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EDPR has implemented comprehensive climate change adaptation plans to ensure the resilience of
its infrastructure against extreme weather events. These plans include the identification and
quantification of climate risks and opportunities, which are integrated into the company's decision-
making processes. EDPR's procurement teams select equipment with the necessary characteristics
to adapt to the specific weather conditions of different regions. Additionally, the company
continuously monitors environmental variables that may impact its activities and implements self-
protection plans for its facilities.

EDPR's approach to climate change adaptation involves detailed analysis and implementation of
specific measures across various phases of its projects, from development to operation and
maintenance. The company prioritizes characteristics such as greater panel thickness, ice
protection systems, and measures to prevent corrosion during the procurement process.
Furthermore, EDPR includes meteorological variables in its asset generation monitoring to assess
the impact of abnormal weather conditions on generation. Reinforcement of emergency response
measures, such as fire walls, water collection and self-protection measures, is also integrated into its
strategy. By diversifying its geographical and technological portfolio, EDPR mitigates the impacts of
climate change and leverages opportunities presented by the energy transition.

E1.SBM-3_07 - Description of ability to adjust or adapt strategy and business
model to climate change

EDPR's strategy alignment with climate transition is materialized by the definition of a set of metrics
and targets, aligned with the financial consolidation criterion. Medium and long-term goals are
established and monitored at different times of the year, either monthly, quarterly, or annually. Two
complementary sets of metrics are defined, based on 2020, when applicable:

operational metrics and targets, illustrating the evolution of the business in each fundamental
pillar to the climate transition

climate metrics, reflecting the evolution of the business in terms of its impact on CO,, emissions,
or avoided CO,., when applicable. For this last group of indicators, EDPR uses the GHG Protocol
as main reference.

The data necessary to calculate the indicators is extracted quarterly from an internal platform,
where sustainability information from the Business Units is stored, including environment and
climate activity data. The data is consolidated at the corporate level and the information is verified
annually by an independent auditor. It is thus possible to monitor the evolution of the indicators
against the defined targets, both quarterly and annually.
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For the Climate Indicators, the methodology used to establish these targets may be summarized as
follows:

short/mid-term targets (2025 and 2030) - based on the consolidated operating data from the
multi-annual business plans, the evolution of the referred indicators is simulated, and the
respective targets are established. In the case of emission scopes, the categories with the most
material weight are considered

medium/long term goals (2030 and 2050) - focus only on electricity generation and CO2
emissions. Targets are set based on internal projections under different scenarios of EDP’s
portfolio evolution.

Taking into consideration the metrics and key aspects, EDPR is already driving energy transition,
however there are still physical risks that need to be accounted for the future and are already in
development in EDPR’s adaptation actions. Nonetheless, the company shows to be resilient for the
upcoming climate change impacts, in the short, mid and long term.

E1.IRO-1_01- Description of process in relation to impacts on climate change

EDPR performs the Climate Risks Assessment of its portfolio, integrated into the global risk
management process, to annually review and report on the resilience of the strategy to climate
change. This process is aligned with TCFD recommendations and ensures an adequate assessment
of potential risks and opportunities of business evolution. It covers directly all operations, identifying
and quantifying risks associated whenever it falls into the criteria defined previous. It currently
covers Wind and Solar business activities (excluding Wind off-shore and BESS), in Iberia, Brazil and
North America (excludes rest of Europe, APAC, rest of Latin America, in undergoing efforts to be
included in 2025 exercise.

Climate risk process:

Risk identification: Guarantees the exhaustive identification of risks and opportunities for wind
and solar technologies (excludes off-shore and BESS) and for Iberia, Brazil and USA (excludes
rest of Europe, rest of South America and APAC) and in line with the structure defined in the TCFD
recommendations;

Climate Scenario Alignment: Includes the validation and updating of the physical and transition
sub-scenarios, as well as the main climate variables (physical and transition);
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Risk quantification and Climate Value@Risk aggregation: Considers the evaluation of the most
relevant climate-related risks and opportunities of each geography (i.e., with an impact on
EBITDA of over €1m).

Climate risks and opportunities with a material impact (over €1m) are periodically calculated based
on the analysis of the impact on EBITDA and reported by each Business Unit/geography and duly
aggregated through a Climate Value@Risk (considering a set of assumptions of correlation between
risks and opportunities).

EDPR's Corporate Investor Relations & ESG (IR&ESG) works in close collaboration with the
company’s Corporate Risk Management Global Unit, thus facilitating the integration of climate-
related transition and physical risks into the company’s risk profile and risk management procedures
(assessment, integrated analyses of return-risk, mitigation strategies and monitoring).

IR&KESG reports periodically to EDPR’s ESG Committee, informing on climate related topics
regarding strategy, commitments and performance. Additionally, EDPR internally tracks its GHG
emissions on a monthly basis, as well as with quarterly public reports also disclosing its GHG
emissions.

EDPR is part of EDP’s periodic processes to monitor it. Including: 1) Annual climate risk assessment,
to evaluate and quantify impact of policy and legal risks. 2) Annual business plan, budget, and risk
map, which focus on the short to medium term costs associated with climate risks. 3) Quarterly risk
appetite dashboard to track legal and compliance risks across EDPR. 4) Dedicated follow-up by
legal departments on the progression of existing and potential litigation, with semi-annual reports.

E1IRO-1_02 - Description of process in relation to climate-related physical risks in
own operations and along value chain

EDPR has in place an annual climate risk assessment process which is structured in three distinct
phases: (1) risk identification, that guarantees the exhaustive identification of physical and
transitions risks and opportunities in its main geographies (Iberia, Brazil and USA), in line with TCFD
recommendations; (2) climate scenario alignment, that includes the validation and updating of the
physical and transition sub-scenarios, as well as the main climate variables (physical and
transition); and finally (3) risk evaluation and Climate Value@Risk aggregation, that aggregates the
quantification of the most relevant climate-related risks and opportunities of each geography (i.e.,
with animpact on EBITDA of over €1m).

EDPR analyses physical risks, which includes physical scenarios to assess the impact of climate
risks and opportunities. Regarding physical scenarios, IPCC scenarios are used to assess climate-
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related physical risks, considering forecasts for the long-term evolution of precipitation, wind
patterns, and temperature. IPCC’s scenarios are used - RCP 8.5, RCP 4.5 and RCP 2.6 (the most
aggressive CO, emission reduction scenario) -, to identify the most relevant chronic and acute risks
and evaluate potential impacts on its electricity generation and distribution activities from the
present time until 2050. As physical risks require a long-term analysis to identify any structural
change in their pattern or frequency/severity of occurrence, the focus of the physical risks and
opportunities analysis is from 2030 to 2050. The evolution of the physical variables, aligned with
RCP scenario, was provided by a specialised external consultant, using the Copernicus database
and other international databases. Assuming the physical variables' variation (average and worst
case scenario - P95%) for the different time horizons (2030 and 2050) and different RCP scenarios
(RCP 2.6, RCP 4.5 and RCP 8.5), EDPR assess and quantify the impact of those changes in their
businesses. For example, for extremely cold days, the loss of revenues results from not generating
due to malfunction of turbines/ panels.

Results highlighted a main key risk:

= Increased occurrence and severity of extreme temperature events, in particularly extremely cold
days causing malfunctioning turbines and panels and unpredictability of consumption (acute
physical risk).

EDPR’s business strategy is shaped to mitigate chronic risk through a diversified generation portfolio
in terms of technologies and geographies. Geographic diversification significantly reduces the risk,
as structural increase in temperature is not likely to occur in all geographies and with the same
magnitude. An example of this is the investment in other renewable sources, namely solar and wind
in different markets (European markets, North and South America, and APAC). To manage the acute
risk, EDPR has strengthened its business continuity and crisis management capabilities,
implemented a set of preventive measures, and defined a comprehensive range of insurance
policies.

EDPR's insurance policies cover property damage, as well as civil and environmental liability, across
multiple regions, including Europe, North and South America, and APAC. All EDPR plants (wind on-
shore and solar) are insured against physical damage during both the construction and operational
phases. This coverage includes protection against natural disasters, weather-related hazards, and
accidents, partially insuring revenue losses resulting from such events. As a result, no material
impacts related to climate change are reflected in EDPR’s consolidated financial statements.

Additionally, EDPR has implemented a robust set of insurance policies to mitigate the financial
Impact of extreme weather events, asset unavailability, significant third-party compensation claims,
and rare but catastrophic occurrences such as earthquakes.
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E1.IRO-1_03 - Climate-related hazards have been identified over short-, medium-
and long-term time horizons

EDPR assesses the impact of physical variables, specifically the increasing frequency and severity
of extreme events (including extreme cold days), by considering all assets impacted by this risk. The
information provided by climate scenarios is regionalized, and the most relevant assets exposed in
lberia, US and Brazil are identified. According with the data, provided by an external consultant and
based on Copernicus data source, the increase of the number of days subjected to extreme weather
events (cold days) for 2030 is 0 to +5 days in Spain and O to +10 days USA, and for 2050 is around O
to +5 days in Spain and O to +5 days in USA, depending on the RCP scenario and considering both
average and worst case scenario (P95%). Variations for Portugal and Brazil were not relevant.
Report of 2025 (following year) impacts are not relevant, as changes in physical variables,
particularly for extreme weather events (cold days), are most relevant in the mid to long term.

Extreme events (cold days) impact EDPR due to potential malfunctions in turbines and panels
increasing operational costs, and reducing sales (in case of generation assets).

E1IRO-1_04 - Undertaking has screened whether assets and business activities
may be exposed to climate-related hazards

EDPR has conducted a thorough screening of its solar and wind onshore assets and business
activities in Portugal, Spain, Brazil and USA to assess their exposure to climate-related hazards. At
EDPR, for example, assets are impacted by increasing frequency and severity of extreme events the
analysis includes assets in US, Iberia and Brazil (excludes rest of Europe, rest of South America and
APAC). The analysis is conducted under three different scenarios (RCP 2.6, RCP 4.5, and RCP 8.5)
from 2030 to 2050, as changes in physical variables, particularly extreme weather events, are most
relevant in the mid to long term. Extreme events (cold days) impact EDPR due to potential
malfunctions in turbines and panels increasing operational costs, and reducing sales (in case of
generation assets).

E1IRO-1_05 - Short-, medium- and long-term time horizons have been defined

Please check answer to E1.SBM-3_0b.
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E1.IRO-1_06 - Extent to which assets and business activities may be exposed and
are sensitive to identified climate-related hazards has been assessed

The assessment of the impact of physical variables, specifically the increasing frequency and
severity of extreme events (including extreme temperature events), by considering all assets
impacted by this risk for Iberia, US and Brazil. The analysis is conducted under three different
scenarios (RCP 2.6, RCP 4.5, and RCP 8.5) from 2030 to 2050, as changes in physical variables,
particularly extreme weather events, are most relevant in the mid to long term.

The information provided by climate scenarios is regionalized, and the most relevant assets (all solar
and wind onshore parks in the geographies recently mentioned) exposed are identified. This
estimate of financial impact considers the average and maximum financial impacts of historical
damage to generation assets or distribution networks, based on the impacts experienced from
historical events. The minimum values reported are based in Maximum Loss (ML) of RCP 2.6, and
the maximum values in ML of RCP 8.5.

The analysis follows these steps: (1) review historical data of storms or other extreme events,
analysing frequency, average impact of the sample, and worst-case event as a proxy for maximum
impact to establish the base case; (2) consider the additional frequency of occurrence regarding the
scenario and the time horizon analysed, provided by Copernicus data source(+5 days in Portugal,
+5 days in Spain and +10 days in Brazil); and (3) using statistical data of additional frequency,
average, and maximum impacts, calculate a loss distribution to compute the annual expected and
maximum losses. The exposure is evaluated in point (3), with the calculation of the expected and
maximum losses.

E1.IRO-1_07 - Identification of climate-related hazards and assessment of
exposure and sensitivity are informed by high emissions climate scenarios

EDPR, aligned with the Climate Risk Assessment, uses IPCC’s scenarios - RCP 8.5, RCP 4.5 and
RCP 2.6 (from the least to the most aggressive CO2 emission reduction scenario, the description of
the climate scenarios is further detailed), to identify the most relevant chronic and acute risks and
evaluate potential impacts on its electricity generation and distribution activities from the present
time until 2050. As physical risks require a long-term analysis to identify any structural change in
their pattern or frequency/severity of occurrence, the focus of the physical risks and opportunities
analysis is from 2030 to 2050. Physical parameters are updated based on data sources aligned
with RCP scenarios (e.g., World Bank Group, Copernicus, and some local data sources) and BUs
access and quantify the impact of those changes in their businesses.



EDPR Integrated Annual Report 2024
Consolidated Statement of Non-Financial Information and Sustainability Information | Environmental Information

Physical scenarios in place:

RCP 2.6: considers (1) compliance with the Paris Agreement; (2) that the energy system reaches
carbon neutrality by 2070; (3) that the temperature rises between 1.5°C and 2°C; and (4) that the
average sea level rises by 0.4m and ocean acidification begins to recover by 2050

RCP 4.5: considers that (1) the Paris Agreement is not fulfilled; (2) the temperature rises between
2°C and 3°C and extreme temperatures become more frequent; and (3) the sea level rises by
0.5m and many species are unable to adapt

RCP 8.5: considers that (1) the Paris Agreement is not fulfilled; (2) the temperature rises by more
than 3°C; (3) extreme events become more frequent and there are large variations in rainfall; and
(4) the sealevelrises by 0.7 metres.

As previously referred on E1.SBM-3_01and E1.SBM-3_05, the analysis is conducted under the three
different scenarios from 2030 to 2050, as changes in physical variables, particularly extreme
weather events, are most relevant in the mid to long term. Additional frequency of occurrence
regarding the scenario and the time horizon analysed, provided by Copernicus data source (+5 days
in Portugal, +5 days in Spain and +10 days in Brazil) is considered, up on the historical events of each
region, to estimate most exposed regions and assets.

The sensitivity of financial estimates are attached to climate parameters' change, namely regarding
additional days of extreme weather events vs base case. For high emission scenarios (RCP 8.5) the
change in the number of extreme weather days is higher than in low emissions scenario (RCP 2.6).

Climate risks and opportunities with a material impact (over €1m) are periodically calculated based
on the analysis of the impact on EBITDA and reported by each Business Unit/geography and duly
aggregated through a Climate Value@Risk (considering a set of assumptions of correlation between
risks and opportunities).

E1IRO-1_08 - Explanation of how climate-related scenario analysis has been used
to inform identification and assessment of physical risks over short, medium and
long-term

EDPR performs the Climate Risks Assessment of its portfolio, which includes only solar and wind
onshore assets in lberia, US and Brazil (without considering for this assessment rest of Latin America,
APAC and rest of Europe), integrated into the global risk management process, to annually review
and report on the resilience of the strategy to climate change.
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Climate scenarios characterize physical dimension for a 30-year horizon. Their narratives were built
focusing on the various dimensions, namely social, regulatory and political, economic and
technological, and energy.

CLIMATE SCENARIOS

PHYSICAL SCENARIOS

RCP 2.6: considers (1) compliance with the Paris Agreement; (2) that the energy system reaches carbon neutrality by
2070; (3) that the temperature rises between 1.5°C and 2°C; and (4) that the average sea level rises by 0.4m and ocean
acidification begins to recover by 2050

>
@

G
(As green as it gets)

BGT RCP 4.5: considers that (1) the Paris Agreement is not fulfilled; (2) the temperature rises between 2°C and 3°C and extreme
(A bit greener than temperatures become more frequent; and (3) the sea level rises by 0.5m and many species are unable to adapt

today)

SMT RCP 8.5: considers that (1) the Paris Agreement is not fulfilled; (2) the temperature rises by more than 3°C; (3) extreme

(SlOW move to events become more frequent and there are large variations in rainfall; and (4) the sea level rises by 0.7 metres

transition)

The evolution of the physical variables was provided by a specialised external consultant, using the
Copernicus database and other international databases.

Evaluation, based on the individual analysis of the impact on EBITDA of each risk and opportunity
(physical and transition), is carried out by EDPR associated to solar and wind on-shore generation
assets and for Iberia, Brazil and USA (excluding rest of Latin America, APAC and rest of Europe).
This quantification considers the identification of the physical variables and their evolution
according to the experts, and the political/social/economic/technological narratives related to the
different scenarios. The quantification method depends on each risk and opportunity using,
whenever possible, the direct method (expected loss/gain and maximum loss/gain at P95%) or,
alternatively, the indirect method (probability/frequency, average impact and maximum impact at
P95%). For the purposes of the Group's analysis, the consolidation of losses and gains is carried out
considering correlations among risks and opportunities and among geographies. The timeframe is
detailed in the scope of the resilience analysis.

E1.IRO-1_09 - Description of process inrelation to climate-related transition risks
and opportunities in own operations and along value chain

EDPR conducts a comprehensive and multi-faceted approach to assess and manage climate-
related transition risks and opportunities across its operations. This includes annual and quarterly
risk assessments, budget planning, business planning, energy outlook scenario analysis and
emerging risks surveys.
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EDPR conducts an annual Climate Risk Assessment and Quantification process, spearheaded by
the corporate Risk and Sustainability departments. This comprehensive process evaluates the
primary transition climate risks and opportunities across geographies with significant turnover. The
assessment spans the Iberia, Brazil, and US markets, covering wind onshore and solar generation.
The Climate Risk Assessment and Quantification process involves the following key steps: (1) Risk
identification — Guarantees the exhaustive identification of risks and opportunities in each business
and main geographies and in line with the structure defined in the TCFD recommendations; (2)
Climate Scenario Alignment — Includes the validation and updating of the physical and transition
sub-scenarios, as well as the main climate variables (physical and transition); and (3) Risk
evaluating and Climate Value@Risk aggregation — Considers the quantification of the most relevant
climate-related risks and opportunities of each geography (i.e., with an impact on EBITDA of over
€1m).

Additionally, the Risk department develops a report for the Risk Monitoring Committee monthly to
monitor volatile risks and update exposure to key risk sources. This includes an annual risk map
exercise with quarterly interim updates, identifying the most relevant risks, including climate-related
transition risks, within budget and business plan time horizons. Risks are mapped according to
expected loss (average scenario) and maximum loss (worst-case scenario), allowing for
prioritization based on materiality and setting a focused risk agenda. In the process of Risk Map,
climate-related risks, such as transition risks, are assessed through sensitivity and stochastic
analysis at EDPR, consolidating all geographies.

The budget process is an annual exercise to plan the year ahead. The Risk department identifies
possible transition risks for the next year, impacting EDPR’s results through sensitivity and stochastic
analysis of various indicators, such as the impact of extreme weather events . The business planis a
bi-annual prospective exercise of EDPR’s activity for the next five years, considering risks that may
affect EDPR’s result. This encompasses all geographies. Strategic decisions, business plans, and
targets are defined after a structured reflection on market conditions, considering historical and
prospective evolution of transition risks (e.g., regulation and policies, costs of technologies).
Sensitivity and stochastic analysis to EBITDA@Risk and NI@Risk according to different scenarios
are also performed.

An annual energy outlook scenario analysis is perf